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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-15

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUAMNT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

Check the appropriate box:

[ ]Prefminary informetion Statemen
[ %] Definibve Information Statement

Mame of Regisirant as specified In iis charder. Del Monte Pacific Limited

Buitish Virgin Islands
Province, country or odher jursdiclion of incorporation or arganization
SEC identification Murnbar:  NS/A

BIR Tax identfication Code:  WA&

Ad-:lre-.su nfprh'nt,l.pa’ml‘ﬁne . = z . Postal Coda

Hegistranl's telephone number, including area code:  +65 6324 6822

Date, time and place of the meetng of security holders:

Annual General Mesting

Dale: 30 August 2024
Time: 10:00 a.m.
Place; Orchard Balirgom 3, Level 3 of Orchard Hotel, 443 Orehard Road, Singapore 238878

Approximate date on which B Information Statement is first to be sant or given to sscurity holders
B August 3034

In case of Proxy Solicitations;  MN&
Marn of Persan Filing the -E-'latnmnnt.IE:llmnur

Address and Telephona Ma.;

Securities registered pursean to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the REA (information on

rumber of shares and amount of debl 5 applicable ondy to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Mumbar of Shares of Common Stock
Cwtstanding or &rmount of Debd Outstanding
— Crdinary Shares 1.9435.960.024

Arg gy of all of registrant’s mn.lilcs listed m a Siock Exchange?
Yes o

i yes, dsclose the name of such Siock Exchange and the class of secuwities listed thersing




DEL MOMFE PACIFHC LIVETED
i rcogeTresd 1 P Brbak Wrppn Glarakh AR bt LDy of 37 Llgs & P0G

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

WOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN thal tha Annual Genaral Meating ("AGM} of Del Monte Pacific Limited
{the “Company”) will k¢ held al Orchard Baliroom 3, Level 3 Orcherd Holel, 442 Orchard Road,
Singapore 238878, on Friday, 30 August 2024 at 10.00 a.m., Tor the fallwing purposes.;

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Te racaive and adopt the Directors’ Staterment and the Audited Financial Statements of the
Company, logether with the Audiors’ Report thereon, for the financial vear ended 30 April

2024,
[Resabition 1]

2. To re-elact Mr, Edgardo M. Cruz, Jr. &% a Direclor of the Company who refires pursuant to
Article 88 of the Company's Artickes of Association and Rule 72045} of the Lisling Manual of
the Singapae Exchangs Securitas Trading Limitad ["SGX-5T)

[Resolution 2]

Mr. Edgardo M Cruz, Jr owill, upon re-alachion as & Direclor, remain as a mumbor of [he
Aominaling and Govermanese Commiies
(S Explanarory hoke i)

3 To note thai Mr. Godirey E, Scolchbrook who relines pursuant to Article 88 of the Company's
Articles of Association and Rule T20(5) of the Listing Manual of the SGX-5T is nol seeking
re-@laclion as a Direclor of the Comgany
[Sma Explanatary Nods ()]

4, To transact any other ordinary business which may be transacied at an AGM.
AS SPECIAL BUSINESS
To considar and, if thowght fif, to pass the following resclutions as Ordinary Resolulions:

5 T approve the paymeant of Directors” fees of up bo WSHEET, 0000 for the financial year ending
30 Aprd 2025 CFY 20257 (FY2024: USEE27,0000-), to be paid quariarly in amears, compuled
based on the fee siructure set oul balow!

Board Chairman: US392.000 per snmim

Direciors; USS54,000 per annum

Audit and Hisk Commifles Chairman: US524, 750 par amnum

Remuneration and Share Option Committes Chairman; US$12 375 par annum
Hominating and Governance Commitbes Chairman; USE12,37T5 per annum

Audit and Risk Committes Members: LSS5 500 per annum

Remunesation and Share Oplion Committee Members: USSE. 750 per annum
Mominaling and Governance Commétes Members: LISEE, 750 per annum

[Sew Explanaiony Mot (il [Resolution 3]

G, Te authorize the Direclors of the Company fo fix, incresse or vary the emoluments of
Creclors of up to USE100, 0000 with respect (o services o be rendaned in any capascity (o

the Company.
[Saa Explanalon Mot (vl [Resolution 4]
T To re-appoint Emnst & Young LLP a3 the Auditors of the Group and to authorize the Directors

af thie Comparny to fi their rarmunarataon,
[Resalution 5]



To re-appoint Sycip Gorras Velayo & Co, {Emsl & Young Philippines) as the Philippine
Audilors of the Group and to authorize the Directors of the Comgany bo fix heir remunaration

[Resclution §]

Authority to lssue Shares

Thal pursuant o Aricle 15(2) of the Company’s Articles of Associstion and Rule 806 of the

b
ia)

(B

Listing Manual of the SGX-5T, tha Directors of the Cempany be authorized and empowered

i lggue shares in the Company "Shares™) whethar by way of rights, bosws or
otferwise; andio

(il maka ar grant offers, agreements or eplions (colleciively, "Instruments”) that
gt or wiould require Shares bo be issued, including, bud not Emited fo, tha
crealion and Esee of (3% well as adjustments o) oplions, warranis,
deberturas or other instruments converible into Shares,

at any time and wpon such terms and conditions, and for such purposes and 1o such
parsons as the Directors of the Company may i thedr atsolute discretion deem fit;
and

(ratwithstanding the authorily confesred by this Resolubon may have caased to be
in force) m=uwe Shares in pursuanes of any Instrumends made or granbed by the

Directorg of the Companmy white this Resalution was in force,

provided that:

1

(2

(3

L]

the agoregate number of Shares (including Shares to be sswed in pursuance of the
Instrumants, made or granted pursuant 1o this Resclulicn) o be issued pursuant 1o
this Resehtion shall nol exceed 50% of the tolal number of isswed Shares (excluding
treeswry shares and subsidiary holdings in each class) n the capital of the Comgani
(a5 calcukated in accordance with sub-paragragh (2) belowl, of which the aggregate
number of Shares to be issued other than on a pro rata basis 1o Shareholders of (he
Company shall not exeeed 15% of the total number of issued Shares (sxcluding
treasury shares and subsidiary holdings in-each class) in the capital of the Company
(as calculated in accordance wilh sub-paragraph (2} below);

(subject o such manner of calculation as mey be prescribed by the SGX-5T) for the
purpose af delermining the aggregate mumber of Shares that may be ssuwed under
sulb-paragraph (1) abowve, the tofal number of issued Shares (axcluding treasey
shares and subsidiary holdings in sach class) shall be based on the tolal number of
issued Shares (excluding treasury shares and subsidiary boldings in each class) in
the capilal af the Company at the fime of the passing of thes Resolubion, afer
adjusting for

() nenw Shares ansing from the convarsion or exercisa of any comvartible
sacurites;

(b} nenw Shares ariging from the exercize of share opticns which are outstanding
ar subzisting al the fime of the passing of this Resalution; and

(6} any subsequent bonus issue, consclidation or subdivision of Shares;

in eoercising the authority confermed by this Resolulien, the Company shall comply
wilh the provisions of the Lstng Manual of the SGX-5T for the teme baing n force
[unless such compliance has been waived by the SGX-5T) and the Aricles of
Association of the Company; and

unlass revoked or varked by the Company ina general mesting, such authorily shall
contimee in force untl the concusion of the next AGM of the Company or the date by
which the necd AGM of the Company is reguired by [aw to be held, whichever is
erliesr

[Ser Explanmisn: Mole (Vi [Resclution T)
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Autharity o Allot and Issue Shares under the Del Monte Pacific Execulive Share
Option Plan 2016

That approval be and i hereby granted to the Direclors of the Company, acling thraugh its
Remuneration and Share Option Commiites, 1o alled and sswe from time to time such Shares
@5 may be allolied and =sued pursuanl (o the exercse of the Del Monle Pacific Execulive
Share Option Plan 2015 ("EBOP"), provided abvays thal the aggregate number of Shares to
be alicfted and issued pursiant o the ESOP shall nol exceed ten percen (10%;) of the tolal
number of issued Shares (excheding treasury shares and subsidiary holdings in each class)
in the: capital of the Company from time 1o tme and tha such authonity shall, unless revoked
of varied by the Company in a general meating, continwe in force until the conclusion of tha
next AGM of the Company or the date by which the next AGM of the Company is requined by
kxw 1o bo held, whichaver i5 aarfar.

{See Explanatory Nake (vil] [Resolution 8]

Renewsl of Shareholders' Mandate for Interestad Person Transactions
That for the purposes of Chapter 9 of the Listeng Manual of the SGX-5T;

{al approval ba given for the renewal of the mandate for the Company, its subsidianies
and target assocabed comaanies of any of them 1o efber inbo any of the iransactions
falling within the typas of Interested Person Transactions as s&t oul on page 5 of the
Company's infarmation memorandurn (Infermation Memorandum”®) with any pary
wh is of the dass of Inferested Persons described in the Information Memorandum,
provided thal sweh fransadlions are carriad oul in the normal courss of business, al
arm's length and on commercial terms, and in accordance with the guidelines of the
Company for Interested Person Transactions, as sefl out in the information
Memorandum (the “|PT Mandate”);

=] the IFT Mandate shall, uniess rewcked or vared by the Company al & general
mesding, confinue in force until the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company; and

ic) authorly be given to e Direciors 1o compleds and do all such acls and things
{inchuding exaculing all such documents g8 may be requered) s they may conasder
necessary, desirabie of expedien! o give effed to the IPT Mandate as they may think
fit,

[Soe Explanalony Nato ful)l] [Resolution 5]

By Onger of the Board

Antonio E. &, Ungson
Company Secratary
B August 2z

Explanatory Motes 1o Resclutions to ba passed —

i

-'mF: bic-dats of Mr. Edgardo M. Cnz, Jr. seeking re-appoiniman & appanded for Shareholdemns’
infarmation;

#dr, Edgarda M. Cruz, Jr, Execufive Qvogior GF
{Appointed an 2 May 2008 and issd re-apooihed an 27 Augusl 2021)

In e with Provesson 4.4 af the 2018 Code of Corporate Governance {“3018 CF Code”): (a) these ane no
relatonsnips o Dusness relalionships which Mr. Cruz, hs immedisls family mamber, ar @0 organization
ir whazh r. Crue o his immadiate family meamber is 3 substantial shareholder, panner (with 5% ar moe
staka), gxecuiing offices or diractar nas with the Campany of any of 18 reladed carporatans, and [b) Mr
Crg daes nat hold directarships in other Bsted companies.

Mr, Edgarda M. Cruz, & 18 8 & 8 Director af Del Mants Foods, Ing., DMPL's US subsidiary, and of Del
Mange Philippenes, Inc., DMPL"s Philippine subsidiary. He i 8 member of the Boand of tha Nulrissia Snoup
of Compankas. Mr. Cruz is tha Chasman snd Pragidant of Cagital Conaarlium. e, He i aisa the Chairnan
of the Bosrd of Bonifscio Gas Comporation. Bonifacis Water Corporation, Bonifeck Transpart Corporation
and Crescent West Development Carporation. He is 8 member of the Boand of Evergreen Hokdings. Inc.,
For Bonifacio Developmeni Corporation, BGE Wesl Proparies. Inc, Bonifaco Glotal City Estate



()
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(W}

£

{ui

[vi]

Association end Bonfacio Eslaie Services Corporation, He 5 also a Board member and Chiel Financial
Oifficer of Ban#acio Land Comporaticn. He aits an e Baands ol Ayala Greanfeld Developmant Somporation
and Ayale Greenfield Golf and Leisure Club, Inc. He is a member af the Boasd of Truatess of Bonitacio
Ars Foundation, Inc., The Mind Museum and the Del Momte Foundaton, ing, Mr, Gruz eamed his BMEA
degrea from tha Assan Institude of Mansgement and his bachelor's degress in Actaunting and Economica
irgm De La Salle Linjvarsity. He is @ Canfiad Pubic Accountant,

Agditicnad infarmabon an Mr. Edgardo M. Cruz, Jr. as required o be fumished pursuant io Rule ]'EEHE:l-H
the Listing Mampusl of the SGX-ET i found in Ihe FY2024 Annual Report, under the "Beard of Directars”
sachan

Iur. Godfrey E. Scolchbrook™s refiresmani fram ihe Board will take alfact upon e conclizsion of the AGKM
Ha wil cease to ba the Charman of the Remuneration and Sham Opticn Commitlee and a member of
ihe Audit and Riek Commiies and Mominating and Govermance Commiitas

The Cdinary Reschution 3 abowva is b approve the peymeart of Dinactars’ feas far FYI025, ta ba paid
quartery in armears in accordance wilh the proposed fee structure. The fes struchurs is based on guideires
recommended by the Singapore Institube of Diractars and disclosed in the Corpomate Gavemance Report
in hie Anneal Reparl. The proposed Direcloss’ fees lor FY2025 are commensurale with e onarous
respanshiifies placed on e Directors

The Ordinary Resslution 3 i passed, will authorize the payrmend of Direciors’ kees for FY2025, @
Boporgance with tha lee sirusiee, smeunting up te USES21 0004 and (hars @ no change bom prhor year
on & par Hrecior basis.

The Crdinary Resalubon 4 proposed above, if passed, will also authorize the Direciors of the Company o
fx, incrages ar vary e amolumants of Dinactors of up o USS100,.0000- with respact of sanvices 1o be
rerdered i any capacity o the Company. This would provide flaxbilsy for the Company 1o engage or
procure ihe specialisl services of Direclons 88 spprapdiale and a8 may be reguired by e Comparny.

The Cwdinary Rescaion ¥ proposed above, f passad, wil empowar the Dectors of the Company,
effective unbl the conciusicn of Me nexl AGM of ke Tompany, of e dale by wiich e nexl AGK of ihe
Company is requinsd by law to be hdd o such autharity is vanisd or nevekad by tha Company in a general
meating. whichewar &5 tha aadier, 10 Ssus Shames, meke ar grant instuments carmartibla inte Shares and
ta issua Shares pursuant fo such Instrurments, up bo & Aumber nol excseding, in takal, 5056 of (ke total
number of issued Shares [exceding beasury shames and subsidiary holdings in gach class) in the cepital
of tha Company, of which up to 15% may be ssued olhar than on & pro rata base to Shamebaldars. Fo
determining the aggregate number of Shases thal may be issued, the iofal number of issuved Shames
(exciuging treasury shares and subsidiary holdings in each class) will be calculated besed on the toksl
mumbar of isaued Shares (excluding reasury shares and subaidiary holdings in each class) in the capila
of thet Company &l the Bme this Ordinary Resolution is passed, after adjusting for new Shams arising from
the conversion or exarcies of any convenble sscurities or share aplions which are oubslanding o
subsisting at fhe ime when this Ordinary Resolufion & passed, and any subseguent bonus issue,
consaldatian or subdwision af Shares.

The Ordinary Resaluticn B propased sbowe, f passad, will empowear the Directors of the Company,
effective unlil the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company, or the dete by which the next AGM of $e
Compary is reguised by law bo be bald or sush authorly @& varied o revoked by the Company in a general
meating, whichewer is the sariier. to alot and Esue from tma: o tme such number of fully-paid Shares in
the capital of the Compeany. &8 may be reguired 10 be lsswsd purgusnt bo the exercize of oplions under
e ER0OF The agpregale number of Shanes which may be issued pursuant o the ESOR and any othear
share option plandsl share plan{s} which the Company may heve in plece shall nol axcesad tan percam
[10%) af ke oial number of issued Shares jexcliding freasury shares and subsidiary haldings in each
clags) in the capital of tha Company from tma to Bma

The Cydinary Resaluion 8 proposed above, if passed, will authonze the Inkerested Person Transaciions,
as descibed In the Information Memorandum aceompanyiyg the FY 2024 Arnual Repor and recurming o
e year. and will empower the Directars ba do al acis necessary o ghae effect to tha IPT Mandate. This
aulbarity will, unkess previously revoked ar vanied by tha Company 8t a general mesting, expine at he
conclusion of the next AGM of e Company.

Pa r Ordina h

The Company's dvidend payment policy & te distribute & manimum of 33% of ull year proft but remaing subjectio
raview by thie Board, &€ ihane may Be Bmes when e Company's sumplus is usad 1o fund its cash flow mguinments

Thare wak ns dividand destared far FY20124 due bo the nat loss postion of the Company.

Impaetant Information



Thie AGH will be held by way of physical maeting In Sngapore end proteacings of the AGM I Singapere will ba
made available o Sharehoiders in the Philippines via a videoconference faclity al tha 134 Flocr, JY Campas Canlre,
Sin Avenus camer 30th Streed, Bonifack Glebal City, Taguig City, Medna Manila Phippines.

Access o Dacumentd

Printad copes of this Mabica and the accompanying proey form will be sant by post b Shareholders. These
documends afong with the FY2024 Annual Reparl and Informaton Memcomandum in relaton o Renewal of
Sharencders’ Mandas far Imerasied Person Transaclicns will also be pubkzhed an the Comparny's websiie al ihe
URL s e, deloniepaciic.can, e SGX websie ot he URL Mg benussisonisecutionomuan:
anfouncemeants and FSE wabsle al the URL fips:ifed :

may also reguesl far & prirded capy of the Annugl Haparlmw W
SIS OF Qe S s

1 Sharaholdars, incuding GPF and SBS invesiors. may submd quaskons relaled o the resolubons fo ba
tabied for appeoval at the Meslirg in advanee of the Mestng:

i} ¥ eubmitted By pesl, be deposlied at Registared Office of tha Company's Singapore Share Ragistrar,
Boardropm Comporate & Advisory Services Pie, Lid, 1 Harbowfront Avenue, #14-07 Keppal Bay
Tower, Singapare QBSE32; or

ib} & subhmithed slecironically, be sent via email b delmonespmi@bosmd raomiimited. com

Wihen submilting questons by post or via emall, sharenoldeds enould also provide the following cetalls: O}
1he shamrehalder's Rl name, (i) the shanehakder's address. and (&) the manner in which e shareholdes
hokds shares in the Campany (2.9, via COP, CPF, SRS andior scrip), for varificalion purposss.

All guestions must be raceed by Wedneaday, 71 August 2024,

2 The Compary wil address 8ll substantial and relevant gueslione recahed fram meambers by pubishing
ils resparses jo such Queslions an the SGX websibe and the Company’s website ab the URL
hitps:www. dakmontepacific com by Monday, 38 August 2024. Tha Company will respond to questions
of Tolow-up quealions submilied afar the 21 Aumgust 2024 deading al the Meeding ilssll. Whene
substantislly similar gquestons ame recewed, the Compeny wil consolidate such quesbons and
consequently, nat all questions may ba indwidually sddressed,

A, Rotas for Sharaholdars in Singapone:

1 A Eharehalder angfied bo attend and wate at the A&GM is antitled b2 appont not mara than twe {21 prodies
ta athand and wata in hisher stead. & prosy need not be & Sharehaldar of the Compary.

z If @ Cepositor wishes v appaint 8 proxyfprosies o amend dne A&GM, than ha'she must complele sno
deposit the Depositor praxy fomm al the office of the Shase Transfer Agant in Singapone, Boardraam
Conparate & Advisory Services P'1¢ Lid., 1 Hamourfront Awvenue, &814=07 Kepoel Bay Tower, Singapone

{98632 or email o de Gooardmomiiming com at least fory-eight (48] hours Delone he ime
af 1hs AGHK.

3 If the Desposiier is a corporation, tha instrumaent appointing a prosy must b= axacuied wnder sasl of the
hand of {15 duly Buthorized aficer ar aklomey.

B, Hotes for Shareholders in the Philipplnes:

1 Onty Sharehciders at record data af the close of busness of Friday, 23 August 2024 are enlitied to flend
and vole al tha AGM,

2 While elactronic pall wibing (B not evallable to Shasehaldean in fhe Phiippines who am unable o aliend

ise AGM in Smpapore, they will stll be able to wole by manual poll voting i BManila. Howswar,
Shareholdars in the Phifppines wno wish 1o.aband the AGM [n Singagons will be able o patcipate in the
alacironic poll waling. To tacililsle regitrabion, pleass bring a valid govemmend-issued |0,

3 Sharehciders in the Phidippinas who wish 10 wole Bul cannat sllend sithes (he AGM in Singapone ar the
widegcanference in the Philippines may sl do 50 by appointing a przay o atiend the meeling n Singapane
ar in Manila. Heshe must complele the encleasd pragy form and subrmil the same on or before
Wadnesday, 18 August 2024 at 10,00 sum. b the Compary's Philpping Stock Transfar Agent, BDO
Unibank, inc. Trust and Investmants Grovp - Securities Sarvicas (Siock Trangtar), 81 its o¥ics address in
4Eth Floor BOO Comporate Canter Origes, East Towar, 12 ADE Avenus, Orfigas Canler, Mandaluysng
City, Philppines, for the atbardion of Ms, Concapoon "leng” Foronda and Ms, Gasan Teslema or emall o
boo-siockiransfarteam2@ibde. com onh

5 Shareholders in the Philippines may 250 be antiled to apposnt nol mone Man twa (2) proses b aiend n
hisfner siead. A proxy need mal b a Member or Sharehoider of the Comgany,
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Company’s Phiippine Stock Transfer Agent, BOO Unibanik Inc. Trust and invesiments Groug — Secwrilies
Serdtas (Sock Translern)

Fersonal defa privacy;

By submitting an instrumens appainting a praxyiies) andior representativels) b sthend, speak and vose at the AGM
andfar amy adioumment thersod, 3 mamber of the Company (1) consants fo the collacion. use and disclosurs of the
member’'s persanal data by the Company (or it agents| for the purpase of the processing and adminstration by
the Ciompary [or its sgenis) of proxes and mpresentatives appoiniad for e AGM {includng ary adjournment
iherend) and the precaration and compilaiion of the anendance ksls, minses and ciner documearnts relating o the
AGM [including any adjournment Bhenaof], ard in arder far the Company [of iis agents) b comply with any
soplicabda laws, lishng rules, regulations andiar guedelnes (coBactively. tha "Furpases’), (i) warrenls st whene
the member discloses the personal data of the member's proxy{ies) and'or represaniaivels) to the Company (or
its agents ). the memzar has obtained the prior consent of such proay(es) andior represandativeds) for the codection,
wrse and disclasune by ihe Company (or its agenis) of fhe personal dada of such procyies) andiar representative|s)
far thia Purpesas. and (i) agress that the mesmder will insamnify the Company in raspact of any penalties, liabiites,
claims, demands, ledes and damages as & resall of the member's Bresch of warrarly.
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PROXY FORM

The Arnual Genersl Meeting {“AGM”} of Dol Monts Pacific Limited will be hold at Orchard Ballroom 3, Leval 3
Orehard Hodel, 442 Drehard Road, Singaparo 230870, on Friday, 30 August 2024 at 10-00 a.m.

Proceedings of the AGM in Bingapore will be made available to Bhareholders in the Philippines via &
videoconferance facility atthe 15t Floor, JY Campoas Cantre, Sth Avenus gorner 30th Streat, Bonifacio Global Gity,
Taguig City, Matro Manila Phitippines,

A Shargholdor {whothar Individual or corporata) must complabe this Prosy Farm bo effect the appaintment of the
Chalrman of the Masting as hafherlits proxy 1o speak and vete on kisihariits behall af the AGM in respact of the
Sharahcldens | Shares,

T LrcArs g, Barg A sharshclder of DEL MONTE PACIFIC LIMITED (S “Company”|, whoss name s in the Ragesler af
Parribaere 88 80 25 Auguet W4 (RecordAlut O Dado”) hareby consfitutes and oppoints:

Tree Chasman of (he Masling, a5 ordsy, 15 regeesanl ac & vl in Fiahenits name and Send & the AGKN
ol (hix Cormaary [0 B2 et on 30 Aoguel 2024 at 1000 2 and of &y ediourmmesy Deeol, 25 fully and 1o
ol inlenis and purposes-as the undersigned might do @ peesen and SEENg in pErson

iPiaas indicale yeur vede "For' o YAgainel” or “Abatsin” with a tick [] within the box provided.)

Mo. | Resoiutions reiating ko Far | Against | Absiain

1 m#wm.ﬂhdHﬁmuﬁhwfﬂﬁwW

“mﬂﬁgiﬁgmm Cng,_Jr un%gﬂm

Agpezal of parymant of Drecion’ fees for the francal year ending 30 Apnl 2025
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BFORMATION REQUIRED IM INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION
Date, Time and Place of Mesting of Security Holders.

The Anrus!l General Mesting ["AGM®) of the sharehcidars of Del Monte Pacifc Limited (the "Company’|
waill b hezld an 30 Augrst 2024 al 1000 a.m,, and will be corvened and held af Orchasd Balroam 3, Level
3 of Onghard Hoted. 442 Orchard Road. Singapora 238879

The malkng address of tha Company in Singapore s &1 oo 17 Bukit Pazoh Rosd, Singapore QBSE31.
whik Ibs mailing address in the Philippings is &t oo 107 Flooe, JY Camgos Centre, B Avenus carmer 307
Sireal, Bonifacio Global Gy, Taguig City, 1834 Philippinas

In complance with the MNotice of e Secunities and Exchange Commeson dated 22 February 2024, the
Company shall cause e publicabon of the Medce of Meatng in o [2) nesspapers of geraral pubication,
in prind and onlne format, on 8 August 2024 and 9 Augual 2024, and the Infarmabon Stalesment and ather
pedinent matenai ahall be svalstle 1o the sharehslders through the Corngany's and (ke Philippine Skack
Exchange websites

Dizsenters' Right of Appraisal
Mot mppiicabie
Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition fo Matters to be Actad Upson

Exeepl far the fesslulions stated in Sectian 18a)(i), (i}, (&), (vii) and {x) below, none of tha Directars o
officers of the Compary, or any nomines to the Board, or any assoclaton of he foregoing pereons have
Eny subsisnlial nlerest direct or indirect, by security holdings or othersize, in any matier 1o be acied
upon during the AGM oiher than elechan to office

Mane of he Direcion have infarmed the Company in witing that he ar she inlends o oppase any maber
to ber ached upon at the AGM,

Mo cumidalive valing rights ane svailable

CONTROL AND COMP

Voling Securities and Principal Holders Thenmd

The Company has a iofal af 1,943,980 024 pulstarding Qrdinary Shares a5 af the date of ths Informaton
Stalermnani

Halders of Ordinary Shares afe antitied to one voba for each sham of stock held &8 of the esteblizhed
recod data,

As af 30 June 2024, 98 68% of the iotal outstanding shares or 1,858,366 261 Ordinary Shares of the
Comgany an famsign-owned shares,

Al shanshohdars &a of 23 August 2024 are enfitlied 1o aitend and vole at the AGM

In determining the date of sharsholoers antiled i allend &nd vale, the Company lakes into account tha
dedinition of “recesd dale” under the 2015 SRC Rules, and Articles 7141 )1b) and T1{15d) of the Comgeny's
Articias of Assotiation

20116 SRC Rule 20.2 1.8 defines “record date” a5 e daie on which ihe hebdens of secuni@s andilisg o
wole &l the meeling, in pEreon or by witlen cansend or autharization. shall ba determinad.

A a rule. every mamibaer is entiled to attend and vole 8t & general meeting af tha Company. Howewer, if
& member appoints & prooy, Arlicke 71014} of the Artices of Associalion stales (hat ihe “Deposory shal
bi daemad 10 have appaintad a5 the Dapostany's proxies fo vobe on behalf of the Depositary 81 8 general
meeting of the Company each of e Deposkors who am individuals and whase names arg shown an the
racards of the Depository as at a bme not earier tharn 48 hours priar fe be time of the ralevanl genacal
meeling.” Artcie T1(1)d) fusher provides that “the Company shall reject any GOP proxy form of &

Pargpa | 1
Informartion Stademieni



neminating depesiar il B name is pal shown (0 Se reconds of the Deposilony &8 81 8 Gme not earfiar than
4B nours priar io M@ lime af e geneml mesting,”

Securily Ownership of Certan Recom and Beneficial Owners and Managemant

i Secunly Dwearship of Cenain Recond and Banefical Owners of More Than 5%

Tha tmble balow sels farih e sesurily cwnemhip af camain record and beneficial cwness of mane
iran 5% ol the Company's voling secunitiss as of tho gate of this iInfarmalion Statement.

Mame of
Nama and AGdress of  p_ o re ol Ovwmer Na, of % of Tatal
?1"“ m“:’m snd Citizenship  Common  Ouistanding
s i+ i with Rpcerd Shares Held  Shares
T g
Ordrary Mulrfsis Pacifc HAPL = the Biritier 1,186 505 958 B1.55%
Shangs Limibed {"MAPL] onedcial and Wargn Ovliriry
raGord cwvrar of Il ks Shares
Trdent Chambsers jhe shires
Foad Town, Toro, ircicaled *
[Briggh Wegn Blands
Sharanoidar
sy HESEC [Singapone) Bivabal Greug Bintish 155, ThE 540 9 ThE
Shares Hom's Pia Lid Hogings Limied Wirgin Crdrary
HEECT ["Blueball’) = ha Iearas Ehanes
beneficial oener of
21 Callys Quay #13- e 5 hard
01 HSBC Budding Indicated *
Srgepon 048320
The Shares A
Sharehaider bl i1 e
by HSBEC
Ohrdrary Lee Finsapple Ligs i s GrgEnae 106, 25 00 540
Snanes P Lad berertrial ard Cidinany
Fles’) FRCLRT Cabre of Sharea
the shves
ES Chulg 51 #4401 IrCannd =
CGCBE Certre
Sngapore 048513
Erarennide
s

* MAPL and Sivebeil are banslicialy cwosd by Me Josslde D Camipes, Jr and ihe Campon famiy of the
Flpyanas

** Laa g Benalicialy cwned by the Lea Famiy of Malsyss

NAPL and Blueball

MAPL was incorporated In the BV on 21 Movemnber 2005 under |l principal aclivily ks thal of an
investment holding company, It & 100%-oxned by the Nutrifsia Group of Companies which s
majaiity-awred by (e Campos family of the Phillppiras.

The NulriAska Group s Ihe markel eader in the guid condments, specially Sauces and cookng ol
marke! in Ihe Phlipgines.

Bluabed ig aleo benafcialy-owned by ihe Campos famy.

Az holdars of Ordinary Shares, HAPL and Elebel arg antitled 1o one vola for each shana of stack
fvald as of e sstabiished record date.

Les

Las was ncorporated in Singapora in 1631, Lee's principal activity & that of imvesimant kolding, The
Lee Pineapple Group has pineapple canning operations and o paim planiing operations. Lee &
mljoiity-cwned by Lea Foundation of Singapare, Lee Foundaton of States of Malaya, and tha Lea
faendy.

Az g bolger of Ordinary Shases, Les is enlited o one vobe for sach shame of stock held a5 of the
asleblEhed record gale
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d  Voling Trust Holders of 5% or Mome

5 Directors and Executive OMficers

Seouity Ownership of Managemen

The tabile below sets farih the security awnership of ke Campany's direcion and execulive oMcers
as of the date of thes Information Siatlement

Tille of Class Naitsd of Basalicial Ovwnar
Dedinany Joselfo 0. Campos, Jr

Crfinuary Retands C. Gapue
Oeefinary Edgario M. Gz, J,

Cidinarny Emd . Jarvier
Cieclinany Bahaka Kwak G Sorg
Cedinary Godiey £ Scolchbrook

Cedinary Lus F. Alejandro
Dedinarny ignaco GO Sison

Crelisary Amonio £ 5 Ungion

Ameourd and Mature of
Banaficial Cwnarship
7821, 458 Direct
651, 205 Diact
584 553 Direc
611,528 Direct
197,082 Dt
117,082 Direct
3,381,000 I rdinect
FO5E, 400 Dinet
1,08 TN Drect
SOT Bl Dirael

Citlzanship

Filipro
Filipsn
Filigire
Filigaro
Bingaparasn
Briush

Filigero
Filiging

Peroert of
Class
Lan%
0, 14%:
a18%
0.03%
O01%
a.01%

[ RE:L

0%
3%

Theerm ane no persons holding mone fhan 5% of a class of shares of the Company undar a valing tnust or
similar agreement a8 of ihe date of this Inksematkon Statemenl.

Changas in Conirpd

Thare are no erengameants which may rasull In a chengs in cannal of the Compary &6 of tha dete of this

Infarmmalicn Stalemant.

Directars, Indepencant Direciors end Execuiive Oficars

i, Directors and Board Commatiens

The cverall manageman and supensssan of the Company, induding the exercise of coporale powars
and the conguct of the business of the Company, are underiaken by he Board. Thens are sevan
memoens of ;e Board, thiee of wham are Execulive Directars and 1he remaning four ane Man-
Execulive Directars who are also Independent Deectors

Az of he dabe of his Information Slalement, the composition of e Board is as follows:

Faolardo & zapud
Hreadiva O Campcs. Jr

Jaanglies Bealice
Heughicn

Edgansa M Cna, b
Bemisdicl Kwek Gim

Gectirey £
Sorchirook

Eml O Jaaner

Yvarra Gok

Filkgare
Filigine
Filiping-

Filiping

Britiss
Fitsping

e raEporan

Exso.ive Chaimman
Managing Dreclar &
Chiaf Executig Officer
Alperrate Drecior o

Mr. Campos
Exaoutive Direciar
Lz Enclapandani

Indapandant Direcior
redapandani Director

Irsdepandent Threclor

Direcior

Woar First

Yaar Lasl

D, stata ne.

Appaintid of years served

S0
2006

21E

as 1D}
2001

2006

2023

2N

2023
NIC1F)

204
o 24

2022
Ik 17)

2022
L=}
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In this years AGM, the tallowing is the anly incumbeni Director of e Company who i retiing
pursuant io Articls BE of the Company's Arfcies of Association ard dus for re-alecton

Mr Edgardo M. Cruz, Jr., Director, 68
Appaointed on 2 May 2005
Lask re-siecled an 27 August 2021

Umder Arlicle B8, 88 Dweclon kold afics lor a mﬂanFn-rh.duflhT"(E}mm_ mmﬂﬂy
ghall faline n acooedance wilh tha Compeny's Articlas of Association, but ane eligibs for re-alection

In resvewing the nomination for the m-efecton of te medirng Direciors, the Nominaling and
Governanca Commities (ihe "NGCT) had considesed Bhwe conkibubons and pedormance of sach
Direckar, taking inle account his aftendancs and paricipation at Bpard and Boand commities
mestings, a5 wall a5 his or har ndepandanca.

Al Direciors refinng have consented to continue in office and have ofered hemsalves o re-alectian
& the Company's AGEM.

fir. Cruz i niol farmily-refaled 1o the ofer dimcions, substansial sharaholders, or sherahokiens who
o at least 10% af tha Compeny

Tha NGC, an an annwal basis, dolermines whedhar or not 8 direclor is independent, taking inta

account the definition of the 2012 Code of Corporate Govemance of Singapere (Ehe “2012 Code™],
wihich defined “indépendance” io mean that Direcices have no ralatiorship with the Company, o is
related corporations, s 10% shareholders or its officess thal could or be reasonably perceived @
intarfane with the exarcise of e Director's independent business judgment. Disciosuras of Direciors’
inbarests and thair mtenest in Smnsacions ane standing agenda ilems in all Board meestings, &nd would
be circuleied and tabied for Beard mambers nformation, as appropriaie.

The 2012 Code siales thal the irdependence of ary Dimcior who has sarved on tha Baand bayoend
nine years fram the date of hes first appointmant should be subjest to pamiculadly Agorous revdey,

Congsten] wilh previous practos, tha NGC undartock a nganowus review of the independence of each
Incepandent Direcior, nclding those whose tenure had exoseded ning years from te date of thair
first sppointment. Led by the NGC Chairperson and faciitated by Boandroom Comporate & Advisory
Services Ple Lid, the Company’s extemal corporabe secelanal service provider, the assessmant was
conduciad by means of a confidentsal and mcisive guesiionnaine completad by each Direchar &nd
confirmason completed by tha Independant Dinactara.

Ag part of this ngorous review, Baard mambers ware asked ta shara thair absarvations an haw (ha
Irdepandent Directars whoss tenure hed exceeded 9 yean, namely Messrs Benedict Kwaek Gim
Saing, Emd O Javier and Godirey Scalthbeoak, have demansirated their indepandence on the Board.
Beard mambers wens imfed bo cite, as appropriabe, speciis inatances and examgples

The resulls were analysed and discussed at the NGC and Board meetings. 1t was concluded thal
fhere is. & stiong sense of independance amongs! 68 Beard members Management is constaniy
chalenged and questioned on proposals that come befane the Board with all Direciors engaging in
Mmorough and robust discussion and delberation, taking inte considaraton the inareal of ihe Group's
slakebalders

Bazad an the assassmant, Mossms Benaaict Kwes Gim Song ([l appainged on 30 Apnl 2007} Emil
2 Javar {fiml sppaintad on 30 Agril 2007) and Godfey E Scodchbrook (finsl appointed on 28
December 2000} have demonstrated indapandant mirdedress and conducl at Board and Board
commitiea meetings. The NG is sl of he firm view and opinion that thesa Declorns: conbnue i
engrcise independent judpment in the best interast of the Compery in the dischane of their dutes
a5 Diractars, and the mane than nine yeans of esompiary seneica on 1he Board havwe nol in any way
affecied their indapendance as fhroughout their tenure in offics they had cansinually challenged and
provided Consinecive feedback (0 Managemean.

Each mambar of tha NGE had absianed from delberations in respect of the sssessment on his oan
indapandanca,

Manapament. together with the Board Commitiees, incluging the Audit & Risk Commiies "ARC’),
NG, and Remurmration and Share Oplion Commitiea (RS0CT) suppoedt e Board in dechanging
itz rasponsibdilies. The mamben of e Beard Commitheas ara a5 folows:
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[}

it snd Risk Commitbes

Banedict Kwek Gim Scrg (Laad Indepencent Dinecson) ARC Criirman
Godirey E Scolchivock (ndependent iecton Member

B Q. Janeii (reckapandant Direcicn Mambar
fvonre Goh (independent Cinstior) Member
Hominating and Governance Commilbes

¥worre Goh (independent Director) HCGE Chairperson
Banedict Kwak Gim Sorg {Laad independent Dirsctor) Mamber
Geodrey € Scolohbrook (ndependent Cirechor Membar

Emi Q Javier (indepandsnt Director) Mamber

Rotanda C. Gapud |Exsduaiea Chaliras) Mlamitai

Edgaric M. Cniz [Exssutive Dirncior Mambar
Remuneration snd 3hare Ogtian Commities : =
Goofrey E Scolchiiook (Incepsandent Oivecior REOG Charman
Ermil 4 Javier [indepencen Direcion) Miemiter

Il Renior MarEgpemest
As af the dase of this Informabon Statement, the fallowing are e Company's Seniar Mahagemen:

Hsma Age  Cilzenship Poaition gt
dosebto O Gampes, i L] Fiipina hiarsgeng Durgoter and CEQ 2009
Luss F. Asepandro _r Fipina. Chisl Doeraling Oficer 2004
lgnace C. . Steon 8 Filipina Chiel Corporate Cffcar 2015
Parag Sachoeva 54 Incian Chial Financias Dificer Lty ]
Ehied Lagal Counssl ang Crief 0
Anters B 5. Ungsan K Eipra Compilance Oficer
Company Sacsaiany 15
Ruz G. Satarar &0 Flipina Crit Human Resaurs CAear 018
Skgnificant Employees

The Board and the Samar Mansgemant of the Company have baen an inbegral part of its success. Ther
Enowladga, experenca, bisiness relalionships and expertse greatly conirbule fo the Company's
aperating efficiency and financial performance

The Company mantaing that & considers the collective offorts of the Board and all of its employees as
instrumental to #s overll success. The busingss of the Company is nol dependent on any individual
pEROn. Mg srglores & ndspensable in the crganization, The Company has msbutionalized, through
documentation, (s processes snd traning o ansure conbnuity and scalabdity in iha business witlsou
reking &n any pantiou iz amplovea

Family Ralationships
Dirar than &8 provided below, there are no other family relationships knewn o the Compary:

M. Jeanels Beatica Campos Maughion is Vice Presidaent. Strelegic Plaming of the Comgpany's ULS
subsidiary, Ded Monte Foods, inc ("DMFT). and ailemale dikctor 1o Mr. Jesalito D. Campos, Jr. She s

tre daughter af BMr. Camgpes, b2 Company's Managing Director ard CED, and DMFI's Vice Chaiman
and Dirachar

Inwohwmant in Cortain Legal Proceedings
As ip Dimctors, Exscative Cicsrs and Nomwieas for Elaciian:

Excapt a5 561 cut balow, the Company i not aware that ary of the incumbent Direciors and any nomings
for glisclion s director, execulive officer or controd person of the Company hag bean the subject of any;
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{a) bankrupicy petiicn: (b} comiction by final judgment in a iminal procesding, domeaslic or lorgign, (o}
order, judgment, ar decres, nol subseguently revesed, suspended or vacated, of ary court of compatent
jurisdiction, domesstic or foreign, permanently o lEmaaranily enjoining, barming. suspending o othanaes
Irniting his ireplvemsant in eny type of business. securities, commodities or banking actiities: and [d)
judgment af viotalion of & sacwiies or commodites law or regquiation by a8 domestic or foreign cowt of
coempetant punsdichon, in a okl acfon, the Philippine SEC or a comparable foregn body, ar 8 damestic
oF fareign exchange o ofhar prgarszad trading market or et-reguiaicry arganization, which has not been
reversad, siuspended or vacaied, for The past fve (5} years up b the [stesd date Uhal s matenial to the
evaluation of his ability ar intagrity b kold the relavant position in the Company:

Mr. Luis F. Algjandrg. the Group's Chiaf Operating Officer, & not invabeed in any criminal, bankrupdey ar
insaleency imwesfigation or any other proceeding against him, except anty (e likal case pencding Delwean
G Matwark, Inc and ABS-CBN Broadcasting Conp whena ba was impleaded several years ago as <o-
accused in his capscily as then Pregident and Chiel Dperating Oficar of AB5-CBN Broadcasling Conp.

Ag Jo ihe Company sad ilg Subeianes:

The Groug is the subjact of, or 8 party ta, olhar vanous suits and pending o thraatenad Migation. While 4
i& not feasble jo predct or deleming tha ullimabta oulceme ol these maltars, Ehe Comgany bebeves that
nang of these kmgal proceadings will ave a material adverse effect on its financal position,

e. Certain Relatiorships and Relaied Transactions

i,  The lobowing is a summary of knberesied Person Transaciions (*IPT7) enlered Indo by Lhe Company
andior its subsidiaries (ihe “Group”) with cerain Imemested Pesons® far FY 2024 {1 May 2023 1o M
Aol 2024), FY2023 (1 May 2022 10 30 April 2023 and FY 2022 {1 May 2021 to 30 Apnl 2022)

FRelaled Pa FyIoz: Fya022 Frane:
TmmT Paahtionsiy Neture LSS'000 LSSOOD LIS5'000

Foanial 1 DMPI 1815 1851 §B37

Aetirsmeani Furd

Retirermend fund of
Fh!ippnﬂ | Secunty Deposil _
(OMP| Rgtirgman T UOMPARYS  DpP Rstinemant Fund “‘

NP Fletromnart Fune % o 0

Dl Mok Retingrars fand ol

Philppines. Inc e Company's ?ﬂiﬁmm " i1 7
OrP Prandent Fund! subsidary Trvient

Rergal w0 bla|

Arti y Fund E&1 20 652

Secwity ceposh it NAI 7 y
Ratiremsant Fund )

Purchases of
Produc Mazrialk 49 -] 25

Toll Pack Fies . 3 12
Ujilies ¢ Packing
i fapie 788 e ar

R iof vy
Musasia ing giayy AR S 0T Court Enartage 384

Management fee s - F-]
Sharsd IT & Cither
Sarvices

L108| 1 1113
fram Hal

Sale of ofer Faw
Felanesrials with MaAl
Sae of annla

concenale wih NAI il {15 U

Cash Advances (5 295] -

i) . 48

T Undar the S0 X-5T Lating Mamvial eresisd Pereon” B defined &8 (&) & Drector, CEOD or Camnolbng Sharekolder of the isled
campany; o (b} an Associate of any such Direcior, CES ar Controling Sharehoider. A *Conrofing Sharetolder” s one wh (@)
hﬂjlﬁwﬂ"'ﬁfﬁmf 15% or rgen oF Thy nemenal asndun] of &l voling shanss in e cormpany, or (b} in Tac] exercisas control
el B GOy,
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Aosemone Lid AlSswla oty Cash Agvances {12,639 : .

CormparTy
Blusbal Holings " pare i Camh Advances (18 00} . .
Alkste of tha
HEPL r Cazh Advances. - - {1,261}
TOTAL [24 563) 2514 1,247

e

Tha Comgany has an IPT and Relaed Pary Transactions (RPT) policy and manual that sat out
ihe definitions, general guidelings, and review and monitonng procedures b be adopted across
tha Group for IPTs compliance with k2 Lising Manual of the SGX-5T and the SEC Mesnarandum
Circular Mo. 10 (Series of 2018 or the Rules an Maferal Relsied Parly Transacbons for Pubicly
Lisded Compenies. Tha manugd presants & comgrehensive view al IPT snd RPT and the
procedes thal all afected Group personnel. mchiding membars of senior managemeant,
direciors and employess in Purchasing, Treasury, Financa, Sales, Legal, Internal Audit, must
fediorey, The policy Bnd manust sat oul materality Firesholds for PTs and RPTs fad could Fgges
cestain approval and deciosune quremants.

The Company esishlished raview procedures So enswe tal IPTs and RPTs: {§) are carried oul
am an &m'e lengin basie and an rommal cemmarncial tarms, consigtant with the Group's uaual
business practioes and pobisss; and (U} wdl nat be prejudicial o thae intarssts of the Company
and it MRty sha

in general, e ransscions with relabed paries are carmed out basoed on feems agreed bateaen
e parties. Prcng for the sales of producis are markat difven, less cerlain allowancas. Far
purchasas, the Group's podcy @ 1o 2alicll compelitve qualalions. Bids from sy related party are
evaliated on fmn's lenglh commercial ierms and subjact (o bidding aganst third peny suppkers.
Purchases ane nomaly awardad based on the lowest prics.

Thie AR revigws the intednal audd mport on the IPTs and RPTS on & quarieady badis o sscariain
that tha astabished review procedures are complied with. T during these pesicdic reviews, the
ARG e of the view that the feview procedungs as stated above heve bacome inacpraprials ar
insufficient in wiew of changes to e nature al, ar the manner in whach, the business actvities of
iFe Groug are condusied, the Company wil revert fa its sharahaldars for a frash mandats besad
of @ new sof of guidelines and review procadures thal would ensure compliance with the
establizhed standands above.

The Company maintains & regisker of ransactions camed oul with Intemsked Persons. @8 defined
ifl Ee [PT midfuad, and the Company's imlemal audit plan wil incosparate an sanual review of al
frarsaciions enierad inta in the ralevant inanclal year pursuant io he IPT mandate,

Apprownl ar Raicatian
The lelrwing are the categaries of IFTs in the Compeny's manuat

1. Mandaled IFT - refers o an BT babween Bhe Group and ary Inesesied Peron pukaant io
o shareholders’ mandate spproved on 80 annual basis by the Company's shamehokiars,
witich i sulbject o refewal ach year ai tha annual general meeting. However, desplie the
axistence of the shamholdars’ mandate, Mandatad IPTe &na siill subject b auditars and AC's
rEVIgW

2 Mon-Mancaed IPT - refars to purchees or sale of fwed assets. underakings or businesses,
as well 85 ransacions nol included under the shareholdars mandate, which may requie
annsuncements, management approval, Bossd aporoval Endfor sharehoiders' approval,
depenidng on e amounis mesbesd.

Febmiioiing @ Recordiag

Ta facililate recoeding of IPTs, each Group subsidiany’s Controder shall astablsh bwo halding
accounts hat will be used in recording IPTs = ane 1o record Mandaled PTs and the olker 1o
recosd Mon-Mandated IPTs, Transactons recerded under hess two halding accounts will fnan
be cleaned manfhly b the proper sccounts, The traneachons that ane recorded urder the halding
accounis will then e reponed on & guanearly basi o e CFOD for consoldation which will then
b subritied o (he ARC for evaluation and meview
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ii. Crihar than siendard s end condiions typical for thesa Kinds of contracis and negoiiatan &
am's lengih and upon nommal commercial ferms wih counierparties, lhere ae no alber
commitmanis resuling from these amangemants.

Consadering tha arm's length negotistion of these IFTs and tha Company's establisbad IPT
reviEw, Aporoval, monilonng and disclosure processes, we do mol s2e B0y malstisl fsks anfsing
fram thesa transachons

i. Resignation of Directors due to Désagreemant

Mo Director has resigned fromy, or declined fo stand far re-election to, the Board since the dabs of the 2018
AGM due B0 any dsagreement wish the Company on @y matier r@iating 1o is operatons, policis or
practicas

g. Mo provision of the Company's Afcles of Assooiation, which ralates to the salection, ramingticn and
eleztan af Independen| Direclais, has been necenlly amended. The Compary's ssleclion and eleslion
procasses for independant direcloss am in accordance with the Company's Articles of Associabon and
the 2012 Coda.

h., Aftendance for FY 2024 [from 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2034)

Audit Rermuneration Mominating amd A "
o Board and Risk | and Share Option Governanoe I
R Meetings | Commities Committes Committes FE'EI'HIH.
Mestings Mectings Mestings
Mr, Rolande C
Gapud a [T M - 1
Mr, Jeosefito D
Campos, Ir | BA o ha :
Mr. Edgarda M -]
Crdg, Ir W MA 2 :
M Banedict| &
lh'ml: Gim Sang 4 1 z 1
Mr. Godfrey E. [
Scotchbroak 4 1 : L
[Br. Emd Q. Javier 3 4 ]
{Mrs. Fvonna Gon 3 4 2 1
otal Moo of
[
Meatings Hald 4 1 ¥ i

Medst Direrctars undernys an ofientalion program whereby they are briefed by the Company Secralarny on e
obligations as Qirectors, a3 well 63 the Group's conporale governance praclices, and relevan slaldony and
reguilabary compliance Maues, a8 appropiale. They ane also briefad by Management an the Group's indusiy
and business operatians, Ongomng arientation Incldas visits to the Group's plentation and manulaciuing
faciiles for Boand members 0 geln & firgl-hand understarding and apprecation of the Group's businass
ogerations. During the year under reviaw, there wana no new Direcior Bppointments in the Company.

Timely Updates on develepments in accawnting matiers, sustainabiity, lagslabon, unsprudance, govermmsan
palicias and reguletions aifecting the Group's business and aperafions are likewsse provided (o sl Direciors.
The Beard was duly updated on the 2018 Code and SEC CG Coda. 82 wall &5 on any develogiments o
sharges fo relevant laws and refated matiers. The Board also receives regular raining updales on malters
sffecting the Sroup's business end aperaions. bn addban, all Direclors ar mquired o undergo arnual
conlinuing traming i may be relevant So the afeciva dischange of thelr responsibiltias, al he axpense af the
Compary, as sat oul in the table beloe:

L Directors and Officers Tralning and Serminars Attended in FY2024 (1 May 2023 = 39 April 2024)

Dake Locatlon | # of Training!Seminan Conference Organizer Attenders
Hours
18 May 2023 | Onine B0 | Oneniaton on GHE Emissans Eymengized Macro | Ighacio C.0. S8an
Calcufation Soiutions
B.Jul 3023 | Singapara 40 Beard Dynamics Singapore Insbiule | Yvonme Goh
| of Direciors
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19 Jul 2023 | Cenline 15 Promatan aof Suslkainability and UMCTAD-ISAR |gnacia C.0. Sisan
505 Reporang in Asla Ragions
Parinershin —
14 Sug 2023 | Online aaq K Exchangs Sesskn Philigpine Ignacio C.O. Siean
IFFS 81 and 22 Suskainabelity
Reponing
Commithes
24 Aug A2 | Online 20 Matanality Sssessmant with Ignacie C.0. Sisan
Directar anc Managernent
14 Sap 2023 | Online 1.5 Thi Fulume of ESG. Trends, Brilish Standands. Ighacia 0, Sison
Peguialtions and Besl Practices Instituticn
22 Sep 2023 | Onlne 2.0 | Supply Chain Confemnda Supply Chain Ignacia C.0. Sison
Managermeni
Assaciation of the
Phiipgires S
20ct 2023 | Onlne 1.0 | Environmantal Gowarmancs Irsstitute of lgnacia G0, Sison
Canparabe
| Dereclors
5ot 2023 | Onlne 35 | Sustamabilty Reportng and Road | Fnancial kgnaco C.0. Sison
Towads 3rd Party VYaldation ExeCubives
Inadiube af the
Philippinas
0 Moy 2003 | Marids 35 | Carperabs Gavemance Trainng | Center for Global | Joselta O. Campos. Jr.
Eead licea
13 Mav 2023 | Oniine 20 | Economic Briafing Philipgine Foad lgracio C.0. S=on
Bank
18 o 2023 | Manis 40 | Advanced Corporale Governance | Insituba of Ermil Q. Javier
Training Corporaie
1. perationeizing Shared Diractars
Prasperity Towards cur Dream (Phikppines|
Fhllppines
2 Cybersesuriy Gowarmancs:
Chalierges and Salufians
2 Tha Brand Architecture: A
Waluable Framewark for Seking
Shategy
#.Jan 2024 | Online 1.5 | Ecaonamiz Briefing Goldman Sachs Luie F. Alsgandrn
and BRI Parag Sachdeva
Antenic E.5. Ungson
19 Jan 2024 | Orine 2.0 | Cimate Scenang Analysis Report | SOV igneca G O, Sson
26 Jan 2024 | Onkne 1.0 | How Food Companies Leverage | Rababank Lus F. Alsjsndro
| A b thair Advantage Knaca G0, Seon
Parag Sachdeva
30 Apr 2024 | Onlira 15 Accefgrabng Sustesnability: Flagts Bank lgracio C.0O. Sson
Beyord EPR Campiiance

|- Feviaw of the Performance of the Board

The Board. through the MGG, has impiemenied & farmal &nnual evalualon process 10 355855 M8
effectiveness of the Board as & whole, each of its Board Commitiees and individuad Direciars, The
evaluation process 5 undertaken annually 88 an inlefmel exescise and mechees Board mambars
completing & questionnaing coveding mainly the following areas of assessmant

Egard compasiton
Infarriation o {he Beard
Board precatdunes, lraning and resources
Baoard accountability
Cormenunicalicn with CEC and Kay Management Personna|
Succession plannng for Direciors, Board Chaiman and tha CEQ
Standands of conduct and effectivaness of the Board

Rigarsus reviaw of the independance of each of 1he Independant Direciars
Baard Committees’ perormance in relafion to dischanging their responsibililies under Meir respective
terms of referance
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Each Direcior conducts a seff-assessment of esfhar performance: and conlritution io the Board through
completon of a quesionnare on a secured online ponal, the resuts of which &re collaled &nd Eoulated
by &n axlarnal Feclitalor

The Direciore’ dall-eqaluation an bair padammancs facused on tha lallawing:

= Dliregiors’ dules
= Leadership
= Commauncabion skils
= Sirategy and risk menegemean
= Board contribition
¢ Knowiedge
Inleraction with fellow Dinectars, Key Maragemant Parsonnal, Sudiors, Company Secratary, Legal
.-’-.dmm and ather professional sdvisoms

Tha evaluasan process ook into Bocaunt the views of sach Baard mamber and provides an cpportunity
ler Direciors o grovide conabuclive feedback on the workings of the Board, including &s procedures and
processes and if thase may be improved upon,

Led by the NGC Chawperson and facililaed by Boardroom Corporate & Acvisary Services Pte, Lid,, an
exfernal senvice pravider, his collecive assessmant was conducied by means of a confidantial
quashonnaine completed by each Director, which & collated, analyeed and discussed with the NG and
he Baand with comparaives foem (e piar year svaiuation. A summary of ks findings and
recommendatons was prepered Dased on the compieled quesionnaires for ihe Board as a whole, each
af i Bagsrd Committess and individual Directors. This was reviewsd ard desibarated an oy the NGE and
tharmafter tehied to the Board for s necassany ection ta furlher enhence the efectivenass of (ha Board

8B Bppropiabe.
The appainimeand and the rembval of the Company Secredary is a matber for tha Board as a whale.

The Comparny Secretary, Mr. Anionio E. 8. Ungsoen, & & lawyer by profession. He had previcusly sered
&5 COM@ANyY SECrelary in varous companias dunng the cowsa of his career. Ha alse has an
understanding of basic firangal and eccounting matiers.

The Diretiors have separsle and ndependent accass 1o Managsmant and the Company Secratary,
HAgide from access to Managemant and the Company Secratany 1or advies and services, the Direciors
may. In appropriaie circlimsiances, seek independant prafassional advice concaming the Company's
allzite at {he Company's axpense.

B Compensatien of Directorns and Executive Dicers

The aggregate compensation paid or incurred during the last two fiscal years and estimated to be paid in the
ensuing Escal yeas o tha CED and senior essculive officers of the Company are as follows:

Hame and principal position Yaar tm ﬂm;l
&, Chial Execullve Officer and mos| FY2025 Est 08 6512 B8 141,848 261
highly compensated sxecutive Frz024 283 850 861 111, 388 &7 6
officers” FY2023 294 295 063 144 655,116
B. Allgihar officers and direciars == & FY2025 Est 212,535,025 51,536,020
graup unrarmed Fy 24 190,378,220 46,458,501
FYalEs 188,157 066 &5, 553 084

"The CED and arecutrve affcars of the Company are as fofeis: Mposgrg Dirsclor & CEQ, Mr Josslio D Campos. Jr
:ﬁmgn&:ﬁm{mnﬂmm Ling & Adwimndre, Famg Sachdewa, ipnaomo Cameds O Sison, and Andone
uganis gaan

Standand Arrangemend
The Directors recalve a fieed remuneration annualy based on the following fae structure:
Boand Chasman: USE90 000 par anmim

Directars: LSES4 000 par anrum

Audit and Risk Commifiee Chalrmean: USE24, 750 per annum
Remunaration and Share Opticn Commeies Cheirman: US312.375 per annum

Lo Em
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& RMomnating and Govemance Committes Chaiman: LIS$12, 375 par annum

. Audiland Risk Commities Members. LIS313,500 par annum

4. Remureralion and Sham Oplion Cammities Memibens: US$E. 750 par annum
h  Mominating end Govermance Commities Membears; USEE, TS0 par annum

The Qirectors do not recaive any aliowance for alending Board or Board commiites mestings

Oifvr drangemerits

Dr. Emil Q. Javier has & consultancy agreemant with the Company i0 act a5 @ consultant, amangst cihar
things, to provide guidance and support o the Group on @2 plantalien sperations and develasment af agri-
bamad initatves.

Except &6 describad atave, Ihers are no ater erangesents pursuant to whish any ol the Company's
Directors and officars are compensated, oF ane 1o be compensated, dinecily or indinecily

Empiopment Confracts and Temwation of SEmployraen and Changé-n-Camiral Aranpammits

Thare are no arrangamsants far compensation to ba racelved by any exaculive afficar from She Company in the
evenl af a resipnation, ar ferminalicn of the execuive officer's employmant or @ change of coniral of tha
Company. The Company, howawar, prosides metirement beneflls to qualifad emgloyess, including Key
Mansgemant Parsonral.

Share Jplicns

There are no outsianding shame aptions as of the date of thz Information Stalemeand. Al unexercissd pplicns
which were gramled pursuant o the Del Monte Pacific Executive Stock Ophon Plan 1899 had aimady apsed
on B Mamch 2018

Share Awards

All share awards granted io Drectors had since 20 Septemtar 2017 bean vested and easad io Dirschrs.

Excapl as disdosed in the Company’s Anrual Repon, na Diecior who heid offica ai e end of the firancial

year had imerests in shames, debentures, warranis, share options or share-Desed incentives of e Comgany

or of related comaorations, eifher &1 the beginnirg ar & e end of (he financal year

7. Indepandent Public Accoundants

a. M Mr Alvin Phuas the partnar-in-change from EY Singapors for the audsed fnancial stalemants of the
Compary and the Group for e iscal year anded 30 Apri 3024, Representabtves of EY Singapors ane
expecied i be present dunng the AGK. The representatives may make stalemants, I they desire 1o da
=0, and will be availablae o respond to appropriate queslions raised by the shareholders al the AGM,
Mr. Johnny F, Ang & ihe pariner-n-charge from EY Phlippinas.

b.  The aggreqgate annual external audit fees billed for sach of the last two fiscaf yaars for the audit of tha
Graup's annual fnancial steiemants of senvices thed Bre rammally provided by the exsemal sudiler are as

follows:
Fyzoze FY30za
in LS§ dad in LAEEA000
1 Audi Fees
EY Sinpaporz it 172
SGN 1,133 1438
Allkatas of madklon of the Company =) )
O sudina Fr g
2 Mon-fuch Fees
EY Singapors 0 .
By a8 HE0
Othar @uditces B4 Bl
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8, Compensation Plans

Thore ane no actions o ba faken with respect b0 ary plan pursyant o wifich gash or nan-cash compensation may
be paid or datributad during the AGM

8. Wollng Rights of Shareholders

The Company treets all sharehokders fainy and equitably, and recognizes, protects snd tacilitates Ihe exarcies of
shargholdar' ights. Momower, e Comparry confinually review's and uodabes such povemance ETangaments.

Sharebolders are informed of changes in the Group's business fhaf are lisely 1o materially aflecs the value of the
Company's shares

The Company encowages shamholoer paricipation at AGRs or GMs, snd ansures that ihe venue for the meatngs
is In & convenient kncation easlly accessad by pubic ransgonation.

Shamebaldars have the sppanunity to peeticpase efactvely and vote in the meatings aithar in parson or by prooy

Tha Company's Memarantum and Afcles of Assocation oo ol alow cofporations which pravide neminge or
cusicdial services o appoind more than bvo proxes ie vole. Al presant, only the Cendral Depository (Pta,] Lid. is
parmidted to appsind mone fhen o proxies. The Company daes, howeeer, allow sharsheliders whe did rof ar could
nal vate, as well a8 nan-sharsholdens. to attend the meeslings as cbservers,

Tha Cormpany does nal practice bundling of rescluticns at GMs. Each disfincg issue is proposed as a sepambe
resokbion ard full infformatian is provided for each Bem in the aganda for the mastings.

Al GMg, sharsholders are ghwen the opportunity to communicate ther wews and demct quastars in persan to
Demectons and Senlor Management regarding the Company, The Chaiman of he Board, e respeclive Chairperson
of the ARC, NGC and REQC, thres athar Directars, Sandar Managameant including the CELQ, tha Investor Relationg
Managar, and the sxiemal auditons wera presant al the Esl AGMW bald on 29 Auguest 2023 o assist the Boand in
Agdressing sharehoiders’ questions.

The Comparny had since 20913 instiluted elecinonc poll voling, and all resolubons are pat 1o voie DY elecinons pol
al ks megltings. Sharehekders ane informed of the rules and vobing proadures balane the Slen of any mesting. The
iZompany hed eppainted ndependant scrilineers, Relisnce 3P Adwsary Ple. Lid in Singepore and Onsga Bacon
Cdulia Calma & Carsare|l Law Offica n tha Philppines. to validate the vates submitbed far the s&id meesng haid
an £ August 2023, The oatailed resulls aof the poll, including the nuember of wobes cast for and aganst sach
regalulion with the respactive parcentagas fakan during the AGM or GBY are discloged and made available lo the
public on the seme day, end lkewise uplcadad on the Comparny's wabsile within fve days from the dabe of tha

The Company's Memorardum and Anices of Associafion do not provide for absentia woting which, guen i aownd,
may only be poesible following a delbembe study to ensura that the intagrity of mformation ard sulhenlicetion af
the sdentity af sharghaldors and omer meabed sacunty Esues though ihe web would nol be compromised, and
impanantly, Bgskalive cranges are effeclsd fo recognize remate valing,

Thea A5G0 and GM minutes reflect that sharshoiden ane always given the appodundy 5 &2k questians. The minutes
Inciyge anarshokiers’ comments &nd a summary of e guestions and answars duning the meatngs. Tha minubas
arg prampely mads avaiable in tha Company's wabsie afar the meatings.

Tha Camipany’s dividend payment policy for Ordinany Shanes & o distribube & minimum of 33% of fll yeser profil
bul remains subject o review by the Boerd, a3 thane may ke times whan e Company’s surplus is used to fund s
cash flow requiremands,

The dividand policy and e, inclugsing the declaration dates fram provious yaars, ame proviced on tha Company's
wabkile The Company andaawars to pay dividands wEhin 30 days after decsarabion date,

10, Corporate Governance and Protection of Minority Shareholders

The Company dubifully accomplishes the Infegrated Anmual Corporabe Gevernance Repart o assess the iovsd of
compliance by the Company, Be Board end Semor Managemant will (he Manual of Corparate Gowvemancs

Tne Company also parlicipates in regular Coporele Gavernance surveys such as (he ASEAN Comporats
Gowernanca Scomcand and tha Sirgapore Transparancy Index.  Hance, the Company keeps sbresst of best
prochcas in cofporale govemence matiars. The directors and esoculives also regulady attend training seminars
and workshops an these mathers and Iraireng hows are mankoned regularly.
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Wa ara mat eware of any material desdation by the dreclors of the membars of top level managament from the
Caompany's Manual of Corporals Gavemance.

The Boam contnues 1o find ways 0 anhance iha noepandanca of the Independanl dirgciors. For Inslance.
measurable objeclives retaling o this as well as divernsity are beng considered. Thera i alsa 8 glen 1o condider

adoping a Board charer far the Company.

In tha nemest of good comporate govemance and tha protecian of minanty siockhoders. the Company abserves
iis Interesied Parly Transachion and Relsied Party Transactans policy and manual to ensure that s refated party
trangaclions am i carried out on an am's langth basis and an stendard commareial tlerms, cordstent with the
Compary's usual busineas praclices and palicies; and (&) will mol be prejudicial {o the inleresis of the Cempany
and iis minarity sharehcidess. Al related pary transactions ana subgect 5o the reiew and approval of the ARG, tha
Board and the stockhalders, cependging an e amounts invalved.

Al 1o marags the risk of poiantial ImiEsonks on mirory stockhoidens’ righls, tha Comaany remains cognizant of
e requirsments af applcable laws as wel as of ils Atcles of Assoc@lion gaveming slocchalder meslings and
slockhaldars” voting nghis

The NGC s also iaskad wilh reviesing (ha parformance and contibution af the dinectons in ondes o carsider them
for re-glection or re-appoinimanl. The NGS will review. in particuar, the direclon’ atlandance and perticipatian &t
mealings af iha Boand and Board Commitess, and their sffons and comribufions towards the suoccess of the
Compary's business and oparatons.

11. Risk Managemant and Internal Control

The Group mantaing en effecive syslem of rsk mansgement and imemal conbols addressing fnancial
op=ratianal, cormpliance and informaation echnology {IT) conirois, and nsk managemant pobcies and sysiems
estabished by Management These conbtrols Gre dasigned o provide reascnable assurence as 1o the adeguacy,
affactvanass and efficiency of sperations, relability of inancial reporting, and compliance with applicatile aws and
regulatans

The adegquacy and effectiveness of these conbrals are subject fo a perodic ey by the Growp's Intemal Audt
deparimant and manitorad by the ARG, In addifion, the Group's exlamal audibors alsa raviewsd e alfaciivaness
of the Group's key inlesmal canlrols as par of their awdit for the year with respect fo financiad reporting. Significant
non-compliance in internal contrale, f amy, wogather wish recommendations for improvernant, is reponad Lo the
ARG A copy ol tis repon |5 alss ssied o (he relavant depafment for follow-up action

Flak essssament and evaluslion ane carfed out a2 an integral part af the dnnual me:hng Pran (40P, Having
i rlified key risks o the achisvament of the Group's AQP, Manegement farmulates mEigating acticns in respect
of aach significant risk. Mentflad risks are ales ncluded and monitored in the coporale rsk megisier. and
miligabirg maasures ane follosed up. The approach ta isk menagessant i@ sel aul in the “Risk Managemanl” sacton
of this Annual Repor

IT issues are piso regulary reporied 1o the Board through the ARG, Repons mclude matiens an busness confinuily,
ghsastar recovery and cybarsecuiity amang athers. The Board, through the ARG, provides dieclions on thass
matiers which Management execuies and Internal Audit monitors

Cybarsacurity and IT general conlrals had remained focus areas in FY 3024, Tha Group had parinarad with third-
party finms lo perfomm cybersecurity sudits which ncluded vulnarabiksy assessment and panetration esling [VAPT),
Tha Grawp had alse conducted usar fraining and awanness campagrs on oyber threats and had issued tips and
BECUTiY advaaras basad on best prachices in ordar bo avoid breaches

Hased an the intarnal conrols established and maintained by the Group, work performed by the intarmal and
exbarnal sudtors, assumnoes by tha CEQ, Chief Dparasing Ofcar, Chiel Comporate Officer, Chief Financal Officer
{CFCH and Chief Complance Officer, and reviews performed by Management and vasous Board Commtieas, the
Board i of e apinion, and the ARC concurs, that the Group's Intermal controts, addressirg financizl cperalional
compianca and IT nsks, and i sk management sysiems ware adequase and effectve &s 61 30 Apnl 2024,

The Beard and tha ARC are slso responsible for (8) menilenng the Graup's rsk of becoming subjact to, orvialabing.
any aanclisng-ralabad law of fegulbion; and (b} ensunng timaly and acourate disclosures to SGX-5T of any sush
rigke and other relevanl aufhor®as. The Company will inform shamhakdars of any matenal sanctions-relsted rigks
i the Group, the mpect of such risk on the Nirancals and operabians of the Group, if any, and also he cessasan
al auch fisk via announcements o SEK-5T.

Far the year under reviaw, the Beard had raceded (&) writhen confirnation Tram the CED and e CFO Lhat the
financial records have besn properly maintained, and fhe firancisl statements give a trve ard fair view of the
Cormpany's oparstions and finances; and (b)) writlen confirmatan fram the CEQ and ather Key Management
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Persannel who are responsible, (hat the Company's sk management and memal contml systems have remamned
sodequate and effective

The Board will, cn a continuing basls, endeavor (o further enhance and Inprove the Company's system of intemal
conlreie and risk managemenl pokcias,

Thie Group's insermal 8udil iBem. d Oy ihe Head of Imemal Agdl, repars directly 1o the AR, An memal audid
mepar is submisied b the ARC an a quararly asis. The ARG reporis all mabenal updaas o the Board.

The Company had since 2013 insifuled alactronic poll veting and all resalubions ena pul b vobe by elecinonic pall
it its AGMs and GMa. Sharahaldars are infonmed of the rules and yoling procedures before the start of any mesting
The Company ensures that shareholdens have the cpportunity to paricipate effectivedy In, and vol &L, AGMS of
GMs. Tho datallad resuts of tha pol. Inciuding the rumber of vobes casl far and agains! sach resolusan with e
respecive parcentages taken duning the AGM ar GM are disclosed and made avadable o e pubic on the same
day, gnd lkewise vploaded on e Company's website withen fva days from tha daa of the mesting.

Tha A=W haid in reapect of FY2023, was canvened and haid on 29 August 2023, st Orchand Befram 3, Leval 3
of Orchard Hodal, 442 Onchard Road. Singapore 238870 Altlemative errangements relating 1o live sudio-only
straam; submeson of queationg o the Chairman of he Meeting in advance of tha AGM; addressing of substantial
and relenvant questors ai, or prioe fo. the AGM: and voling by appeinting e Chairman of the Meabng 8a proay el
tha AGBE ware pail = placs for tha AGR

The Company had appainked indapendant ecrulinsen, Drewcomp Services Pie. Lid. in Singapore and Ortega Law
DOffica in the Philppines, o valdate the voles submitted for the said meeting held on 26 August 2023

Sharehaldens wede given tha oppoitunily b panicipate by emailng theer quastons and submiting their vobas and
proey fonms bedore e AGKM. The Motice of the AGM which moludes the malters and rescliions discussed s alke
upiﬂﬂﬂ in trn wabsite of tha Eumpanf tpaﬂn:uh- ai the fink

I'ﬁmmlmtﬂllﬂd!lﬁﬂﬂm THLHIDTMNHWFDIMWM ammﬂmmummmh
accessed Bt : gLl oAl 1

12, Authonzation of lssuance of Securities Othor than for Exchangs

a.  Tilie and Amoant of Secuniss ko be Authorzes

Aj the AGM. the following matiers shal be submilbad for shanshalders' approval
i Authonty I Isses Shares

That pursvand o Adicke 15(Z) of the Company's Ariclas of Asseciafon aad Ruls BOS of e Listng
Manual of the Sngapome Exchenps Sscurbes Troding Limiled ["SGX-5T7, Mo Direclors of e
Company he aulfanzed and smpowansd fo:

fal il mmmmmﬁmmwmmarwdrmu.MMﬂr olfarvise,
A
il make or grant GTEE, STESMEBVITE O oians [Colactively, TTRsirumens ) [had might o wowid
requie Shares fo be dssmd, moksding, but not bented o, Bhe creatian and mswe of (55 well
Emlfﬂmfi' in) options, waTanls dabenhwes or other nsfiomenls cotverine inia
A g,

il any e and upon such lerma and condifions, and for such gurposes and i 20ch paramE as
e Diveclovs of i Company may in Mhair abaolule discretion deem & and

(b} {nctadtistanding Kk authonty comiemed by fhis Rasolution mey heve ceased (o be m fome) fssoe
Shares in pursirance of any Mstriments made or granted by the Direciors of the Company while
s Rasolufion was in foncs,
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Driced ek

{1} e agpragate number af Shamss (civaing Shares o be mEoed i pursrancs af fha Rafuments,
made ar gravfed persyant fo this Resolution) bo be ssued puvsuent fo s Sesoiehon sheW nol
axcaed S04 of the total mumber of lesued Shares (exclinling fresswy shares and subsidieny
hodaligs) in e capital of I Coumpany (a8 calculsded in accordenee with sud-pamgraph {2}
biplow), of whizhy e aggregate mumber of Shangs D be (s30ed e (S0 o 8 o el Dasis (o
Snarghokders of e Company shall nof exceed 5% of the iodal number of msued Shams
fexcivding Ireasury shores and sinhsidiany hoddings) in the captal of e Comnany (55 caltialed
i Bccondance with sub-paraaoh (2] below);

(21 (subject ke such manner of calcuision a8 may be prescribed by the SGEX.5T) for the pupose of
delermimmng fhe agoregate number of Shares thal may be (sswed under sub-paragraph (1)
abowve, e iotal number of isaued Shares (excivding reasuly shanmes) shall be based on the lolsl
b of zsved Sheres (ercluding freamury shares) in bre capiial of e Compary ot the fime
of dhe passing of s Rasolifon, &6 acfusimg i

fal new Sheres ansing fmm Me conversmn ar ereecise of ay mraribe secuvihes,

(0] new Shares ariging from the exercise of share apbons or veshing of share awands which ae
culstanding or subsisfing af bhe fime of the pazsing of this Reeciulion; and

(G any spbsequent Donws S50, consoldadon or subdivision of Shares;

[ i axérsisiog the authonty conforred by Ie Resaliton, the Campany shed comaly with the
Drovizions of the Loy Manual of e SGEX-ST for e fme being n face joness such
compilanse fas heen waved by the SGX-5T) and Me Arficfes of Associaton of the Comgany,
and

(4} imisxs ravoked or vansd by the Company in 8 general meeling, such authonty shal senlinue
T LT Iy ctviclusion of dhe aext Annupd Gonars! Meating of the Company or the dale’ by
whict ffae next Anaval General Meeling of the Company iz required by faw (o e held, whichever
15 garker,

If pasgod, this Ovdingry Resolution will empawer the Dirsclors of the Company, effective until the
conciusion of the rext AGM of the Company. or the date by which the next AGA of tha Company &
requined by B to be held. or such authonty is wared of revoked by he Company in a genesal
rrating, whicheves 8 the sadier, i iksue Shares. make or grant insbrumants convartible into Shares
ardl B0 issue Shares pisuant 1o such Instruments, up to 3 number net excesding, in bolal 50% of
tha 1okal mumber of B4ued Shares (aacluding treasury shares and subsadiary holdings) in the capsial
of the Company, of which up io 15% may ba Ssued ofer than on a pro raks basis jo Sharehoiders.

Far gebermining the aggregate number of Shams that may be Bsued, 1he bial mumber of BEsued
Shares [excisding treasury shaves and subsidiary holdings) will be calculaed basad on he atal
number of issued Shares {excluding reasury shams and subsidiany holdings) in the capital of e
Company &1 be tima tis Cdinary Resolution & passed, afler adjusling for new Shares arisng rom
the canversion orawarcise of any convertble secuitise of share cpions of wesang of sharm awands
whiich ang oulsianding of subsisling &t the time whan ths Odinary Rasolution 6 paseed. and &ny
subsegquent banus ssue, consalidation or subdidsion of Shares.

Thal approval be and iz heveby granted fo the Direclors of the Company, acting Mroogh o5
Remunaration and Share Option Commdédies, & allol and isswe from me fo ime such Shares 35 may
b alloffod and isswed gurswant i the exencise of the Dl Moms Paciic Executive Share Ogtian 2018
(FESOF), prowided afways that the agoregare number of Shaves o be allafed and isseed pursusal
o e EZ0F shal nod exceed fen parcenl (10%) of the ofa! nwmber of ssued Shares (exckiing
frisg sy shams and sphsidan holdings v sach cfazs] i tha capdsl of the Cotpany from fime &
fime and Hafl sich sufbonty ahall, waisss revoked or vaed by e Company in a gensral mesiig,
Confingg in Raned uil I conclisicn af (he next AGM of the Company or the date by winch the e
AGM of the Comparny i= required by few fo be heid. wivchever & oanier

Il passed, this Ordinary Resoltion will empowar the Direciors of the Company, effective urbil e
conclusion of the naxt AGM of (he Camparry, of the daba by which tha nest AGK of tha Company &
fedquired by lew o be held, or such autharity & vened ar revokiad by the Comparny n a general
maeting, whichaver & the eafier, o alol and Ssue from time o time such numbar of fully-paid Shares
in the capital of the Company, as may be requined bo ba tssued, pursuant io the ESOP, The agoregain
number of Shares which may be Esued pusuant 1o the ESOP shall not excesd tan parcant (10%) of
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i,

18,

1.

it todal number of msued Shames (excluding Feasury shares and subsidiery hoklings) 0 the capital
of the Company from time fo fima,

b Descapdon of the Company's Secuifies
Al presar, e Comparny has an auiharized capital of LS $630,000,000.00 consisting of 2000000 000
ﬁrﬂln.;r:,l Sharas with a par value of U5 0,01 each, and 00000000 Praference Shams wilh & par value
af W.S.F1.00 aech, which may De isswad in one or more 5EnNes.
Ot af the puthonzed capital siock, tha Company has 1,843,560, 024 Ordinary Shares, The 10al issued
Ordimeary Shares are 1,844,535 826 Ordinary Shams, which includes 875,802 'EII'-IIM.F!.' Shares that ame
held by the Company as reasury shares.

Modification or Exchange of Securities

There are ro actions i be ke with respect to the medification or exchange of the Cempany’s sacunies.

Financial and Other iInformation

The Managemant Repart dscussing !e cperational, financial ang ather information of the Company s
attachad harein 63 Annex “B"

The consolidated audited financiad swatsments of the Groun for the fiacal year ended 30 Apnl 2024 are lkewise
attached herein as Annex “C"

Mergers, Consolidations, Acguisitions and Similar Maiters
There &re no aclions o be laken in relation ta any menger, acquisition or busingss cambination
Acquisitions and Invesimeants

Thare are no matiers io ke taken wih respact 1o any menger, consoldaton, acquisition of any propey.
Restatement of Accounts

There are no aclions 1o be laken and submithed for shassholdes’ approval with respect (o the msialement of
any asset, capial or surplus accouwnt of the Company

E_OTHER WATTERS

18

Action with Respact to Reports and Other tams
a) The follcwng shall be submitted for shareholders’ approval dunng the AGAM;

(i} Ta recete and adapt the Directars’ Statemeant and the Audited Financial Statements of the Company,
rogaiherwish the Sudimors” Repart femacn, for the financiel year ended 30 Apnl 2024 [Resalution 1)

(il To re-alect f ebact Directors of the Company:To re-glect Mr. Edgardo M. Cruz, Jr. who
refings pursuant 1o Artiche 88 of the Compamy's Aricles of Association and Rula T20(5) of

the Listng Manual of the Singepore Exchange Securities Trading Limiled "SGEX-8T
{(Riasaiufion 2)

(i) To approve the payment of Direclors” fees of up fo US5621,000/- for the financial year
ending 30 April 2025 ("FY20257) (FY2024: USS621,000/-), 1o be paid quarlerly in arrears,
computed based on the fee structure 521 out below:

= Board Chairman: US3598 000 per annum

=  Directors: US354,000 per annum

AU and Risk Committes Chairman: US524 750 per annum

= Ramuneration and Share Cption Commitiee Chairman: US$12, 375 per snnum
=  Mominating and Govemance Committes Chairman; USS12 375 per annum

= Audd end Risk Committee Members: USS13 500 per annum

» Remuneration and Share Option Commities Members: LISSE,750 per annum
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11.

= Mormingling and Govamance Committes Members; USES, TS0 per annum (Ressletion
3

{i¥] To aulhonees the Direciors of the Company 1o fix, increase or vary the emolements of Dinactors of up
bo LAS S 1 00,0004 with respect o sendces o be rendered in amy capadty to the Company [Resolution
4}

¥l To re-Bopoind Emsl & Young LLP as ihe Auditors of the Group and 1o suthonza the Directars of tha
Campany to fix their remunemtion. (Resolution 5)

{W} To re-appoirt Sycip Gomes Velays & Co. (Emst & Young Phiippings] as tha Philippine Audiors of
fhe Graup ard bo authorza the Dimctars of the Compary to i el remuneration. (Resclution 8]

{wily The Directars of e Company be awiharmed and ampowesad o
110 Isaws eshenas in ihe Company ("Shares”) whethar by way of rights, benus or othenwise; andior
12 maka ar grant offers, agresments of cpliona (sallectialy, Tnstraments”) that mighl or would
require Shams io be ssued, inciuding, bui net Emiled o, the creation and issue ol (a8 well 83
adjussmends toj oplicns, warranis, debenburas or other NeuManls comvertibie infs SharesTo
msum sharmes. (Resaision 7)

(wii) To aulhorize the Directors o alked and ssee Shams under ihe Dl Momle Facific Execulive Share
Crtion Plan 2016, (Resalbion &)

{x} To approve e rerewsl of sharehoders’ mandate for Interested Parson Transscikons {IFT].
(Rexolution 9)

Tha Inormetian Memarandum in relalion 1o the reneswal of sharaholders’ mandate for IPT ie
incarparated by referance. 8 copy of which i altachad harsin os Aonex "D,

Faroatails on the foregaing resoluiions, please refor to e enclosed Nolos of AGK.
Mattars Mot Required o be Submitbed

There are na actions o ba taken at the AGM wilh respesl o any matier which is not reguired o be submitied
o & vote of secunty holders

. Amendment of Charer, By-aws or Diher Docwments

Thene are no actans 1o be takan &t the AGM with respect to any amendmand of the Comgany's Mamarandum
of Assaciation end Aficies of Assocation,

Other Proposed Action

Mo alher aclicns an any mather ara proposed 1o be 1Bkan axcepl matbars of incidence thal may proparly adise
disfing the AGM

Woling Procedures
aj As b vobe requared

Far "Crdinary Rlasolutions’, & simple majority of wobes of the shanas which wane prasent &l tha meeling
and entified o vole thereon and wane woiad on, and nol abeiained.

For “Specie! Resolufions”, the fallowing rukes shak apply:

LA majarsy of not less than ree-founhs of the voles of the shares which wers prasent al the meeding
and enditied to vote tharsan g were viled and not abstaned; o

il, A majority of not less ihan Bires-fowths of the voles of each class or senes of shares whash wede
prasent af the mesting and entited 10 vobe thereon as & cass or series and wore voied and not
abataired, ar

A resaluton consented to in wiling by (1) a magrity of not less three-fourths of the votes of ghares entitiad
o wobe thereon, ar (2] a majority of not less than threa-foumne af the voles of each class or sanes af
sharas antitled to vole therean 88 & class or saras

Faga | 17
Infnmation Statement



C

L

As ba method The AGM ba hald on 30 August 2024 af 10,00 a.m., and will e convensd and hald &t
Orchard Bafroom 3, Level 3 of Orchard Hotal, 442 Orchard Road, Singapare 238678, The voding &l the
AGM in Sngapore will be carmied out via slectrenic pall valing. Philipgine shareholders who are unable fo
atiend the meetng in Singapane. but can akerd the videccanference in Manida, will 51l be able ba wale by
manual vohing,

The Company sppainded independent scrubineers, Drewcop Services Ple. Lid. and Ortega Bacarra
Odulic Caina 4 Carbonell Law Offica, fo vaidate the vales, The scrusinesrs will be responsitle for
couniing vobas based an the number of shams entited bo vole cwnied by the shareholders who ane presen
of reprasenied by prowss a the AM of the sharehoideds, In fe presence of e Group's exiemal
BLICHACS.
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Upen the written request of a stockhelder, the Company undertakes to fumish said stockholder with a
copy of the Company's Annual Report or SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for a copy of
the said report shall be address to the following:

DEL MONTE PACIFIC LIMITED
clo J¥ Campos Centre

9 Avenus cornar 300 Street
Baonifacio Glabal City

Taguig City
Attention:
Mir. lgnacio C. Q. Sison
Chief Corporate Officer

¥You may alse contact the Cempany's Investor Relations Officer, Ma, Jennifer Luy at
JluyE@delmantepacific,com,

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inguiry &nd o the beat of my Knowledge and belaf, | cartily thal the information sl feh in this
report is frue, complete and commact. Thas repor is signed in the City of Taguig, on 8 Sogust 2024

Del Monte Pacific Limited
lsaLer

Antonio 5. Ungson
Chief Legal Co and Chief Compliance Officer
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MANAGEMENT REPORT
. BUSIMNESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
Overview

Del Monte Pacific Limited (the “Company™) was incorporated as an international business company in
the British Virgin Islands on 27 May 1828 under the International Business Companies Act (Cap. 291)
of tha British Virgin Iskands. it was automatically re-registerad as a company on 1 January EﬂD'.f‘ wihien
the International Business Companies Act was repealed and replaced by the Business Companies Act
2004 of the British Virgin lslands. The registered office of the Company is located at Craigmukr
Chambers, Road Town, Tortala, British Virgin Islands.

Tha principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged m
growing, processing, and selling packaged fruits, vegetable and tormato, sauces, condiments, pasta,
broth and juices, mainly under the brand names of “Del Monte”, “S&W', “Today's", "Contadina’, "College
Inn* and ather brands and fresh pineapples under "S&W" and other brands pursuant to relevant
agresments. The Company's subsidiaries also produce and distribute private label food progucts.

The immediate holding company ks MutriAsia Pacific Limited ('"MAPL"), and the indirect shareholders of
which are MutriAsia Inc. (“Na1" and YWell Grounded Limited ("WIGLT), which at 30 April 2024, 2023 and
2022, mach hald 57.6% and 42.2% interests in NAPL, respectively, through their intermediary company,
Mutrifsia Holdings Limited. NAPL. NAl and WGL were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The
ultimate holding company is HSBC International Trustea Limited.

On 2 August 1999, the Company was admitted to the Official List of the Singapore Exchanga Securities
Trading Limited ("SGX-8T"). The Ordinary Shares of the Company were also listed an the Fhilippine
Stock Exchange Inc. ("PSE") on 10 June 2013. The first tranche of the Company’'s Preference Shares
(Series A-1) was listed on 7 April 2017 and the second tranche (Series A-2) on 15 December 2017. The
Company redesmed all of the outstanding 20,000,000 Series A-1 Preferance Shares on 7 April 2022,
and all of the outstanding 10,000,000 Series A-2 Preference Shares on 15 December 2022 (see Note
18).

On 6 August 2010, the Company establshed DM Pacific Limi#ed-ROHQ ("ROHQ"), the regonal
oparating headquarters of the Company in the Philippines. The ROHQ is regisiered with and licansed
by the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (*5EC”) to engage in general administration
and planning, business planning and coordinalion, sourcing and procurement of raw malerials ard
companents, corporate financial advisory, marketing control and sakes promation, fraiming and
personnel management, |ogistics senvices, research and product development, technical support and
maintenance, data processing and communication, and business development The ROHO
commenced its operations in Dcicber 2015,

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities contradled by the Group, Control is achieved when the Company is exposad,
or has rights, o variable returns from its involvement with the investes and has the abilify 1o affect those
returns through power over the investze.
Specifically, the Company conirals an investea if and only if the Company has.

» pawer gver the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the current ability o direct the relevant

activities of the investee),
= expogure, or rights, fo variable returns from its involvement with tha investas; and
« the ability to use its power over the investee io affect its retumns.

When the Campany has lase than majerity of the voling rights er similar rights to an inveslee, the
Compeny considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
invesiea, including:

»  the contbractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investes;

« rights arising from ather contractual arrangements; and

« the Company’s voling rights and potential voling rights,
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ANNEX “B"

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or mare of the three elements of control. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
fram the date control is transferred to the Company and cease to ba consolidated from the date control
is Il Assats, llabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the income statement from the date the Company gains confrol until tha date the
Campany ceases to control the subsidiary.

The defzils of the Company's subsidiaries and their principal activities, as of 30 April 2024, are as

fiollows:
Kame of Date of Principal
i subsidiary Incorporation activities
Heid by the lssuer
Died Mionta Pacific 21 Do 1980 Inuestrment holding
Fesources Limibed
{"DMPRL")
OMPL India Ple Lid 28 Mar 2004 frvestment holding
DMPLI
OKIFL Kanagament 28 Apr 1988 Prowiding
Servicas Pte Lid adrmniiralive siapgson
and Eaison senacas 1o
the Group
GTL Lirmited S Mar 1898  Trading food products
riindy under the
brand narme "Dl
Mamte” and buysr's
own labels
E5W Fine Foods 12 Mowv 2007 Selling processed
Intermational Limiled fond products under
580 thi "S&W Irademark;
Cwnar of tha “S&W
trademark in Asia
(excluding Australia
and Maw Zealand,
thea Meddie East,
Viiesiam Euvope,
Eastarm Eurcps and
Africa
DMPL Foods Limiled 11 Dec 2013 Investment holding
{"DMPLFL}!
Hald by DMPRL
Cerfral Amarican 16 Dec 1871 Investment holding
Resources, Inc
["CARI)
Dieway Limitad 13 Dec 1980 Mainly imesimenl
[MDewey™) holding
Heild by CARI
Del Monte Phillppines, 11 Jan 1526  Growing, processing

Inc ("DMP|7 ie

and déstribation of
facd producis mainly

Effective
Place of equity held
Incorporation by the Group
British Wirgin Islands 100.00%
Singapore 100, 005
Eingapare 100,005
Federal Territory of 100.00%
Labaan, Malaysia
British Wirgin |alands 100.00%
Biritish Wirgin Istands 93.57%
Panama 100.00%,
Bermuda 100.00%
Fhilippines BB.02T%
Faga | 2
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ANNEX “B"

Effective
Hame of Date of Pringipal Place of auity hald
subaldiary Incorporation activities Incorporation by the Group
undes Fui brand name
"Dl Monla”
South Bukidnon Fresh 20 Jun 2014 Inactive Fhilippines 100.00%
Trading, Ine
Hald by DMAY
Philippines Packing 18 Jun 2007 Intelechual propery Philippines 8.2
Menagement Serdice hodding and icensing,
Corparation 4 management, logistice
and suppart services
Jubitani vear Invesiment hobding British Virgin Islands ga.27?
Investments Limited &
Ded Wonte Txanton Tadan 20186 I Eive Philippines 5. 71%
Distribufion, Inc,
Held by Dewey
Dawey Sdn Bhd & Qe 2000 lnscbhe Makaysis 100.00%
Held by DMPLI
DMPL Inda Limilad!™ 12 Awg 2004 Ineestmant holding Mauritius B5.57%
Held by S&W
S&W Japan Limited 24 April 2017 Support and Japan 100.00%
markoting sanvices
Held by DMPLFL
Dial Monte Foods 11 Mow 2013 Irvestment holding Britieh Virgin lslands 357
Holdings Limited
{"DMFHL")
Heid by DMFHL
Diel Monte Foods 15 Mtar 2018 frvestmient holding Sdate of Delawars, USA 53570
Haoldings I, Ing.
{"DMEHI)
Held by DMFHI
Ol Monte Foods 2 Jun 2014 Investmant holding Siate of Deleware, US4 93.57%
Holdings, Inc.
"DMFHIY
Held by DMFHI
Ol Monte Foods, Inc 18 Sep 2013 Manufaciuring, Siate of Delaware, .S & 93574
("OMFT) processing and
distributing food,
beverages and other
reiaied producis
Held by DMF!
Paga | 3
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ANNEX “B"

Effective
Mame of Date of Principal Place of equity held
subsidiary Incorporation activities Incorporation by the Graup
Sager Creek Foods, 24 Feb 2015 Real esiate holding Siabe of Delaware, 93.5M%
Inc. (formerhy s
Vegelablas
Acquisition Corp.)
[Oel Konte Andina 16 Jul 1088 Manufacturing, Venazuela -
CA processing and
“OM Andina”) distributing food,
bovaragas and othar
relatad products
Dred Manbe 27 Qct 1598 Mamufacturing, Caolombia TE.35%
Colombiana 5.4, processing and
disiributing food,
reverages and other
related prodects
Industrias Citricolas 1 Mow 1974 Masrwndfaciuring, Maxico 93.57%
de Montemorelos, processing and
54 de CW distnibuling Tood,
{ICMOSA) beverages and ofher
relafed products
Dial Mbonda Peru 18 Jan 2000 Distribution of faad, Paru 93.67%
5A0. beverages and oiher
relaiad products
Ded Monie Ecuador 10 Fab 2000 Distribution of food, Ecuador B3.57%
OME C A beverages and obhes
relabid products
Hi-Continental Corp, 15.Jul 1958  Distrbulor of no-Del  Stsle of Calarnia, ULSA, B3.57%
Monte producis
College Inn Foods 17 Jul 1858 Disiribubor of College  Staie of California, U5 A, B3 5%
Inn brand products
Contading Foods, Inc 28 Jan 1998 Distributor of Elate of Delawars, S A, 83,57%
Comading brand
producis
S8V Fine Foods, Inc. 26 Feb 2001 Distribwtor of S&W Siate of Delaware, U 5.4 S3.57%
Fine Foods, Ing,
Del Mome Ventures, 18 Jume 2017 Haolding company Siate of Dalawara, U.5.4. 93.57%
LLE ("DM Wentures")
Joyba, Inc. 25 May 2022 Degtribador of Joyba Sate of Califormia, U.S.A 93.57%
brand producls
Kitchen Basics, Inc. 10 5ep 2022 Distibudor of Kiichean  Siate of Califormia, U.S.A. B3.57%
Bagics brand praducts
Green Thumb Foods, 18 May 2022 Distributor of Green State of Cafifamia, U.5.A. 93.67%
inc. Thumb Foods brand
products
Hald by DM Vemtures
Del Monte Chied 21 June #0177 Developmen, State of Delawane, 1S4, 47 72%
Fruit Snacks, LLC production, marksting,
saie and disiribulion of
Fage | 4
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ANNEX “B"

EfMoctive
Mame of Date of Principal Flace of aquity held
subsidiary Incorporatian activities Imcorporaticn oy the Group
processed refrigerated
Frisil products

Hadd by DM Anding

CAL

Ozl Mente Argentina 22 Sep 2000 Inactive Argentina =

=

fa)

fi)

el

(d}

On 15 May 2020, fhe Company comarted its lomg-lerm [pans receiabie fom Del Morde Foods Holdings
Lirnifed ["DWWFHL") amounfing fo USE229 5 milion (neleding accrued imferes! of ISS0.8 milan from 30 Apnl
2020 o convarzion dafa) fo equity mvestmand, DMFHI issued 84, 546 shares of capital stock o DMFHL, and
OMFHL was wneamadibonally nelsaged of alf Fahifitas for pancips! and intersst trough 30 Apnl 2020 mfating
to the purchase of the Second Lisn Term Loans, On 15 May 2020, DMFHL recarded USE220 5 million of
acciional paid-in capital refafed fo fs fransacion, it sddilion, fe Company and DMPLEL anfered info &
supplemantal agreamen dated 17 August 2000 for the issuance of adaitional 3 25 ondinary shareg b DMSLFL
o cover the sddittonsl accrued inferest through 15 May 2020 which amawnlad fo 51,7 milian, On 15 May
2020, the Compary invested USE150.0 milon of adational paid-in capital fo DMPLAL i exchange for 423.595
Fhranms of prefamed Siock.

OMITON iz consolidafed &2 e Group hes de faclo conlrol ower the eniity. Even with fess fhan the majonly
voling mahls, the Growp conclisded thal DM TDN & a subsickany and fhal it has powar o airedt the relevanf
achivilies of DWTDN due fo DMPT having majority seafls in fhe Board firough a shareholders agreemen with
the ofhar sharefholidars of DWTEN, The kay managamen! peysonnel (e, Presidanf and Chief Execulive
Officar, Chisf Oparating Offlcar, Chiaf Rinancial Officer and Tressurer and Corporale Secratan:) of DMPY alsa
serve in the sarme pogilions in DOMTD, v ifs special meetimg held on 22 Apdl 2019, DMTD s Board apgroved
e gizgodulion and Ngiidadion of DMTIN by shorfening ds corpovale lenm, As af 30 Ao 2024, the application
for the dissolidion and figuidation 5 wal fo be submitied wilh e SEC duwe o cerain regulafovy and
docimeniany requiremenis.

Qv 20 May 2020, CAR compieted (he sale of 12% sfake in DMPT o SEA Dhiner. Condifans of e sade wene
already mal as of 30 Apil 2020, as confimmed by bolt parfles. On 16 December 2030, CARI sold addifiomal
27973, 200 cornmon shares of DM fo SEA Diner for LSE 10 million, which increased the ownarship of SEA
Diner in DAMPI o 13%. On 4 Apnl 2024, DMP! redeemed 71 060,624 shares frovn SEA Direr for US237 4
miliicr, s held if a% Ieasury shares, Thiv increased CARVS inferes! in DMPT to 80 3T% (shanes owned by
CARI of 2,433 GBR 305 over e riow oulsianding shares of WP amounting to 2, 726, 258, 280 sharas)

Jubifan! Year investments Limifed (JYIL), & direct wholly-owned subsidiary of DMPY, was incomporated as a
company with §mited Kabiiy wnder the laws of the Briish Vingin felands on 2 Janpary 2024, Its regislemnd
aoffice is locafed af Visira Corporate Senvicas Cantre, Wickhams Cay I, Rosd Town, Torfeda, WE1118, Bntish
Wirgln lalarvds. JYIL, a special puvpose velicle inconporated for the purposs of issuing e perpelesl secunlies,
will et & wholy-owred subsidiang of DMPT a3 lomg as the perpelual securfies are ewtsfanding and inbemds
o use he net procseds ¥ recsfves from affering of the perpatual secwilfes to fund the share acguizition and
for the Group's genersl corporate purpogeas, inchedimg bul nof Santed o the relinancing of cefain exishing
indedtedness of DMP/

MARKET PRICE INFORMATION

The Company has been listed on the SGX-ET for over 20 years since 1999 The Company also
listed its Ordinary- Shares on the PSE in 2013, making DMPL the first entity (o ba duaklistad on tha
SGX-3T and the PSE.

The Company's share price highlighs for i#s Drdinary Shares for the past vears are as follows:

Yaar Quarter PSE [PHP) SGX [(SGDY)
High Low High Low
2024 20 2029 5.70 a.60 0117 0.097
102024 6.35 5.22 0.134 0.0
2023 1Q 2022 14.18 11.20 0.235 0.235
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40 2022 14,20 1210 0,345 0.280
2022 302022 14 BO 13.24 0.380 0.310
202022 14,78 13.00 0,385 0.345
10 2022 16.16 13.52 0420 0345
40y 2021 1848 14,10 0.405 {.355
2024 33 2021 17.28 12.48 0445 i0.335
20 2021 16.68 9.08 0455 0.260
102 2021 9,80 7.21 0.265 0,194
40 2020 210 4 81 0.225 0,122
<G 2020 B8.21 4.00 0,142 0.097
= 20 2020 4,50 3.40 0114 0.0%0
103 2020 540 2.50 0.148 0.a7G
4G 2019 .05 4.82 0144 0,121
30 20159 &40 5.40 0157 0.129
e 20 2018 G.18 520 015 [
10 20159 f.85 .00 015 0.12
40 2018 T.45 /.32 0.1% 0.12
agQ 2018 8.27 .55 0.20 017
i 20 2018 10,48 T.62 0.24 .16
101 2018 11.20 10,00 029 0.24

On 7 April 2017 and 15 December 2017, the Company listed #s Series A-1 and Series A-2
Preference Shares, respectively on the PSE. The Company's share price highlights for its
Preference Shares are as follows:

eries 4-1 Prefers Sharas:

Year Quarter PSE (USD)
High Low
2022 10 2022 10.20 540
40 2021 10.30 540
10 2021 10.28 10.02
20d1 200 2021 10,28 o G
101 2021 10.50 g 50
40 2020 10.44 § 60
30 2020 10.40 B 50
o 261 2020 10.30 5 60
10 2020 10.30 10.00
400 2019 10.40 10.00
30 2018 10.40 1010
20419
20 2018 10.40 10.00
10 2015 1040 10,00
40 2018 10.70 10,00
3Q 2018 10.32 10.00
e 20 2018 10.30 10.00
10 2018 10.50 10,10
403 21}1?' 11.10 10,00
30 207 11.00 10.50
2017 20 2097 10.20 10,00
10 207 -
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Sarias A-2 Preference Shares,

aar Quarter PSE (USD)
High Low
40 2022 10,06 871
2022 30 2022 10,10 10040
20 2022 10.18 9.93
1Q 2022 10.80 8.02
40 2021 10,30 9.05
30 2021 10.50 10,00
Lt 20 2021 10,50 10.02
10 2021 10.60 9.95
40 2020 10.30 10,00
30 2020 10.50 .65
o0 20 2020 1028 a.a0
10 2020 10.30 470
40 2019 10.30 9.90
30 205 10.50 10.00
AR 20 2018 10.40 10.00
10 2019 10.20 10.00
40 2018 10.26 .70
30 2018 10.26 9.80
T 20 2018 10.28 10.00
10 2018 10.40 10.00
2017 403 20T 10030 10,00

The Company has an authorized capital stock of US $630.0 million consisting of 3,000.000,000
Ordinary Shares, each with a par value of US $0.01 and 600,000,000 Preferance Shares, each with a
parvalue of US $1.00, Out of the authorized capital stock, the Company has (i) 1,243,980 024 Ordinary
Shares.

The number of Ordinary Shares outstanding excludes 575,802 Ordinary Shares held by the Company
as treasury shares, The Company has a tolal of 1,944 935826 lssued Ordinary Shares, including
freasury shares

On T April 2022, the Company redesrmed all of the outstanding 20,000,000 Series A-1 Prefarance
Shares and on 15 Decembar 2022, all of the outstanding 10,000,000 Series A-2 Preference Shares,
The redeemed prefemed shares shall be cancelled but shall remain part of the Company’s authorized
capital and shall be available to be reissued by resclution of the board,
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The top 20 sharehoidars of the Company's Ordinary Shares as of 30 June 2024 are as foliows:

Rank Name No. of Shares Y
1 NUTRIASIA PACIFIC LIMITED 1,196,539.958 51565
2 BLUEBELL GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED 189,736,540 978
3 LEE PINEAPPLE COMPANY PTE LTD 106,854,000 550
4 EMP PARIBAS NOMS SPORE PL 57,079,932  2.98
a2 RAFFLES NOMINEES{PTE) LIMITED 48, 404,635 249
2] DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD 22,851,078 1.18
7 GOVERMMENT SERVICE INSURANCE SYSTEM 16,567,037 0.82
B CITIBANK NOMS SPORE FTELTD 14,036,208 077
g WEE POH CHAN PHYLLIS 14,888,500  0.77
10 BDO SECURITIES CORPORATION 10,629,686 0.55
11 UNITED QVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES P L 9,182,680 047
12 MAYBANK SECURITIES PTE, LTD. 7,725,885 0.40
13 JOSELITO JR DEE CAMPOS 7.621.466 0.39
14  PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 7,487,737 037
15 COL Financigl Group, Inc G, 008, 890 0.31
16 BANCO DE ORO - TRUST BANKING GROUP 4 545 876 0.25
17 TIGER BROKERS (SINGAPORE) PTE LTD. 4,816,100  0.25
16 UODB KAY HIAN PTE LTD 4699520 024
19 ABN AMRED CLEARING BANE MY, 4 5473 373 023
20 G.D TAN & COMPANY, INC 4518375 023
Subtotal (Top 20 Stockholders) 1,740,037,485 89 51
Dithers 203,022,539 1049
Total Outstanding 1,943,960,024  100.00
DIVIDENDS

Under the Carmpany's Articles of Association and the terms of the Compamy's Praference Shares, the
Company may, by a resalution of directors, declare and pay dividends on Ordinary Shares provided
there are adeguate and avaidable funds for dividends on Preference Shares which have priority owar
Drdinary Shares

Dividends shall onty be declared and paid out of surplus. No dividends shall be declared and paid,
unless the Directors determine that, immediately after the payment of the dividends: (a) the Company
will be able to satisfy its liabilties as they become due in the ordinary course of its business; and {b)
the realizable value of the assets of the Company will nof be less than the sum of its total liabilties,
ather than its deferred taxes, as shown in ite books of accounts, and its capdtal
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30 April 2024 30 April 2023 30 April 2022

IS5 000 uss'ono Uss'000
Declared and pald during the financial year:
Cividends on ordinary shares
2024: US$0.0013 (2023 USS0.0170; 2022: USS0.0120) 2 542 33,251 23.310
Dividends on preferance shares
#-1 preference shares for 2024 nil : 2023: nil and 2022:
US50.6628 per share - 13,250
&-2 preference shares for 2024; nil {2023 USE0.4478 and
2022: USH0.6500 per share 4478 & 500
4 ATE 18,780

2,542 a7, 729 43 060
Proposed but not recognized as a liability as at reporting
date:
Dividends on ordinary shanes
2024 nil (2023: USS0.0013; 2022 US50.0170) 2527 33,047

Dividends on Ordinary Shares

The Company's dividend peyment policy for Ordinary Shares has been o disinbute 8 minmum of
33% of full year profil. The holders of Ordinary Shares are entitied fo receive dividends, as declared
from thme to time. after dividends of Preference Shares are pad.

On 20 Jume 2023, the Company declared dividends of USE0.0013 per share to ordinary shareholders
on recard as at 11 July 2023, The special dividend was paid on 25 July 2023

On 23 June 2022, the Company deciared dividends of USE0.0170 per share to ordinary shareholders
on record as al 13 July 2022, The spacial dividend was paid on 27 July 2022,

On 23 Juna 2021, the Company declared dividends of USE0.0120 per share to ordinary shareholders
on record as at 13 July 2021, The special dividend was pald on 27 July 2027,

Davidends on Preference Shares

On 158 Decamber 2022, the redemption date of the Series A-2 Preferance Shares. the Company pad
the sccreed cash dividends al the fixed rate of 6.5% per annum, or equivatent fo USS0. 12278 per
ESarias A-2 Preferance Share for the perad from 8 October 2022 fo 15 Decembar 2022,

On § Septermber 2022, the Company declared dividends fo holdars of Seres A-2 Preference Shares
gl the fixed rate of 6.5% per annum, or equivalen! lo USED 32500 per Saries A-2 Preference Share for
the six-month penod from 8 April 2022 to 7 Octobar 2022, The final dividends were paid on 7 October
2022,

On 11 March 2022, the Company deciared dividends to hoiders of Senes A-1 Preference Shares, at
the fived rate of §.625% per annum, or equivalant to USS0. 33125 per Senigs A-1 Praference Share far
the six-month penod from 8 Oclober 2021 to 7 Apri 2022 The Company also declared dividends to
haldars of Seres A-2 Preference Shares al the fxed rate of 5, 5% per annum, ar aquivalent o

LI530. 32500 per Serles A-2 Preference Share for the six-maonth period from 8 Oclober 2021 to 7 Aprif
2022 The fina! dividends were paid on 7 April 2022
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On 10 September 2021, the Company declared dividends fo the holders of the Series A-1 Preference
Shares al the fixed rate of 6.625% per annum, or equivatent to LISE0 33125 per Seres A-1

Preference and Saries A-2 Praferance Shares al the fixed rate of 6. 5% par annum, or equivaient (o
L350, 32500 per serles A-2 Preferance Shares for the ix-month period from 8 Apal 2027 1o ¢ Ciciober
2021, The final dividends were paid on 7 Oclober 2027,

On 10 March 2021, the Company declared dividends to holders of Serles A-1 Preference Sharas, at
the fxed rate of § 625% per annum, or equivalent to US$0.33125 per Senies A-1 Preference Share for
the six-manth period from 8 Cclober 2020 to 7 Aprit 2021. The Company also declared dividends lo
hotders of Series A-2 Preference Shares al the fixed rafe of 8,5% per annum, or equivalent to _
US$0. 32500 per Senes A-2 Preference Share for the six-manth period from 8 Oclober 2020 to 7 April
2021, The final dividands ware paid on 7 April 2021

The cumidative undeclared dividends on the preference shares amounted fo US50.4 millian as of 30
April 2022, None as of 30 Aprl 2023 and 2024 az all preference sharas were aiready redeemed.

The retained eamings were resiricted for the payment of dividends representing the accumulated equity
in nel eamings of the subsidianies amounting fo L/58247.3 million as al 30 Aprl 2024 (2023: U53243.5
millian). The sccumulated eguily i net eamings of the subsidiaries will be avalable for dividend

distribulion upon recefpt of dividends from the subsidiaries. As of 30 April 2024 and 2023, the Group's
investmant in joint ventures have no undisinibited mef earmings.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AMD SENICR MAMAGEMENT

The follewing comprises the Company's Board of Diréctors:

Mame Age Citizenship Pasition

Raolande C. Gapud g2 Filipira Executive Chalrmnan

Josalito D. Campos, Jr. 73 Filipiro Managing Director & CGEO
Edgarda M. Cruz, Jr. &g Filiping Executive Diractar

Eenedict Kwek Gim Song 77 Singaporean Lead Independent Directar

Godfray E. Scolchbrcok 7B British Independent Diractor

Emil Q. Javier 83 Filipirso independent Director

Ywanne Gaoh 71 Singaporean Independent Dirgctor

The following comprises the Group’s Senior Manapemant:

Hame Age Citizenship Position
Josadita D. Campos, Jr. | Filipino Managing Director and CEOQ
Luis F. Alejandro T Fifiping Chief Operating Officer
lgnacio C. 0. Sison &0 Filipano Chief Corporate Officer
Farag Sachdeva 54 Indian Chief Financial Officar

Chief Legal Counsel and Chief
Compliance Cfficer; Company Secretary
Fuz &. Salazar &0 Filiping Chief Human Resource Officer

Antonia E. 5. Ungson 52 Filiping

The following is a brief description of the business experience of the Company’s Board of Directors and
Senior Managemeant for the past five (5) years,

Mr Rolanda C Gapud
Executive Chalrman, 82
Appointed on 20 January 2006 and last re-elected on 29 August 2023
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Mr Rotando C Gapud has over 45 years of expenence in banking, finance and general managemeant,
having worked as CEO of several Philppine companies, notably Security Bank and Trust Company,
Oriental Petroleum and Minerals Carp and Greenfield Development Corp. He was also the COO of the
joint venture operations of Bankers Trust and American Exprass in the Philippines. He has served in
the Boards of varous major Philippine companies, ingluding the Development Bank of the Philppines,
the development finance arm of the Philippine Gavernment. Mr Gapud is the Chairman of the Board of
Dl Monte Foods, Inc, DMPL's US subsidiary, and Executive Chairman of Dal Monte Philippines, Inc,
DMPL's Philippine subsidiary. He is also a Director of FieldFresh Foods Private Lid, a joint venture of
DMPL with the Bhardi Group of India, He holds a Master of Sceance in Industrial Managemean! degrae
from the Massachusatis Institute of Technology. He is @ member of the Asian Executive Board of the
Sloan School of MIT and the Board of Governors of the Asia School of Business, a joint venture
between the Slkoan School of MIT and Bank Negara, the Central Bank of Malaysia.

MrJdoselito D Campos, Jr
Exacutive Director, T3
Appointed on 20 Januwary 2006 and |last elected on 26 August 2022

Mr Joseldo O Campos, Jr s Chairman and CEO of the MNutridsia Group of Companies, 8 major food
conglomerate in e Phiippines. He is also Chairman of Forl Bonifacio Development Corp and
Chairman of Avala-Greenfiek] Development Corp, two major Philippines propery developers, Heis a
Director of San Miguel Corporation, one of the largest and oldest business conglomerates in the
Philippines. Mr Campos is the Vice Chairman of Del Monte Foods, Inc, DMPL's US subsidiary, and a
Directior of Del Monte Philippines, Inc, DMPL's Philippine subsidiary. He is also a Direclor of FieldFresh
Foods Private Lid, a joint venture of the Company with the Bharti Group of India. He was formerly
Chairman and CEC of United Laboratones, Inc and #s regional subsidiaries and affliates. Unilab is the
Phiippines’ largest pharmaceutical company with subslantial operations in the Asian region, Mr
Campos i the Consul Genaral in the Philippines for tha Republic of Seychelles. Ha is also Chainman
of the Metropolitan Museum of Manila, Bonifacio Aris Foundation Ing, The Mind Museum and the Del
Maontea Foundation, Inc. He & a Trustee and Giobal Councll Member of the Aslka Society in the
Philippines. a Trusiee of the Phiippines-China Business Council and the Philippines Center for
Entrepreneurship; a National Advisory Councill Member of the Waorkd Wilglife Fund-Philippines; and a
Director of the Philipping Eagle Conservation Program Foundation, Inc. Mr Campos holds an MBA
from Cornell University.

Mr Edgardo M Cruz, Jr
Executive Director, 69
Appointed on 2 May 2006 and last re-glected on 27 August 2021

Mr Edgardo M Cruz, Jris a member of the Board of the MutriAsia Group of Companias. bMr Cruz s a
Director of Del Monte Foods, Inc, DMPL's US subsidiary, and an Executive Direclor of Del Monte
Philippines, Inc, DMPL's Philippine subsidiary. He is the Chairman of the Board of Bonifacio Gas
Comporation, Bonifacio Water Corporation, Bonifacio Transport Corporation and Crescent VWest
Development Corporation, He is @ member of the Boand of Evergreen Heldings Inc. Forl Bonifacio
Development Corporation and the BG Group of Companies. He is glsc a Board member and Chief
Financial Officer of Banifacio Land Corporation. He sits on the Boards of Ayala Greenfield Development
Comporation and Ayaka Greenfield Golf and Leisure Club Inc. He is a mamber of the Board of Trustees
of Bonifacio Arts Foundation inc, The Mind Museum and the Del Monte Foundation, Inc. Mr Crue
earned hiz MBA degree from the Asian Instiute of Managemeant after graduating from De La Salle
Liniversity, He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Mr Benedict Kwek Gim Song
Lead Independent Director, 77
Appointed on 30 April 2007 and last re-appointed on 25 August 2023

Appointed as Lead Independent Director on 11 September 2013
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Mr Benedict Kwek Gim Song is a Director of Del Monte Foods, Inc, DMPL's US subsidlary. Mr Kwek
was Chairman of praviously SGX-listed Pacific Shipping Trust from 2008 to 2012, He was also a
Director and Chairman of the Audit Committes of listed companies including Ascendas REIT. He has
over 30 years of banking experiance, having sarved as the President and CEQ of Keppel TatLee Bank.
He has held various key posilions at Citibank in the Philippines, Hong Kong, New York and Singapare.
He holds a Bachelar of Social Science (Economics) degree from the then University of Singapore and
atiended a management development programme at Columbia University in the United States.

Mr Godfrey E Scotchbrook
Independent Director, 78
Appointed on 28 Decambar 2000 and last re-appointed on 27 August 2021

Mr Godfrey E Scoichbrook is an indepandent practtioner in corporate communicalions, issues
managemant and invesiar relations with more than 40 years of axpesience in Asia. In 1980, he founded
Scotchbrook Communications and his prior appointments included being an execulive director of the
then publicly listed Shui On Group. A proponent of good corporate governance, he is an Indepandent
Directar of Boustead Sngapore Ltd and a Non-Executive Directer of Hong Kong-listed Conveniance
Redall Asla. He i a Fellow of the Hong Kong Managemeant Associalion and also of the British Chartered
Institute of Public Relations, He s also a Director of Del Monte Foods, Inc, DMPL's US subsidiary. Mr
Scotchbrook eamed his DipCam PR having studied Media and Communications at City University,
London.

Or Efmil Q Javiar
Independent Director, 83
Appointed on 30 April 2007 and last re-appointed on 28 August 2022

Cr, Emi Q. Javier is an Indapandant Director of Del Monie Philippines, Inc., DMFL's Philippine
subsidiary He is a Filipino agronomist with a broad understanding of developing country agriculture.
He was the first and only developing country scientist to Chair the Technical Advisory Commiitee of
the prestigious Consultative Group for International Agricultural Research (CGIAR), & global
consortium led by the World Bank and the Food and Agriculture Crganization of the United Nations
{FaO). He was Director General of the Asian Vegetable Research and Development Center (AVRDC)
based in Taiwan and has servad as Chairman of the Baard of Internatonal Rice Resaarch Ingtituts
(IRRI), and as Chairman and Acting Director of the Southeast Asian Regional Center for Graduate
Study and Research in Agriculture (SEARCA). In tha Philippines at various periods. he had been
Prasident of tha University of the Philippines, Minister for Sclence and Technology and President of
the Mational Academy of Science and Technology. He was also conferred the rank of National
Scientist by the President of the Philippines, the highest honaor given by the President to a Filipino in
the field of science and technology. Dr. Javier is an Indepandent Director of Philippine-listed Ceniro
Escolar University. He holds doctorate and master's degrees in plant breeding and agrenomy from
Cornell University and University of lllinais at Urbana-Champaign, respectively, He completed his
bachelor's degree in agriculture at the University of the Philippines Los Bafos,
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Mr=s Yvonne Goh

Independent Director, 71
Appainted on 4 September 2015 and last re-appointed on 28 August 2018

Mrs. Yvonne Goh is DMPL's Chairperson of the Nominating and Governance Commitiee. Mrs. Goh is
also a Director of UNLY Singapore Limited, the Singapore branch of the University of Nevada Las
\Wegas (UMLY), USA She had served two terms on the Board of EQUAL-ARK Singapore Lid., a
charity registered under the Charities Act and an Institution of a Public Character (IPC), assisting at-
risk-kids and the elderly through equine-assisted beamning and therapy. Mrs. Goh serves on the Board
of the National Arthritis Foundation, a charity and an IPC devoted to helping Arthritis sufferers,
educating patients and the public on Arthritis and supporting Arthritis research. Mrs, Goh was
previousky Managing Director of the KCS Group in Singapore. a professional services organization
and Managing Director of Boardroom Limited, a company listed on the SGX. Mrs. Goh had served on
the Board of WWF Singapore Limited, the Singapore chapter of WWF International, a leading global
MG, She was a Council Member and Vice Chairman of the Singapora Institute of Directors as wedl
a5 Chairman of iis Professional Development Committee. Mrs. Goh was also a Director of the
Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Autherity (ACRA) and & past Chairman aof the Singapore
Association of the institute of Charlered Secretaries and Adminisirators. Mrs. Goh is a Fellow of the

Singapore Institute of Directors.

Luis F. Alejandro
Chief Operating Officer

Mir Luis F Alejandro has over 40 years of experience in consumer product operations and managemeant.
He started his career with Procter & Gamble where he spent 15 years in brand management before
joining Kraft Foods Philippines Inc as President and General Manager. Later, he joined Southeast Asia
Food Inc and Hainz UFC Phillppines, Inc, two leading consumer packaged condiment companies of
the NutriAsia Group, as President and Chief Operating Officer. He then became Prasident and Chief
Operating Officer of ABS-CBN Broadcasting Corporation, & leading media conglomerate in the
Philippines. Mr Alejandro is a Director of Dal Monie Foods, Inc, DMPL's US subsidiary, and Del Monte
Philippines, Inc, DMPL's Philippine subsidiary. He is also a Direclor of FieidFresh Foods Private Lid, a
joint venture of DMPL with the Bharti Group of India. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from
the Ateneo de Manda University and an MBA from the Asian Institufe of Managemenl.

fgnacia C, Q. Sisan
Chief Carporate Officer

Mr Ignacio © O Sison is DMPL's Chief Corporate Officer responsible for strategic planning,
sustainabiity, risk management and investor relations, He has been with DMPL since 1953 and was
the group’s Chief Financial Officer for ning years, Mr Sison has nearly 30 years of expeariance spanning
corporate and strategic planning, financial planning, treaswry, confrollership, corporate sustainability,
risk management and invesior relations. Bafore joining Del Monte Pacific, he was CFO of Macondray
and Company, Ing, then DMPL's parent company, for three years. Amangst others, he also worked for
Pepsi-Cola Producte Philippines and SGV & Co, the largest audit firm in the Philippinas. Mr Sison holds
an MSc degree in Agriculiural Economics from Ouxford University; an Ma, Major in Economics, from
the intermational University of Japan; a BA in Economics, magna cum laude, from the University of the
Philippines; and an International Baccatauneate from the Lester B Pearson United World College of the
Pacific in Canada. In 2010, Mr Sison recaived the Best CFO award from the Singapare Corporate
Awvards.

Parag Sachdeva

Cheef Financial Officer
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Mr Parag Sachdeva has 25 years of management and finance experience spanning planning and
controllership, performance management, mergers and acquisitions, treasury, IT and human
resources, Before joining DMPL, he was with Carlsberg Asla for mare than a year and supported
efficiency and effectiveness programmes across the Asian and African regions. Prior to Carisberg, he
was with HJ Heinz for 20 years and held leadership positions in Asla Pacific regions in finance, IT and
human resources. Mr Sachdeva graduated from the Aligarh Muslim University in India, Major in
Accounting and Commerce, He also has an MBA degree, Major in Finance from the same universily.

Antenio E. 5. Ungson
Chief Legal Counsel, Chief Compliance Officer, and Company Secretary

Mr Antenio E S Ungson is Chief Legal Counsel, Chief Compliance Officar and Company Secretary of
the Company. He is also Head of the Legal Departmant of Dael Monte Philippines, Inc since March
2007, Prior to joinng the Group in 2008, Mr Antonio E S Ungsen was a Senior Associate in SyCip
Salazar Hemandez & Galmaitan in Manila, where he served various clients for eight years in
assignments consisting mainky of corporate and transactional wark including mergers and acquisitions,
securities and government infrastructure projects. He also performed litigation work and company
secretarial services. Mr Lingson was a lecturer on Obligations and Contracts and Business Law &t the
Atgneo de Manila University Loyola School of Management. He obfained his MBA frem Kellogg
HKLUST, hiz Bachelor of Laws from the University of the Philippines College of Law and his
undergraduale degree in Economics, cum faude and with a ODepartmental award at tha Ateneo dé
Manifa Unversily,

Ruiz G. BEalazar
Chisf Human Resource Officer

Wr Ruiz G Sslazar 5 a Human Resourcas and Organisation Developmeant Leader with over 23 years
of professional career focused on delivering strategic and effective solutions as a value-driven partrer
o business, most of which was spent with Johnson & Johnson (J&J). He wes Regional Human
Resources Director of J&J Asia Pacific, where he was responsible for talent management, organisation
ransfarmation, succession pipelining and cepabilty development covering mostly J&J's Consumear
Division across the region. Prior o J&J, he was also Group Head — Human Resources and
Organisation Development of NulriAsia Food, Inc. Mr Salazar completed the J8J's Senior
Management Program at the Asian Institute of Management in 1988 and the J&J's Advanced
Management Program at the University of California in 1985, He obtained his Bachelor of Arts degree
ikajor in Economics) from the Universily of Santo Tomas.

Direc ips i i

The table below sels forth the directorships in other isted companies, both current and in the past
three years:

Mame Position Company Date
Joselite O Campas, Jr Directar San Miguel Corporation 2010 - Prasent
Emil O Jawear Independent Director Cantro Escolar University 2002 - Fresen

Godfrey E Scotchbrook = NMon-Executive Director | Convenience Retail Asia (HK) = 2002 - Prasent

Mene of the Comparyy's Directors are Chainman in other hsted compan:as.
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ANNEX “B”

INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT AND EXTERNAL AUDIT FEES

(&)
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The external suditor of the Company for the most recently completed fiscal year was Emst and
‘Young LLP ("EY Singapore”). which is the same accounting firm tabled for reappointment for the
current fiscal year at the AGM of shareholders. Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co, ("EY Philippines”), the
Group's auditors in the Philippines for the most recently completed fiscal year, is likewise tabled for
reappaintment for the current fiscal yeer at the AGM.

Mr. Alvin Phua is the pariner-in-charge from EY Singapore for the audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the fiscal yesr ended 30 April 2024, Representatives of EY
Singapore are expected to be present during the AGM. The representatives may make stataments,
if they desire to do so0. and will be available to respond 1o appropriate questions raised by the
shareholders at the AGM. Mr. Johnny F. Ang is the partner-incharge fram EY Philippines.

Tha aggregats annual extemal audit fees billed for each of the last two (2) fiscal years for the audit

of the Group and the Company's annual financial statements or servicas that are normally provided
by the extermnal auditor are as follows

Group Company

[FYz024 | FY2023 FY2024 | FY2023
Us.5 .55 Ues us.s

1. Audil Feas |

~ EY Singapere [ 204 [ 172 185 | 138
SGV [ 143 1438 222 [ 2851
Affiliates of auditors of the Comgpany | 50 | 50 =35 -
Other auditor 1 44 | 6 g -

2. Non-Audit Fees : | 3

' EY Singapare [ a0 | =1 30 -
sav [ 7l | 160 | 30 111
Other auditors ' B84 | 80 = 5

During the Company's two {2) most recent fiscal years or any subsequent interim pericd:

1) Mo indepandent accountant who was previously engaged as the principal accountant to audit
the Group’s financial statements, or an independent accountant on whom the principal
accountant expressed reliance in its report regarding a significant subsidiary, has resigned or
was dismissed, and

2) There were no disagreemenis with the former accountant on any matter of accounting
principles or policies, financial disclosures, or audiing procedure,

EY Singapore was appolnted as the external auditors of the Group at the AGM of the Company
hald on 23 Auguet 2021. EY Philippines was slso appointed at the said AGM as the Group's auditors
in the Philippines, They were the auditors of the Group for the mast recently completed fiscal year.

The Audit and Risk Committe (the "ARC”) reviews the scope and results of the audit and its cost
effectiveness. It also ensures the independence and objectivity of the external auditors. Likewise,
it raviews the non-audit services provided by the Company's external auditors. In the year in review,
the ARC had reviewed the audit and non-audit services of the external auditors and was satisfied
that the auditors continue to be indepandent.
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ANNEX “B"

Il FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Ar of the fiscal year ended 30 A 224

The financlal statements of the Group as of 30 Aprl 2024 are altached and incorporated herein by
referance.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL COMDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATION

Beview of Operating Performance for FY2024 vs FY2023

Summary

For the year ended FY2024, DMPL generated stable sales of USSZ.4 billion, on higher sales in the US
and higher exports of fresh pineapples to China, South Korea and Singapore, offset by lower exports
of packaged products. Sales from the Philippines were in ling with prior year

However, gross profit and EBITDA were lower by 31% and B0% to US5412.86 million and USE130.5
million, respectively, on higher inflationary and operational costs brought about by higher inventory in
the US and lower pineapple supply and productivity in the Philippines,

DMPL ingurred a net loss of LIS31258.2 million versus the prior year pariod's net profit of US516. 9 million.
This year included one-off axpenses of US513.3 million in DMFI primarily consisting of severance cost,
IPD-related cost and professional fees. DMFI's IPD had been posiponed

Sales
LIsA

The Group's US subsidiary, DMFI, generated US31.7 bilicn of sales or about 72% of Group sales.
Sales were marginally higher by 0.6% driven by pricing actions in FY2023 and FY2024, incremenial
wolume from foodservice and e-commerce, as well as higher broth and siock sales from College Inn
and Kitchen Basics, and higher Joyba bubble tea sales, which offset lower volume from shrategic exit
from the [ower margin co-pack business (packing for other manufacturers), categon/ headwinds across
canned products and increased trade spend 1o sustain and grow market share.

OMF| continues 1o pursue its innovation efforts and expand on new product offerings. In February, DMFI
received Product of the Year awards in two categorias: first in the healthy snack category for one of its
neweasl innovaticns, Dal Monte Fruit Refreshers and another in the meal ingredient category for Take
Root Organics. Product of the Year award is the world's larges! consumer-voted award for product
innovation. Winners am determined by the voles of 40,000 consumers in @ nationally representative
survey conducted by research pariner Kantar, a global leader in consumer research. This year marked
16 yvears of the ward In the US and more than 30 years globally,

DMFI's Joyba Bubble Tea was named by the Refrigerated and Frozen Food Awards as one of the Best
New Retail Products for 2023, Retailer reception to Joyba's national launch has been extremely strong,
and it iz performing better than the category. In the threa years since its launch, Joyba has becoms the
number 1 bubble tea in USA in dollar sales and strongest velocities.

Mew preducts sales reached USE138.4 milion during the year and contributed 7.7% to DMFI's iofal
sales in FY2024.

DMFI grew its markeat shares in canned vegetable, fruit, tomato and fruit cup snacks. Vegelable had an
exceptionally strong Holiday especially at Walmart where the Company parlicipated in their Holiday
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Maal Train merchandizing platform. DMFI cemented its leading market share position across its core
business

Market Position in Key Categories in the USA

Products :'.:m:; 'gﬁ:‘r:" Z Cp’:::rg;n::- : Brands
Canned Vegetabla #1 22.9% +0.9 ppt #
| Canned Frult #1 | tsew | sos ppl . @
Fruit Cup Snacks #2 26.7% +0.1 ppt &
Canned Tomato #3 6.0%' | +0.1 ppt . # £ M
mon w | % o | @

Market position is for branded only, ex-privale abef

"Combined share for Del Monfe, S&W Cafading amd Take Rool Organic bramds

“Combined zhare for Callege Inn and Kilchen Basics brands

Source: Circana OmniMarket Core Outlels, DMF! Custom DBs, Equivalent Volume share, Tolal US
MULD, 12 months ending 28 April 2024

Foodsarnce sales in the U.S improved by 18% 1o US3117.7 million bringing it to 6.8% of total DMFI
sales. In the past year, DMFI had focusad on growing within the non-commercialfgroup purchasing
organzation segment with special attzntion on healthcare and college and universiies. DMFI has
suwccassiully grown its cora frut and vegetable categories fhrough account comversions and menu
development, DMF| also continues to expand into new school districts and states providing nufritious
fruit and vegetable that are “Buy Amarican Complant’ and meet the K12 School Nutrition dietary
palicies,

Philippines

Sales in the Philippines of US3360.0 milicn in FY2024 wera in lins with prior yeads sales both 0 peso
and U3 dellar terms, Robust double-digit growth in convenience sicre and focdsernvice, as well as strong
e-commerce sales which more than doubled, offzat the decline in general trade. Moden trade sales
were relatively flat against priar year,

Sales of culinary products wera higher while packaged frut and beverage were flal Del Monta
Philippines continued with compelling strategic campaigns and value bundles. Campaigns included
Saucy Weekends promoting maone members of the family enjoying the saucy dish made with Del Monte
Tomato Sauce, Del Monte Spaghetti Sauce also started the Birthday campaign in its bid {o own the
meost frequent cccasion when pasta is served at home with fully-integrated advertising and the Limited-
Edition Birthday Collectibles sold in stores. These resonated well with consumers as these reinforced
Del Maonte's value amidst the inflationary environmaent,

Del Monte Philippines infroduced the Blueberry flavor to its Mr, Milk yogurt drink ling which is now the
fastest growing flaver, To increase its presence in snacks and offer young consumers thelr preferred
flavors, Dl Monte launched the Sour Creaam and Barbecue variants to its Del Mante Poltato Crisp range.

Ta participate in the ready-io-drink PET juice's grawih, the Company launched its latest innovation, Ded
Monte Fruity Zing, a competitively priced juice at Php2s. It is unigualy positoned as an on-the-go dual
fiavor refreshment for the Gen 2's, Del Monte Fruity Zing had been placed in 8,000 supermarkets and
camvenience stores.
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Dal Monte strengthened its market leadership in key product categories, including packaged pine.apple,
mixed fruits, tomato sauce and spaghelti sauce behind programs driving occasion-based messaging,
versatile recipe usage and value bundles. Canned mixed fruit and spaghetti sauce had nolable
increases of 2 parcentage points each. Canned mixed fruit's share grew due to lower-priced flankar
brand, Today's, with key competiters declining double-digit. Spaghetti Sauce increased share due to
Del Maonte and Today's brands maintaining their strength from the peak Christmas seasan demand,
and value packs' growth across regions and mainly suparmarkats. However, RTD juices lost share 10
low-priced competitors which the Company had addressed with the introduction of Fruity Zing

Market Leader in Various Categories in the Philippines

Market | Market  Change vs. prior
S Position Share _ Viar _ Erancs
Packaged B5.7% +0.4 ppt
Pineapple e _@ =
. : +o 1

E;Iul'll{:ﬁd Pixad i1 ‘ TE.8% 2 FIF't!i @ w
RTD  Julces 40.2% -1.3 ppis
ex-fail #1 @
pouches e
Tomalo | B40% +0.8 ppt
Sauce 5 . . ] @'

41.8% +2.0 ppts .
Spaghetti ‘ S fodas

S " o
“iCombined share for Del Monte and Today's brands
Combined share for Del Monte, Today's and Contadina brands
Source: The Nielsen Company - Relad Audit Dela, 12 months o Aprl 2023

Foodservice and convenience store channels continued their growth momentum with sales up 13% and
19%, respectively, on new accounts, outlets and menu ideas. Del Monte products are now part of the
ingredient in additional 210 dishes of stralegic customers and it executed menu idestion in 28 magar
gccounts. The Company also placed 10 products — 5 Tetra Pak juices, 1 canned pineapple orange
|uica, 2 Del Monte Vinamilk 1 Smart milk and 2 Fruity Zing juices - in convenience storas,

Consistent to owning the Christmas season, Del Monte Pineapple Sliced and Tidbits were highlighted
in holiday offerings of big chain accounts like Bonchen, Kenny Rogers Reoasters and Kuya J,

International/Exports

International markets, composed of fresh produce and peckaged goods, generatad sales of US5303.8
milbon, down 12%._ Fresh sales which accounted for US$160.7 million were up 8%, however, packaged
sales which accounted for US5143.1 million were lower by 26% due to lower sales to DMFI. S&8W
branded business achieved robust sales growth of 20% to USH156.0 méllian.

Fresh sales rose driven by stronger demand in China, South Korea and Singapore, as well as favorable
fmix with increased volume of the higher-margin premium S&W Deluxe pineapple, and better pricing.

S4W, along with its major distributor pariner, held the first ever SEW Pineapple Festival in China
covering more than 300 retail stores and 9 wholesale markets © communicate S&W's strong
commitment lo the Chinese market and showcase its innovative products

S&W Daluxe fresh pineapple was alsa launched far the firgt ime in select retail outbets in Metro Manila
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The Group's high quality, premium MDZ pineapple makes it the largest fresh pineapple exponer o
China with a 55% share and one of the three biggest exporters to Japan and South Korea.

\With the rising global trend on healthy snacks, the Group's Nice Fruit frozen pineapple spears and
chunks healthy snackidessert has gained traction, now sold in more foodservice channels such as KFC
in the UK, 7-Eleven in Japan and McDonald's in the Middle East, Balkans and Canada. in Fy2024,
frazen Pineapple Chunks were launched in Ireland by the Group's customer, Green Isle, as ona of the
katest additions to their perfect-for-lunchbox and on-the-go frult snacks range. These are now available
in all major retail stores in Ireland. S&W Frozen Pineapple Stick for consumption as & popsicie was also
launched in T-Eleven Taiwan.

Packaged sales decrsased with lower sales in USA due to DMFIs inventory correction process,
however, S&W sales of packaged pineapple in North Asia, Southesst Asia and the Middle East were

slighthy higher.

In the foodservice segment, McDonald's China and McDonald’s Hong Kong launched Chinese Maw
Year promations faaturing S&W Pineapple Slices in their burgers and S&W Fiesta Fruit Cocklail in their
yuzu drink. In addition, KFC launched a special NBA-themed Pineapple Beel Burger in their menu,
featuring griled S&W Pineapple Slice.

SEW is also rding on the frult tea trend in China having infraduced its pineapples in frui tea chains Cha
Bai Dao, Goodme and Heylea

india

Sales at our joint venture De! Monte Foods Private Limited in India (formerly FieldFresh Foods), which
are equity accounted and not consolidated, were USHE5.5 milllon, 1% lower versus prior year in US
doliar terms but up 2% in rupea lerms. There was sustained growth from its retail business primarily in
traditional trade.

Given the Company’s strength and equity in premium edible cils, and as one of the leaders In oive oll
in India, it lasnched canota ofl in 1- and S-liter. Canola is fast emerging as an equally healthy yet far
mare afiordable option to olive cil in India considering the significant prics increase that olwve oil has
sean globally over the last couple of years. Del Monte India also expanded its mayonnaise portfolio by
introducing a range of salad dressings, an emerging category as consumers switch or upgrade to
condiment options that they perceive to Ba healthwer

Del Monta India's new factory in Punjab started operations in Octobar 2023, It manufactures tomato-
based sauces as well 35 mayonnaise and its dervatives.

Operating profit of US$1.4 million improved by 46% with margin improvements from strategic raw
material sourcing and counter inflationary price increases.

However, DMPL's share in India was a USS0.1 milkon loss from a US$0.1 millien profit in the prior year
mainly due to a catch-up accounting adjusirmant in prior year,

GROSS PROFIT AND MARGIN

DMPL's gross profit decreased by 31% to US$410.6 milkon while gross margin declined to 17, 3% from
25.1% on higher inflationary and operational costs brought about by higher nventory in the LIS and
lower pineappha supply and productivity in the Philippines.,

DMF| reported a grass profit of USS$245.1 million, lower by 35% versus last year's US$400.3 million.
Gross margin declined to 14.1% from 23,1% dnven by higher variable product cost, sale of high-cost
FY2023 pack inventery [with high metal. raw produce and logistics cost), higher waste from aged
inventosries and discontinued products, and higher warehousing costs from higher inventory evess.
Additionally, marging wara impacted by increased trade spend becausa of strong promotional activities
lo gain market share in declining categories. This was parlly offset by price increases last year and
early this year,
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DMFI closed two vegetable plants in Wiscensin and Washington, and consolidated its green beans
volurme from Wisconsin into another ptant, which should lower fixed costs going forward.

DMPL ex-DMF] delivared gross profit of LIS$172 1 million, lower by 15% than the US3201 .4 million last
year. Gross margin decreased to 24.2% from 26.3% on higher product costs brought aboul by lower
pineapple supply and yield of the C74 pineapple variety for processing due lo severe weatherrelates
issues that impacted #s growing cycle since 2022, This resulted in lower cannary tonnage and under
absorption of fixed cost as most growing costs are fiwed in nature. This was partly mitigated by price
increases ta manage inflation, and favorable sales mix from higher sales af the high margin S&W Deluxe

fresh pineapples.

OMNE-OFF EXPEMSES

' DMFI One-OH Exponses (in USSm)  FY2024  FY2023 Booked Undar
Saverance 75 . GRA
IPO-related* cost 48 . GRA
Fictesional et 4.8 - EEL?’:‘-EIEHPEHEI
Seltlement of legal claims 2.0 25 mrmense
Excess of nel realizable value over inveniony Qther
cost related to the Kitchen Basics acquisition 1.8 5.0 IncomeExpense

Oiher
Plant closure (1.4) - Imcome/Expanse
Early redemgtion fee far US3500m Motes g 445 Interest Expense
Wirite-off of deferred financing Sosis [non-
gash) - 26.3 Interest Expense

Tieking Fee - 1.0 Interest Expense
Totel (prectax) 19.1 79.3
Tax impact 4.9 (20.3)

Mon-controlling interest 0.9} 138}

Total (post tax and NCI) 13.3 56.2
"postpaned o
EEITDA AND NET PROFIT

The Group generated an EBITDA of US$130.5 milion, 60% lower than prior year's US$328.7 million
due fo the unfavorable operating resulis of both DMFI and DMPL ex-DMF1. DMF reported an EBITDA
of LIS$22 9 million, down from US5206.0 million driven by higher costs as discussed above, partly offset
by price increases. DMPL ex-DMFI generated an EBITDA of US51056.3 millien, down 11% due to higher
operating costs, partly offset by lower variable distribution and deliberate cuis on adminisirative cost.

The Group Incurred a net loss of US$129 2 million versus the priar yaar parod's nat profit of US516.9
milkon, This year included one-off expenses al DMFI of US313.3 million primarily consisting of
saverance cost IPO-related cost, and professional fees. DMFI's net loss was WS5111.0 millien fram
last year's net loss of US$2 .8 million, while DMPL ex-DMFI had a net profit of US312.2 million, lower
versus last year's US$44.1 millkon,
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INVENTORIES

DMPL's inventories had stabilized at US51.04 bilkon as at 30 April 2024 from US51.08 bilkon last year,
There was a deliberate reduction of DMFI's high inventary level and de-stocking of DMPL ex-DMFI's
inyentory.

CAPEX

Capital expenditures were US$187.8 million in FY2024, lower than the US5$237.9 millicn in FY2023.
DMFI accounted for LS$43.1 million of Group capex in FY2024, lower than the US555.4 millien in
FY2023 due to lower additions in CIP. DMPL ex-DMFI's capex accounted for USS5144.5 million in
FY2024. lower than the US$182.5 milion in FY2023 due to lower additions in bearer plants, CIP and
leasehold improvements, DMPL ex-OMF| capax was comprised mostly of additions to bearer plants at
LiS%125 4 million, with the balance of US5312.1 million for building, CIP, machinery and equipment.

CASH FLOW AND DEBT

The Group's working capital decreased fo LIS539 6 million net liability in FY2024 from US5252.5 million
in the priar year. The decreass in warking capital was dus to the shift Lo cuffent Ingim non-curment Rakility

for leng-term loans maturing in the next 12 months.

DMPL believes that it will be abla 1o pay or refinance its labilties a3 and when they fiall due, considering
that the Group continues to find new sources of funding and Improve cash management

# The Group conbruas o gal incremental short-term ines from partner banks for meeling 15
shori-term obdigations that will provide sufficient working capital financing 1o mest s chjschves
and future financial obligations

*  The Group has new proposals from reputed financial Institutions for new lang-term bans
I addilian

s UUSSS00 million of current liabdlities pensdns to cerfain obligatons of the Company matunng &
less thiam a year in respect of which discussions have been progressing wilh the partner banks
for extension 2nd refinancing for up fo three years.

Management remaing vigilant in managing s costs and 15 focused on restoring gress mangin both in
ihe US and the rast of DMPL.

Despite incurnng a loss, the Group generated posibve cash flow from opérations armaunting to
UEE369.3 million, which was. a furnaraund from the cash outflow of USE2.8 millkon fast year maindy
driven by belter working capilal managemenl, in particutar, Inventory. It expects W see further
improvement in DMFI following #s decision fo reduce pack for most of the categanes.

The Group’s net debt (borrowings less cash and bank balances) amounted o USS2. 28 billion as at 30
Apnl 2024, almost simidar Lo the US%2.25 billion as at 30 April 2023, Cut of the fotal nat debt of US52.28
billian, DMFI accounted for USS1.18 billion while DMPL ex-DMF| accountad for LIES1.12 billion

However, the Group's net debtladjusted EBITDA increased fo 15 3x from B.7x, and geanng to B.0x from
5 Bx. While overall absolule debt level was flal, the much lower EBITDA and naet income reduced toial
equity resulting in kigher gearing ratios

Page | 21
Managemant Rapart



ANNEX “B"

REVIEW OF COST OF GOODS SOLD AND OPERATING EXPENSES

% of Turmover For the year ended 30 April
Fy 2024 FY2023 Explanatory Notes

Lower planfatien yield resulling to

higher cost in the Philippines. Higher
o o Faw il L variable cost for the LS, as well as

higher waste and inventory writa-off
Destribution and Seling 93 g5 Lower freight cost in DMPI, partly
Expensas ) : _driven by volumes and also lower rabes

Higher parsennel and professional and
A TP o o condracted senvices in DMF

Lower atfer operating expanses this
earphiing 0.3 0.5 year driven by gain on disposal of lmed

Expansas (Income)

assets in DMFI

REVIEW OF OTHER MATERIAL CHANGES TO INCOME STATEMENTS

In US5000 For the year ended 30 April
Fr2024  FY2023 o Explanatory Motes
Depreciation and . Higher deprecialion of bearer
anctision (200,814) (154,378 (3.4) plants
Reversall (Provision) for ¥ Higher cbsolescance in the US
inventery chsolescance i e I e due to aged invantory
- Last weqr was driven by reversal
TRl (P oRon ¢ : 181 (100.0) of bad debts for frade
dovibiful debits
recelvables
Med gaini{loss) on Driven by equiprrent disposal in
dispasal of foed assets ke e il - <
Foreign exchange Lower forex gain from ICMO54
4, T2
oainfloss!- ned Al ' L S et e
i Higher imerast incoms on rental
Intaras] incorms 1,0E8 g2 1T Rl
Lowier inferes! this year as last
yaar's interes! includes one-off
Interasl expensa (189.813) (207,2532) ia redemption cost and write-off of
deferred financing cosi relatad to
high yield loan refinancing
Lower met loss in JW than last
Share in net 1053 af JY {1,082) (1,486} 2885 yaar drivan by favorable resulls
frewm JW operations
Taxation benefit Tax banafit was drven by nal
(Bxpense) 18,508 (17167} 207.E s in the US
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REVIEW OF GROUP ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ANNEX “B"

% Varlance
April 2024 Aprll 2021 April 3022 T L0 Baiscey i
Balsnice Sheal {Audited) {Audited] . HEH;H pla ¥
In USST00
ASEETE
Proparty, plang and equipmani - not B0, 344 658,001 677647 .7 nm
Righl-al-use {ROU) assets 51,268 100,568 123,530 [8.2h Bdainly drven by amcriization
v et i g veniueas 18,665 20,161 17172 (2.4} am
reangibls asepals and goodwill T4E BOT 753,841 GRE Oaf ok 5 nm._
Diriwen by sddBznal imestmen
1
Other MOnNCUHTENE ansets 41,811 42 BE3 3041 [Z.2) in Hice Tech
Higher dafered 13a e8] did 10
L k
Daferned tax assals - ral 145 70E 118, D5D 116,745 24.3 DRAFTS nal lees “!
Reduction in pangion furd in
Pension assels 7.800 10,630 =y (2% 8} DRAP] i 18 unding.
Becdogical assels 51,880 47 558 008 B& nm
rerdating 1,043,843 1,078,712 GRS a5 (1) nm
iatny dys to Hming of
Tinsa and athor rassivakise FE, 184 231 038 314 /A3 L] iy
:‘:&pﬁdawmannmm 81,774 48 084 48,053 18 T by Figher pregaid input
Cash and cash egunalents 13,922 19,838 21,883 {x5.8) Mainly s 10 Hming
EQLITY
Shans capial 19,449 19,448 20 440 oo nm
SR eI 208,335 108,338 258,338 el nm
Dirrwen by ret lass dunng ihe
Relained =amngs {73.232) 119,540 140,320 {161.3)  wear and redampiion of DMF
shares from Eul_.pnur
Drvwen by remeasuremant of
Reserees {24, 707) {28511 (E2 541 133 : e
lasuanoa of perpalual shams by
i Jubitanl Yiear Pyveshesbnls
;| 1 4
Mon-conirading interost 133,302 A6 D4 BE. 138 A4 .2 Limitsd, 8 new subsdsny of
(o] V]
LIABILITIES
Loans and Domowings 296,043 2.273.353 1,567,366 .o nm
= Dacrease due o renawal of
Lipias Rablfes 1418 100,098 121,320 {8.T} Mice busiding 8l lang
Dirwnin by long-lerm payables
Hher noncament llabiltes A8 ETT 168828 23,023 T3 _____r_u-lmq___l:-n_dln tal Miire
Employee benefils ABETT a8 574 7,300 124 i =
Ensironimental remaediation iaksllies - - W 4o rm
Dafaread lax labisias - nal 11473 11830 12,431 1.3} i
Trade and other currenl liabiktes 380,518 304,340 3;M2E3 248 Er“mTuhg highar rade pryebies
Cument tax laSiitkes 1,230 1482 1,685 {109 Timing of tax payment for OKFI
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Kay Performance Indicators

The following sets forth the explanation why certain performance ratios (Le. cument ratic, debt to equity
ratio, net prafit margin, return on asset, and return on equity) de not fall within the benchmarks indicated
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of the Philippines (the "SEC")
A. Current Ratio .

30-Apr-23

| 30-Apr-24 | (Restated) | Benchmark |
Minimum  of
Current Ratio 1.0285 1.2146 1.2

Lower current ratic driven by higher current liabilities from reclessification of current portion
of lorg-tarm loans maturing next year.

B. _Debt to Equity Ratio
30-Apr-24 | 30-Apr-Z3  Benchmark

Maximum  of
Total Debt/Total Stockholders’ Equity  11.2866 | 7.1390 25

Higher gearing driven by increase in loans.

C. Met Profit Margin

J0-Apr-24 A0-Apr-23 Banchmark
Met ProfitiLoss) Margin attributable Minimum  of |
ta owners of the company -5.32% 0.70% 3% -

Met loss was driven by higher production costs and interest expense

D. Retumn on Asset
30-Apr-24 | 30-Apr-23 | Benchmark
Return on Asset 4,245, 0.81% Minimum of 1.21

Metl loss was driven by higher production costs and interest expensa,

E. Return on Equity

30-Apr-24 = 30-Apr-23  Benchmark
Minimum  of |

Return on Equity 52.12% 6.58% 8%

Wet loss was driven by higher production costs and interast expanse
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Material Changes in Accounts

A

B.

Deferred Tax Asset .
Higher deferred tax assel due to DMFI's net loss position

Inventories
Delibarate reduction/de-stocking in DMF| and DMP

Lease Liabilities
Drivan by higher prepaid trade and prepaid parts and supphes from OMF|

. Other noncurrent liabilities

Driven by lang-term eguipment financing in the US.

Trade and other current liabilities
Higher frade payables in the LS

Mon-controlling Interest
Issuance of Senior Perpetual Capital Securilies

ANNEX “B"
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g of e for FY2

Summary

Fer the year ended FY2023 DMPL grew sales by US$2 4 billion on higher USA and internaticnal sales.
However, gross profit and EBITDA were lower by 3% and B% to US$507.0m and US$329.7 miliom,

respectively, on higher cosls

Net Income declined to US$16.9 million from US$100.0 million largaly due to one-off costs of US§55.2
millien as DMF| refinanced its loan earber with a long-term credit facility that has lower interest ratas.
Without these one-off costs, DMPL EBITDA and nel income would have been LIS$337.2 milkon and
US572 2 milion, lower by 4% and 28%, respectively.

Sales

DMPL generated sales of USS$2 4 billion, up 3% versus prior year driven by higher sales in the U.S and
international markets. Excluding Kitchen Basics, Group sales were higher by 2%,

UsSA

The Group's U.5. subsidiary, Del Monte Foods, Ing, (DMF1), genarated USS1.7 bilion of sales ar about
T2% of Group salas, higher by 5% driven by sustained growth across almost all categories, attributed
to pricing adjustments to mitigate inflation, distribution gains for vegetable club and Joyba bubble tea,
increased sales of fruit cups, as well as incremental sales of US$E35.1 million frem Kitchen Basics

Branded reizil which accounted for 75% of DMFI's sales grew by 8%. Other channels of mass
merchandizers, e-commarce and foodservice also expanded. Latin America which generaled sales of
15549, 7 million was also up 12%

In August 2022, DMFI acquired the intelleciual property of the Kitchen Basics brand and its extensive
inventory of conventional and organic stocks and broths from MeCormick & Company for US393.0
million {of which USS17 million was inventory with market vatue of US$25-27 million). The consideration
was establishad through an auction process and negotiations between the partias. The acquisition was
financed through available credit facilities. No property, plant andlor equipment ware acquired

Kitchen Basics producis are distributed nationally in the United States, The brand was founded in 1996
a5 the pioneer in liquid stock and remains an industry leader in the U.5, today. The acquisidon is
consistent with DMFI's overall growth strategy, as it focuses on innovation, renovation and
custormnization of ks lconic brand porifolio, Kilchen Basics complements DMFI's College Inn broth
business and creates an immediate national footprint within the broth and stock calegory.

DOMF| continues to pursua its innovation efforts and expand on new product offerings. It launched Take
Rooi Organics, s new organics brand, which includes six tomato products grown throughout
California's Central Valley. The launch of Take Root Organkcs provides DMF| with an exciting and
competitive new brand to reach the growing consumer base that seeks high-quality and accessibly-
priced organic food. It also launched Del Monte specialty vegetable items Artichoke and Mushrooms.

Mew products sales reached US$134.3 million and confributed 7.6% to DMFI's total sales in FY2023.

DMFI continues to hold leading marke! share positions across its core business. Canned vegetable,
canned tomato and fruit cup snacks achieved higher ehares on the back of sirong commercial
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execution, increased distribution of core products, and new product expansion, all supported by
improved supply chain service,

Markat Position in Key Categories in the USA

o | e [ pems | o
Canned Viegetable | 21.9% | gt o ‘ #

-L'.:-ar;-m; Fruit # | 21.4% | 0opet | @

Fruit Cup Snacks #2 |z | Vs | -] ‘
T PR 3 | % s03ppt | @ﬁ

Broth | gan | 0.0pet S um

Canrad markel shares are for branded only, es-prvaie labels
*Camhined shars for Ded Monbe, S8W and Conladirg brands
Source: Mislsen FMS | Seantrask DA Custom DBs, Equivalant Walafe skars, Totsl RACC, 130 anding 28 Agrl 2023

Foodservice sales in the U.S. improved by 12% to LIS$58 2 million bringing it 1o 5.7% of total DMFI
gales This was achieved by building stromg parinerships and targefing both commercial and non-
commercial segments which demand high quality branded fruits and vegetables. Del Monte has placed
its Joyba bubble tea in over 20 college campuses and has started selfing its pineapple juice 1o Blooming
Brands® which operates Qutback and Fleming's Steakhouse, among others. Joyba Bubble Tea is the
Company's new brand targeting Millannials and Gen Z with a line of boba shop-inspired bevarages
made with real brewed tea infused with vibrant fruit flavors and popping boba. Ded Monte's new
foodservice peach salsa with morita chiles is receiving positive feedback and has gained new
distribution in the healthcara sector.

Philippines

Sales in the Philippines in FY2023 of US5361.6 milkon grew by 7% in peso terms but declmed by 4%
in LS. dallar terms due 1o the peso depreciation,

Peso sales increasad on higher culinary, beverage and new product sales. This performance was driven
by the combined impact of compeling communication campaigns that built relevance for Dal Monte
products in family meals, low-cash outiay SKUs and multipacks value offers to help consumers cops
with high inflation, and improved distribulor operations.

However, mixed fruit was negatively affected by lower desseri consumption which consumers
deprioritzed, 100% Pineapple Juice also declined as consumers shified preference o more indulgence
drinks, with sales of multi-flavored juice drink large packs growing. A new campalgn on 100% Pineapple
Juice was launched highlighting immunity with brometain and anticxidants, The classic line of Del Mente
Fit 'n Right was also relaunchad at a lower price with the same efficacy and tasie,

Innavations grew strongly due to higher sales of Mr. Milk, Potato Crisp and Munchsters in the snacking
segment. As schoals in the Philippines shifted to In-person classes frem anline, Del Monte activated its
milk sampling activities in a number of schools, and also tied up with 8 leading bock store chain and foy
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store chain to promote its dairy product. Mr. Milk added the popular orange flavar o its offering while
Polato Crisp launched smaller packs.

Mew products launched in the past thres years, Including dairy and snacks, contributed 6.5% 1o total
Philippine market sakes in FY2023,

Dl Monts continues to enjoy strong market share leadership across all is major categories, with higher
shares in packaged pineapple behind consumption-buliding efforis. Del Monle spaghethi sauce also
grew share by staying ahead of competition amidst a declining category.

However, RTD juices lost share due to the aggressive growth of the PET segment, which offers law-
priced products with broadened distribution and on-the-go convenience. Canned mixed fruit and tomaio
salce shares were impacted by price brands. But in the fourth quarter of FY2023, RTD juices and
canned mixed fruil registered higher shares versus the prior year quarter bahind |uice drinks, cannad
pineapple juice and the re-entry of Fit 'n Right classic fine, while tomato sauce maintained its share wilh
the support of its Saucy Meals campaign, spurring brand and category offtakea.

| Market Leader in Various Categories in the Philippines

| -I'ila-u:im ! Hﬁriat- Change vs prior

Products Position Share | yoar Brands

| Packaged i , .
i #1 95, 5% +2.2 ppts = |
E;'t:i':eu i #1 75.4% -0.5 ppt = fodwys |
RTD Julces ex- | | . I
il otichise #1 40.9% -2.3 ppts =
Temalo Sauce #1 B46% -1.0 ppt =

e )| S | —]
SO ‘ #1 37.8% WEagt | = days
e ' | i

R —_—— . e
"Comipined sharg for Dal Monta and Today's brands
*Cambined share far Del Monls, Teday's ard Contadina brands
Saurce: The Niekan Company - Retail Audil Dala, 12M 10 April 2023

Foodsenvice sales increased by 18% behind the accelerating business of quick service reslaurants
(QSRs), while convenlence store sales jumped 39% as schools and transport sectors opened up, 8,917
foodservice outlets are now apen at 82% of pre-pandemic level, while 3,095 convaniance stores are
now open at 120% of pre-pandemic level,

Del Monte confinues to supply kelchups in large chain accounts such as Burger King and Shakey's
wihile gaining new businessas with Landers, Pesi-Peri, Doming’s and lkea; pineapple tidbis to Doming's:
and juices to Tapa King and Mactan Cebu International airport.

InternationallExports

International markets, composed of fresh produce and packaged goods, generated sales of USS330.5
milion, up 12%. Packaged sales accounted for US%161.4 million, highar by 11% while fresh sales
accountad for US5149.1 milion, up 14%, SEW branded busingss achieved sales of US5136.2 millian,
higher by 14%.
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Fresh sales rose driven by stronger demand particularly in North Asia, better pricing and improved
supply. The Company’s new naturally-ripaned exira sweat S8V Deluxe premium fresh pineapple in
China, Japan and Socuth Korea continued to gain momentum in China's retail segment. Fresh sales
bensfitied from favorabla consumer and frade responses (o this varialy

The Group's high guality, premiurn MD2 pineapple makes it the largest fresh pineapple exporter o
China with & 53% share and one of the threa biggest exporters 1o Japan, South Korea and the Middle
Easl

Sales of packaged producis grew behind higher sales of pineapple, mixed fruit and various retal and
industrial juice formals. In the WS, a major QSR launched new summer drinks, cne of which -
Fineapple Passionfruit Refreshers — uses the Company's pineappde product.

The Group's froren fruit product uses Nice Tech's revolutionary technalogy, Extra sweet and goldan
yaliow pineapplas from fully ripened fruits are cut into spears then frozen without breaking the cellular
structure of the fruil This technology is supernior to Individually Quick-Frozen (1GF) technalogy.

With the rising global trend on healthy snacks, the Group's Nice Tech frozen pineapple spears and
chunks healthy snack/dessert has gaimed traction, now sokd in more foodservice channels swuch as KFC
in the UK, T-Eleven in Japan and McDonald's in the Middle East, Balkans and Canada.

India

Sales at our joint venture Del Monte Foods Private Limited in India (formerly FieldFresh Foods), which
are aguity accounted and not consolidated, wera US566.3 milion, Aal versus prior year in U5, doliar
terms buf up B% in rupee terms, There was overall growth across all channgls of B2B, B2C, modern
frade and e-commerce. BZB business delivered strongly driven by increase in foodservice sales coming
off a lower basa last year due to the pandemic.

Dl Monts introduced a 600-gram Chocolate Syrup in Septembar 2022, with 50% more cocoa than that
of leading competitor. After a suwccessful launch, Del Monte came up with a smaller 100-gram spout
pack o recrult new consumers. This added to the Company's existing low price paint pack portfolio and
halpad the business gain more retail outlels and consumers.

Del Monte also launched the Royal Arabian Dates, entering a US338 million market and seizing an
opporiunity for a premium branded player in a sea of unbranded players,

The Company also relaunched its mayonnaise bottie range in wide mouth PET jars, which form the bulk
of the mayonnaise category in India, bringing its affering more in line with consumer usage.

DOMPL's share in India was a USE0.1 million profit from a US$3.2 millicn loss in the prior year,
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Gross Profit and Margin

DMPL's gross profit decreased by 3% to US$807.0 milllen while gross margin declined to 25.1% from
26.6% due to higher raw materal, packaging, manufacturing and logistics costs coupled with
unfavorable sales mix

DMFI genarated a gross profit of US5400.3 milkon, slightly higher varsus last year's US3396.1 million,
on higher salas; however, gross margin was lower at 23.1% from 23.8%. Price Increases wera
insufficient to cover higher costs of raw produce, packaging materials, labor &nd logistics.

DMPL ex-DMFI delivered gross profit of US$201 .4 millian, 13% lower than US3230.7 million in the prior
year. Gross margin dechined to 26.3% from 30.7% as price increases o manage inflation wara offset
by higher product costs driven by commodity headwinds, lower productivity Both in plantation and
production which resulted in higher cost of growing, harvesting and processing.

DEL MONTE FOODS REFINANCING

In May 2022, DMFI raised US$500 millien through a 7-year Term Loan B facility maturing in 2020 at
Adjusted Securad Ovemight Finanging Rate (SOFR), with a floor of 0.5% plus 4.25% p.a. Proceeds
were used to primarily redeem the USS500 million Senior Secured Notes plus redamption fees and
accruad mterest The sald Notas had an interest rata of 11.875% p.a. and were due to mature in 2025
The new Term Loan B had a hedged interest rate of 8.1% as of end April 2023, The early redemption
of the Notas Incurred a one-off cost of US$71.9 million or US550.2 million past tax and non-cantraling
interast. US$26.3 million of the US$71.9 million was non-cash

Early redemgpticn fee for US$500m Notes 445 - Intarast Expense

Wiite-aff of deferrad financing cosls (mon-cash) 26,3 - Interest Expense

Excess of net realizable walue over inventory GRY - Other

cost related to the Kitchen Basics acquisition Inceme/Expense

Sattlermant of legal claims 2.5 - Orver
Income/Expense

Ticking Fee 1.0 -

Total (pre-tax basis) 733 -

Tax impact [20:3} =

Non-cantrolling interast {3.8) -

Total (post tax and NCI) §5.2 -

REDEMPTION OF PREFEREMNCE SHARES

In April 2022 of fiscal year 2022, DMPL redeemed USS200 million of its Senes A-1 Preference Shares
which had a dividend rate of 6625% p.a. In December 2022 of fiscal year 2023, DMPL redeemed
LIS3100 million of its Series A-2 Preference Shares which had a dividend rate of 6.5% p.a.
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The redemption was refinanced by a combination of fixed rate Senior Notes and fioating rate loans with
an average intereat rate of 5.52% in FY2023.

There are no mare outstanding Preference Shares as st 30 Apnl 2023,

EBITDA and Met Profit
The Group generated an EBITDA of US$328.7 milkon, 6% lower than prior year's U33351.5 million.

DMFI delivered an EBITDA of USS5206.0 million, 4% lower than prior yeer's US5213.6 million driven by
lewer margins a5 discussed, Gontributing to the lower EBITDA were losses from consolidation of
distribution centars and discontinuation of pocket pies amounting to US$E.6 millien and LISS2.8 million,

respectvely,

DMPL ex-DMF] generated an EBITDA of USS118.2 million, lower by 21%, also driven by lower margins
as discussad,

The Group registered a net profit of US$16.9 million, lower than last year's US$100.0 million. This was
mainly driven by the one-off costs of US355.2 million, as discussad above, and the impact of cost
increases dua to inflation across all businass segments and higher interest expense, The Group's
profitatility was impacted by the additional US514.4 milkon of interest expense for the new loans taken
to redesm the Preference Shares. The latter's cost was previously accounted for in the balance shaet
in the form of dividend payments againat eqguity, i.e. outside the income statement, whereas the Interest
expensa for the new loans is booked in the income statement, |.e. impacting net profit.

Withaut the ana-off costs, DMPL's net profit would have been USE72 2 million, lower by 28% fram prior
year's USS100.0 million, while EBITDA would have been US3337.2 million, down 4%.

A a result of the one-off costs, and also higher costs, DMFI incurred a net loss of USS2 8 miflion versus
the net profit of US4$54.3 million in the prior year. Excluding one-off costs, DMFI's net profit would have
been US3$52.5 million, slightty lower by 3% versus the net profit of USE54.2 million in the pricr year.
Excluding one-off costs. DMFI's EBITDA would have been US5213.5 million, sama as last yaar's

INVENTORIES

DMPL's inventories increased to US51.1 billion as at 30 April 2023, from US$686.0 milkon as at 30 April
2022, primarily due to DMFI driven by the inflationary impact on overall cost of inventories, increase in
cerain segmenis to support customer service levels and higher growth projectiens for FY2024 and
Kifchen Basics acquisibon.

CAPEX

Capital sxpenditures were US$237.9 million in FY2023, higher than US3$202.7 million in FY2022. DMFI
accounted for USSE5 .4 milllen of Group capex in FY2023, higher than US532.1 million n FY2022 dus
to higher additions to CIP for various process and mmprovemsnts, DMPL ex-DMFI's capex accounted
for US$182.5 millien in FY2023 from US$170.6 millien in FY2022 driven by higher additiens to bislogical
assats. DMPL ex-DMF] capex was comprised mastly of bislogical assets at USS$147.0 million, with the
balance of US$35.5 million for building, CIP, machinery and agquipment.
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CASH FLOW AND DEBT

The Group's cash fiow from operations was negatve US52.8 milion for FY2023 from posifive US$280.7
millicn in the pricr year mainly due to higher inveniories and lower profit as explained above.

The Group's working capital decreased fo US$205.3 million net lizbility in FY2023 from US5168.4
million net asset in the prior year, The negative working capétal was due fo the shifl to current from non-
current liability for long-term loans maturing in the next 12 months, and the new loans taken to redeem
the Freference Shamas.

The Group's net debt (borrowings less cash and bank balances) amounted to USS2.25 billion as at an
Agril 2023, higher than US$1.5 billion as al 30 Aprl 2022, Out of the total net debt of LIS52.25 billion
DMFI accounted for USS1.18 billion while DMPL ex-DMFI aceounted for LISS1.08 billon.

The Group's net debt 1o EBITDA increased lo 6.8x from 4.4x while net dabt 1o equity rose to 5.8x from
3.1x due to higher loans &s a result of the redemption of DMPL's Preference Shares. DMFI's Senior
Sacured Notes refinancing in May 2022, DMFI's ABL (working capital) loans which incluges the US$100
miflien acquisition of Kitchen Basics, and lower equity due fo net losses arising from refinancing costs.

Although debl levels had gone up. the refinancing of the Preference Shares with bank loans at an
average interast rate of 5.52% versus the Praference Share coupen of 10% on a step-up basis, if not
redeemed, saved the company about US310 million during the year.

A major priorty of the Group is to reduce leverage, strengthen its capital structure and bring down
interest expense in the coming year.

REVIEW OF COST OF GOODS SOLD AND OPERATING EXPENSES

% of Turnover Faor the year anded 30 April

F¥2023 FY2022 Explanatory Notes
Increase in sales was mors thar offget by Megher

Cosl of Goods Sold 749 734 bl okt
Distribution and Salling a.& a5 Higher trensfer and ocean freight cosl in DMFI and
Expenzes 7 : OKP1 affset by lower advertising costs
ELA Expenses 5.0 55 DOriven by lower people cost from DRFT

Other expense this quarter was mainly from write-
Ciher Operating Expensas 0.5 0.2 off af excess of MRV aver cost of invarntory of tha
[Incoma) : : newly acgured KB bransd and cleanupliransiton

cosis al Modesle DS
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REVIEW OF OTHER MATERIAL CHANGES TO INCOME STATEMENTS

REVIEW OF OTHER MATERIAL CHANGES TO INCOME STATEMENTS
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REVIEW OF GROUP ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ANNEX “B"
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Key Performance Indicators

The following sets forth the explanation why certain performance ratios (i.e. eurrent ratio, dabt fo equily
ratic, net profit margin, return on asset, and return on equity} do not fall within the benchmarks indicated
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of the Philippines {the "SEC”).

A. Current Ratio
30-Apr-23  30-Apr-22  Benchmark
[ Minimum of
Current Ratio | 0.B74% 1.1980 1.2
Lower current ratic driven by higher current 1IEj:II|I|3-EE from reclassification of current portion
of kang-term koans maturing next year

B. Debtto Equity Ratic =

| 30-Apr-23  30-Apr-22 Benchmark
Maximum of

Total Debt/Total Stockholders’ Equity | 7.1390 42250 | 28

Higher gearing driven by redemption of A-2 preference shares, financed by new loans.

C.  Het Profit Margin ;
_30Apr23 | M-Apriz| Bunchmark

MNet Profit/(Loss) Margin attributable to Minimum of
owners of the company o. 75‘":'5 4.27% 3%

Lower nel profit margin driven by DI'rE'-D‘ff c.usta incurred to redeem the high-yielding sanior
natas of OMFI.

0. Return on Assel
| _30-Apr-23 | 30-Apr-22 | Benchmark

Return on Asset ' 0.81% 4.47% | Minimum of 1.21
Lower return driven by one-off costs incurred to redeem the high-yielding senior notes of
LRI

_E. Return on Equity

30-Apr-23 | 30-Apr-22 Benchmark

[ Minimum of
Return on Equity " 6.58%  23.36% &%
Lower return driven by one-off costs incurred to redeem the hlgh-yualdlng sanlor notes of
DMIFIL.
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Material Changes in Accounts

A,

Inventories

Primarity due to DMFI driven by the inflationary impact on overall cost of invenlones, Increase in
certain segments 1o support customer service levels and higher growth projections for FY2024, and
Kitzhen Basics acquisition

Property, plant and equipment
Driven mainly by DMFI's higher additions to CIF for various process and improvements and Base
Business’ higher additions to biological asseis

Prepaid expenses and olher curreni assels
Driven by higher prepaid trade and prepaid parts and supplies from DMF|,

Other noncurrent assets
Driven by new equity investment to NTH and reckass of the noncurrent portion of derivative assats.

Loans and borrowings
Driven by DMFI refinancing, refinancing of preferance capital and higher shor-lerm loans for
warking capdal requirements.

Share Capital and Share Premium
Redemption of A-2 preference shares,
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Financial Ratios

Supplementary Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicator

Ratio

Formula

(i} Liguidity Analysis Fatios:

Cument Ratic ar
Warking Capital
Ratio

Cuick Ratic
(i) Solvency Ratio

Financial
Leverage Ratios:
Debt Ratio
Dabl-to-Equity
Ratia

{iliy Asset to Equity
Ratio

[Iv) Interest
Coverage

(¥ DebtEBITDA
Ratios

(vi} Proftability Ratios

Gross Profit
Margin

Met Profit Margin
sitnbutable to
owners of the
coAmpany

Med Profit Margin

Raturm on Azsats

Return an Egquity

Current Assats | Currani
Liabifities

(Curment Assets - Inveniories -
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets - Biological Asssts
~ Noncurment assets held for sale)
I Gurrent Liabilities

Tolal Assets § Total Lishilties

Total DebtTotal Assets
Totzl DebtTotal Stackhalders'

Equity

Total Asseis / Tatal Stockhoiders'
Equity

Earnings Before Interest and
Taxes (EBIT) / Interest Charges

Total Debt! Eamings Before

Interest, Taxes, Depraciation and
Amuortization (EBITDA)

Fevenus - Cost of Sales |
Fevenus

Met Profit aitributable to owners |
Rawvanue

Mat Profil / Bavenue

het Profit / Totel Assets

Met Prodit / Tatal Siockheldars'
Enquity

30 April
2024

1.0

0.2

1.4

0.9

21

12.3

02

21.8

17.28%

-5.23%
=5.44%

-4.24%

-52.12%

30 April
2023

1.2

0.3

1.1

0.9
2.1

8.1

1:2

8.4

25.07%

0.70%
1.05%

0.81%

6.568%
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30 Apil
2022

12

0.3

1.2

o8
4.2

52

3.0

6.9

26.59%

A4.27%
4.93%

4.47%

23.35%
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BUSINESE OUTLOOK
In FYZ025, the Group's main pnorites will be as follows:

1) Plans are underway far the selective sale of assets and injection of aquity through strategie
partnerships.

2) A task force has been formed to rastore gross margins both in the US and rast of DMPL from the
second half of FY2025 as the Group will still ba carrying aver high inflationary costs from FY2024
in the first hall, particutarly in the US, Measures will include:

Continuaton of ptams in the US 1o reduce invantory

Reduction of waste and inventory write offs across the Group

Reduction of warehousing and distribution cosis in tha US

Consolidation of manufacturing fooiprint in the US

Improve planning throwgh digitization and clear organization accountability across the
Growp

» Restorafion of productivity for processed peneapple varety (C74) In tha next 12 o 24
months

3} Right size workforce and reduce fixed costs,

4} Continued focused growth for innovation such as Joyba bubble tea in the US and dairy birsiness in
tha Philippinas.

8} Further invest in the growth of Fresh business in Morth Asia and other export markets

The Group will pursue all these initiatives in FY2025 but the results will only be fully reflected in FY2026.
The Group expects to incur a net loss in FY2025 although al & reduced amaunt

. COMPLIAMCE WITH LEADING PRACTICES ON CORPORATE GOVERMANCE
Evaluation System for Compliance

The Company B commitied 1o the highest standards of corporale governance and supports the
principles of openness, integrity and accounizbility advocaled by the SGX-3T, which are similarly
upheld by the PSE and the SEC.

The Board of Directors {Board) and Management are also commilted to use their best endeavors o
align the Company's governance framework with the recommendations of the 2018 Code of Corporate
Governance issued an & August 2018 by the Monetary Autharity of Singapore (MAS) (2078 Code) and
the SEC Code of Carporate Governance for Publicly Listed Companies which took effect on 1 January
2017 (SEC CG Code), as well as the Singapore Govemance and Transparency Index (3GT1) and the
ASEAMN Corporate Governance Scorecard {ACGS).

The Company confirms. that £ has adhered to the principles and provisions sel out in the 2018 Code
and principles and recommendations set out in the SEC CG Code, where applicable, and has identified
and explained areas of non-adherence in this report (Report).

This Report describes the Company's corporate governance policies and practices with specific
reference made to each of the principles and provisions of the 2018 Code in compliance with the Listing
Marnual of the SGX-ST,

Measures Undertaken to Comply with Leading Practices on Good Corporate Governance

The Gompany adheres to the principles and guidelines set out in the 2018 Code and the SEC CG Caode
where applicable, and has identified and explained areas of non-compliance in s Annual Report, as

well as in its Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Report The Company's Annual Repord
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ANNEX "B”

describas the Company's corporate governance policies and practices with specific reference made 1o
each of the principles of the 2018 Code (where stated) in compliance with the Listing Manual of the
SGX-ST, (Flesse see Corporate Gavernance saction excerpied from the FY2024 Annual Report )

In addition, to improve the Gompany’s score in the SGTI and the ACGS, and in compliance with ihe
SEC CG Code, the Company has undertaken the following measures, among others:

a)

b)

c)

a)

el

ai

h}

i

The Company has adopted & Manual on Corporate Governance which contains the framework
of principles and guidelines, all the policies implemented by the Group, and terms of reference
that govern the performance by the Board and Management of their responsibilities, in a
manner that serve both the corporate abjectives and long-term intereats of the Company's
shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Company implements a Board Diversity Policy which recognizes the importance of
diversity. The Board balieves that its affecliveness and decision-making will be enhanced as it
harmesses the variety of skills, industry and business axperiences, gender, age, ethnicity and
culture, geographical background and nationalities, tenure of service, and other distinguishing
gualities of its own diverse Board. The NGC is responsible for administering this policy and for
evaluating it annually,

The Board shall ba responsibde for approving the sedection and assessing Management's
performance led by tha Chief Executive Officer, and controf functions led by their respective
heads, Chief Risk Officer and the Chief Compiiance Officer,

The Board has adopied a policy on acguisitions which states thal the Company shall make a
full, fair, accurate and timely disclosure to the public of any event that has a material impact on
the Company and its business, including, but not limited to, the acquisition or disposal of
significant assets which could adversely affect the viability of the Company or the inferest of its
shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Baard annually reviews the Company's vision and strategy

The NGC underakes the process of identifving the quality of directors aligned with the
Company’s strategic directions. The NGC eveluates the suitabiity of a prospecitiva candidate
based on his or her qualification and experience, abilty o commit time and effort in the effective
discharge of duties and responsibilities,

The Company's Chief Financial Officer acts as the Chief Risk Officer who leads the
implementation of the Company's risk management system, and reports to the Boasd on
identified risks and measures being underaken by Management to mitigate these

The Company has formalized a long established and practiced policy on conflict of inferest
whereby a Director with material interest in any transaction affecting the Gompany shall be
barred from participating in any deliberation or voling on such transaction.

The Company has adopted and implemented, and confinues to sirenglhen, its Securities
Dealings Policy [which replaces and incorporates the guidelines sef out in the Best Practices
on Securities Transactions adopted by the Company in 2003} fo govern dealings by ihe
Directors, Key Management Personnel and certain designated employees in the Company's
sacurities. With this policy, these individuals are required o seek the approval of the Chairman
or the Board before dealing in the Company's shares. Directors and key executive officers are
also required to report their dealings in the Company's shares at least three (3) business days
fram the date of transaction; and

The Company has published its Sustainability Report in Eng with the SGX-5T's Sustainability
Guidelines and the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) frameswork.
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Deviation from Compliance

al

&

£}

d)

&)

Consistent with previous practice, the NGC had underaken a rigorous review af the indepandence
of each Independent Director, including those whose tenure had exceeded nine years from the date
of their first appointment. Led by the NGC Chairpersan and facilitated by Boardroom Gorporate &
Advisory Services Pte. Ltd., the Company's extemal corporate secretarial service provider, the
assessment was conducted by means of a confidential and inclsive questionnaire completed by
each Directar and a declaration completed by each of the Independent Directors.

As part of this rigorous review, Board members were asked to share their sbservations on how the
Independent Directors whose tenure nad exceeded nine years, namely Messrs. Banedict Kwek
Gim Sang, Emil & Javier and Godfrey E. Scotchbrook, have demonstrated their independence on
the Board, Board members were invited to cite, as appropriate, specific instances and exampias.

The resulls were analyzed and discussed at the NGC and Board meatings, It was concludad that
thera is a sirong sense of independence among all Board members. Managemenl is constantly
challenged and questioned on proposals that come before the Board with all Directors engaging in
thorough and robust discussion and deliberation, taking into consideration the interest of the
Group’s siakeholders

Based on the assessment, Messrs. Benadict Kwek Gim Song (first appointed on 30 April 2007),
Emil 0. Javier {first appointed on 30 April 2007) and Godfrey E. Scotchbrook (first appointed on 28
December 2000) have demonstrated independent mindedness and conduct at Board and Board
Committea mestings. The NGC is aiso of the firm view and opinion that these Direciors continue to
gxercise independent judgement in the best interest of the Company in the discharge of their duties
a5 Directors, and thair more than nine years of exemplary service on the Board hava not in any way
affectad their independence as throughout their tenure in office they had centinually challenged and
provided constructive feedback o Management.

The remunaration of Directors, the CEQ and the immediate family member of the CEQ are
disclosed in bands of S$250,000/- with a maximum disclosure band of S5500,000/- and above.

The remuneration af the top five Key Managemean! Personnel is similarly disclosed in bands of
SE250 000 with & maximum disclosure band of SH500,000/- and abowve.

Although the disclosure is not in compliance with provision B.1 of 2018 Code and the SEC CG
Coda, the Board is of the view that it is in the best interest of the Company not to disclose such
remuneration information in detail, given the confidentiality and commercial saneitivity (within the
industry and within the Group fself) attached to remuneration matters and for personal security
reasons, disclosure in bands of S$250,000/- in excess of S$500,000/- is not provided. As for
personal securily reasons, the names of, and the aggregate remuneration paid to, the Company's
top five Key Management Persannel is not disclosed, Similarly, the aggregate remuneration paid
o the Executive Directors is not disclosed.

While the Company Secretary is not a separate individual from the Chief Compliance Officer, the
Company Secretary remains responsible to the Company and its shareholders, and not o the
Chairman ar the President. Having one person occupy these positions do not dirminish the focus in
discharging these offices’ funclions

The Board does not have & Board Charter. The Company is of the view that its Manual of Corporate
Bovernance, which was basad on the Singapore and Philipping medels of govemance, serves the
purpose and function of 8 Board Charter,

The SEC CG Code requires the establishment of a Corporate Governance Committee that shoukd
be composed of at least three members, all of whom shoukd be independant directars, including the
Chairman. Only 8 majority of the NGC members are Independent. The Company, however, & of
the view that the participation and contribution of its Executive Directors add value to, and
complements the wark of, the NGC
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fi The Company does not have a Related Party Transactions Committas as its functions are already
served by the ARC which |s composed of four members, all of whom, including the ARC
Chairperson, are indapendent directors.

g1 Al Independent Directors meet the qualifications required; however, it is noted that Dr. Emil Javier,
as requested by Management and the Board, provides advice 1o the Company's subsidiary an its
plantation matters and developmeant of agri-based initiatives

Improvement on Corporate Governance Practices
Ta improve its corporate govemance practices, the Company will carry out the following:

a) Toimplement its Board diversity palicy, the Board aims 1o finalize measurable objectives that
waould further improve the diversity among its directors and consequently enhance decision
making by the Board.

b] The Beard will continue to review the Company's vision and strategy on a regular basis.

¢} The Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's succession planning program
for directors, key afficers and Managemeant

d} The Company will endeavor o upload the minutes of the general meetings within five (5)
businese days from date of meeting,

e} The Company underizkes to review and update, as necessary, its current palicy on Interested
Persen Transactions o ensure compliance with the rules prescribed under SEC Mamaorandum
Circular Mo, 10 (2013} on material relaled parly transschons,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Darectors
el Maonte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries
Craigmuir Chambers

PO Box 71 Road Town, Torola

British Wirgin Islamds

Ohpinian

We have sdited the accampanying consolidated financinl staterments of Del Monite Pacific Limited and itz
Subsidisries (the Group) and the separate Mnancial satements of Del Monte Pacific Limited (the Compamny),
which comprise the stsements of financial position as at 30 Apnl 2024 and 2023, and the income
statements, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash
flows for each of the three vears in the period ended 30 April 2024, and netes 1o the financial statements,
mcluding materiol acoounting policy information,

In our opinicn, the sccompanying financinl satements of the Group and the Company present fairly, inall
maiterial respects, the fimancial position of the Group and the Company as at 30 April 2024 and 2023, and
their financmal performance, their changes in equity, and their cash flows for each of the three vears in the
period ended 30 April 2024 in accordance with Internationa] Financinl Reporting Standards (TFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted owr audits in accordance with Philippine Stundards on Audiing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those stundards are further described i the Auditor s Respovcibiliies for the Audir
of the Flnancial Stotements section of our report. W are independent of the Group in accordance with
the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirerments that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Philippines, and
we have fulfilled our oaher ethicol responsibilities in sccordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics, We believe thar the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriste o provide o
biaais for our opinion.

key Aundit Matters

Key nudit matters are those matters that, in eur professional judgment, were of moest significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters wene addressed i the context of our
pudit of the financial statements a3 8 whole, mnd in forming our opinicn thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our deseription of how our audit addressed the
matter i provided in that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Awdior's Respoanvibifities for the Audit of the
Finuncial Statemevits section of our report, including in relation (o these matters. Accordingly, our audit
ineluded the performance of procedurss designed to respond to our asseszment of the risks of material
misstaternent of the financial statements. The results of our sudit procedures, including the procedures
performed 10 address the motters balow, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

financial stalements.

of apriculiura

Fair val

Why skpmifcani

Aos at 30 April 2024, the Growp has agrnicultur]
produce amounting to US545 6 million that =
carried & part of biological sssets account in the
siatement of [(nancial  position, which i
contributed by Del Monte Philippines, Ine, a
subsidiary in the Philippines,

The valvation of agricultural produce was
significant to our swdit &s the cstimation process
is complex, mvolves sigmficant management
estimate, and s based on assumptions that could
be affected by patural phenomenn, The key
asgumplions m deternining the fair value of
harvested produce include expected selling
prices and gross margins. The koy assumptions
for the fair walue of unharvested produce
inglude is expected seiling prices, pross
margin, estimated tonnage of harvess  anad
fature growing cosis.

The Group's disclosures relatimg to biological
assels, in particular agricultural produce, and
sparrees of estimation uncerisinty are included in
Motes 1] and 34 1o the financial starements.

B ryprvimer bwr pf Bren & Towrg Goks Lress

How e mandit sddressed the matter

We obtained an understanding of management’s fair
walue messurement methodology and its process in
valuing the agricultural produce, We assessed the
appropriateness  of the methodology used in
estimating the Fir wvalue We tesied the key
assumptions used in the wvaluation of harvested
produce which include expecied selling prices and
iross maTgin, and unharvested produce its expected
selling prices, gross margin, estimated lonmage of
harvests and  future  growing costs,  against
management plans, kistorical data, aixd extermal data
such as selling prices in the principal market.

We also reviewed Group's disclosures in Motes 11
and 34 o the fnancinl sotements, relating to
bioblogical assets and  sources  of  estimation
unceriainty.
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— ¢ poodvwill andd indefinite life fademmad

Why slpnificant

As al 30 Apnil 2024, the Group carries goodwill
of US5203.4 million ond indefinite  life
trodemarks  of USE4T24 million, of which
Lssd34 milon and US$4583  million,
respectively, arc attributable to a subsidiary in
the Unites Seates of Amenca, el Monte Foods,
Ime. and its subsidiries (collectively, DMFI).

f) ool

DMFIs gocdwill & allocated to three Cash
Cienerating  Units  ("OGUs™)  namehy;
Healthy Snacking, Flaver and Aeal
Enhancer, and Beyond Retail with carving
value of USE43E million, USS117.1
millign, and USE42.5 million, respectively.
The Grouap used the valwe in use caleulation
o estimate the recoverable amount of the
COUs for purposes of asscssing wheiher
there is any impairment o be recognized,

The ennual impairment fest is significant 1o
our sudil because the assessment process is
complex, mvolves significant management
judgment and ks dependent on certain key
estimates auch as the discount mte bused on
weighited asverape cost  of  ecapital
CWACC™),  long-term  camings  before
inferest,  taxation, depreciation  and
amorzsion (“EBITDA™) margm  and
terminal growth rate of the CGLUs

The Group's disclesures relating o the
goodwill  and  indefinite life  Amenca
trademarks allocated 1o DMFL, sources of
estimation unceriainty and sensitivity of the
recoverable amounts are included in Note §
to the financial statemenis,

E warma e or fiman i et Thisi § aaliad

How our awdit addressed the maiter

We obtained an understanding  of the Group's
impairment asseasment process and the related
controls, We fesied the reasonableness of the key
aasumptions, which mclude the WACT, long-terin
EBITDA margin, and ferminal growth mte srainst
management plans, historical data and avaalable
market imformation in bght of current market and
economic condetions. We also performed sensitivity
amalysis on the key assumptions o consider the
exient of reasonable change in these assumptions
that individually or collectively would resulf in the
mmpairmen of these pssels. We involved our internal
speciabist in evalualing cerain key assumptions and
mathodology used,

We also reviewed the Group's disclosures in Note 8
te» the finuncial statements, shout those sssumgptions
Iy which the outeome of the impuirmeni test were
mdsd sensitive, that is, those that hawe the most
significant effect oo the determination of the
recovernble amount of the OGU,
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As ot 30 Apnl 2024, the indefinite life
trademarks  coming  from  Americas,
comprise “Del Monte™, “College Inn”, and
“Kitchen Basks™ amounting to [153458.3
millivn,

The Group wsed the Relief from Rovalty
methatology in valuing its imdemarks. The
armual imgainment et is significant o our
sudil becouse (he assessment process is
comples, invalves significant management
Jjudgment and 15 dependent on  certain
estimates such ag the dizcount e based on
WALCC, revenue growlh rate, tenminsal
growth rate, and royally rates observed in
the market thot can be affected by future
miarket and ecomomic conditbons.

The Group's disclosures relating 1o s
Amencas  mdefinite  Life  trademarks,
sources of estimation  uncertainly  and
sensitivity of the recoverable amouns are
included in Nede 5w the financisl
sEalEmeEnls.

& wmebrbrre o Dewd b Yiow rg Dmoed Lioslasd

We tested the reasonableness of the key
assumptions, which inclade the WAL, revenue
growtl rate, tareninal groweh rate, and rovalty rates,
apainst management plans, hisorical das and
available market informsation in light of cument
miarket and economic  conditions. We  also
performed sensitivity  anolysis  on the  key
askumplions o consider the extent of reasonable
change in these assumptions that individually or
collectively would resull in the impairment of these
assels, We involved our infernal specialist in
evaluating  certain key  assumptions  and
methodology wsed.

Woe also reviewed the Group’s disclosures in Note §
to the financinl statements, about those assumptions
o which the culcomes of the impairment lests were
most sensitive, thet is, those that have the most
significant effect on the determination of the
recoverable amounis of the COlUs
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Ag at 30 April 2024, the Ciroup hos recognized
deferred tux assets of US3146.7 million, of
which USE146.5 millon was attobutable o
LaMFT,

The recognition of the deferred tax assel was
significont to our oudit because it cntails
estimation of the fubere faxable income which
involves significant managernent judgment amd
is baged on assumptions that are affected by
futwere market or economic conditions. The key
assumplions in the taxable income forecast
include revenue prowth rate, EBITDA margin
and long-tenm growth rate.

The Group's disclosures relating to deferred

lax and sources of estimation uncertainky ane
incloded in Mote @ to the financm] sistements.

Other Information

Managemnent is responsible for the other information.

How pur aodit addresscd the matter

We assessed the reasoneblensss of defesred tax
assels recognized by comparing i 10 the taxable
income forecast that were approved by the Board of
Diirectors. 'We assessed the reascnablepess of the
key assumplions n estimating the taxable mcome
forecast such as mevenue prowth rate, EBITIA
margin and long-term grow rale against historical
data, mansgement’s support for the cument
eflimaies ond  projections.  wvailable  markei
mformation, industry sand market outlook in light of
currend market and economic  conditions,  and
periommed  sensitivity  analyses over tw key
assumpiions, We also evabmted the reasonsbleness
of the uming of the reversal of future taxable and
deductible tepporary differences by considering
the taxable income forecast and curment tax laws

We reviewed management's fovecasting process by
comiparing the actual results of DMFI against its
prior year frecast,

We involved our internal tax specialist in reviewing
the deduciibility of the temporary differences.

We also reviewed Group's disclosures in Mote 9 to
the financial staternents, relating to deferred tax and
sources of estimation uncertaingy.

The other information comprises the imformation

included in the SEC Form 20-15 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the year ended 30 April 2024 but does not include the financial stalements and our auditor’s report
thereon,  The SEC Form 20-1S (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Fonn 17-A and Annual Repor
for the year ended 30 April 2024 are expected to be made available 1o us aller the date of this suditor’s

reporL

Our opinion on the financial statemenis does not cover the other information and we do not expresa any
form of assurance conchusion thereon,

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so0, consider whether the other mformation is
materially inconsistent with the financial statemenis or our knowladge obtained in the audis, or sibherwise
appenrs to be materinlly misstated.

il o Erad b faeng oo Lmessd
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governonce for the Financisl Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
necordance with [FRSs, and for such intermal coptrol as management determines is necessary io enoble the
preparation of financial statements that are free from mplerial misstatement, whether due to fraud or eomor,

In preparing the financial stabements. management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability w
continue a5 a going concern, disclosing, a3 applicable, matters related to poing concen and using the going
concem basis of secounting unless monagement either imtends to liguidate the Group or 1o cease operations,
or has no realistic aliemative but o do so,

Those churged with govemanee are responsible for oversesing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor®s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Ohur objectives ars to oblain reasonable pssurance sbout whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from mpteral misstaternent, whether due to frad or errer, and 1o issue an audilers repor That meludes our
opinion.  Fessonpble pesurance 15 a high level of nssurance, but is ot 4 guarantes that an awdit condacied
in accordance with PSAs will always detect a matenal misstatement when il exists. Misstatenents can arise
from froud or ermor and are considered material if, individwally or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected o infleence the economic decisioms of users tken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an sudit in accordance with PEAs, we exercise professional judgreent and maintain professional
skeplicism throughout the audit.  'We also:

»  ldentify and azzess the risks of matenal misstoiement of the financinl stntements, whether due to
froud or ermor. design and perform andit procedures responsive 1o those risks, and oblain oudit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinien,  The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 15 higher than for one resulting from ermor, as
frand may invelve collusion, forgery, mtentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
mtemal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the sudit i order 1o design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstinces, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivencss of the Group's internnl control,

*  Ewolupte the approprietencss of accounting policies used and the reasonoblencss of accounting
estimates and relaied disclosures made by management.

= Conchude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the wudit evidence obinined, whether a material uncertainty exigls reloted o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a poing concemn,  1f
we conclude that o material uncertainty exists, we are required 1o draw atlention in our auditors report
1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opimion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report.  However, fillure events or condiions may cause the Group to cease to contimue as 8 going
comcem.

& P ol e iy i Lo
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Eulminig i B ar
ORI NG i

= Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and conteni of the financial statements, mcloding the
disclosures, and whether the finnncinl stvtements represent the underlying transactions and evens ina
manncr that achieves fair presentation.

*  Ofbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence reganding the financial information of the entilies or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements.  We arc
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group soedit.  We remain solely
responsible for eur andil opiniosn

Wi commumicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers, the plamed scope
ancl trming of the msfl ond sigmificant oudin Godings, inchading any sigmificam deficiencies o memal
conirel that we identify during our audic.

We also provide those charged with povernance with o staterment thot we have complied wath relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters thal may rensonably be thought o bear on our mdependence, and where applicable, redoted
safeguands.

From the matters commumicated with those charped with povemnance, we determing those matters that were
of mest signifcance in the sadit of the financial stements of the curment penod and are therefore the key
audit modters. We describe these matiers in our suditor’s report unless law or regulation prechudes public
disclosure shout the maiter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determme that a matter should
net be communicated 10 cur report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected (o outweigh the public intersdt benefits of such commumicntion,

The engagerment partner on the sudit resulting in this mdependent suditor’s report = Johnny F, Ang.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYOD & COx

ﬁi;gﬂiu

Pariner

CPA Certificate Mo, 0108257

Tox Identificotion Mo, 2Z1-T17-423

BOAPRC Heg. o, 0001, Apeil 16, 2024, valid until Aogust 23, 2026

BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-001998-101-2021, October 1. 2021, valid ontil Seprember 30, 2024
PTE Mo. 10079896, January 3, 2024, Makati Ciry

7 August 2024

B PR PR B0 RPENA TVa R Lkl | Sl



Del Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statements of financial position

As at 30 April 2024 and 2023

e Oraup 4 Company —=————
Mabe 30 A peril 30 April 30 ipril 0 Aprd
2024 INEY 2024 Faivel
{USE00a) RIS DO0) (LIRS 000} LSS 000)
Rasoved
Honcurrent sesels
Proparty, plar and equinmant - nat 5 670,344 a8, 531 - =
Faght-al-use asses 23 81,368 100, BEE - k)
i Emmens in subsidianas f - at BI18)6TE BT AGE
IR EEBALE in joi wenbres T 18,663 2,167 1,255 248213
Inlargible assels and goodsil ] 746 BDT THI, 841 = =
Defermed bt asseds - nol i 1486 T08 1M, 060 110 -
Bioiogical astets 1" 3413 3,007 = =
Pansicn pumets - nel 20 TE00 1,830 - ki)
Ciher nonouman! asses b L] #1.911 a3 B63 10,581 5023
1737 817 1,008,118 231,50 ATA 547
Cusront ansets
Eoiagical acasis i1 45 577 A BnD - -
Irfe o e . 4 1,043,843 1076 TT2 - -
Trads and aiber recesmbles 13 218,154 Fra LNk 27431 26,406
Prapaid enpens s and other cumant
azsets 14 61,374 f=Nal= 38 b ]
Carsh ared cash aquivalents 16 13123 18 535 AT0 BG4
1.384.071 1434, 550 27,830 27 54
Total assels 3,112,888 3 13%EER BSE.531 1,007 B0
Eguity
Share capital 16 19,443 1 4ak 1440 10,448
Elhnr!-mn-hm 7 08,338 208,328 204,478 208,47H
Retained sarmings 17 (73,233 118,840 [T12EE) 110,540
Fananes 7 (24,707 [28,511) [24, 707 (2B.511)
Efjungy atinkuinble o ownors of ihe 18
Company 128,844 a7 120,087 Jm a5
Han-cantrolling mioreses 3 123,300 =R ] - =
Total couity 253,164 ARE TSR 120,987 102 oas
Moncurrent Bahilitses
Loans am] borowings 18 1,377,318 1,483,300 3,726 244,055
Emplayes bpreafis 20 15,77E 1,304 112 -
Envimnmanial remediaticn Nabiftes 71 L = = .
Leasa Eabiitis 3 T0 adE 72,204 - -
Ceferreo e babddlins - nai a 11,473 11,630 - ]
Creer poncurran! sbiklias 19 k=¥ rd 16826 - -
1514382 157525 43,838 42008
Current llabdifies
Loans and bamnyings: i a7 820053 487,012 124 mam
Eirgloyes banefls Hi 3,899 4,280 - -
Traco payaldas sl ather curent 23
liabines aJB0,918 30 S 194,661 196,934
Lrasa Fadsibliuan 23 20,470 7 By re s
Courrent: e |inkiltine 1,530 14492 k| -
1,345,348 1,1 TR.E5T 6B5, 708 441,032
Tobsd RabiHties 2E5TIT 2.753.807 TFa nay EA3, 040
Total ssfuity and liabitins 3,113,888 3,104 Bk s ot | 1,001,088

Tha accompanying accounting policies and explanatory noles form an integesd part of the Rrancial

Hatemants.



Del Monfte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Incomae statemenis

For financlal years ended 30 April 2024, 2023 and 2022

< Group = < Companmy ————-——-
Mot Year onded Year endod Year ended Year endeod Yearended Year ended
30 April 30 Aprl 30 April 3G April 30 April a0 Agril
024 20Xy 2022 2024 2023 2022
(LSS 0Ghy  USE00D) (USEGOD)  (USS'DOD) [USS'DDN  AUSE'DO0)
e 228 34T Z4133 . 2 HE0ES - - =
Coal ol sales (2, B08.71) (VSR S0 {1.TIEE29) - - -
Grogs profil 418,559 EIE, 093 E1T 65T - - =
Distributian and sedirg
HXpEIGEL {Z25.348) |F28.3T2) {21,796} - - -
Ganeral snd adminisirativa
(141,021 {120334]  [126.311) {11.502) R (12883}
Othar (axpensas) income
BEPEISES - nEt (B.188) (11, 765] {4258} 2,827 1635 1874
Resuns fram operating
activilies £5.002 245 588 267 260 {B.075) (12 144} {11,308}
Finance Incema 6 13,173 14 363 52 T2 177 15
Finance expanss ¥ {207 570} 12315,881) [ 112707 47 637 (32337} (13,236}
Mal Erance axpersd {194,397) (20154881 1107506 (47 455) (I2. 1E0} {13,083}
Share in nat (loss) income
af jeint waniues and
subaidia s 87T 1,62} (1,488) {4,954) (T2671) 61,304 124,437
{Loss) profit before
iaxation 25 | 850,457) 42 Sd4 154, B30 [128,101) 7,000 103,025
Tax exponse - roi Fg 18,508 17,1871 {38,300 (58] (5] {4l
{Loss) profit for the yoar (131,848) 25 ATE 118,830 {128,157) W s 100,031
[Loss) profit attributabile
L] o
Derars of the Comparry 28 (129,157} 16,540 100,031 129,157) 16 848 106039
Hafi-sanirollireg il (2,72} 8,428 15,400 - - -
(131 849} 22,377 115,530 {128, 15T) 18, 2db 100,037
Earnings por @ hare
Basis sdrnirgs par abane
(LIS cwnla) 28 (B.64) LuGE 417 - - -
Dliubed smmings per shanm
(LS canla) 24 (6.6} 68 417 - = .

The sceompaning accolrimg policies and explanatony notes form an infegrad part of the financial

siatemeants,



Del Monie Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statements of comprahensive income
For financial years ended 30 April 2024, 2023 and 7022

Yearended Yearended Yearended
30 April 2024 30 April 2023 30 April 2022

{US5000) (US5'000) (LESE000)

Mote

Group
(Loss) profit for the year (131,949) 28,377 115,530

Oiher comprehensive (loas) income
Items that will or may be reclassified

subseguantly to profit or loss:
Cumency translation difference (7 A00) {11,148} (15,302}
Effective portion of changes in fair value of

cash flow hedges 8,718 0,058 18,805)
Tax impact on share in cash flow hedges (1,680) (2,274) 2,183

(2.362) (4,335 (21.914)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit

or losa:
Remeasurement of retiremant plans B, 780 3416 12,760
Tax impact on remeasunement of refirement

plans ] [2,175) (321} (3,258)
Gain on proparty revaluation B - &2121 -
Tax impact on revalualion reserve g - {5,828} =

B, 605 18,888 8 505

Other comprehensive Income (loss)

for the year, net of tax 4,243 14,563 {12,400)
Total comprehensive (lag=) incoma for the

yaar (127,706) 39,5400 103,121
Total compreheansive (loss) Income

attributable to:
Dwners of the Company {125,363) an,.s7s B 196
Mon-controling interests (2,353) B.8561 13,925

{127,706) 38,840 103,121

The accompaming accowing pofcies and explanalony motes form an integral part of the financlal

Stalaments,
AR



Del Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statemenis of comprehensive incoma
For financial years ended 30 April 2024, 2023 and 2022

Year encled Year ended Year ended
20 April 2024 30 April 2023 30 Aprll 2022
(US$000)  (US$000)  (USS'000)

Company

(Loss) profit for the year (129,157 16,049 100,031
Oiher comprehensive (loss] income

Hams that will or may be reclassified subssgueantly
to profit or loss:

Currency ranslation differenca (6, 548) (8, 608) {13,351}
Effactive portion of changes in falr value of cash Mo
hedges 6,001 BAar1 {8,2309
Tax impact on share in cash flow hedges {1,500} {7 118) 7.052
(2,447} {3,345) (19.538)
hems that will not be reclassified te profit ar loss:
Remeasuremant of relirement plans B30T 3027 11.685
Taz impact on remeasuremsant of retirement plans (2,058} (728) (2,882)
Gain on property revaluation - 20,483 -
Tax impact on ravalustion resene - (5417 -
6,251 17,375 B, 703
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year,
net of tax 3,804 14,030 (10,835)
Total comprahensive {loss) income for the year 1125,353) 30.e7a B0, 198

The sccompanying accowing polcies ang explanalony notes form an infegral part of ihe financial

Efsfemerfs,
AR



De! Mante Pacific Limitad and Hs Subsidiaries

Staterment af changes in aquity
For financial years ended 30 April 2024, 2023 and 2022
< Atiributable bs swners of the Campany
Remeazure-
mami Hasorvo Hoa-
Ehare Share  Tramslation Revaliation sellrement  Hedging tor own Rataing coniradiing Todal
Neote  capital premium  rasarve resaryn plans. SRV ahires eomings Tatal Inberesis ety

o (USED0  (USEO0D,  (UES00E)  (USS000) UISSONG)  (USS000) LS$000)  (USEDODF  pUSSODDG JUSSD00,  (USSTOO
2024
B30 Apedl 2023 19,443 e {108,020 20,354 48051 1380 [8E] 115,540 510,817 6,541 WG FAD
Total compradie naiva lods for tha

WOAF
s for the year = = - - - = = (1231571 (120,157 (278 (131,848)
Orhat comprehensive [loss)

Higerma
Cumoney Iranilation difemences - - [E540) - - - - = n4A
Rlornpas sl of rliemant plans, (6,48) [45E) (7 A0

et of e = - - = - 51 = - - L]
Effacitee portion of changaes in fair : i e

witkin af cash Now Redges ast of ax = - - = = 4,50 = = 4,501 537 555
Tatsl ather comprehensie {loss)

Incomo - = |8, 45 = B,381 4,504 = = EYT 439 4,243
Total compralersive (laas) incams

Par il yaar - - 6,048 - B,259 4,501 - {129,167} (136355 (2353 12T, iy
Trasascliions with cwmners of Lha

Company recognized directly in

Bty
CaslFiliifione by and distibutions

12 owners of the Company
Radamplion of shams by subsidiang -] = - = == - - - (61 074} 61, 074) (6,638) BT, T12)
Esuance of penior pepetual

ToCunliag = - - - - i = = - T 1 BT 637
Duidends 17 = - - - - - - £2 S 12.543] 2284} 48
Todal comtributions by and

distribulione tn Cwnem = - - = - — - (53, 516] B2 B1E] HT5 {4,807}
AL 30 Aprl 2024 e, 17 19,448 208,204 1911,268) 25,354 53 %ird bR {2aE) [T3Z53) 120,848 133,303 FLERES




Dal Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidlaries

Statement of changes in equity

For financial years ended 30 April 2024, 2023 and 2022

Hetn

Graup
2023
A 30 Al 2022

Todal compre hansivo non ms Tor
1t ymar
Froin i [he il

Othar comprahensive income
o)

Lurmanoy Irameadion difemnces

Gnin an pragsaty sosalustisn, ael ol
fax

Rernessremenl of relrement plans,

rat o e 20
Effagiran porlian of changes in fair

varlus of cash fiow hedons, st af tay
Tatsl slfir cormprubenaive income

(lags;

Tatall esmprnbarssive inooms |loss)
far the yoar

Transsctions wih ownems of tha
Company recaghized diractly in

ageily
Comlributions by and distribulsons
1a gwndrs of the Campany

HBademplion of &-F profenercs shares 18
Dresidands 17

Tetal ceniribstbans by and
disiributions to Owners

A4 30 Apnil 2023 i, 17

£

Atirihudnble 1o senors of tha ©

Remeasume
ek Resares Ban-
Ehara Bharn Transistion Revaluglion relmmen  Hedging for e Fetnlnaed ceriroliing Totsl
r=nital premaum resarva fickanrnn wlam resETvE shares wamings Tetal inlerests Bguity
[J55000) (LSS0 (USE000)  (USEOON  (US§0DN)  (USSDOO}  (USSOON]  (USEDOD)  (USETOD)  (USSTOD] {USS000)
8,44% 98,334 28,522 14,278 23,753 {8 0A3) 1208y 140320 AZ5 55T &0.138 404,705
= i = = = = = 16,845 16,345 BA42R 25ATT
- - 15,654 - - = = - 5. E5E) i122n) 111, 1445)
- = - 18,0676 - = i - 16,076 1217 8,203
= o - = 2,280 = = = 2,355 1] 7,505
- 5 = = = 653 - - 1,353 difil L VA
= = (8,598) 15,0076 2200 5553 = = 14,030 555 14,563
- - {6,518) 15,076 zm 6,353 = 16,545 30,070 .51 33,940
{10, 0ex0) {50, 000) = - = = 5 = {100, 000 = {100,000
=, = = - - = - |37, T {37, 724 {11,154) (8, 18T
110,005 |B0,000) - - = - - |37, 739} (137, 7208) 11,158 {140, BET)
18,440 208,339 {105,02) 28,354 i, 051 140 [28E) 110,540 FB,EIT i, 541 BE, TSR




Dl Mante Pacific Limited and ite Subsidiarios

Staterment of changes In eguity

For fimancial yesrs ended 30 April 2024, 2023 and 2023

% Attributablo io ownars of [ho Company ¥
Hemeasure=
fmanl Share Resoren M=
Share Share  Tramslalion Revolustien retroment  Hedging  option for own  Fletained cantrolling  Total
Hoso by [tad pramium  redere rESEryE plans FESEne L ahares sanings Total Interests equity

p— {UBS'000)  {LES§000]  (LEfn00)  JUSSO0D)  USSO00]  LSS000F  (USS00G)  (USS00D)  UES00c)  (UESNOD)  [USSTON  (USSTO
o2z
ALK April 2021 A 4ag a7, (81971} 14,775 45,048 1.3 1,753 {285] Bi34O 586 9R4 61212  F42408
Talal esmprehonsive incomao for the

yaar
Profit for tha year - - - = - - - - oogal  omnad 15488 115,500
Cher comprehenshoe income (koss)
Curaney tanalalien difarnces - - (13351} - = - - - - 13,351 1851 o, 30
ﬂmi?aummm retromant plans. o e

net ol bk b - = - - A, 703 - - - - a,703 :
Efteciive porien of charges in Tk : . g
walug of cosh Mow hedges, et of G - - - = = {6,187} - = - {6,187] (425) 16512
Tedal other comprehensive Income

{loas) = - [13.357) - 4,703 {6,187 - - - {10,835 (1.574y  (12,408)
Tedal comprehensive incoms |loss)

foe the year - = [13,381) - B.705 {6, 108F) - - 1001 005 B, 106 13,525 103,121
Transactions with owners of the o

Company reeognized direcily in

&quity
Cantributions by and dksiribailians

to cvmars of the Campnng
Racprrgiion of &-1 prelorence sharea 18 (EODDO}  (130000) - = = 13 = - = {200,000 —~ {200,000}
er: aplans .1'3_} - - = - - - 1,783 = = {1.753) [30T) {1.860)
Civda - o = - - - - - ] (i B £H 482
i D D (R0B0)  (eR.080)  (SMS3)  (4n.0A0)
distribiitians to cwnors (0,000 98000 - - = = 11,753 = (48] (2de,B13) [BOSS) (260,842
Al 20 Apeil 2023 1617 29448 198318  |05,323)  14.27R IR 14,863) = {BBG6}  1ABEMa 435,587 B0.132  AnA 704




Del Monie Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statement of changes In equity

For financial years ended 30 April 2024, 2023 and 2023

Company
2024
AL 30 il 2023

Tedal cemprehansivo foss for the yaar
Loss Tor i Yaar

Othar comprahsnsiss §oas] insams

Cunme noy ranslation difernnois

Remeasuremant of retremant plans, el of Bx

Effecites portion of changes in air vakss of cash
ey Bedgues. net ol tax

Total othar comprahensive (losa) incame
Totsl comprahensive (Eas) ncome far {he year

Transactions with owmars of the Compary
recoqiinsd direcy in squily

Cantribudions by dand distributions o owsers of
the Camparry

Recerspion of shares by subsidiary

Diwidends

Tatal eandributions by snd distributions o
ATV S

AL 30 Apaid BOT4

16
ir

16, 17

Siare in
TEITIHE B L=
Share in Share In mesd ef Bl bn
tramslalion  revalestion  retrement hodging RAeserve
Bhisifa Bhurs mmanrun of rasarve of plarns of resarva ol a Bar ewen Fatsined
eapial prammium subsidiaries subsidlaies subsddianion  subsidiary shares sAMEngs Total
|USE oo (LSS T00) JLISS 000 (LSS0 (USE00} [LIEE00) [LESS DD (LS5 000 (USS000k
18,4498 208478 1050204 20,354 4,051 1,380 [ZBE] 118 580 J18, 956
{120, 157) 125157
- - (8,948) - - - < - IE, 5]
- - - - 8,251 - = - B,251
= s o = = 4501 = 5 1B
2 - (6,548 - 261 & 50 = - 3,804
- - (5.945] - 8,261 &80 . (129,157} |125,353)
= = o = = - = 161,074} [B1,074]
- - - - - - - sy ez
: 3 = " = - - {361 13, B 16
19,443 208 ATR: FEREE =) 18,334 5202 5 B {Z8E) (TEI53) 120,987




Dl Mante Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Statemaont of changes in equity
For financial years ended 30 April 2024, 2023 and 2022

Ghare In
L EEETE S
Sharo in Sharo in miank of Ehari i
translation neralunian rElireman Fldﬂil'lp- Hemorer
Shara Share ey o ressras af plans. of recorss of & for cham Fratalnaed
Hedn capital premium subsidiaries  subskllaries subsidisies  subsidiary aharea EETHNGE Tatal
(JES D00) |[LUEE00, LGS 000 (LRS00} (LEE 000 [LEEDo0) fUEE a0 (UES Do) (LIS 100

Camgany

oo

AL 30 Ape] J0E2 P 296 478 95,322} Ly 4N 52 (4,863} {28} 140,320 £25, T
Tosal comprehessive Incoms for the year

Profit i the vosr - - - = - = - 18,045 16,040
Oiber comprehenshe Income {loss)

Currgrcy iraralation cilferences - - FL ] = x - - - B.E08)
Galy on propesty rewsfualion, nel of bx - - - i, e - - - = 15 T
Aemessuramant al mdrsenss) plans, nel of tzu =0 = - - - 22 - = - 2,299
Effectiva pomfion of changas i fnir valuo of cash

fiew hedges, nal of 18 - = - - - B8 . - 8,388
Tatall aiber comprshensheo incoma (loss) - - {B60AE) 16,008 2R B asd = - 14,030
Tatal comprehensive Income (lass) for Eha yaar - = T 15,076 2755 EA53 - TR, Ba0 U]
Transachons wilth awnor of th Company

racognized directly in e gty
Comtributions by and distributicns (o cwners af

the Company
Fedempoon of A-2 pralaresch ahares L 1000} (90,000} o - - - - - 19040, D004
Dividends 17 - = - - - - = {37,728 1T
Tetal centributions. by and distributions to

DWNENS 110, 00 (90,000} = - - - - 1T, 735 1137, 728
AL D Kpril 2025 16, 17 19,449 208 4T {108, 020) 26364 4, 354 1,380 [ZEE) 118,540 318,058




Dl Monte Pacific Limited and s Subsidisries

Statement of changes in equity

For financial years ended 30 April 2024, 2023 and 2022

SEane in
(5 PRSI
Ehare in Bhare in murd of Bhare In
iranalasion  mwvaluation mbirement  hodging Ehare Rusarse
Share Share resaree of  reserve of plane ol radorve ol B aplisn Tes cmn Risbainnd
Mobe  capital pramium  subsidiarios subaidiaries sidmddiariee saibeidiery  reterve shares zarn Tatal
LSS000) GUSSOHE)  [USS000y  (USE000)  (KS$000F JUSSTODOD)  (USS000} (USSDO0] [USSDO0)  (USEO0O0)

Company
2032
ik B0 Al 20 A aq ATHATH (m1,871} 4.z 35 s 1,234 1763 (2HE) R3340 BB, 323
Tatal eamprehenaive income for ik yoar
Pralit lor e paar - x = =5 -] — _r - 100,031 100, 031
Oethar campralsnaive ncome [Loes)
Cumency translation diferences - = (13,361} - = = - - - [13,351)
Ramuasursmenl of relirement plans, not of tax a1 = = - - BT - - - - 4,703
Effective portion of chianges in fair vakss of cash Mo

Fredgas, nelof ax - - - - - B 1BT) = = = (6,187
Tednl oiher camprehensive Income [losa) - - {13,351} - BT [, 1eTy - - - [0, BN
Total cemprehensive income (less) Bar tha yaar - - {13,351} - B73 (6,187} - — 100,031 84, 156
Transaeliens with swanre of (ke Company recognized

dirnctly in aquily
Condributions by and distiBuilors o ownars ol the Company
Fodemplion of A1 prelerance shirus | [20.000) {180, 000) = = = = — — = (206,000
Cancalled ppiong an 5 - - = i e {4,753) e = {1,753
Civadands 17 ] = = = = = = = 143,06 (&3 060)
Tedal centributiens by and distribulions to owners 20,0007 {160, 000) — - — L 11,783 - 143, D) (244 813)
AL30 April 2022 1T 20,440 260,473 |85, 322) 14.z78 a7z (4.9€3) - (3687 140,330 AR5, TO6

The accompanying accowiing polices and explanafony notes form an inlegral part of the financial slaterments.




Dl Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiarios

Statements of cash flows
For financial years ended 30 April 2024, 2023 and 2022

= Group 1 < Company ——————
Heie Year apdad Yaar andad Yaoar aretdod Year ended Year antdod Year antad
30 Apel 30 Apel 30 A peil 30 A pil 30 Apeil 30 Apil
2024 2023 2022 2024 2033 2022
IUSE000)  (USSO0D)  (USFODD)  (USSON,  (USEO00D)  (USSD000)

Caeh Bows T CRErating

Actiailies
(Lois) profi for the yasr (131.040) mnar 115530 (129,157} 16844 100,031
Adjusbmeris: i rhancila prof
for i@ yaar 0 et cagh Hows:
Firancs s panas P T30 F11.353 111 886 A7 535 vl 12arr
Depraciation af propay, piant
and S Pt 248 1€ 007 154, 430 145 450 = - -
Arvniization of Aghl-al-uga
atasln 23 3Z.52 lxarz B or N a3 =23
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Dl Monte Paciflic Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial stalements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

These notes form an integral pan of the financial stalemenls,

The accompanying financial statements were approved and awthorzed for Bsuance by (he Board of
Directors (the "Board”) on 7 August 2024,

1.

Domicile and activilies

Dal Monte Pacific Limited (the "Cormpany”) was incorporated as an inlemational Business
company i e Brilksh Viegin Islands on 27 May 1533 under the Intemational Basiness
Companies Act (Cap. 231) of the British Virgin Islands. It was automalically re-regisiensd as
a company on t January 2007 whin the International Business Companies Act was repealed
and replaced by the Business Companiea Act 2004 of the Britizh YWirgin [slands,

Tha reglztorad offica of tha Carmpany is locatad af Creigmuir Chambers, Read Town, Torleta,
British Virgin Islands,

The principal activity of the Cormpany & investrment holding. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged i growing, prockssing, and seding packaged fruita, vegetable and tomalo, sauges,
condiments, pasta, broth and juices, mairdy under the brand narmes of “Del Monde”, "SEW",
Today's", "Contading”, "College Inn” and othwer brands and fresh pineapples under *S&W"
and other brands pursuant to relevant agreements. The Company's subsidiares also
produca and distribute privale label feod products.

The immediate holding company & Mulbissia Pacific Limited ("MAPL"), and the indirect
shareholders of which are NulriAsia Inc. ("NAI") and Wel Grounded Limiled ("WGLT), which
al 30 April 2024, 2023 and 2022, each hald 57.8% and 42.2% interests in NAPL, respactivaly,
through e Intermediany company, Nutrifsia Holdings Limited, NAPL, NA| and WGL were
incorporated In the British Virgin Islands. The ulimate holding company ks HS8C
International Trushea Limited,

On 2 August 1884, the Company was admitted fo the Official List of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited ("SGX-5T"). The Ordinary Shares of the Company were also listed
on ihe Philippine Stock Exchange Ine, "PSE’} on 10 June 2113, The firat tranche of the
Company's Preflerence Shares ("Series A-1") was listed on 7 April 2017 and the second
tranche ("Series A-2°) on 15 December 2017, The Company redesmed all of the outstanding
20,000,000 Series A-1 Preferenca Shares on 7 April 2022, and all of the outstanding
10,000,000 Seriss A-2 Praferance Shares on 15 December 2022 (Nota 16).

On & August 2010, the Company established DM Pacfic Limded-ROHD ["ROHT™, the
regional operating hesadquarters of the Company in the Phiippines. The ROHD is registered
with and Bcensed by the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission ("52C") 1o engage
in general sdministration and planning, business planning and coordination, sourcirg and
procuremnent of saw maderals and components, corporate fnancial advisory, marketing
contred and sales promotion, fraining and personnel managemant, logistcs arvices,
research and proiect development, techmical support and manienance, date processing and
Dnmrnuninnﬁm and business developmaent. The ROHO commenced its operations in
clober 015,

The financlal staterments of the Groug as at 30.Apnl 2024 and 2023 and for the three financial
vears ended 30 April 2024, 2023 and 2022 comprise the Company and its subsidiades
{collectively referred lo a3 the "Group®, and individually as *Group entities”), and the Group's
inlerasts in joint ventures,



Del Monfte Pacific Limited and s Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

Golng comncem

As of 30 April 2024, the Company's curroni liabilibes escesded As curmenl assets by
LISSE57 .8 million (2023: US5414.0 milion). This |s mainly driven by maturing term loans and
revolving credil facility of the Company that will be due within the nexd 12 months and subject
1o an-galng refinancing discussion with creditor banks.

Management believes that the Company will be able to pay or refinence |bs liab#ties as and
when they fall due. Accordingly, the use of going concem assumption iz appropriale
conssdering the following:

= Tha Group condinues o find new sourcas of fTunding Io mprove cash management:

1.

The Group has rew propesals from epuled financial nstilufions for new long-ferm
loans.

The Group continwes 1o gel incremental shor-term lines from parner banks for
rmealing fs shon-term obligations thad will provide sufficient working capial financing
for it o mesat its objedives and futura financal obligatians.

Duespite incurring a boss in FY2024, the Group generated positive cash flow Trom
operations for the year amouning to WSS368.3 million, which was a turnaround from
the cash outfiow last year of LS$2 B milion mainly driven by better management of
waorking capital pardicularly imventory, Tha Group sxpects bo ses fufheér mprovement
in the: LS subsidiary following its decision to reduce pack for most of the product
categories,

Management remains vigland in managing Its costs and is focused 1o restore gross
g both in tha US and rest of DMPL The Group will focus on thin Tollowing

pricrites im FY2025, among others:

Conlinuation of plans in the US (o reduce imaniong lavel

Feduction of waste and invenlory write olfs across the Group

Reduction of warshousing and distibution costs in he US

Consolidation of manufaciuring footpeint in the US

Improve planning through digizstion and clear crganization acoourdabilty

acrass the Group

= Restoralion of productvity for processed pineappde variaty (CT4) in the next 12
to 24 months

= Faght size workfonce and reguce fixed cosis,

The Group further plans to lwer leverage by approdmaialy USH300.0 million wvia
sofactive saba of assats and injacting aquity subiject o market conditions.

The Company hed conlinued to recsive dividend payments from ils subsidiaries and
aspacts the sama in the next 12 months.
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2.4

Basis of proparation
Staterment of compliance

The financial statements have been preparsd i accordance with Intemational Flnandal
Faporing Standards ("IFRSs™).

Bazis of measurement

Tree financial staléments have been prepared on historical cost basis axcepl as othenvisse
describad in the succeeding notes below.

Functional and presentation currency

The inancial stateemants are presanted in United States Dollars ("USS" or "US Dofars™) which
is the Company's functons and presentation cumency, A fimancial Informsation presented in
US Dallars has been rounded 1o ihe nearest thousand, unless othenwise stated.

Use of estimates and judgments

Thi preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires managemenl
o make judgments, esiimales and assumplions thai alfect the application of accounting
palicies and tha reporad amounds of assete, liabilibes, ncome and expenssa. Actual results
may differ from these astimales,

Judgmerts

Infarmation aboul judgments made in applying sccounting poficles that have the mest
significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial stalarents am incheded in the

tollowing netes:

Mote B — Equity ciassificalion

Mol — Dederminalion of control over subsideies

Mote ¥ — Determination of joint control and the type of joint armangement

Mote B = Assassmani of the aporopristensas of the indefnite uselul lives of cerain
intangible asssis

Meote 23 = Dedermination of lease temm of contracts with renewal eplions
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Hotes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

3.4

Basis of preparation [cont'd)
Use of estimates and judgments (cont'd)
Estimates and underlying assumptions

Estimates and underying assumptions are reviewsd on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
afsounling estimabes ar recognized in the paricd in which the estimates are revised and in
any liure periods afectad.

Infarmation about assumplions snd estimation uncertainties that have a ssondficant risk
resulting in a material adjustment within the next inancial vear am included in the following
nodes:

Mole 5 = Usaful lives of property, plant and equipment, revaluation of freshald tand,
estimata of harvast for bearer plant's depreciation

Maole & = Obligalion to purchase excess sheres or sell shortfall shares

Mole & — Fair value of derivative liability on the call option

Moled = Recoverabilly of mvesiments in subsidiaries

Mata 7 — Recoverabiity of mvestmants in [alnt venberes

Mole 8 — Impairment of goodwill and intangible assels

Mede 8 = Liseful lives of intangible sssets

Mote @ — Recognition of deferred tax assels

Mede 11 = Fair value of harvested agricultural produce

Mobe 11 = Future tonnage of harvests

Mote 11— Falr valug of unharvested agricultural produce

Mobte 12 - Allowanca for inventory obsolescence and net realizable value

Note 13 = Impadrment of irade and nonirade receivables

Mote 20 - Maasuramant of employes benafit abiligations

MNote 20— Actuarial eslimales and assumptions usad

Male 22 = Estimaton of trade promobion accrnusts

Mole-23  — Determination of incremental barrowing rate for lease liabilities

Mote 2F  — Measyrement of incoms tas

Mole 34— Determination of falr values

Mole 36 - Contingencies



Dal Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial statements
Far the financial year endad 30 April 2024

Basis of preparation (cont'd)
Measurement of fair value

Tha Group moasures or disclosas the fair value of certain assefs and liabilities al each
repodting date. Fair valee |5 the estimated price that would be received to sell 2n asset or
paid to transfer & lishility in an orderly traneaction batween market paricpants at tha
measerement date. The fair value is based on the presumption that the ransaction to sall
the mssel of Iransfer Uhe liahilily takes place ather

= In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the most advantageous markat for the sssel or liabidy.

The grincpal or moal advanlageous market must be soseesible o the Sroup.

The fair value of an asset or liabilty i messwrsd waing the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or Eabity, assuming that market paricipants
act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of & non-fancial asset fakes
inle aceounl a markel parlicipant’s ability to generate économic benefits by usng the assal
in its highest and bast use or by selling It to another market paricipant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues thad are apgrapreate in the cireumstances and for which
sulficient data are aailable o messuee fair value, maximizing the use of ralevant chsersatile
inputs and minimizing the use of uncbsasrvable inputs.

All assets and liabiliies for which fair walue is measwrad or disclosed in the financial
statements are categanzed within the falr value herarchy, described as folkwws, based on
iFwe |loweiest bevel gl thad is significant (o the fair value measuremant 2= a whole;

{iy  Level 1. quobed prces (unadjusied) in active markets for identzcal asssts o liabililias
that the Group can access at the measurement date.

(i) Level 2 inpuis other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for
the asset or [Eablty, eithar directly or indirecty.

(i) Lewvel 30 enobservable inputs for the assel or liabilily

For azsats and liabdities thal are recognized in the financial stalerments or a recurning basis,
the Group determines whether transfers hawe ocoourred between levels i the hierarchy by
re-assessing ihe calegonsation (Besed on he (owesl level inpul that is significant io the fair
value measuremeni as a whola) at the end of aach reporting pericd.

Far the punposs of Rir value disclosures, the Group has delermined classes of asssts and

liabilities on the basis of the nature, charactesigtice, and risks of the assel ar liabllity and the
level of fair value hisrarchy as explained above.

BT AR S A P
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Motes to the financial statements
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Basis of preparation [cont'd)

Adoption of New or Rewised Siandards, Amendments [ Standamds and
Interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with thoss of the previous flscal year, except
that the Group has adopbed e Toiowing new accounling pronouncemants staring 1 May
2023. Adoption of these new standards did not have ey skanflicant impact on the Group's
carsoiidated financial staternants.

=  Amendments io Inlemational Accounting Standard (145"} 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2, Oisclosurs of Accounting Policies

The emendments provide guidance and exsamples to help entiies apply materiality
judgmeants fo accounting policy disclosses. The amendments aim bo help endities
prowide accounting policy disclosures that sre more waeful by

»  Replacing the requirement for enlifies to disclose their “significant’ accounting
polcias with & requiremeant o discloes their ‘material’ accounting podcies, and

«  Adding guidancs on how entities apply the concapt of materiality In meking decisions
about sccounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to the Practice Statement provide non-mandatory guidance.

A% oa resull of the adoption of these amendments, the Group has only disclosed the
matarial accounting policy informatian,

= Amendments o 1AS 8, Defiwlion of Accounting Estimates

The amendmenis inbroduce a new definition of accounting estimates and darify the
distinction between changes in accounling estimates and changes in accounding policies
and he coreclion of ermors. Also, the amendments ciarfy that the effects on an
accounting eatimate of a change in an inpul or a change in a measurement technigue
ang changes in atcounbing estimates if they do not reswt from the correction of paios

paricd BrTs,

* Amendments o |AS 12, Defered Tax redaled to Assefs and Lisbiifies ansing from a
Simqle Transsciion

The amandments namow the scope of the ndial recognilion exceplion under 1AS 12, so
that it no longer applies o ransactions that give nse 1o equsl taxabis and deductible
lemporary differencas,

The amendmeants also clanfy that where payments that seithe a liability are deductible for
2 purposes, & is a matier of judgment (having considered the applicable 1ax law)
whether such deductions are attibutable for fax purpases 1o the liability recognized in
the financial statements (and interest expansa) or to the relsted asset component (and
imeres| sipensa),
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Motes to the financial statements
Faor the financial year endad 30 April 2024

2.6

Basls of preparation |cont'd)

Adopiton of WNew or Revised Standerds, Amendments (o Standards aod
interpretations {coni'd)

s |FRS 17, inswrance Comracts

IFRS 17 iz a comprahensive new accounting standard for insurance conracts covering
recognilion and measuramanl, presantation and disclosure. Once effecties, IFRS 1T will
riplaca IFRS 4, Insuranca Contracits, This new standard on insurance contrecis applies
to all types of insurence contracts (|.2., life, non-lite, direct insurance and re-insuances),
resganiiess of the type of enlities thal sses tham, as wall as to cartain guarantesas and
financial instruments with discretionary paricipation features. A few scope exceptions
wiill gy,

The overall objective of IFRS 17 is 1o provide an accounting model for insurancs
contracts that s more wuseful and consistent for insurers. In conbrast to the requirerments
In IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies,
IFRE 17 provides a compranenaive modeal for insurance contracts, soverng ol rebsvanl
soccounting aspects, The com of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplementad by:

i spacific adapiation for contracts with direct panticipation features (ihe varable fes
appraach)

* A aimplified approach (the premium- allocation approach) mainky for short-duration
contracts

The Group has eady adopied the amendmenta to LAS 1, Clazefication of Liabilties s
Currant o Mon-curand which s effective flor annual repoarting pericds beginning on or after
1 danuary 2024, The amendments clanify:

# That only covenants with which an entity mus! camply on or before repording dale
will affect @ labilly's classification as currant or noncurmant,

s That clagsification is unaflected by the likelihood that an endity will exercise its
dafierral right.

s That only if an embedded derivative in & convertible liability is dself an eguily
irmtrunment woukd the terms of a liability not impact #s classification.

The Group has retroaciively adopled the amendment beginning 1 May 2022 As a result,
the Group has reclassified its loan under the asset-based lending ("ABL") Credil Agreemant
where the Group has e rght (o defer setllement beyend 12 monthe from current o
noncurmand Eabillies amounting to 54653 millon and $458.8 rmilion as of 30 April 2024 and
2023, respeciively. The adoplion did nol have impact to the Group's sistement of
comprehensivi income and statemenis of cash flows.

Matorial accounting policy information

The material accounting policy Information set oul below have been appled consistanty 1o
all periods presented in these financial statements, and have been applied consistently by
Group enbities, axcept as explained In Note 3.6, which addresses the changes in accounting
pelicheEs
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4,

4.1

Material accounting policy information (cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

)

L

Business combination

Buskness combinations are accounted for uging the acquisition method in
accordance with IFRS 3, Beginess Cordénations, as & he scouisition dale, which
is. thie date on which control i transfemred o the Group.

The Group's goodwill Is initially meeswred at cost. Goodwill k5 messwed at the
acquisition date as:

. the fair valus of considaration fransfarnesd; Flua
- the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus
. if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-

azisfing eguity interest in the acquirse
- Chear the nat recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identidiable aszets
acquired and liabilities aesumed.

The consideration transfermed does nol include amounts related 1o the seftlemant of
pre-existing relationships. Such amounts are generaly recognized in the income
statement.

Mor-comtrolling merests that are preseni ownership interesis and entitte thalr
holders to @ proporiionate share of the acquiree’s nel assels in the event of
liquidation are measurad either ai fair vales or at the non-controlling interests'
proportionabe share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net
assats, al the scquisition date. The measurement basis taken s elected on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, Al clher components of non-controlling interests
are measured at acquisition-date fir value unfess another messuremeant | required
by ancther standard.

Changes in the Group's inberest in 8 subsidiary that do not result in a loss of condrol
are accounted for 85 transactions with owners in thesr capacly a5 owners and
therefore no adjustments are made to gocdwill and ro gain or loss & recognized in
the income statement Adjustments o non-confrolling intereats ariging Trom
ransactions that do not inveive the lass of conirol are based on a propodionate
amount of the nal assels of the subsidiary.

If the assets scquired is not a business, the Group shafl acoount for the transsction
af gdhar event as an asesl scquisitian, The cost 1o the Group is allccated o the
individual idertifiable assets and Fabiiies on the basis of their refative fair values at
thie clate of purchass. Thesa transsctions or events do not give rige b gooduill,

Acauisdion under common conirod

The formation of the Group in 1999 was accounted for as & reorganization of
companies under common confrol wsing merger accounting. The financial
slalarmenls Lheralons rflect the combined financial statements of &ll companles that
form the Group as if they wene a Groug for 8 periods presentad. The assets and
liabilities of Del Monte Facific Rescurces Limited and its subsidiaries (collactively
“DMPRL") contributed to the Company have besn reflected at predecessor cost In
these financial statements.
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4,
4.1

4.2

Material accounting policy information (cont'd)

Basis of consolidation {conid)

()

(i}

(v)

Czeaaiwill

Goodwlll that arizes upon the acquisiton of subsidiares is ncluded in intangibhe
gesata and goodwill. For the messurement of goodwll on Initad recagnition, =ea
Maode &,

Subsequert measurerent

Goodwill is maasured af cost less accurmulated imgaimmenl Iosses, In respsdc of the
joint vaniwes, tha carrying ameount of goodwil g includad in the earmdang amount of
the imseatrent, and an impairment less an such an imesiment s nol allasated o
any asset, incheding goodwill, that forms part of the carryieg amound of the joint
VETTLNes.

Impairment of goodwill is dscussed in Mata 4.9

Invasirmants in joint ventures

Inveslrranls in joint vesdures are accounied for using the equity method. They are
recognized indially st eost, which includes capftalizable transaction cosis,

Impairmant of investments In jond veniures is discussad in Note 4.9,

Investmenis in subsidiaries and joint ventures in the separaie financial Sabements
Inberest in subskSanies and joint ventures are accounted for using the egquity method.
When thie Company's share of losses excaeds its inferest in subsidiares and jomnt
venbures, the camying amount of the invesiment, logether with any long-term
inferasls thal farm part thereof, is reduced 1o zero, &nd the recognition of further

Iosses is disconfinued except to the axtent that the Company has an obligation to
fund the imestes’s operations or has made payments on behall of the invastes,

Foreign curmency

(i

Faoreign currency Iransaciions

The consolidated financlal statements are presenied in US Dollars, which is the
Company's funclional and presentstion currency. Each entity In the Group
datenmings ils own functionsl currency and fems ncluded (n the fnancial stalaments
of each entity are measured using that functional curency. The functicnal currencies
of the Group's forsign operations are Phiippine Peso (PHP) for Del Montes
Philippines, Inc. (DRMPI7), Singaporean Dollar (SGO) for DMPL Managérment
Senices ("DMS”) and Japanese Yen (JPY) for S&W Japan Limited.

Transactions in foreign currencles are franslated lo the respeclive functional
currencies of Group enlilies at the exchange rate at the dates of the fransactions.
Monetary sesets and labdities denominated in foreign currencies al the repading
date ars retranzlated 1o the functional curmency at the exchange rate at that date.
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4. Material accounting pelicy Infarmation |cont'd)
d. 2 Forefgn currency [cont'd)

i)

(1)

Foraign currency transschons [cont'd)

Mon-manetary assete and labilities denominated In forglgn curmencies that are
meagured at fair value are retransialed to the functional currency al the exchange
ravle al the date that the fir value was determined. Mon-monetary items in a foreign
currency that are measured In lerms of higtioncal eosl ame ransiated wsing ths
axchangs rate at the date of the transaction,

Foreign curmency differences arising on translation are recognized in the income
slatamend, mecapt for differencas which are recognized in Other Comprehenshoe
Income (DG arising on the retranslation of qualifying cash flow hedges o the
axtent the hedge ks effective.

Faregn operalions

The sssels and liabdities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair walue
adjusirnents ansing on acquisition, ars tranalated to US Dollars af exchanos rabes ai
the reparting date. The income and expenses of forelgn operations are Iranslated ba
L& Dodars using monihly average exchange rates.

Foreign currency diferances are recognized in OCI and pressnted in the forekgn
currency iranslabion reserve (“translation reserve”) in equity, Howewer, i the
aperalion is 4 non-wholly-owned subsidiary . then the relevant proporionate share of
ihe transiation diference is allocated to the non-controlling nerasts, When a Tonsign
operation is disposed of, such that controd, or joint conitral s ost, the cumlative
amount in the franslation reserve related to that forelan operalion is reclassified o
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Whan the Group disposes of only part of its interest in a subsidiary thal includes a
forgign aparation while retaining confrol. the relevant proportion aof the cumulative
armaien] % reatinbubed bo non-controling interests. When the Group disposes aof anly
part of its ivvestment in joint venture that includes a foreign operation while retsining
signiticant mvfluence or joird contred, the relevant proportian of the cumulatbeg armaount
Iz reclagsified Lo the income statement.

When the settiemant of @ monetary ftem that is a receivable from or payable to a
foreign operalion is nefher planned nor lkely in the foreseeabie fulure, foraign
exchange gaing and losses arsing from such a monetary item ane considersd to
form part of a net mvestment in & foreign cperation and are recognized in OCL and
presented i the franslation resene in eguity.

4.3 Intangible aszois

(1]

Indefindle useful life intangile assets
Intanmble assels are measured at cost less accumulated impairmment osses,
The Group assesses infangible assels as having indefinite uselul lile ¥ there is no

foreseeable limil to the period over which the assets are expected 1o generate cash
inflaws for the antity.
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4. Material accounting policy infarmation (cont'd)
4.3  Inlangible assels {cont'd)

i

()

v}

Indefinite uselul lili intsngibie assets (contd)

Ciher intangible assets thal are acgeired by the Group and have finite usaful lives
:: measured &t cost less accumulated amorization and acournulated impairment
BEg.

Subsequant expenditune

Subsequent expendilure B capitalized only when [ increases ke Tulure soonomic
benefits embodied in the specific asset o which it relates. All other axpanditure,
inchedng axpandiiurn on insmaly genarated goodwill and brands, i3 recognized in
e Incorme stalement 2% incumed,

Armarizalion
-"-u::nrﬂlﬂllim al intangible assets with finite lves is calculated based on the coat af
asgel,

Ao EEthon is recognized in grofit or loss on a straighd-line basis over the estimated
ugaful ivas of these assets, other than goodwill and, from the date that they are
avallable for use. The estimaled useful fives for the current pariod and comparative
years are as follovws:

Trademarks = 10 be 20 yaars
Customer relationships = 20 yoars

Amortization methods, wseful ves and mesidual values are reviewsd st each
repoding date and adjusied If appropriate.

id Financial instruments

Classification and subsaquent measurament
Financial azsels

The Group has the following finandal assats:

Financial Assels st Amorized Cosl. This category is the most relevant to the Group.
Financial aseels at amortized cost comprise cash in banks and cash equivalents,
frada and other recelvables, due from a subsidiary, refundable daposita and note
receivables recognized under alher noncurent assets (Note 10).

Fimancial Assels designaied al Fair Vaiue tmough Other Comprehenzhe income
("FVOLCI] fequity instruments). The Group can elect o classify imevocably ils equily
mwveeiments & eguily instruments designated at FYOCI when they mest (he
definition of equity under 1AS 32, Financial nstruments: Praseaialion, and sre not
hetd for irading. The Group has imestmaents in unquated equity instruments and dul
shares that are classified and measured at FVOCI.

Financial Azsets af Fair Valse fhodgh Profit or Loss ("FWTPLY). This category
includes derivative instruments which the Group had not krevocably elected lo

elassify al FVOCL
AR AT

1 -
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4,

4.4

Matarial accounting policy Information (cont'd)

Financial instrivmerdts (cont'd)

Clazsification and subssquent messurement (conl'd)
Finamacial iabiities

The Group has financial liabllities at amontized cost comprising of Bank koans, trade
:ﬁgﬂﬁf payables. The Group has dervalive insiruments which are camed at

Clagsiication of Fingncial imsiruments barwean Debl and Equity

A finenckal instrument is dassfied as debd instrurment if it provides for 8 contraciual
cibfigation do:

= dediver cash or angther financial asset to another entity;

= awchange lnancial assels or financial lisbiities with another entity under
condisons that are potentialy unfavarable to the Group: of

# satisfy the ooligation ofther than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
anciher inancial asset for a fiwed number of own equily shares,

If the Group does not have an unconditionst right to awsd delivaring cash or another
fnancial aesat io settie its conlraclusl obligation, the obBgation meets the daefiniticn
of & finencial Fabilty, The components of issued financial nstruments hal conlain
both liability and equity slemants are accounled for separately, with the aquity
component being asalgned the residual amount after deducting from the Instrumeant
&3 a whole the amoun! separately determined as the fair value of the liability
component on the date of lzaue.

Drarivalive Rrancal ivsfriments, inciuding Redge sccounting

The Group uses dedvative financial instruments for the purpose of managing risks
associated with intarest rates, cumencies, transportation and cerlain commodities.
The Group does nol trade or use instruments with the chjective of eaming financial
gains o fuduations in the dervative instrument alone, nor does # use instruments
where thare afe no underdying exposures. All derivative instruments are recorded in
the slatement of financial positicn at fair value. The accounting for changes in the
fair value {i.e., gains or losses) of a darlvative Instrurment depends on whathar tha
instrument has been designated and qualifies as part of a hedging rekationship and
further, on the type of hedging relationship. For those dervative ingtruments thal ars
not deaignated as hedging instrements, changes in fair valee subsequent to initial
recogrition are recognized in the income statlement. For thoss dervative instruments
that are designated and qualfy as hedging Instrumeants, the Gooup dasignates the
hedong instrumend as a fair velue hedge, cagh flow hedge, or a hedge of 8 net
invesiment in a foreign operation based upon the exposure being hedged.

Dearivatlves are recognized initisly at fair value; any direcily attributable transaclion
COstE are recogrized inthe income statement as they are incurred. Subsequent to
inifial recognition, derivalives are measured al fair value. Changes therein are
recognized in OCI1, generally for derivatives designated as effective hedges, or the
consolidated income statemant, Tor othes darivativas.,

« 12 =
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4, Material accounting policy information {cont'd)

4.4 Financial instruments {camt o}

Classification and subsaguent measurement {cont'd)
Dranvative financial matrements, including hedge accowrting [Com 'd]

For a cash fow hedge of a forecas! lmnsaclion. the fransaction should be highly
probable o occwr and should present an exposune 10 vaniations in cash flows that
could ulimately affect reported pealil o logs,

Cash fow hedges

When a derivative i designated as 2 cash flow hedoing instrument, the effective
portion of changes in e lair value of the dervatve & recognized in OC1 and
aocumulaled in the hedging ressmrve. Any ineffectwe portion of changes in the falr
value of the dervalive is recognized immediately in the income stalement.

The amound accwmulated in equity is retained in OC1 and reclassified to the
consolidated income statemeant in the same pericd or pedods during which the
hedped item affects the Income statement, excepl when a hedged forecast
transaclion subseqeenlly results in the rgognition of 8 noa-financial item such as
invantory, in which case the amount retainad in QC s Included directly in the initial
cost of e non-financial ilem when it is recognized.

If the hedging instrument no longer meads the cribena for hedge accounting, axpires
ar 5 sold, leminated or exercised, or the designation ks revoked, then hedge
accounting is @scontinued prospectvaly, Whan hedge accounting for cash flow
hedges is discontinued, the emount that has been accumulated in OCI remans in
equity undll, for hedge of & tremsaction resulling in the recognition of a non-financial
iam, itis induded in the non-inancial item's cost on its nitial recognition o, for ofher
cash flow hedges, it & reclassified to the income stalemant in the same pericd or
periods as the hedged expected fubure cash flows affect the Income staterment, If a
hedged forecast trarsaction is no longer expected o occur, then the amount
accumulated in equily i immeadiately reclassifiad lo theincome statement.

4.5 Froperty, plant and eguipnment

(i

Recognitian and measurement

ltams of property, plani and equipment are measured al cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumadated impairment losses except for freehald and, which are
stated a1 lis revalued amounts, The revaiued amount i the fair value at the date of
revaiiation kst any subseguent accumulsted mpalment losses. Revaluation is
carmied out by independent professional walues regularly such that the carrying
amount of these assets doss not differ matedally from thal which woukd e
detarmined using faér values at the reporting date.

Besrer plants sre measured & cost ks accumidaled amorlizalion based on aclusl
volurne of harvest over ofal eslimated volume of harvest. Costs to grow include
purchase cost of varlous chemicala and Tertilizers, land preparation expenses and
durect expenses dudng e cullivation of the primary ratoon and, if needed, re-ratoon

Crops.
AR

= 13
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i,
4.5

Material accounting pollcy Information (cont'd)
Property, plant and equipmeant {cont‘d)

L)

{ii}

{iiy

Recognition and maasurament (cont'd)

Purchased softwara that is integral to the functicnality of the ralated agquipmeant is
capitalized as par of thal equipmant,

Cionatrection-in-progress regresente plant and properties under consfruction or
developrment and I8 stated af ool This includes cost of construdion, plant and
equipmant, borrawing costs directly attriadable to such assel during the construction
pariod and cther direct costs. Constructior-in-progress is not depraciatad untd swch
time when the relevant aaseis are substantially complated and evallsbls for ita
intended ues.

Wheen pants of an ibem of propedty, plant and equipment have different usaful kves,
they are eccounted for as separate ems (mejor compenents) of property, plant and
equipment,

The gain or loss on disposal of an ftem of property. plant and equipment s
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carmying armount of
thix am, and is recognized net within othar incomedothar expanses in tha incomae
Statarnant.

Subsequant coels

The cast of replacing a component of an tem of propedy, plant and equipment is
recognized in the carmying amawnt of the Zem it is probabile thiat the fulure economic
benafita amboded within 1he compongnd will Now to the Group, and #s cost can be
maaswigd raligbly. The carrving amount of the raplaced component (s derecognzed.

The costs of the day-to-day servicing of propedy, planl and eguipment ane
rcognized in tha income statemant as incurred.

Cepreciation

Cepreciation is based on the cost of an assel less its residual value, Significant
components of Individual assels are assessed and § a component has a usedul life
that is different from the remainder of that asset, that component & deprecletsd
s=narately.

Depraciation {except bearer planis) is recognized In the income sialemsent on a
siraight-iing basis over heir estimated useful lives of each component of an tem of
property, plant and equipmeant, unless i s included in the carmying amount of ancter
asset. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation is recognized from the date that the progerty, plant and equigment are
installed and are resdy for use, or in respect of Intermatly constructed assets, from
the date thal the asset is completed and ready for use.

« 14 =
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4.
4.5

Materlal eccounting policy Information (contd)
Froperty, plant and equipment [cont’'d)
{iid) Diapreciation {coni'd)

The astimated useful Fves for the current pariod and comparative years are as

follonis:;
Buildings, land = 3o 50 years or lease term,
improvements and whichever s shorer

leasenodd improvements
Machineries and eguipment - 3o 30 yesrs

For bearer plants, wis of producton method s used. Deprecislion is charged
aocomding to the cost of fruils hanested at plant crop and ratoon crop harvest
manins.

Bearer plants ana depreciated basad on the ratio of actual quantity of harvest over
thee estimated yield for both plant crop and ratoon crop Ranasts. Plant crop haraest
ugilly socurs within 16 10 18 months after planting whils ratoeon crop harwast ocours
within 32 to 34 months after planting. Cepreciation |s detemnined on a per field basie,

Biological assels

The Group's biclogical asssts Incude: (8) agrcultural produce constating of pieapple and
papays; (b) Dreeding and dairy herd; (c] growing herd; and [d) catle Tor skBughter.
Agriculural produca inciude: (a) harvested and unhanvested pineapple and papaya fruils
from the Group's beaser planks; and (b) cut meal roem The catlle for slaughtes.

The Growp's bickogical sesets are acoounted for as foliows:
Breeding and Dairy Herd

The breeding and dairy herd are measured ai cost. The breeding and dainy herd have useiul
fives of 3 15 10 © years. The cost method was used since Tair valee cannol be measured
refably. The breeding and dairy herd have no active markels and no simdar assets are
availabla in tha ralavant markets. In addition, existing secter benchmarks are irelevant and
estimatos necessary o compute for the present value of sxpected net cash fows comarisa
& wide range of data which will nol result in 2 relisble basts for determining the (& value
Breading and dairy herd are classified as noncurrent assets in the statement of financial
position of the Graup,

Growing Hand
Growing heend is measured al cost. The cost method was used since the fan value cannod b
rrsasured relsably. Growing herd has no dafined aciive market since it has not yel besn

identified if this will be for breeding or for slaughter. Growing herd is classified as noncurrent
aaesis in the statement of financial position of the Grodg.



Del Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to tha financial statements

For the financlal year ended 30 April 2024

46

4.7

Material accounting policy information (eant'd)

Biological asseis (cont'd)

The Group's agricultural produce are accountad for as follows:

Agricallural Produce

The Group's growing of unharvested agriculiural produce are measured al their fair value
froem fhe time of ety of the bearer plant untl harvest. Tha Group estimates the fair value
of unharwested agriculiural produce using estmated ionnage of harvest, estimated future
salling prices and gross margin of finished goods less estimaled future growing cost and
adjusted for rmargin related to production. The fair value is multiphied 1o the estimated tonnage
of harvested pineapple frull at the end of the period based on the age of the crops aflar
planlng date, The Group's harvested produce are measured al fair waleg &1 he point -l:lf
harves! based on the estimated selling prices reduced by cost to sell and adjusied for margin
related 10 production. Tha falr value = multiplied to actual hanvest for e pariod. Gaing and

losses ansing fom changes in fair values are incluged in prafit or loss undor "Changes in fair
vahses al biologica! assets” In revenue for the peniod in which they arise,

Crrmear

Cuimeat s measwred at each reporting date al thel fair value less cost o sell. Gains and
losses ansing from changes in fair values are included in profit or kess under “changes in fair
vahse of biclogical assets” in rewanue for the period in which ey anse

Leases

Right-of-use assels and lease Babililies are presented separately in the consoldated
statemen of inancial posilien,

Girowp a5 a lesses

The Group applies a singhe recognition and measuremaent approach for all leases, except for
shorderm leases and leases of low-value assels, The Group recognizes lease lability to
maka lsase payments and right-of-use assel representing the righl to use the underlying
A588l

Right-of-uze Aszels

The Group recognizes nghl-ol-use assets al the commencemen! date of the lzase (.e., the
date the undardying atset is avalable for use), Righl-ol-use assels are measured at cost,
less any accumaited depreciation and impalrment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurément of [eass lability, The nghl-of-use assels were measured at an amount equal
bo the lease Bablfty, adjusied for nilial direct costs incumed, and ease payrments made &t or
bafane the commencement date less any laase incentlves recaived.

Uriless the Group is reasonably certain ko obtain ownership of the leased assel al the end of

the lease bemm, the recognized nghl-of-use assels are depreciated on a straighldine bass
ovar tha shoer of s estimated uselul life and the leage term.
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d, Material accounting policy information [contd)
4.7 Leases (conid)
Right-of-wee Aszets (conf'd)

The estimated wseful lives are a5 followsa:

Buildings. land improvemeants and - 2to 6 yaam
leasehodd improvemeants

Land - 2to 36 years

Machineries and eguipmsant - 21017 years

The mghi-of-use assets are prasented separatedy m the statement of financial position,
Lease Nabililies

At the commencement date of the eeae e Group recognizes lease Babilites measured at
the present value of leass payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
inchude fined payments (including in substance fixed paymenis) lasa any lease incentives
receivabla, variable lease payments that depend on an indes or & rate, and amounts
axpected 1o be paid under residual value guarantess. The lease payments also inchide the
awercise price of 8 purchase oplion reesonably cartain io be exercised by the Group and
paymants of panalties for tarminating a keasae, F the [ease tarm reflects the Group axercising
fe oplion to termmate. The varable sse payments thal do nod depend on an index or a
rale are recognized &% expense in the period on which the event or condition that triggers
I Pty e ECLrg.

In calcutsting the present value of lease pivments, 1he Group uses the ncramental Bomowing
rate (‘'IER". Aftar the commencemant date, the amoun of lease liabililies s ncreased to
reflact the accretion of interes! and reduced for the lease peyments mads, naddition, the
carrying amound of leasa Habilities 8 remeasured if there (3 a modication, a change in the
leass term, a change in the In-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the
asseesmant fo purchase the underlyirg asset

Ehorf-tarm leases and leases of bw-vailue aszals

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption fo #s shor-tem feases of
machinery and aquipment (i.e., thosa leases that have & lease lerm ol 12 monlhs or less
from the commancement dats and do not contain a purchase optian]. It a%o applies Hhe
leases of low-value assets recognition exemption to keases that are conslderad of low valiss
lie., personal computers). Lease paymenis on shor-tenm beases and leases of Kw-valus
assels arg reccgnized as expanss on a straight-line basie ovar the leage tem.

Bale and Legseback

When the Group sels or ransfers an asset to another entty (the buyer-lessor] and leases
that asset back from the buyerdessor, the Group account for the sale or transfer confract and
the lease Dy applying the requirements of IFRS 18 Leases, The Group first applies the
requiraments fior determining when 2 pedformance obligation iz satisfied in IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Cusfomers to delemming whether the sale or ransfer of an assel is
accounted for 28 & sale of that asssi.

o FF -
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Material accounting policy infarmation {cont'd)
Loazas (cont'd)
Sale amd Leasshack fcont'd)

For sale or ransfer of an asset that satisfies the reguirements of IFRS 15 Revenus from
Canfracts with Cuglomens bo be accounted for 55 & sale of tha assal, the Group messuras
the righi-of-use azsat ansing from the leaseback at the proportion of the previcus carmying
amount of the asset that relates to the right of use refained by the Group. Accordingly, the
Growp recognizes onky the amount of any gainor loss that redates to the rights transfered 1o
tha buyar-lessor.

IT 1k sale or transfes of an assat doas nol salisfy the requirements of IFRS 15 Rsvanue from
Canrasds with Cusiomers o be sccouned for 85 8 sake of the 2ssel, the Group continues 1o
racognide the transfarmed ases and recognizes a financial lisbility equal fo the proceeds from
the sale or tramsfer, The Group accounts for the financsal lability in accordance with the
requiraments of IFRS 8 Firancial nsframents.

Subidase avangements

Al the inception date, If the siybdesse qualiies as inance kase, the Group demcognizes the
fight-ol-usa assel on the head leasae and continues to account for the onginal laase Eabilty,
The Group Bs a sublessor, recognizes a nel Investment In sublease and evaluate it for
impairment. |1 classilied a5 operating lease, the Group continues to account for the lease
liahility and right-of-wuse asseal on the head lease like any other l=ase.

Inventories
Imwertomes are measured 3 he lower af cost and ret realizable vabue,

The cost of raw materisls, packaging matenalks, traded goods, cost of production maleriaks
and storeroom lems is baged on the Firsl-in, Firg-out ("FIFDT) methad. Cost of processed
irventores comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs ncurred in
bringing the inventories to thelr present localion and condition,

The costs of convarsion inclede costs directly related 1o the units of productcn, and a
systematic allocation of fixed and variable production ovarheads that are incurred in
converling matarials inbo finished goods.

The allocation of fixed production overheads is based on the nommal capacity of the
production faciities. Mommal capacity is the production expecied to be achisved on average
for the penods or sessons under normal circumestancss, taking ints account the seasonal
business ayole of the Group.

Med realizable value = the estimated selbng price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and seling expenses.

The cost of growing crops transferred from biological assets is its fair value ess cost 1o sall
al the dade of harvesl,

- 18 -
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i,

4.9

Material accounting policy information [cont'd)
Imipairmant

i

Mon-derivative financial assels

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expacted credit losses ("ECLS™) on
financlal assets measured 21 amortized cost.

The Group measures loss aliowances al an amount egual 1o ifetime ECLs, except
for dedt secusties thal are determined to hava low cradif sk af the reporting date
ard other debd secunlies, non-lrade and other receivables and bark balances for
wihich credit risk has nol increased significandly snce nilial recognilian, which ang
maasured at 12-maonth ECLs.

Impairmend loss slowances for frade receivables without & significant financing
sompangnt are measured al an asmount egual b likstme ECL,

When datermining whelher the cadil risk of 3 fmancisl assel has increasad
significantty aince inital recognition and when estimating ECLe, the Group considers
regsonatle and sueppartable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This Inchedes both gquantitstive and qualitslive Eformaton and
analats, based on the Group's historical esperence and informed  credd
assesament and including forward-looking information,

The Group assumes thal the credit sk on a fingnclal assel hes Incressed
slgnificanthy it it 1s more than 30 days past due,

The Group considers 8 financial asest to ba in defsult whan the bomower = unlikely
o pay fe credit abligations (o the Graup in full, withoul recourss by the Group o
actions such as realizing security (if any Is hald), or when the financle! asset i more
than %) days past due.

At sach reporiing date, the Group essessas whether financial assels al amorized
cosl are redit-impaired, A inancial assel & credil-impaired when one or more
evernls [hal have & delimental impact on the estimsted future cesh fiows of the
financial asset heve ocourred. Evidencs that a financial assel & credil-impaired may
Inchide sagnificant fnancial difficulty of the debtor, a breach of contract such as a8
defaull, the sestrecturing of an amount dws to the Group on terms that the Growp
would not consider otherwise, indications that the deblor or issuer will enter
bankruploy or other finandal reorganization, the disappearance of an active marked
for that financial asset because of fnancial difficulties, adverse changes in the
payment status of bomowers or isswers, or sconomic condiflons that correlals with
defsults,

Impairment lose slliowances for financial assets measured al amodized cost ara
deducted from the gross camying amownt of the asseis in the atetament of financial
position. The gross cammying amount of a financal assel is willen=0f wien the Group
has no reslistic prospects of recoveny of the asset.

- JE -
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d.
4.9

Material sccounting policy information (comnt'd)

Impairmrent (comtd)

")

Mon-financial assels

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financal assets, other than blological
asssls, invenioras and defemsd tax aseets, am raviewed al each reporting dabe bo
determins whather thees is any Indication of impairment. If any such indication axists,
then the assel's recoverable amound is estiimated. For goodwill and intangible assels
that have indsfinite ussful lives, the recoverable amount i estimated each year al
the same time,

An impairment loss is recognized if the camang amount of an assel or ils relabed
cash-ganaraling uril [CCGUT) aoceeds s estimated recoverable amount,

The recoverabbe amound of an assel or CGLU s the grester of its value-in-use (VIU)
and is fair value less costs to sail. In assessing VIU, the estimated fulum cash fiows
are discounted to ihelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflecls
curranl market assessments of the time valua of money and the risks specilic bo the
assat or CGEU. For the purpose of iImpairment testing, assels that cannod be lested
individfually are grouped together imto the smallast growp of asssls that genenateas
cesh infliows from continuing wse that are largely Indepandent of the cash inflows of
other asseds or CGLL

Impairmenl kasses ame recopiized in e ncome statement. Impairment lossas
recognized in resped of CGUs are allocated first 1o reduce the carmying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the CGLU (group of CGEUSs), and then to reduce the carmyng
amounts of the olher assels in the CGLU [group of CGUs) on 3 poo rala basis

inveafments n subsialsres and o vaniures

An impairmant loss in respect of invesiment in subsidiares and joint venthres (s
meagured by comganng the recoverable amount of tha invesimant with its carrying
amount. An impairrment loss is recognized inthe income statemant. An impalirment
loss |s reversed W there has been a favorable change in the esiimales used fo
delerming the recovarabla smownd

Gooawi

Goodwill that forms par of the camying amount of an investment Ina jolnt veniure (s

not recognized separately, and therefors i not tested for impairmaent sepanataly,
Inslead, the entire amount of the investment in a joint venburs is tested for mpairment

&5 8 single asset when there B objective evidence thal the Investment in a joind
wanture may b impaired,

Winesn conducling the swassl impairmsent test for goodwill, the Group compares the
estimated fair value of the OGU containing goodwill 1o its recovarable amount,



Del Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

4, Material accounting policy information (cont'd)

4.5  Impairment {coni'd)

(i}

Mon-financial assets (conl’d)
Geamdtanll (cant )

Goodwill = aliocated to a CGU or group of CGUs that represents the lowest level
within the enbily af which the goodwill is monitored for intermal management
purposes. Tha recovarable amound i computed using two approachaes: the VL
approach, which ts the present vakss of expected cash flows, discounted at 8 nsk
adlusied weighled average cosl of capital, and the Fair value less cost 1o sel
approach, which i based on the Income Approach, which indicatas the: recovarabia
amourd of an assel based on the valee of the cash flows that the aszst can be

expacted to ganerate in the fubure.

Subjedc! to an oparating segment ceding test, for the punposes of goodwill impairment
testing, CGUs to which goodwil has been aliocated are aggregated =0 that the leveal
al which impairmend testing is parformed reflacis the lowsst level at which goodwill
is monitored for infermnal reporing purpeessa, Goodwll acguired In a businees
combination is allocaled 1o groups of CGLS hal are expecied o benefit from the
synangies of the comiination.

A impssrment oss in respect of goodwill attributable fo acquisition of a subsidiary is
it reversed.

4.10 Employes berefifs

()

(i}

Defmed comiribulion plang

A defined contribution plan is a pest-employment benefit plan undar which an antity
pays fixed confributions info & separate entity ard will Bave no legal of conslruclive
cbligation fo pay further amounis.

CObdigations for contributicns (o defined contribution pension plans ame ecognized s
an amployes banefit sxpenae in the ncorme statament in the penods dunng which
services are rendered by employeas,

Dexfined benel pansion plan

A cdefined benefit pension plan requires contributions to be made 1o segarately
administered funds, The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benafil plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefil that
emgloyess hiave gamead in the current and prior periods,; discounding that amournt
and deducting he = vales of any pan sssets, The Group determines the net
imleres! guparsa (mcoma) on the et defined Banafit liability {as=et) for the peniod by
apphfing the discount rate wused o measure the defined benefit oblization at the
beginning of the annusl perod 1o the net defined Denefit kabily (asset), taking inoe
account any changes in the net defined Benefil Babiity {assel) during the period as
& result of contributions and benefit payments.
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Material accounting policy Information (cont'd)

Employee benelfis

(H)

(i}

Defined banafil pansion plan [oomt'd)

The calculation of defined benefit obligations Is pedformed annualy by a qualified
actuary using the projactad unil credit mathod, When the calculation results in a
benait to the Group, the recognized asset s limited to the present value of economic
benefita availablz in the form of any futere refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions bo the plan, To calculate the present value of economes bensdits,
conskderation ts ghven o any appficable minimem funding reguirements that apply to
ary plan in the Group. An sconomic bensfit is available o the Group i itis realizsbis
duging thi ifa of tha plan, or on settlement of tha plan Rabilities,

Service coats which Include current service cosis, pas! sendce cogis and gains or
losses on non-routine settlermens are recognized as expense in profit or boes, Past
sarvice costs are recognized when plan amendment or curtaliment occurs.

Remaasuramants of tha ned defined benefit lability comprise actuanal gains and
losses, the netum on plan assets (excluding inerest) and ihe effect of the asest
ceiling {if any, excluding interest). The Group recognizes them immediataly in other
Comprefuingive intome and all expanses related to defined benefit plans in siaff cost
in peclil or koss, When the benefits of a plan are changad or when a péan i curialled,
the resulting change in benefit that relaies o past service or the gain or (oss on
curtallment is recognized immediately in the income staterment.

When the plan amendment or curtadmeant Ocours, the Group recognizes gains and
losses on the seittement of & defined benefit plan when the seitlsrment oocurs, Th
gain or loss on settement is the difference bebween the present value of the defined
banefil obligation being setted as determined on the date of settiement and the
settement price, including any plan assets transferred and any payments made
directly by the Group In connection with the sstilemeant,

Muti-amplayer plans

The Group participates in saveral mulli-empioyver pension plans, which provide
defined benefits 1o certain union employees. The Group accounts for its
proporlionate share of the defined tenafit cbédgation, plan assets and oSt associated
with the plan in the same way as a defined conlibaiion plan. For cerain union
employee related retirameant plans whars sulficiant infarmation is nod avaabls to wse
defined benefil accounting, the Group accounis for these plans as if they were
diafined contribution plans.

Other plans

The Group has vadous other non-qualified retirement plans ard supplemental
ratiremeant plans for executives, desigeed 1o provide benafits in excese of thoss
otherwise permitied undar the Group's qualified retirement plans, Thess plans ane
urfended and comply with Intemal Revenue Sarvice (IRS) rules for non-gualifisd
plans.
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Material accounting pelicy information {cont'd)

Employee benelits jconl'd)

L}

vl

(vi)

{wi}

e long-term employes benelils

The Group's nel obligation n respect of long-term emploves benafits olbwr than
pension plans ks the amount of future benefit that employess have samsad In retum
for their service in the curend and pricr periods. That benefil is discounied 1o
detarmine its present value, and tha fair veles of amy related asseis iz deducted. The
calculation |s performed using the projecied unit credit method, Ay achuanal gains
andl losses am fecognized in the income slatament in the pariod in which they arise.
Other long-term emploves benefits include the Groug's long-lemm execulive cash
incanthm awants (Nofe 37).

Tarrmifation banefils

Termination benefits are recognized as an expenss when the Group is demanstrably
committed, without reafistic possibdlty of withdrawal, 1o a formal detalled plan to
gither terminate employment before e norma retiement date, or 0 provide
termination benefils as 3 resull of an offer made 1o encourage voluntary redundancy.
Tarmanation benefits arsing from mvoluntary termination are recognized as an
gxpanse once the Group hes announced ths plan o afeciod employeas

Short-term employee banefits

Short-term employes benefit obigatione are measured on an undiscounted basis
end are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability s recognized for the
arreasl expeclad io be paid under shor-term cash bonus if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation 1o pay this amount &5 a resull of past service provided
by the employes and the obligation can be estimated elisbly.

Share-based paymend ransaclions

The Group grants shane awands and share options to employess of the Group. The
Tair vadue of incentives granted s recognized as an employes benelit sxpense with
a cormespondmg increass in equily, The fair value is measured &t gramt date and
atcounied hor a5 described balow.

Share awards

The fair value, maasurad at grant date, s recognized over the pericd duning which
thi employees become uncondfionally entifled to the shares,

Share optinng

The fair value, measured al grant date, is recognized over the vesting period during
which the employees become unconditionally enlitied to the opfions. At each
raporting date, the Group revises its estimales of the number of oplices thal are
expecied o Decome axercisable. I recognizes tha impact of the revision of onginal
estimales in employee bensafit expense and as a cormaspondng adjustmiant 1o eguity
over the remaining vesting period.
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Materlal accounting pollcy Infermation (cont'd)

Provisions

& provision is recognized if, as a resull of a past event, the Groug has a present legal or
caongtructiee obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probabls that an oubflow of
peonomic benefits will be required 19 $altle the obigation. Provsions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash fiows gt a pre-iay rate that reflacis cument market
assesaments of the time value of money and the riska specific to the Eability. The unwinding
of the discount is recognized as finanoe cosl

fi) Ermarcnment remediation iabilities

In accordance with the Group's emdronment poicy and appscahble  legal
requiremeanis, a provision for environmenial remadiation obligationa and the related
expanse is recopnized when such losses ame probable, and the amounts of such
lases can be estimated rellably. Accruals for estimated loeses for environmenitsl
remeEsion obligatcns ans recogniied no teler tan the completisn of the remesdEal
feasibility study. These accruals are adjusted as further information develops or
drcumstances change.

[#) Ratained nsurance lisbities

The Group accrues for retaned insurance nsks associated with the deductible
porlion of any potential liablities that might arse oul of claims of amployees,
customers or other third parties for persenal injury ar property damage oocurring In
1he course of the Group's operations.

A, [hird-party actuary is engaged 1o assist the Group in estimaling the ultimale cost
of certain retained insuramca rigks, Additionally, the Group's estimate of retained
insurance habilities iz sultgec] to change as new evenls of circumstances develop
which might materially impact the ultimate costi o setila these osses.

Revenue recognifion

Revenua from contracts with customers iz recognized when control of the goods or sendices
are ranshemed to the customer at an amount that reffects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entited In exchangs for those goods of senvices, excluding amounts
collected on behall of thind parties, The Group Assesses jts revenue arrangemants against
spacific criferia fo determine i it iz acling as principal or agenl. The folowing specfic
recognlion criberia mus! also ba mel befors nevenue is recognized:

fiy Sales of goode
Fevenue from the sale of gonds 18 recogrized at a point in ime when control of the
Bssel is lransfermad to the customer, generally on delivery and acceptance of the
promisad goode.
Each contragt with a custornar specifes minimum guantity, fiked paces and efactive

period and i not subject to change for the contractual period unless mutusly agreead
by the paries.
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4,12  Revenue recognfifon (comt'd)

mn

()

i)

Sales of goods (cont'd)

The Group provides aliowances undar trade promoticns 1o cuslomers and coupons
to end consumers which are reimburssble by the Group to cuslomers when
redesmed, Aldsmantes and coupons ane generally considered as reductions of tha
transaction price and recognized at the Ialar of whean the Groug recognizes evanue
for the transfer of the related goods and when the Grouwp pays or promises o pay
i allowances o Coupons.

Varinble amounis related fo these alowances and soupons are estirmatad using tha
expacted walue method and incleded in the transaction prics to the extant it iz highly
probable that @ significant revenwes reversal will nol subsequently aceur, Accruals for
tradia promotions are based on expacted levels of performance. Settlement typically
occursg in subsequent periods pamarily through an off-invoice allowance at the time
af sale or through an sulhorized process for deductions taken by B customer from
amounts olherwse due to the Group, Evaluation of trade promotions ane performied
manthly and adjusiments are made where appropriste to reflect changes in the
Group's estimales. The Group accfued Coupon rdemplion cosls based on
gstimates of redemption rates that are developed by management. Management's
ealimates are based on recommendalions from independent coupan redemplion
clearing-hougses as well as historical mformation, Should actual redemplion rates
vary from amounts estimated, sdjustiments may ba required.

Sales ralums

The Group uses the expected valus mathod to estimata the goods that will not be
refurmed because this method best predicts the amount of varable considaration 1o
which the Group will ba entithed. The requirements in IFRS 15 on constraining
astimates of vanable conaideration are also applied In order bo detenming the armoun
o variabie consideralion that can be included in the transaciion price. The amount
of revenue and the receivable recagnized is adjusied for expected retums, which are
estimated based on the histenical data, Mo right of relurn asset (and comespanding
adjustmant to cost of sales) B mcognized for the right to recover products from a
customer since Group's policy I8 to disposs all goods o be returned,

Bill-and-hold armangaments

Bill-and-hold arrangements pertain 1o sales of the Group wherein the customers are
billed for goods that are ready for delivery, bul the Groug retains physical passession
of e product until I is transfemred fo the customer & a future date. The Group
aesessed whather control has transfarmed to the customers, even though the
customers do nol have physical possession of the goods. The folicwing criteria must
&l be mel in order for the cuslemers 10 hewve obtained control & bill-and-haold

arrangements:

I reasan for tha bill-and-hold arrangemend must be substandive;

the product miust be identified separately a5 belongng Lo the customen

i product currently must be ready for physical transfer io the customer; and
the entity cannol have the ability fo use the product or to dinect It i another

cueshamer,
LRI
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Material accounting policy Information (cont'd)

Revenue recognition (cont'd)
fiify Bil-and-hold arangamants (conl'd)

Cusiodial services provided fo the cusiomers are idenfified &5 & separsie
perforrmance obiigation. & portion of the contract price should be allocated o he
cuetndial services and separately recognized over the period of time the product is
by held by e Group, aong with the related costs of storing the product. Panalty
on the late paymeant of the Involces affects the estimate of the transacton price,

Tax

Currant tax is the expected tax peyable on the taxable income for the year, using lax rales
enacted of substantivedy enacted 3 the reporting date, and any adjustment 1o tax payable in
résspact af pravious years.

Daferred fax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o be appied 1o lemporary
differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantivaly
enached by the reporting date.

A defarad tax asset & mecognized for woused fax losses, tax credits and deductible
temporary differences, to the edent that It is probeble that future laxable profits wil be
availatie against which they can be utiized, Defered (ax assels are reviewsd st each
repariing date and are reduced to the exent that it is no longer probable Bal the ralated b
banafit will be realzed.

In detarmining the amount of curent and defered tax, the Group lakes into account the
impact of uncertain tax positions and whether addiional faxes and interest may be due, The
Group believes that ils sccrusts for 1ax liabilties are adequate Tor all open lax years based
on itg assessmeant of many fadors, including interpredations of tax lew and prior experenos,
Thiz assessment refies on estimates and asaumptlions and may involve a series of judgments
about future events. New information may become avalable that causes the Group to change
s judgment regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilltes; such changes to tax liabilities
will impact tax expense in the period thal such a determination & made.

New standards and interpretations Isswed but not yet effective
Prmm isswed but nol yet effecthe are listed below. The Group intends 1o adopt
the following pronouncements when they become effective. Adoption of these

pronouncements s not expected to have & sagnilicant mpact on the Group's consolidated
financial statemants.

Elfective baginning on or after 1 Janwary 2024

o Amendments io IFRS 16, Lease fabiily in 3 Sale and Leaseback
The amendments specify how a sellerdesses measures the laasa liability arsing in a
sale and [easeback fransaction in & way that | does not recognize any amount of the
gain or loss that relates 1o the right of use refained.
The amenaments are effective for annual reporting beginnéng on or after 1 January 2024

and must be applied retrospectively, Earller adoption & permifted and that fact must be
disclosed, The amendmants are not expected to have a malesal impact on the Group.
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5 Property, plant and equipment - net
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Property, plant and equipment - net {(cont'd)

Depreciation recognized in the consoidaled stalements of cash lows is net of the amoun
capitalized in irventories of USEE.4 million (2023: US33.4 millicn).

The Group has property, plant and equipment {"FPE") acquisitions of US32.3 milion as of
0 April 2024 (2023 USE3.9 million) that are unpaid as at year-end and included under
"Accrued opersting axpenses” in “Trade and other current liabiliies” [Note 223,

Doy paymenits made by the Group for the acguisition of PPE amounted to LS$0,2 millics
for the year ended 30 April 2024 (2023: US33.5 millon) recorded under “Advances to
suppliers” in "Other noncurrent assets” (Mote 10), In addiion. the Group has reclassified
cerlain prepaid and other current assats (o PPE which amourted o nil in 2024 (2023 USS2.4
Frilion).

In fiscal year 2024, the Group capilalized inerest expense ansing rom general bormowings
and lease liabilities to bearar plants amounting o LS32 4 milion and USS1.5 milion (2023
LUSE2 0 million and USS1.2 millian], respeciively.

Arising from the disposal of certain PPE are US$0.6 million thak remains due a8 of 30 April
224 and ks recorded under "Montrade receivable” in “Trade and other receivables” (Note
13}

Bearer Plants
Group
10 April 30 April
2024 2023

Hectares planted with growing crops:
- Pinsapples 16,397 16,562
- Papaya 136 185
Fruits harvested from the growing crops;
{im mnedtrie: tons)
- Pineapples T, 711 BEB, 900
- Papaya 1,420 1,497

Bearer plants are measured at cost kss accomulated amortization based en actual volume
of harveet over total estimated volume of harvest. Costs related to bearer plants are
capitslized up to the point of maturity of the: bearer plants, including costs during the ratoan
crop cycle. Cosis to grow include purchase cost of varous chemicale and fertilizers, land
preparation expenses and direct expenses during the cultivation of the primary ratocn and,
if nonded, re-ratoon crops.

The sccumulated costs are deferred and are amorized as raw product costs under
“Inventories” upen harvest, Amortization is based on the aciual volume of harvest over totsl
estifmated voleme harvest in a given period,

The cost of fields closed and weitten off in 2024 amounted to USSES.8 milion, which have
been fully deprociatad during the year (2023: US$136.5 million ).
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& Property, plant and eguipment - net (cont'd)
Leasehaold improvements
As at 30 Apal 2024 and 2023, the Group has no signilicant legal or constrective obligatlion o
dismantie any of its keasehold improvements as the lease contracts provide, amaag othor
things, that the improvements Introduced on the lessed assets shall become the propearty of
the lessor upon lerminalicn of the kase.
Freehold Land

The table bedow summankses the valuation of freehokd tand beld by the Group as at 30 April
2024 and 2023 in various locations:

30 April 30 April
2024 2023 Date of
Leeated in US$000 USS000  Latest Valuation
The Philippines 18,022 18898 2023 (Various)
United States of America 41,064 41,009 1 April 2023
Singapore 14,654 14,756 30 Aprl 2023
73,740 74,483

The Group angaged independent appraisers to determine the fair values of ils freehald land.
Revaluations are perfommed at regular intersals bo ersure that the Fair value of the freshold
land does nat differ matarially from B2 carmying amount. Management avaluated that the talr
values of Rs freshold land &l the respective valuation dates approximate their fair valees as
af the reparting dale. The assumplions used in determining the falr valee ae discdosed in
Mote 34. Management belleves thal there are no events or changes in circumstances
indicaling & significant change in fair value of the land from the last appraiaal mades.

The carrying amount of the Group's freehold fand as at 30 April 2024 would be US$34.4
millicn {2023 USS34.4 milkon) had the freshold land been camied at cost less impairment
IOSEES,

Construction-in-Progress (“CIP'")
CIP includes on-golng ilem expansion projeds for the Group's operations.

Major Bems in CIP az of 30 April 2024 include projects in the Americas partain bo paar caring
shcing and LAN materal handling mechanical overhaul for Modesio, WMS rofioul, SAP
Ariba, SAP supply netwark planning, ABAP Development for IT, Del Monte 4pk capability,
rebuilding of 61H seamers of Hanford, Puabla transformation. Fire Protection Syslermn Phase
2 for Mexico, construction of additional Line 4 in JMC Facking House, additional 307 Gook
Rioom Line, acquisition of 307 Line 6 Auto Caser, construction of Fruit Truck Ingress and
Egress in JMC PH and construction of 21 Duplex Houses, which are among the significant
projects implementad In fiscal year 2024, These projects are expecied o be completed by
fiscal year 2025,
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Property, plant and equipment - net [cont'd)
Construction-in-Progress (CIF) (cont'd)

Major items m CIP as of 30 Apnl 2023 Incude plastc sleeveless camoning for Modesta,
additional Joyba production capacily for Mexico, installaion of new fire masling equipment
and Apk capability of 150z, 8oz end Goz fomato producis for Hanford, warehousa
mmianagemen! system moll oul b manufaciuring plants and distritadion centers in the LS. new
tatra line in Cabuyao, installalion of addiional Fresh Del Monte 202 ling al he cannery in
Bugs, additional 307 Cook Room Line, acquisition of tatra filler in Bugo, 307 Line B Auto
Casar and MMC Fresh Fruit Packing House Line 4 are among the significant projects
implemented in 2023, These projects wene complebed in fscal year 2024,

Capilalized borrowing cosis for the year ended 30 Aprl 2024 amounting to USS0.03 millon
is refaled (o camy-aver projects Complele 307 Cook Room Line and 307 Line & Auto Caser,
Capilalized borrowing costs for the year ended 30 Aprd 2023 amownting 1o USS0.3 milllon
periang o an additional Complale 307 Cook Room Lime, and the camy-over of both of tha
Fresh Ded Monte 202 Line and 307 Line 6§ Auto Caser.

Plant closuras
Toppenish and Markesan Plant

The Group announced on 27 February 2024 its infention to dose its Toppenish, Washington
and Markesan, Wisconsin plants to discontinue semmer peck season at both sites. A small
group of employees will be refained to continue fo perform labelling and warehousing
functions throuwgh the fall of 2024. In connection with the plant closwes, the Group recognized
Epﬂlmmﬂm refated property, plant and egugment for the vear ended 30 April

Under thesa plant cesures, approximately 46 employess wers terminatad by the and of fiscal
year 2024. The Group recognized provisions lor employves severance benefits amounting to
LS54, 1 million, with approximately U532.0 milion outstanding as of 30 April 2024, The
employas sevarance benelits are presented under employes banafits {Mote 20).

Additionally, refated inventory write-downs amounting to S$1,6 million wee recognized for
the year ended 20 April 2024, Mo environmanial liabiliies were recognized related to plant
ChoBLres,

In connection with these anncuncements, the Group has recorded net expense of LUSS1.4
million in other {expenses) income — nel, which includes the gain on sale of Markesan fixed
assets o a third-parly, Seneca, amounting to USE1.8 milion for the vear ended 30 Aprl
2024,
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6. Investmenis in subsidiaries

30 April 30 April
2024 2023
USE" 000 uss'ono
Company
Unquoted equity shares, at cost, at the beginning and
end of the year 1,020,215 1,020,215
Amounts due from subsidianies (nontrade) 237,516 237 516
1,257,731 1,257,731
Accumulated share in losses at the beginning of the year (280,572) (27T, 723)
Dividande declared by subsidiarios {18,994} {BB,503)
Share in ned {loss) profit of subsidines (72,303} 61,702
Share in other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, net of tax 3,047 13,852
Less on denvative setiement of a subsidiary recognized
undar equity reserve (29,8568) =
Leae on repurchase of shares by & subsidiary recognized
under equily reserve (31, 218) -
(439, 055) (200,572)
Interests in subsidiaries a2 the end of the year 818,875 LT 1549

The amounts due from subeldiares are unsecured and interesi-froe. Settlemant of the
balances are neither plenned nor likely to ccour in the foresesatle future as they ane, in
substance, & pan of the Company’s net investments in the subsidiaries,

Issuance of Senior Parpatual Captal Sec

Year Investments Limibed (" ubliant")

On 18 March 2024, Jubilant issued USS70.0 milllon Senior Perpetual Capltal Securilies
{"Securities”), which are guarantesd by DMPI and Phiippine Packaging Management
Service Comporation. The nel proceeds were used by the Group to esttie ransactions wih
SEA Diner Holdings (S) Ple. Lid, ("SEA Diner) in the order snumerated i the “Derivative
Settiemant, Share Redemption and Share Sale Agreement” or “DSSRISA" mentioned in the
succeeding paragraphs.

Tha Securitles confer a right to recelve distributions, the initial rate of which i 8.000% per
anmum, subjec o incresee upon the happening of certain events and an 18 March 2027 and
evary three years thereafler. Distributions are payable semi-annualy in equal nstalimants in
aimears on 16 March and 18 Seplember of each year, commencing on 18 September 2024,
Jubilanl ar CMP1 may opt to defer payment of amy or all distributions under certain conditians.
Distributicns will accrue on each amear of distribution for 5o long a3 the same remains
autstanding.

These is no fxed redemption date for the Sscurities but Jubiant may, subject to applicable
law, redeem hem upon the happening of cartain events as stated in the terms and conditions
of the securities, and on 18 March 2027 and every distribution payment date thereafier.

There are fwo covenants under the Terms and Conditions of the Securitias: (a) Related Party
Tranzaction Covenant and an (b} Undertaking in respect of other abligations.

- -
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&. Investments in subsidiaries (cont'd)

The Related Party Transaction Govenant provides that DMPI shall procwers that the
aggregate amaunl of all outstanding balances due fram related parties (such amount to be
detarmined with reference Io the sami-annual or annusl conesdidated financisl stalaments of
DMP1 and it Subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the Philippine Financial Reporting
Standard for such Test Period) as of the last day of sach Tes! Pericd does not excesd
LS$175.2 million. “Test Period” means sach pericd of aix meonths ending on the last day of
aach of tha second financial quarter and the fourth financial guaster of the fiscal year of DMPI.
The amount of USE75.0 million {or such amount that remains) for the purchase of inventory
by OMP fram OMF| and such amednle as are incurred In connashion with the fransactions
redated o he DSSSRSA are o be excluded in determining the sogregate amount of all
cutstanding balances due from related parties specilfed above for the relevant Test Periag,

DMPI has further covenantad that so long as any of the Securities remain cutstanding, it will
nat, and will procune that none of ils Subsidiacies will, enter into any agreermant, undertaking,
instrument or amangamant persuant to which DMP or any of #s Subsidianies incurs of is
permilied o incur indebledness, the lerms of which include & cross-default, cross-
accaleration or other semilar provision whereby any defasll, potential default or event of
default (howsosver defined in such other indebtedness) is triggerad by or s olhensise based
an e defaull, potential detault or evend of default (howsoever defined in such Indebtedness)
of any person other than DMPI and its Subsidiaries [including, for the avoidance of doubt,
the Compary),

In cage of breach of any of thesa covenants, Jubilant will make an offer io purchase all
outstanding securities at & price egual to 101% of thelr principal amount plus any scerusd
but unpaid distributions and any amears of dstribulion.

The Company, DMP, Central American Rescurces, Inc{"CARI") and SEA Diner entersd inlo
4 DSSRESA dated 19 February 2024 to agres to the terms of & series of transactions to be
urddertaken between the parties (collectively, the “Dervative Selllement, Share Redemplion
and Share Sale’], as described and subjed o the order of priority a5 follows:

i Firstly, peyrnent by CARI of a settlenent armount to terminate certain derhative rights
[panticularly in refation o a call oplion agreement and right 1o eam accration shares)
hat SEA Diner has In relation to tha share capilal of DMPI (the "Derlvative
Settlament’), The total agreed amount for the Darivative Settiement was US529 6
rrillion;

(it} Sacondly, repurchase by DMPI of 68,244 S84 [MAP1 shares from SEA Dine for
LESS38. 0 ol and

{ii) Lasily, the repurchase by DMPI of additional 2,815,640 of DMP| shares owned by
SEA Diner from the residual procesds of the Parpetual Issuance amounting Lo
USE1.5 million which was axeculed on 5 June 2024,

LT
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Investiments in subsidiaries (cont'd)

Following complation of the Dedvative Setflement and the pantial Mutusl Redemption
{including the additional redempfion described in the paragraph abova), the Company
(through CARL, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary) would own 83.27% of DMPY's total
Issued and outstanding shares. The number of sharas that the Company (lhrough CARI)
owres in DMPI remains unchanged al 2,433,668,385 shares. SEA Diner's residual shares in
DMP were converled into redeemabile, convertible prefermed shares {“New RCPS") the tarms
of which shall be governad by a new agreemant that replaces the Sharehoiders’ Agreement.

The key terms of the New RCPS include, among others:
i1 8.0% dividend yield per year pasd guarterdy, subject to DMPT's opdion to elect to defar:

{2 Inithe event of deferral, the applicable dividend yield per year shadl slep up to 12.0%
and be cumulative (and compound on & quarterty basis) untd such time that all the
deferred dividends are paid In fulk

(1 Mo sdvances (or similar transactions) or ordinary equity diidends are allowsd by
LMP if there are any deferred preferred dividends thad have not been pald in cash
({2} and {3) together the “‘Prefamed Dividend Defarral Gondition®™):

(4] UMPY's grose debt shall not excesd UISSS50.0 milion (the "Debt Cap”) without the
wiitten approval of the New RCPS holder (applicabiity of this Debl Cap shall be only
afier 31 January 2025}

i5) The holder of the New RCPS will have the right to reguest a redemption which shal
be subject io OMPI's approval (2) any lime after 18 months from the Ssuance of the
Mirw RCPS, and (b) from 31 January 2025 onwards, if gross indebledness 1o the Las!
twalve months EBIT of DMPI exceeds 6.0x, such redemption of the New RCPS will
bex af the origingl Issue price of the New RCPS plus any deferred but unpaid and
accrued prefesred dividends,

In the evenl the holder of the Mew RCPS has requested redemption but such
redemplion has not bean satisfiad in Tull, the applcable dividend vield shall in reapect
of the redemption, 8l each 12-month annivessary of the redemption due date,
increase by 1.0% relative 1o the original issus price of the New RCPS (La. the 8.0%
yiedd above shall incréase 1o 9.0% and the 12.0% vield above shall increase 1o 13%
if redemption is not satisfied in full within 12 months from the requestl, up to an
increasa of the applicable dividend yisid by 4,0% of the original isue price of the
New RCPS:

In the event of & breach of the tems of the New RCPS, Incluging (a) the incurrence
of detit above the Debt Cap wilhout consent of the New RCPS holder, andfor (b) the
Prafamred Dividend Deferral Condition, or @ change in control, the halder of the New
RCPS may, =t ils sole eleclion, require DMP| 1o redsem the New RCPS at such
amaunt that would result in a 12% internal rate of returmn on the original lsaue price
of the Mew RCPS for the holder of the New RCPS:;

{61 The hoider of the New RCPS nas the option to elect 1o convert its New RCPS into
ordinary shares of DMP at a ratic of one New RGPS into one ordirary share of DMPI:

T
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Investments in subsidiares (cont'd)

() A list of resenved matiers thad require the approval of the new RCPS holder, induding
any amendmeant to DMPI's charter or alicles, sy smendmant to rights or lems of
any shares of DMPI or its subsidianes, dissolution, liquidation or winding up of DMPI,
the issuance of any shares of DMP| or He subsidiaries in certain cicumstances, any
incurrence of indebiedness where such incurrence reaulis in breach of financal
covnants by DMP o afy of its subsidianas, any matenisl changes in the businass
or DMPI, and cerain related party transaclions; and

1] Cusiomary andi-dilution projections and information rights.

Impact to the Group

In redation b the abowva fransaclions, as at 30 April 2024, the Group recognized the net
considaration of US$ET.6 million (USST0.0 milion gross procesds rom ssuance of senior
perpetusl capital securilies less fotal irensaclion costs of LISE2.4 million, of which LLS50.9
million is still unpaid ae of 30 April 2024 and ciassiflied wnder rade and oiher pavaties n
Mote 22§, under non-controlling inferests as the owners of the senior perpatual capital
sacuriies are extornal partiss.

The Group alsoe recognized I0sses in equity reserve under refained eamings of US361.1
million ariging from the complation of DESRESA;

o  USE29.0 million on the amawen paid for the dervative settiemant, and
LUS531.2 milion loss erising Trom the repurchase of 71,080,624 shares owned by SEA
Diner (Comsidaration of 55379 milion less the book value of the shares of USS6.6
millian).

Impact on the Company

In relation i3 the abowe transactions, as at 20 April 2024, the Comgany recognized Iis share
on the loss of US3E1.0 millon in equity resene under relained samings.

Significant judgments

Equity Classification

Senmr Perpefval Capitad Securfiss

The Group has no confractisl obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset 1o the
holdens of secunties. The securities have no fixed redemplion date, and the redampdion is at
the option of the Group. The distribulions to holders of secunties, while cumulative, 8 also a8l
the discration of the Group.

New RCPS

The Group has no confraciual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset 1o the
holders of New RCPS as the default event in case of braach among tha other tesme in the

Mew RCPS Agresment, are assessed 1o be within the condrol of the Group and the
redemplion of the RCPS is subject to the mutual consant of bolh partias.
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6. Investments in subsidiaries (conl'd)
Sowurce of esfimation uncertalniy
Ciblgation o Purchase Excess Shares or Sell Shorlal Shares

The Sharsholders’ Agresment provides for a condilional obligation for CARI to purchase
excess shares or sall shorifall shares fo SEA Diner al par value subject to certain conditions
{amount of inifial public offering (“IPO") pre-money market capitalization excesding the US52
billion thrashold amount or an IPO being consummated more than 275 days from 3
conversion date} set oul in the Sharehclders’ Agreement. Management assessed thal the
Group's dervative assel or Eablity 1o purchase excess shares or sall shorifall shares o SEA
Diner has @ carrying value of nil as at 30 Apell 2023 since the |PO did nol occur during such
paricds. As a result, the probability of the options relating to the excess shares and shortfal
shares baing triggered is il of minimal. The obligetion is no longer existing as of 30 April
2024,

Farr Vaiue of Denvative Liabilly on the Cal Oplion

The fair value of the derivative liabiity retated 1o the call option was measured using Black-
Scholes model. The inputs to this model ware taken from & combinalion of obaendable
markels and unobserable market data. Changes in inputs about thess faciors could affect
the reporied far valus of the dedvalive liabiliies and impact profit or loss, Manasgement
asgessed that the fair valee of the dervative liability is nil as at 30 April 2023 as lhe estirnaied
pre-money market capitalization is higher than the threshold in the Call Option Agraament.
in thee current fiscal year, the call options wens redeemed in full for USS29.9 mallon.

The Sharehoiders’ Agresment entered into in January 2020 between the Company, CARI,
DMPI and SEA Diner which resulted in the kafter acquiring 13% ownaship interest in DMPI
for & iotal consideration of LISS130.0 million, This agreement was supersedad by the new
RCPS Agreement as discussed in the foregoing.



Del Monie Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial stelements

For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

6. Investments in subsidiaries [cont'd)

Dwtails of lhe Company's subsidiaries ara as follows:

Mamo of subsidiary

Hedd by the Company
Dad Monie Pacific
Fesgiirses Limied

{"DMPRL™) M

OMPL Incka Pia Lid
("oMPLR &

DMPL fansgement
Sarvices P Lid &

GTL Limebed Hl

S5&W Fina Foods
Irlam@Ennal Limitad
FEEW) M

DWPL Foods Limied
{"OMPLFL") 1A

Hiald by DMPRL
Cantral Armancan
Rasources, Ing, (CARIM

Dlerseary Limitesd Dy} 1

Held by CARI
(0] %= R

Sauth Bukkinon Frash
Trading Inc. CSBFT)M

Flaca of in-
corparation
Principal actvities and business
Invvagtmeant haolding British Virgin kslands
Evasimenl halkding Singagons
Provicng Singagpom
admrlsiratneg
suppar and liaisan
SEMVICRE
1 the Group
Inactive Federal Tamiery of
Labuian, Malaysia
Ealiﬂg processan British Virgin lslands
food prodwcts under
tha "S8W
tracermank; Dwnar
of tha “SEN"

Eraciamark i Asis
(axcheding Australa
and kaw Zealend),
tha Middie East,
Weslam Eurcpe,
Easinm Europs and
africa

Inwestmant holding British Virgin lslands

Inwasiment holding Fanama

Mainly mmvestmaem
hakding

Bermuda

CErowing, processing
and distrilbrution of
food products
irealrly unider lhe
brand rame “Dal
Saore”

Phidipaines

Inactve Philippines

Effective squity
hiekd by the Group
30 Aprl 30 April
x4 i
b e
0, T0HL00
100,00 10000
100,04 10400
106,00 100,00
100.00 10000
B3.57 B3.57
100.00 100.00
100,00 100.00
a0 27 a7.00
100,00 100,00
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B

Investments in subsidiaries (cont'd)

Mama of subsidiany

Hald by DRP|
Prifipging Packing
Kansgement Sanvices

Corporation (PPMSCT) 1Y

Destribudion | o
BB kil

Held by Dewey
Dieravery Scin. Bhad_ 14

Held by DMPLI
DMPL India Limited ™

Hisld by SAW
2EAW Japan Limded M

Hald by DMPLFL
Dal Monba Foods Holdings
Limiled {“CIMFHL") 1T

Held by DMEHL
Dl Mot Foads Heldings
Il. Ine. ("DMFHI") "

Haild by DMFHII
Died Maorte Feads Holdings
inc. [TOMFEHF) 1919

Hedd by DMFHI
D Morée Foods. Ino.
(" DMFT) =

Held by D8MFI

Siger Craek Foods, Inc.
{formenly Vegetable
Acquisiton Corp.) el

Dl Mot Anding & A (Dal
konie Anding™) =

Principal sctivities

Inlelacius properly
holding and
licansing,
management,
logistics and support
BEIEE

Invvesumean holding

Inactve

inactive
Invesiment hakling

Suppor and
MEHabing services

Irvegtmaent holding

Investment holding

Invastment halding

Manulaciuing,
processing and
distritbuting food,

beverages and olther
refatoet producs

Raal estate hodding

blarufacturng.
processing and
distributing oo,
Deverages and ofhar
melated producls

T

Placa of in-
Corporatian
and business

Phlippines

British Virgin Edards

Philippmes

fAauritius

Japan

Biritish Yirgn ksfands

Slals of Defaware,
Ls.a

Siate of Delawars,
LZA

Sinte of Delwvsare,
U3A

Stale of Delaware,
LS4

Wisnazuely

Efective equity
hald by the Group
30 aprl 30 Aprl

2024 2023
% %
BS.27 7.0

Ba.XT -
aam 34.80
100040 10000
B5.52 B5.453
10000 100, O
6357 83.57
BAET 357
8357 53,57
Ba5T 357
g3.57 H157
10000 1000
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i, Investments in subsidiares (cont'd)

Eftaciive equity
Piace of in- hald by the Growp
corparation 30 Apri 30 April
Mama of subisidiany Principal activities &l Business i 03
L 4 kS
Hiefel by DBAFT (o' d)
Csil Monls Calgmbiona 5.4 ™ Manufaciuring, Colombia 7634 TH.AS
- pReGHasEng and
disirbasing lood,
boverages and olhar
radiliad prachicts
Indusiriss Cangakas de Manulaciring, Menca qi 87 53,57
Monlemoreios, SA, de O, ricassbng and
[ 1= =1 T e b b by b,
Darveragae and alhat
related producis
Dl Mondes Peru 5405 MM Biskribulian of food, Py #3.57 BAET
g cfe
rulatad ponduci
Ol Monta Ecusdar DME CA. Disriuton of food Ecuador 53 57 o3 57
s by arages and clher
realeg prodocs
Hi-Confinanial Carp, 1R Diistribastor ol nign -l State of Calfomia, 4357 AT
Manle prodects LE& &
Colags i Foods 1A Disiributon of Crlege Etate of Cabfomia, 357 B3.57
inn and produc usa
Cantadivm Foods, lnc, ME Cistribuine of Sinle of Demwara, w357 a4 87
Caridics brand UE A
products
S&W Fine Foods, ing, MM Diptriautor of SAW Slata of Dalawaie, 857 53.67
Fine Fopds. inc, WEA
Diel Momie Weniunes, LLC (T Holding compary Szana of Delawans, 4357 REL5T
Wanliinas) ME U.5A.
Jorgba, Ine, ™ Distribuber ol Jowbs Slate of Callomia, wis L&Y
brand producs LLSA
Eilenan Basia, Ing, Chslribiuteer of Wilghan State of Calilenia, BT B3.57
Basios bramd LLEA
PrOOLHEE
Green Thumb Foods, (ne, ® Distritwntar of GEresn Siaie of Caldormia 93,57 B1.67
Trvamiby F oo brasd TE- Y
products
Hadd by DM Venhores
Dol Monta Chtiked Frui Snocks,  Deveoprsnt, Siabe of Dalawaa, 4T T2 ar.T2
LLC i prodslion, L84
matkeling, sale and
desiribution ol
proceiasd
reiri gerated i
producis
Hiaddl ey Dl Mime fundima
Dl Monle Angenting 5.8 Inasiue Amgenning - —

- T8 -
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Inwestments in subsidiares (cont'd)

[=a]

(b

1]

(2]

(31
[4]
1=

5]

71

DMTDI Iz congoligated as the Group has de acko control over the entity. Even with
ke=s than the majority voling rights, the Group concluded thal DMTDI is a subsidiary
and thal it has power 1o direcl the relevant activities of DMTDI due fo DMPI having
rajority seats in the Board through a shareholders agreement with the other
shareholders of DMTDE, The key managemant onnal (e, President and Chiaf
Executive Officer, Chief Oparating Oficer, Chial Financial Officer and Treasurer and
Corporate Secratary) of DMPI also serve in the same positions in OMTOLL In its
special mesting held on 22 Apell 2049, DMTDI's Board approved the dissalulion and
liquidation of DMTOl by shorening I8 corporate term, As &l 30 April 2024 the
application for the dimeclution and Bquidstion | yet to be submdted with the Philippine
SEC dus to certain regulatony and documentary reguirements.

The Group inconporgted is subsidiary, Del Monte Venberes, LLC on 27 Junes 2017
which acquired interesis In fowr joinl venlure entities which wers all ncorporated in
the state of Delaware, USA. These joint venlunes will pursue sales of expandad
refrigeratad offerings acroas all distribution and sales channals, and will establish a
new ratall food and beverage concepl. These joint ventures will indially foous on the
LS. market, with the potentlal for expansion into other lermitones, Thess joinl venture
entitiss are in their pre-operating stages and kave no maledl assets of abilities as
of 30 April 2024 and 2023,

Audited by SyCip Gorres Velays & Co. ["SGV), member firm of Emst & Young
Global,

Qn 20 May 2020, CAR| completed the sale of 12% stake in OMP1 to SEA Diner.
Conditiong of the sale wera already mst as of 20 April 2020, aa confirmed by both

padties,

On 16 December 2020, CAR sold additional 27 873,200 comman shares of DM
o SEA Ciner for USE10.0 millicn, which increased the ownership of SEA Diner in
DIMPY 1o 13%.,

Un 4 April 2024, DMP| redeemed 71,060,624 shares from SEA Diner for US537.9
rmillian, and held it as treasury sharea, This increased CARI's inerest in DMP o
B9.2T% {shares owned by CARI of 2. 433 6BB, 395 over the new outstanding shares
of DMP1 amounting fo 2,726 250, 280 shares),

Audited by Emnst and Young LLP ("EY") Singapaore.

Audited by Emst & Young Global member fims Inthe respective countrins,

Mot required 1o be audited i the country of incorporation. Audited by SGY for the
purpose of greup reporting,

Mot required to be audited in the country of incorporation. Audited by EY Singapore
for the purpose of group reporting.

Mot required to be audited in the country of incorporation.
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Investments in subsidiaries (cont'd)

[#] On 15 May 2020, OMFHII issued 64.5498 shares of capital stock to DMFHL. On thi
same date, DMFHL issued 0.64546 shares of capital stock 1o DMPLFL and DMPLFL
issued 64546 shares of capital stock to the Company as full payment of the
LS3E25.4 million loan 1o finance purchases of the Second Lien Term Loana. Lipon
lesuance of tha capiial stock to the Company, OMFHL was uncondifionally relessed
af all liabilithes for princisal and interest through 30 April 2020 relating 1o the purchass
of the Second Lien Term Loans, On 16 May 2020, DMFHL recorded USE230.5
milicn of addiional paid-in capital related fo this transaction. In addition, fhe
Company and DMPLFL entered into & supplemsndal agreement dated 11 August
2020 For the issuance of additional 3.23 erdinary shares by DMPLFL 1o cover [he
additional accruad interest through 15 May 2030 which amounkad to USS1.1 million,
On 15 May 2020, DMFHL lesued 0423085 of ordinary shares fo DMPLFL and
ODMPLFL |ssued 423.95 shares of prefermed siock to the Company In exchange for
US$150.0 milion of addiional paid-in capital. As a resull, DMFHL reconded
USE150.0 million of additional pald-in capital related to this transsction,

[4] Julilant Year Investments Limited (JYIL), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of DKMPI,
was incorporaled as a company with limiled &by under the laws of the Brilish
Wirgin Islands on 2 Januany 2024, He registered offica is localed at Vistra Comporate
Senvices Centre, Wickhams Cay Il, Road Town, Torlola, %G1110, Brilish Virgin
Islands. JYIL, a special purpose vehicle incorporated for the purpose of issuing the
perpelual securities, will remain a wholly-owned subsidiary of DMPI a5 long as the
perpelual seceilins ane outstanding and inlends (o wse the nel proceads & eceives
from offering of the penpetual securties to fund the share acqgusiton and for the
Group's aenaral cofporale purposas, incudeng but nol limited o the refinancing of
ceriain exisling indebtedness of DMPI.

Information relating io the Group's subsidiaries with shareholder(s) with maleral non-
contreling interests are disclosad in Mobe 38,

Significant fudgmenis
Defermination of Conn! over Subsiaianes

The Company regulary resssesses whether A confrole an investes when facle and
dreumstances indicate that there ane changes to ane of more af the thees alements of conirol
listad in Note 4. The Company delermined that it exercissd control on all its subsidiaries as
it has all elements of contral,

Source of estimation uncerfainfy
Recoversbilly of invesiments in Subsidfanes

When the subsidiary has suffered recumng operating lossas, a tesl is made io assass
whether the interests in subsidiary has suffered any impaiment by determining the
recoverable amount. This determination requires sagnificant judgment and eslimation. An
estimate s made of the: fulure prafitabilily, cash fow, firancial health and seactarm business
alook of the subsidiary, incheding factors such as market demand and perdomance. The
recoverable amaount will differ from these estimates as a result of differences boetween
assumplions used and aciual operations.
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[ Investments in jolnt ventures
EHoctive squily
Place of hald by the Greup
Incorporation 30 April 20 Agrnil
Mame of joind veniturg Principal activithes and business 024 03
o e
Dl Wonts Foods Privats Producion and saie of rcia 4776 47T7E
Livied (formery known os fresh and processod
FinkdFresh Foods Prvaio frifis and wegetabie fosd
Limilad] {"DRIFPL) prodasin
Mice Fruit Hong Kong Liméesd Productor and sala of Hory Kong 3500 500
[THFHEL") frezen fruita and
vegeiatils food products
Dl Marca —Winamil Deairy Distribidion of daisy and Prabpoanes 43 80 4385
Frabppinea, Ingc (0% DF) mik rosucts

The summansed financis! information of & material joint venture, DMFPL, ol adjusted for
the percantage ownership held by the Group, is as follows:

Yaar endod Yoar enced
30 April 2024 30 April 2023

UESE000n LESE000

Raevenun 68,034 6,084
{Loss) income from gonlinuing aporasorns * 1248) 203
Oiher comprehensive inoome - -
Total comprehensive {loss) income (248) 203
¥ includes:

- Oepreciston (1200 (T8
- intaresi expense {1,620} {1,568)
Moncumreant asssks 14 564 10,704
Coarent assals 25 624 1,851
Mencurrent lzbilihes {17,708} (0,183
Current abilties {16463} (91,881
Mel asnats 4020 478

Proporton of the Group's cwnership
mcluding Ao contraling inieres 50% S
2040 i | ]

Gocudaill 20,000 20,000
Imparment kss 14, 056E) (4,036}
Translation adjustmen 500) 13495
Canryng amoun ol irvestmand 17494 17,536
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T Investments in joint vontures [cont'd)
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2034 30 April 2023
LSE00) LSS 000
Carrying amaunt of interest In DMFPL at
beginning of the year 17558 14,338
Capital injection dunng the yaar - 300
Group's shara {loes) income from contiruing
operations, representing tolal comprebmnsive
(lass] income {124) 0
Carrying amount of interast at and of the year 17414 17,538

In fiscal year 2022, the Group recognized an impsdrment loss amounting to USE2.0 million
e b0 thie continuous niel loss postion of DMFPL. The impairment loss was included in olher
(axpensas) incoma — néd in tha incoma statemant. Mo impairmant was requirad in fiscal years

2024 and H)23.

The interast in the net assets of an immaterial joint venture, NFHEL, = as follows:

Yaar anded Year ended
30 Aprll 2024 30 April 2023
USE000 LIS5000
Carrying amount of interast in NFHEL at
peginning of the year rEE 2836
Additional afvances dunnd) the yasr - 186
Group's share in loss from conliruing operations,
represaning oiel compraharssa loss (3688} {38}
Carrying amount of interest at end of the year 2.255 2623

DVDPI ks @ joint veniure entered Inbo by Del Mome Philippines, Inc. and Visinam Dairy
Products Joint Stock Company, company incorporsted in Vietnam. to expand further inlo the
dairy sector in the Philippines. This joint ventune was incorparaled and registerad with SEC

on 12 July 2021,

The intereal in the nel assets of an immateral joint venture, DVDP, is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
30 Aprl 2034 F0 Apeil 20T3
LSS LIS S 000
Carrying amaund of imersst in DVDP af
baginning of the year = <
Capital inpection 1,028 o
Reclassdfication from recelvables (1o payables) (458] 200
Group's shara in loas fram conbinurg operalions,
represenling bolal comprahensive loss (5T {1,180

Carrying amaunt of inlersst
at end of the year
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[

investments in jolnt ventures (cont'd)
The summansed inlssest in joint ventures of the Group and the Company, is as follows,

Growup Company
‘Year ended Yoar ended Wear ended Year ended
30 Apr 2024 30 Aprl 2023 30 April 2034 30 Aprl 2033

LISS 00 USEDH LSS000 LSED0

Group's interast in joint

wntres
OMEEL 7 A 17,534 = =
MFHEL 2 255 2 BX3 2.285 268
ovoR - - = -
Carrying amaount of

invastments in joint ventures 149,584 20,181 2,285 2B
Significani judgrments

Derermiation of Joid Confrod amd the Type of Jodt Arrangement

Joinl control (& presumed to exst when the Inwestors have contractually sgreed sharing of
candred ol an arrangement, which sxisls only when decisions aboul the relevand sctivilies
requirg tha unanimows consenl of ks parties sharing control. Management has assessad
that it has joint conbtrod in &l joint arangements,

The Group determines the claseilication of a joint venture depending wpon the parties’ rights
and obiigations ansing from the arrangement in the nommal course of business, When making
an assessmand, e Group considers tha following:

(al the structure of the joint arrangameant.
(b} whan the joint armangament e structured through a separats wehicle:
i, the legal form of the separate vehicie;
il the termsg of the contraciual arrangEment; and
i, when mlevant, othar facts and circumetances.
The Group determined thal Bs interests in DMFPL, NFHEL and DVDP1 ara joint ventures as
tha armangemenits are strudured in 8 separate wehicle and that it has rights 1o the net sssets

af the amangemsants. The terms of the conlrachuel arangements do not specily hal the
pariles have rghts 10 the assels and obligations for the liabilities melating to the arrangements.
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Iinvastmants in joint ventures (cont'd)

Source of estimation uncertainy
Recoverabilly of Invesiments in joint veniues

When the joint venture has suffered recuming operating kosses, a test is made 10 assess
whathar the irmestment in joénd venlure has suffered any impairment by determining the
recoverable amount. This determination requires significant judgment and esfimation. An
estimale is made of the fulure profitability, cash fow, inancial health and near-term business
cutloak of the joant venture, including factora such as marke! demand and performance. The
recoverable amount will differ from lhese estimates as a result of dfferences batwesn
#Esumplions used and aciual oparalions.

Since He acquisition, the Indian sub-continend irademark and the investment in DMFPL ware
allocated to the Indlan sub-continent cash-generating unit [“Indien sub-continent CEUT). The
recoverabls amount of Indian sub-continent CEU was estimated usng the discountsd cash
flows besed on five-year cash flow projeclions.

Hey assumptions used in discounted cash Mow profection calculations

Key assumplions used in the calculation of recoverable amounts are discount rales, revenue
growih rales, EBITDA mangin and termingl growih rate. The values assigned o ihe key
assumplions represenied management's assessment of future trends in the ndustry and
were based on bolh axlemal and intermnal owrces.

30 April 30 April
2024 2023
e W
Pretex diecount rata 9.3 18,4
Revenue growth rate 5.0=202 0 -202
EBITDW mangin 53-958 58-134
Long-tarm EBITOA margin 8.5 101
Tarminal growth rate 6.0 &0

The discount rateé is @ pre-lax measure estimatad based on the historical indusiry average
weighted-average cost of capital. This is based on a rate of debt leveraging rate of 10.10%
in 2024 (2023 20.60%), al @ markel inlerest rate of 9.37% in 2024 (2023 10.1%),

Revenue growih rate is expressed as compound annual growth rates in the initial five years
of the plan. In the first year of the business plan, revenue growth rate was projected at 20%
[2023: 18%) based on the: near-lerm business plan and markat demand, The annual revense
growih included In the cash fiow projections lor four years wes projected &t the growth rmte
basad on the historical growth in volurme and prices and industry growth.

A long-tarm growth rate info perpetuity has been determined based on management's
estimate of the long-larm compound annual growth rate in the Indian economy which
managament believed was consistent with the assumplion thal a market participant wousd
mike,

EBITDA margin has been a factor of the rvenue forecast besed on business plan and
markst demand coupled with the cost Saving initiatives.
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7 Investments in joint ventures (cont'd)
Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

In fiscal year 2024 and 2023, the estimaled recovarable amount exceeded the carmying
amount of interest in the joint venture and rademark, accordingly, no impalrmant loss was
recognized. In fSscal year 2022, the camying amount of interest In a joisl wenture and
trasdemark oxceed the estmated recoverable amount, accordingly. an impaiment loss of
LISE2.0 milion was recognizad.

Management has identified that & reascnably possible change in the following two key
assumptions could result in the camying amount b excesd the mooverable amount. The
implication of the key assumplions. for the recoverable armaounl is discussed balow:

Long-tenm growih rales — & reduction of 0U5% In 2024 (2023: 0.5%) in the long-temy growlh
rate woald Sl nol resull 1o impaimment in 2024 {2023; impasmant of USS1.0 millon),

Discount rates — An incraase of 1.0% in 2024 {2023 1.0%} In thie lscount rate would result
in an impairment of approximately US$E0.8 million in 2024 (2023 impalmment of US53.3

o),
. Intangible assets and goodwill
Indefinite
life Amortizabla  Custonmer
Goodwill  (rademarks trademarks relationship Total
Mote  LIS5000 LUSEH0 LI=$'000 USEDI0 Liss'non
Cast
A1 My H0E2 203 4352 48,043 24,180 107000 T424655
Additicns - B4, 520 - 8441 72,781
At 30 Apil 2023
and 1 May 20F3 203,432 472,563 24,180 115441 B15.478
30 April 2024 03,432 AT 363 24,180 115441  B15418

Accumilated amortization

A May 2023 . - 0,19 43 T80 54 604
Amarization 25 - — 1,300 5,867 8,967
Al 30 Apail 2023

and 1 May 2073 = - 12,118 49 486 61,575
Amorizabian =5 - = 1,262 6,772 T.034
AL 30 Agpril 2024 = 2L 13,381 85528  GBE.E09

Carrying amounts

AL 30 Apnl 2005 203,432 AT2 363 12,081 G585 75384
A1L30 Apnl 2024 203,433 472 365 10,798 BOL213 746,507
1.

AET A TR
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Intangible assets and goodwill (cont'd)
Goodwill

From the acquisition date will scal year 2023, goodwill is attributable to DMFI as a single
CGLU. In fiscal yeas 2024, the management of DMF| revisited the operating segment
identification in terms of how DMFI manages the US business and has identified thres
reporiable operating segments and hence the CGUs were aligned with new cperating
segments in accordance with 1AS 38, Impairmrent of Aszels. Goodwill atiributable betwesen
three CGELE a8 al 30 Apd 2024 are as follows:

Flavor and
Healthy meal Beyond
snacking anhancers retall Tatal
Us5'000 USS'000 LSS 000 UsS'000
Goodwill 43,810 117,145 42,477 203.432

DMFI and its subsidiaries oparates in three reportable segmeants which reflact the intemal
arganizational and management structure according to the natwe o the products and
safvices provided, nameady:

* Heafthy snacking: Products that offer health-conaclous choices such as canned fruit,
plastic fruit cup, Joyba beverage, chilled frslt cup, These products are sold in the retail
Environmenl.

*  Flavor and meal enhancer ("FLAME™): Products that are added to other ingradisnis o
prepare & mesl such as canned vegetables, broth, stock, and canned tomatoes. These
products are sold in the retail environment.

* Beyond retell: Producls are same as in Healthy snacking and FLAME segments,
however, they are packaged and sold to non-retall markes, &.9., instilutions such as
schools, hospitals, government bodies, and food service estabéshments. The Graup alsa
provides co-manufacturing sendces under this ssgment.

Indefinite life irademarks

Management has assessed the folowing trademarks as having indefinite usaful fives as the
Group has exclusive access o the use of these trademarks. These irademarks are expaciad
to be used indefinitsly by the Group as they relate to continuing businesses that have a
praven frack record with slable cash flows.

America trademarks

As al 30 April 2024, American trademarka amount to USS458.3 millian (2023: LISS458.3
milfion}, The indaefinite Iife tredemarks of USS3I34.0 million ansing from the acquisition of
Consurner Food Business relate to thase of DMF for the use of the “Dal Monte™ bregemanks
in the: United States and South America market, and the “College Inn” traderrark in the United
States, Ausiralia, Canada and Mexico.
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B.  Intangible assets and goodwill (cont'd)
Indefinite life trademarks (cont'd)
Americas Irademarks' [contd]

The “Kitchen Basics® trademark in the United States and Canada of USEE4.3 million was
sssessed fo have an indaefinite wseful lFe.

0 3 August 2022, the Group has acquired cerain assets associated with the Kilchen Basics
brand of ready-to-use stock and broth from McCoomick & Company for B conslderation of
USE100.4 milion (incluging transaciion costs tolaling US31.4 million). Kichen Basics
prodiucts ame distibuted natonally in the Uniled States and include a range of conventional
and organic stock and broth offenngs.

The acquisition is consistent wilh OMFI's overall growth strategy, as i focuses on innovation,
rencvation and customization of s iconic brand portfolio. Kitchen Basics will join Dal Monla's
brand portfolio as DMF] expands its retall presence in the categony. The asqets aouebned
comprise infangible assets amounting o USETZ.8 million and inventories of USS27.6 million,
The purchase prce (inchuding fransaction costs) is allocated based on the far value of the
assets acquired as delermined by the thind-party valuer,

The acquisition was reabed a8 an assel acquisition since the acgusition did not coma with
any physical workforce, research and development, and managament.

In figeal year 2024 and 2023, nd impairment [0ss is racognized ralated to tredemank arizing
from the acquisition of Kitchen Basics based on the fair value determined by the (hird-party
vialuer.

Philippines trademarks

A gubsidiary, PPMSC, owns tha "Dal Monte® and “Today's" irademarks for uee in connection
with processed foods in the Philippines (the “"Phiippines Trademarks®) with carrying valus
amounting 1o US$1.8 millicn as at 30 April 2024 and 2023,

ian s

in Movember 1006, a subsidiary, DMPRL, entered ino an agreement with an affiliated
company to acquire the exclusive ighl 1o use the "Del Monbe” trademarks in the Indian sub-
continen lemiores and Myanmar in conmection with the production, manufaciure, sale and
digtribution of food products and the right to grant subdicenses to others [“Indan sub-
continent trademark™), In 2007, the Company acquired shares in DMFPL and caused the
licensing of trademarks to DMFPL 1o markel its products under the “Del Monte® brand in
India, Thesa irademarks hawve a carmying value of US$4.1 million 85 a1 30 April 2024 and
2023.

SEW tradem

In Movember 2007, a subsidiary, S&W, enlered inlo an agreement with Del Monte
Cerporation o acquire the "S&W" frademarks in cartain countries in Asia Jexcheding Ausiraia
and Mew Zealand and including the Middle East), Western Europa and Eastern Europe for a
Icdal consideration of US$10.0 milllon. The trademsan has a cannying value of LIS38.2 million
as st 30 Aprl 2024 and 2023,
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intanglble assets and goodwill [cont'd)
indefinite life trademarks {contd)

Impairment test

ant has performed mpaiment testing for al Indefinits e frademarks and
concluded that no impairment exista at the reporting dats,

I fiscal years 2024 and 2023, the recoverable amounts of the Americas, Philippines, and
S&W Asia trademarks were based on fair value less cost of disposal using the Relied from
Royalty ("RFR™) method. The RFR calculations use cash flow projections bassd on financial
budgets approved by manggement covaring a flve-year period. The key sssumplions used
in the estimation of the mooverable amounis represent managemant's assessmant of future
tremds in the relevant industres and were based on hisloacal dala from balh exlemal and
inbeerasl Sources

The dscount rate used was a pre-tax measure esfimated based on the historical industry
average wekghted-average cost of capltal,

Revanue growih was projected taking into accound the average growlh levels experienced
over the pagt five years and eslimated sales volume and price growth for the next five years.
It was assumed that sales price would increase in Bns with forecast inflation ower e nesd
five years.

In fizcal years 2024 and 2023, the esfimated recoverable amount excesd the carmying amount

of the tradamark, and accordingly, no imgasirment was required. The key assumplions used
in the estimation of the recoverable amounts are set out balow.

30 April 30 April

2024 2023
% ]
Americas trademarks
Pretax discount rale 4.7 a.r
Ravenue growth rale 4.0 4.5
Terminal growth rate 20 20
Royally ratie a.0 55
Fhilippines trademarks
Pratax discount rate TE 7.8
Renmnue growth rate BT 5B
Tarmina! growth rate 4.7 54
Rioyalty rate 1.0 1.0
S&W Asia irademark
Pretax discount rate 8.9 13.0
Revenug grovdh rate B3 7.6
Rowvalty rate 3.0 3.0
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. Intangible assels and goodwill {cont'd)

Indefinite Iife trademarks (cont'd)

indian sub-continent trademark

The Indian sub-continent trademsark and the Fwvestimenl in DMFPL were allocated to Indian
sub-continent CGLU [Note 7).

In figcal years 2024 and 2023, the recoverable amound of the CGU is basad on the valus in
e ("VILP) Being grester than the fair value less coste of disposal (*FVLCES) and the WVILL
FYLED and ViU are considered eguivelent bocause the GOUs ame operated in @ mannear
consistent with the way in which a market participant would operate the CGU. As such, the
WIU was greater than FVLCD because disposal costs could not be reliably estimated as of
thie measuramen daks,

Eiscal year 2024
Healthy Snacking FLAME Beyond Relail
30 Apil 30 Aprl 30 April
024 2024 2024
USE D00 LSS0 LISS'000
Recovarable amounrd 354,064 H20.178 309,850
Eiscal year 2023

The recoverable amount for the fiscal year 2023 amounbed to LSS 4,03 million

Inéluded within the carmying value of the CGU are the frademarks, goocwill, net assets and
defemed taxes atiributaile to e Segrsn,

Vit

The VIU is the present value of expected cash flows, discounted al a risk-adjusted weighted
average cost of capilal,

The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoversble amount using the Wi
approach ane $el oul below. The values assigned to the key assumphions represant
management's assessment of fulure rends in the relevant industries and were based on
historical data from both exdemal and internal sources,

Eigzal year 2024
Healthy Enacking FLAME Beyond Rotail
30 April 30 Aprl 30 April
2024 2024 2024

% % =
Fredas dacounl rale 14.0 12.7 4.0
Lomg-1efm ERITDA margin 13.0 181 148
Tarmined growth 2.0 2.0 20

-
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intanglble assets and goodwill (cont'd)
Indefinite life trademarks (cont'd)

30 Apl
2023
%
Pratax discount rada o8
Long-tarm EBITOA rmargin 12.8
Terminal growth rate 20

The cash flow projections included specific estimates for five years and a terminal growih
rate thereafier. The temminal growth rate was determined based on management’s eslimale
af the long-term compound annueal EBITOA growth rate. This growth rale is consistent with
the assumplion that @ market participant would make and with indusiry expectations and
inlermal astimates of susiEnable long-term growih for the business,

Sensifivity analysis

Management has ideniified thal a reasonably possible changs in the discount rate or long-
term margin could cuse the canying amount to exceed the recowverable amount, The
followsng table shows the percentages 1o which these windd need to change independantly
for the estimated recoverable amount of the DMFI CGU to ba equal o 5 carnying armown.

Haalthy
2024 Snacking FLAME Beyond Retail
U % a%
Pretax discount rate 14.7 12.3 11.8
Lang-tesm EBITDA rrdrgin .3 3.6 12 6

Sowurce of estimation uncerainty

impairment of goodwill and infangible assels

Goodwill and the ndelinda §lo trademarks are assessad for impatrment af least annually,
The impaiment assassment requires an estimation of the VIL and fair valus less costs of
disposal of the CGLU to which the goodwill and indefinite e trademarks are allocated,

Eslimating the VU requires the Group io make an estimate of the expected fulure cash flows
from the CGU and apply an appropriate discount rate in ondes to caleulate the present value
of those cash flows. Actual cash fiows will differ from these eslimates as & resull of
differences betwesn assumptions used and aciual operations.

Estimating fair value less costs of disposal require the use of estimates and assumptions,

The estimated fair value would changs depending on the assumplions used, such as the
disscount rate and kong-term manging
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8. Intanglble assets and goodwill (cont'd)
Amoriizable trademarks and cusiowmer relationship

Mat carrying Remaimning amaortizathon
amaurl period (years)
30 April 30 Apdl 30 April 30 April
2034 Hz3 2024 2023
USS 000 USE000
Armarica SAYY ratemark - 163 - 0.E
Asmsaricd Comading IFsdanack 10,787 11,888 ba 10.B
10787 12,081

America trademarks

The amodizable rademarks relale to the exclusive right fo use of the "S&W™ trademark In
tha United States, Canada, Mexico and certain coundries in Central and South Armarica and
“Condadina” rademark in the Wniled Stales, Canada, Mexico Soulh Africa and cerain
couniries in Asia Pacific. Central Amesica, Europs, Middle East and Soulh Americs marksl,

Management Fas included these tredemarks in tha CGU impairment assessment and
concluded that no Impairment exists at the reporling date

Customer relathonships

Cuslomer relationships relate to the network of customers whare DMFI has established
relationships with the customers, particulardy in the United Siades market through contracs.

Mt carrying Remalning amartization
aim it period (years)
30 Aprl 30 April 30 April 30 Agpril
2024 H023 a4 2023
LISF 000 LS5000
Customer relationships — CP BF 12 57 862 9.8 10.6
Cusiomer retabionshins -
Kitchen Basics T 8,123 18.5 185
80,213 65,9485

Managamanl has included the cusiomer relstonships, except Kitchen Basics, in the CGLU
impairment assessment and concludad no impairment edsts al the reporing date.

Source of estimation uncerfainty

The Group estimates the useful lives of ks amorlizable trademarks and customar
redationships based on the period over which the assets are expected to be availabe for use,
The estimated useful lives of the frademarks and cusiomer refafionships are reviewed
pariaodically and are updated if expactations differ from previous estimates due o kegal or
ather Hmits on the uss of the asssts. A reduction in the estimated wseful Bves of amortizable
frademarks and customer relationships would increase recorded amortization expanse and

decrease noncurrent asseis.
LT
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- 8 Deferred tax assets — net

Creferrad tax assets and liabilities are offset whean there s 8 legally enforceable right 1o sat-
off curren| fax asssiz against cumrend tax abilities and wihen the deferred laxes relate to the
sama 1ax audhority.

Deferrad 1ax assels and liabilites of the Group are attributabile o the following:
30 April 2024 30 April 2023

Assels  Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
US$000 USSO00  USSO000 USSTDO00

Growp
Frovisione 0,208 = 9,153 -
Employea banafils 11,251 - 13,016 -
Fraparly, plant and equipment — net - (19,6205) = {19,761)
Intangible assets and goodwil = [11563)) = {103,711}
Effective portion of changes in fair

valua of cash flow hedges - 155) - (415)
Tax loss camy-forwards 151,682 = 142,007 -
Inveniosias 5,552 - 2,381 =
Biclogical assels - {1.587) - (1,629)
Inter=st 81,935 - 52 865 =
Undistributed profits from a subsidiary - - = (377
Charilabds contributions 2,606 - 2,134 -
Others 9,896 - 10,772 -
Diefemed tax assets (llabBies) 272,130 (136.888) 232313 (125883
Sat off of tax (125425) 125425  (114,253) 114,253
Dueferred taxes = net 146,708 (11.473) 118,080 (11,630)
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g, Deferred tax assets — net (cont'd)

Movements in deferred [ax assels and deferred tax Esbifities of the Group during the year

are as follows:
Racognizad
Recapnizsd  in otber
A1 May nprofit or comprehom- Curmemcy At 30 Apeil
2023 loss sive income  roalignmant 2034
LS §ED UESDi0 LIES 000 LE§T00 UESTO0
024
Frowisicns 0155 160 e (28] 1,208
Empilayes nenai 13,048 326 {2175 86 11,251
Progesty. phank and squipmies - nal [19,751] {44) = 106G {18, 638)
inlangibie assals and goodwil (103, 711] {11, 8083 = - {118,620}
Effsctien pamen of changes n
fair walue of cash flow hedges [415) 2857 {1 BB {8173 {58)
Tau loss camy-lorwards 12,007 BETE - - 151,582
Imaamiies P | A = =, 5,557
Brslngisal acgam 11,625 {26} - a8 (1. 58T)
Inliral 52,865 9010 - - &1,938
Undistrtstsd peofits from a subsidiany 4377 L = - =
Charflabie coniitukons 2,138 ELT) = - 2 B0
Dibwsrs 10,772 (1,452} - LTi5] 0.508
108 450 12,511 [LASE) 146 1348 5y
Racognizad
Recogrirded  in olhes
At1May s profll of comprefen- Curroncy &R 30 Apedl
haEd Imm sive incomnee  realignmont i i
LISE Q00 UEE 000 LFEE000 UESTo0 LEE000
2023
Prouiians E.53F 2.0m1 = Bail 8,153
Empicyes benelils 13,854 (Ta8) [l 5328 13018
Proparty, plant and sguipmen - net 14,555 &11 {5528} 225 R
Irninngibhs aasets ard goodwii {62,085 {11,623 - 2 (LT}
Efexlive postion of changos in
Ta¥r vaive of cash fow hadges 1,602 108 (Z23T4) 144 415y
Tax icna carry-forwands 155301 {13,354} 5 = 142,007
Freeniories 1408 Ga2 = = =381
Binlogical msois (1 816) 113 - 17 (1,829
rieresi oo B 23,631 - = £ BEE
Wedsiibulad profls from @ subsidary (5730} 5953 = = 3™
Crariable coninbutians 3339 1,183 = - 108
Oihars TET4 1476 = (278} 0, Tr2
104,334 R P 18.823) 1,437 106,430
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L

Deferred fax assets — net (cont'd)
A et 30 April 2024, the Group has recognized defermed tax assets of US%146.7 mililon (2023

US$118.1 million), of which US$146.5 million (2023 US$118.0 rmillon) was attritedabla o
OrFL.

Aa et 30 April 2024, the Group recognized defemed tax Rshility relating ko undistributed profit
ol & subsidiary amounting fo nil (2023: USS0.4 million].

Uinrecagnized deferred tax assels

The following are the temporary differences for which deferred tax assets have not been
recognized as af 30 April 2024 and 2025

40 April 2024 30 Aprill 2023

LS5'000 LIS3000
Deductible termporary differences 5480 -
Tax losses and tax crodits 2,044 4,538
T.h13 4 538

The tax losses will expira in 2025 and 2029, The tax credits will expire batwesn 2025 and
2027, Dederred tax assats have nol been recognized wilth respect 1o these items because it
is nod probable that sufficient future texatie profits will be avadabie 1o utilize the benefits,

Sources of estimation uncertainty

As of 30 Aprl 2024, deferred tax dssets amounting to LIS$151.0 milllon (€023 USH142.0
million) have been recognized in respect of the tax loss camy forwards from DMFI becsuse
management assessed that it & probable that sulficient future taxable income will be
Available agamnst which DMF] can utilize these benefits. Fulure taxable profit is based on the
axpectad fubure cash flows used in the impalrmeent assessmant of goodwill and trademark
with indefinite usaful Bves. Maragement has identified that a reasonably possible change in
lhe revenue growth rate, EBITDA margin and long-tesm growth rate could cause the non-
realzabilty of the Group's deferred tax sesets, Management expects profilabls growth
coming from revenue sirategies and cost efficienciee in the fTulura. To the extenl that
profitable grawth does not materialize in the future pericds, deferrad tax assets of USS268.1
milllion may nol be realized, The majority of the tax kess for years ending fiscal year 2018 and
after can be carried forward indefinitely and tax loss camy farwards pricr to fiscal yiaar 1S
may be wlilized up to a 20-year pariod
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10.

Other noncurrent assets

Group Company
30 April 30 April 30 April 30 April
2024 2023 2024 2023
USE000 UST000 USS00D  USH0DD

Restatad
Sdvance rentals and deposits 17,828 18,557 - *E
Crerrvative Bssets = 5,189 - -
Firancial assets carmied at FWOCI 11,685 6080 10,516 5,023
Eucess insuranca 5T 4201 - H
Advances o suppliers 3793 2.A06 - -
Recehvable rom sale and leasaback 2389 2571 = -
(Mhers 318 1,367 45 -

41,811 42 B63 10,561 5.023

Advanca rentals and deposits consist of rent peyments nelated to lesse contracls which will
omrmanca beyond one year from the reporting period, as well as security deposits made for
lease contracts enlered by the Group.

Included in the financial assats camed at FVOCI is an investment in unguated equily shares
held by the Company of an entity incorporated In Switzerland which was acquired through
an assighment of 8 US55.0 million recetvable due to 8 subsidiary. In the current year, the
Company invagted an additionad USES S millon n the invesbes,

Excess inswance relates mainly to reimbursements from insurers 1o cover certak workers'
compensation clalims liabilities [(NWote 19

Advances o suppliers represents advance payments made on capital projects.

Recelvable from sale and leasehack is the noncument portion of receivable ralating to sssels
scid to DMPI Emgloyess Agraran Reform Beneficiaries Cooperation ("DEARBC) and
subsequently leased back 1o the Group in 2021 (Note 23). The current portion of LSS0, 1
million is presented under trade and othes receivables (Note 13),

Cther noncurrent assets inchede defared inpul VAT on capital goods {praperly and
equipment) incunred prior to 1 January 2022 that are to be amontized over its useful fe or
five: ymars, whichever Ie shorter, and other deferred expenses expected to be amorlized
beyand one year from the next reporing period.
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11

Biological assets

Prasantad as biclogical assets under;
Current assats
Moncurrant assets

Total biolegical asseis”®

Livesiock

Al baginning of the weaar
Purchasaes of lvestock
Sales of livestock
Currency realignment

Al end of the year

Agricultural produce
Al besginning of the yvear
Additions

Harvesled

Curancy realigrmant

At end of the year

Falr valu@ gain on enbanested
agricufural produca

Al end ol (he year

Fair value gain (loss) recognized under:
Harvastad pina for cannary -

Imeentonics

Cinst of sales

Inventories - catihe for staughter
Cost of sales - fresh pines
Linnarvasied agricullural producs

Fair value gain recognized under revenues

Note

Group
30 April 30 April
2024 2023
UISE'000 USS5'000
Reslated
4B,577 44 A52
3,413 3.007
51,960 47 859
3,007 2,735
1,218 1,247
(81} (810}
{121) (185)
3413 007
16,148 14,043
14,574 18,832
(13.727) {18,729}
(5B4) (800}
16,400 16,146
32,168 28,706
48,577 44,852
1,821 4,456
15,904 30,458
17,725 43,952
2 ]
24,099 17.851
4 636 {2.706)
46,462 58,105

“Change in lotal biological assets recognized in the consoidated statements of cash Mows is
reet of the foresgn currency franslabion impact amounting to US$1.7 milion (2023; LUSS28

million).
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1.

Blological assets (cont'd)
Livestock

Livestock comprises growing herd and bresding and dairy herd that are stated at cost and
catthe for slaughter that is stated at fair value less point-of-sale costs. The fair vakee is
determined based on the average selling prices &t year end, kss eslimaled point-of-sala
Costs,

Fisk management stralegy related fo agricutural scthviies

The Group is exposed to risks anising from changes in cost and volume of fruits harvested
from the growing crops which are influsnced by natural phenomenon such as weather
patiems, volume of rainfall and field peformance. The cost of growing crops i 8o expossd
te the change in cost and supply of agriculiural suppies and labor, which are determined by
wonstantly changing markat forces of supply and demend.

The Group is subject 1o risk relating fo ks ability to maintain the physicsl condition of its fruit
crops. Plant diseases could adversely impact production and conswmar conficence, which
impact sales,

The Group secures favorable harvest of pineappies and other agricultural produce fram
biological assets by confimeously assessing factors that could affect hasvest and responding
to tham on a timely manner. The Group i egquipped with necessary technical manpower,
farm inputs, such as fertlizer, chemicals and equipment o respond to any changes broughl
abaul by the factors as mentioned abowa.

The Group ia subject 1o faws and reguiations in the Philippines where it operates its
agricultural aclivilies, The Group has established environmental policies and procadures
amed at compliance with lecal enwironmental and other laws.

Sowurce of astimation vrcerdfaindy
Fair Value of Harvested Agriculural Produce

The fair values of the hansested pineapple fruits are bazed on the mast reliable estimates of
salling prices, in both kocal and international markets at the point of harvest, s determined
by the Group. For the pinsapple variety being sold as fresh fruits, the market price is based
o the seling price of fresh fruls as soid in the local and international markets, For the
pineapple variely being processed as cased goads, the market price ks derived from average
sales price of the processed producd, adjusted for margin &nd associated costs relsted o
production. Changes in fair values of agriculiural produce after initial recognition are included
in the carmying amaunt of cased poods at the reporting date.

Future Tonnege of Hanests

Bearer plants are stated at cost which comprises actual costs incurred in nurturing the crops,
reducad by the equivalent amontization of fruits harvested which considers the future tonnaga
of harvests. Estimated harvast is affected by natural phenomencn such as weather patterms
and tonnage of rainfall. Fleld performance and market demand atse affect the level of
estimated harvests. The cost is davaloped by allocaling growing costs for the estimated
growtn cycie of two to three years over the estimated harvests o be made during the e
cycle of the plant creps. The Group reviews and monitors the estimated future tonnage of

harsests regulary.
JANE RO
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11.

12,

Biological assets [cont'd)
Fair Value of Linhansesied Agncuifufa Produce

The fair values of the growing pineapple crops are based on the mosl refiable estimate of
rraarked prices {in both local and inbernalions markets al the point of hamnvest) &3 determinad
by the Group, multiplied by estimated fonnage of pineapplé fruits based on crop age afer
planting, Fair value is initially recognized when the pineapphe fruil develops when the bearer
plant has reachad maturity to bear fruit. The fir value is approximatad by estimating selling
price at point of harvest and gross margin of frshed goods Bss fulune growing costs 1o be
incumred until harvest. Such fulure growing costs decrease as the growing crops near tha
paint of rErves,

For tre pineapple variety baing sold as fresh fruite, the gross margin is based on the markel
prica of pinsapple fruits being sold by the Group. For the pineapple variety being processead
as cased goods, Ihe gross margin is based on the selling price of the final product sald in the
market, adjusted for margin related o production,

Esfimaled tormage is based on slandard waight of the growing pineagple crops when thay
reach certain montha after planting date. Estimated tonnage is also aflected by natural
phenomencn such as wealher palterns and yolume of rainfall, and actual field performance.

The valuation techmigues snd significant unobsenable inputs wsed in determneng the Fair
valug of thase biological assats are discussed in Mote 24.

Inventories
Group
30 April 30 April
2024 2023
USS'000 LSS 000
Finished goods
- at cost 635,275 6594 664
- &t nel realizable valua 24,8658 AT 482
sami-firmshed goods
- at cost 257,258 173,587
- @t nat realizable value 10,488 12,372
Fiaw materals and packaging supplies
- &t cosat 62,750 7H.683
- &t nel realizabs valie 53,433 16094
1,043,843 1,076 772

Total cost of inventories carried at et realizable value amousted Lo US5114.2 million as at
30 April 2024 (2023 US138.6 millon}, Inveniones recognized as an expansa in cost of sales
amounied 1o USE1,525.8 million for the year anded 30 April 2024 (2023: US51,385.2 milkon)
{Note 28).

« 5f =
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12,

Inventories (cont'd)

Inwenlones are stated at net realzable value after allowance for Inventony obsolescance.
Morvements in the allowance for imentory cbsolescence during the year ane as folows,

Group
30 April 30 April
Note 2024 2023

LIS3000 US5'000
Al beginning of the year 12,737 &, 48
Blicwrancg for thi ybar 25 18,700 9,542
Write-off against allowance 15, 755] [2,585)
Currancy reabgprmant (53 Lo izh]
Al end of the year 25828 12,737

Source of estimation uncartainty
Allowearics for invendony obsolsscence and ned realizabls value

The Group recognizes allowance on inveniony obsolescence when inventory Rems are
identified 85 obsolete. Obsolescence is besed on the physical and intemal condition of
inventory tems. Obsolescence g algs established when inveniory ems are no longer
marketable. Obsolele goods when identified are charged to income statement and ane written
off. In addition 1o an allowance for specifically identified obsolete inventory, estimation is
made on a group basis based on the age of the inventory items, The Group believes such
estimates represent a fair charge of the level of Inveniory obsclescence in 8 given year, The
Group mviews on a monthly basis the condition of it inventory. The assessment of the
condition of the inventery efther incressas or decreases the expenses or total inventory,

Estimates of net reallzable value are based on the most reliable evidence svallabie i the
time the estimates are made of the amound e inenbories expected to be realized. Thesa
estimales fake inbe consideration fluciuations of price or costl directly relating to events
occurring after reporting date 1o the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the
reparting dase.

The Group revieds ofl @ conlinuous basis the product movemend, changes in customer
demands and introductions of new products to identify invenlones which are o be written
dorem (o Bhe net realicable values. The write-down of imventories s reviewad periodically to
refiact ihe accurate valestion in the financial reconds. An increase inowribe-doen of Inventorias
winuld Increase the recorded cost of sakes and operating expenses and decrease curment
assets
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13 Trade and other receivables

Group Caompany
30 April 30 April 30 April 30 April
024 2023 2024 2023
USE000 USS'000 USE000  USH00D

Trade receivablos 182688 195335 - -
hlontrade receivaies 35445 45346 | [
Amounts dua from subsidianes {nontrade ) - - 27416 26 400
Allowrance for expecled credi ipss —

mondrade (4,310) (4,317) - -
Allevaance for expecled credil loss = rads (55417  [(5.334) - -
Trade and ofher recervables 218154 231,036 27 421 26,408

The amounts cue from subsidianes ane unsecured, interest-iree and repayable on demand.
There s no alipwance for allowance for expected credil losses ["ECL") ansing from these
outstanding balances.

Monlrade meceivablas consssl of plant receivables, claims from third party service providars,
advances 1o growens, which are claimed wpon delivary of fruils, and fuel withdrawals applied
apains! ruckers’ bils whan due,

The aging of rade and nonlade recavables 3t the repoding dats is:

Group
Groas ECL allowance

Trade Montradoe Trade Nontrade
At 30 April 2024 LISs'a00 LESE"DO0 US3'000 USE'000
Within credit terms 138109 8.530 - -
Past due 0 - 60 days a0 116 4,778 - -
Past due B1 - 20 days M9 BE3 - -
Fast due 91 - 120 days 4 560 T - -
More than 120 days 15,765 20,533 {5,531} 4.319)

192,560 35,445 (5,541) i4.299)
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13, Trade and other recelvables [cont'd)
Group
Gross ECL allowanca

Tradea Montrade Trade Montrade
At 30 April 2023 LSH'000 Us3'000 LISE000 LISE000
Within credit terms 115,851 24,7048 - =
Fasi due O - B0 days 35579 3,433 - -
Pasl dus 61 - 80 days 3404 3,14 - -
Fasl due 91 - 120 days 4875 1,328 - -
More than 120 days 21,826 12,152 (5. 328) {4.317)

108 T35 45 348 (6, Z2E] {4,317

The mcomded sllowance for ECLs falls within the Group's historcal experence In the
collection of trade and other receivables. Themsfors, management believes thal thera is no
sgnilican! additional credit risk beyond what has been reconded.

As al 30 April 2024 and 2023, the recelvables of the Company wese neither pest due nor
Impaired,

Mosirade receivables include curment portion of lease receivable amounting to nil &3 at 30
April 2024 (2023 US30.1 milllon) (Mote 23), and curment porfion of receivatia from sale and
leaseback amounting to US$0.1 millien as ol 30 Apdl 2024 (2023:; US30.1 million). The
nancurrent porfion of lease recaivable and recelvable from sale and leasebhack ane prasentsd
under other noncument assels a8 “Diers™ [Nota 10,

Movernents in allowance for ECLa during the vear are &5 follows:

Group
Trada Montrade Total

Haoite Uss'000 LIS3 (D LISE'000
At 1 May 2023 5,328 4,347 8,645
Allowance for the year 25 i | ¥ 260
Reversal for the year 25 il - :3]
Currency realignment (152) ] (571
Al 30 April 2024 5.541 4315 9860

61 -
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13

Trade and other receivables (conf'd)

Movements in allowance for ECLS during the year are as follows: [cont'd)

Naoie
Al 1 May 2022
Allowance for the year 25
Write-off for the year
Reversal for the year 5
Currancy realignirmend
AL 30 April 2023
Source of estimation uncertainty

Group
Trada Nontrade Tota

LIES'000 53000 Lsg'000
5,850 4,317 10,167

- i i
(242) - (242)
[188) - {188)
[52) ] (33)
5328 4917 0,545

Inpairment of frede and nonfrade receivables

The Group maintaing an allowance for ECL at @ level considered adequate to provide for
potential uncollectible receivabiles based on the applicabde ECL methodology. The level of
this allowance ls evaluated by the Group on the basis of faciors that affect the sollaciabiity
af the accounts. These factors include, but are not Emited te, the length of the Group's
ralationship with deblors, their payment behaviour and known market faclors, The Group
reviews the age and stafus of trade receivables, and identifies accounts that are to he
provided with alfvwance on a continuous basis. Addilionally, alowancs is siso delermined,
through a provision matrix basad on the Group's hstorical credit oes experiencs, adjusiad
for forward-looking factors specific 1o the deblors and the economic environment. The
armount and timing of recorded expenses for any pedod would differ if the Group made
different juggmant or utifized diferant estimates. An increase in lhe Group's allowance for
impainmant would incresse the Group's recorded operating expenses and would decreass

lhe Groug's curreni assstis,

The recorded allowance for ECL falls within the Group's historical experiencs in the coaction
of accounts recelvabies. The Group manaeged to conlinue operating in the middle of the
pandemic since ils products are essential. There were no significant internal cperaticnal
Interruptions and disruptions caused by external factors such as restrictions o movemant of
materials were managed so that there will b ne major adverse Frpacts to the overall resulls
of operations for the fiscal years ended 30 April 2024 and 2023,

Y -
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14, FPrepaid expenses and other current asseis
Group Company
30 April 30 April 30 April 30 April
MHote 2024 2023 2024 2023
USEDDD USHED00  USE000  uS30o0
Reastated
Prepaid expenses 56,437 48,086 34 LE
Down payrment Lo supplisrs 3,654 T.a72 - -
Derivalive assels 19 1,179 2678 =
Short-term placemanis - 18 = =
Oithers - - - 17
fi1.274 54,084 ag g4

Prepaid expenses consist of advance payments for insurance, advertising, rent and taxes,

amang cihers,

Down payment to suppliers perlains to advance paymends far the perchase of matenals and

suppies that will be used for oparations,

Az at 30 April 2023, short-tarm placements have maturities of 4-6 months and eam interest

of 0. T5%-(LAT55% p&r annurm.
15, Cash and cash equivalents
Group Coampany
30 April 30 April 30 April 30 April
2024 2023 2024 2023
USS'000 USE000  USE000 USS'000
Cash on hand g2 a4 - -
Cash in banks 12 976 19,392 470 554
Cash eguivalents 55 360 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 13,123 19, 836 470 L |

Certain cash in bank accounts eamn interest at fioating rates based on daiy bank deposit
rates. Cash equivalents are shorl-larm placements which are made for varying periods of up
o three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and eam
interest at the respective short-term placement ratag,

(LT
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16.  Share capital

Group and Company
30 April 2024 30 April 2023
MNo. of Mo. of
chares shares
(00 LSS000 ('D00) LISE000
Autharized:
Odinary shares of
USS0.01 each 30000, Q0 30,000 3,000,000 30,000
Freference shares of
USS1.00 each 600,000 GO0, 000 00,000 00, 000
3,600,000 G30,000 3,600,000 530,000
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of
LS50.01 sach 1,844 936 19,448 1,944 055 19,445
Preference sharas of
LSE1.00 each - - -
1,844,936 19,449 1,844,535 19,445

Recomciiahion of number of autstanding evdviary shares in lesue:

Al beginning and end of the year

Year ended  Year ended

a0 Aprli 30 April
2024 203
Mo. of shares
(oo el

1,043,060 1,543,960
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16.

Share caphtal {cont'd)

Tha rumbear of cuistanding ordinary shares axcludes 756,802 crdinary shares hald by the
Company as reasury shares. The retained earnings of the Company is restricted for the
declaration and payment of dividends io the extent of USS206,000 as at 30 April 2024 and
2023 representing the cost of shares held in ressury,

Reconciliation of number of cuwlstamdimg prefersnce shares i issue;

Year anded  Year ended

30 April 30 April

024 2023

{'000) 1"000)
At baginning of the yaar - 10,000
Redasmid - { 10,000)

At end of the yea - -

The following summarnizes the information on the Company's regisiration of securiies under
ihe Securilies Regulalion Commission's Revised Securifies Regulstion Cods of the
Philippines (“SRC"):

Crginary Shams

Authorized Ho. of Shares
Daie of SEC Approval Sharos Issued issus/Cffer Price
25 May 2013 &, 000, 300,000 1. 287 500,491 Php28.80
15 October 2014** 3,000, 080,000 a, a0, (1040 Php17.00
14 January 2015 3,000,000,000 §41,935.335 Php10.80

T SEC Aserd an orter rendlenng effecive the registradion of it issuod shares. The Company was Ksted by
wiy of infrduction fo Tho Phipnies Sfock Exchanga, fme an 10 Aune 2013

T SEC issuad an onder remsdanng efective e régiirsbon of sdodonal 5 S00.000 crainary shans which war
affargg @ng okl jo [he pudiic 4o the Phifioomes.

“*The righls Thams WD COMrSYsDT seampl o Aegisrana fursesnd [0 Seclion Ti¥e) and 1O of the SRC
Tinr avvoveyian B segqueialion wis confinmed by Mg SEC ina lefer dated 14 anvavy 2015

Tha tlal number of ordinary shareholders as at 30 April 2024 and 2023 was 7.286 and
7,396, raapectively.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled o receive dividends after dividend of preference
shares are pasd, &8 deciared from Bme to lime, and are entilled 1o one vote per shara at
meatngs of the Company. The preferance shares are cumulative, non-voling, redeemabla
al the: option of the issuer, non-participating and non-conwvertible. The preference share has
a par value of US$1.0 per share and ware isssed at USS10.0 per share. Ordinary ahares
rank equaly with regard b the Company’s residual assets after preference shanes are paid.

Iri Aprl 2014, the Company increased #s authorized share capital from US$20.0 million,
divided info 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares at USS0.01 per share, to USIE30.0 million,
divided into 3000,000,000 ordinary shares at USS0.01 per share and 600,000,000
praference shares at US$1.00 per share. The preference shares may be issuad in one or
more senes, aach such class of shares will have rights and restriclions as the Board may
designate. The terms and conditions of the authorized preference shares are finalized upon

Each IBsuanos.,
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Share capltal {cont'd)

Ordinary Shares (cont'd)

O 30 October 2014, the Company had additional odinary shares lisled and traded on the
SGE-5T and Ihe PSE pursuant o a pubic offering conducted in the Philippines. The

Company offerad and sold by way of pimary offer 5,500,000 ordinary shares at an affer price
aof 17.00 Philippine pesos (Php) per share.

In March 2015, adddional 641,535,335 ordinary shares were listed on the SGX-5T and the
PSE, which were offered and sold to sbgile shareholders by way of a stock rights offering
at an exsrcise price of 530,325 or Php 10,60 for each share in Singapore and the Philippines,

respactively.

In September 2017, the Company transferred 745,918 of its treasury shares to ordinary
shares in connection with the release of share awards granied 1o cerfain Direclors pursuant
to the: Del Monte Pacific Restricied Share Plan ("Del Monte Pacific RSP").

The Company alse imsved share awards under the Del Monte Pacific RSP in fiscal year 2018,
Erpfgrance Shams

Authorized Mo. of Shares
Ciate of SEC Approval Ehares Issued Issuailffer Price
20,000,000 Serias A-
21 March 2017 &00,000,000 1 Preference Shares USE10.00
21 Marnch 2017/ 10,000,000 Seres A-
27 Movember 2047 600,000,000 2 Preference Sharas USS10.00

"Mo Chrolar of Registrafion wes issved v ke second franche offer of prefarenca shares 59 i WES pan
of the staf-epislaiion previously appisd by the Company wilth ke SEC,
**Dada of fzeuance of the SEC Pernit o Sell

On T Apgrd 2022, the Company redeemed all of the outstanding 20,000,000 Serfes A-1
Préferance Shares for US5200.0 million, and on 15 December 2022, all of the outstanding
100000, 000 Saries A-2 Praference Shares for USS100.0 million,

The redeemed prefermed shares were canceéied bul remained part of the Company's
authorized capial and shall be available 1o be reissued by resclution of the board,
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16.

17,

Share capital (cont'd)

Capital managamant

The Board's policy has been 1o maintain a sound capital base so a5 o maintain Invester,
craditor and markel confidence and to sustain fulure development of the business. The
Group's capilal comprises ita share capilal, retained eamings and iofal reserves as
presented in the stalements of financial poeition. The Board menitors the retum on capdal,
which the Group defines as profit of loss for the year divided by total shareholders’ aquity.
The Board also mondtors the Jeved of dividends pald 1o ordinary shareholders. Under the
Company’s Articles of Association and the terms of the preference shares, the Cormparry
may deciare and pay dividends on common shares provided there are adequate and
avallable funds for dividends on preference shares which have priority over comman shares.

The bank loans of the Group conlain various covenants with riaspact to capital manienance
and ability 1o incur additional indebtednass. The Board enswres thal loan covenants are
considered as part of ita capilal management through constant monitoring of covenant rsulls
thwough interim and full vear results,

Thare weare no changes in the Group's appreach to capital management during the current
and prioe fiscal year.

Retzined Eamings and Reserves

Retained earnings
Dhvidend's
Group and Company
30 April 30 April 30 Aprl
2024 2023 202
LISS 000 LIS ET00 LISS' 000
Declared and paid during the
finmncial year:
Diicienals on ardivary shares
2024 USE0.0013
(E0E3: USS0.0170; 2022: USS0.01 20 2542 33,851 231,310
Oivitands an preferemcs shares
A-1 preference shares for 2024 il
{2023 nit J072; US$0.6625) per share - - 13,250
A2 prederance ahares for 2024; nil
(E2d LUS30.4478; 2022 USS06500) per
sharg - 4 47E 6,500
= 4 4TE 19,780
2,542 = T 23060
Proposed but net recognized
an aliability s at reporting date:
Dwidards on ordinary shares
20247 il (2023 LISS0.0013;
2022: USE0,0M 7T - 2527 33,047

o v
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Retained Eamings and Resendes (cont'd)

Retzined sarmings (comt'd)
Divigiends feonl'd)

Tha ratained aamings wers resthcled for the paymeni of dividands reprasenting ihe
accurmulated equity in net eamings of the subsidanes amounting to USS247.3 million as at
30 April 2024 (2023 USE243.5 million). The accumulaled equily in net eamings of the
subsidiaries will be available for dividend distribution upon receipt of dividends from the
subsidiares. As of 30 April 2024 and 2023, the Group's Investment In jaint ventures have no
undtatributed net eamings.

Orgiary shares

On 20 June 2023, the Company declared dividends of USS0.0013 per share to ordinary
sharaholders on record as at 11 July 2023, The special dividend was paid on 25 July 2023

On 23 June 2022, the Company declared dividends of USSD.0170 per share lo ordinary
sharahoiders on record 2s at 13 July 2022, The special dividend was pald on 27 July 2022

On 23 June 2021, the Company declared dividends of USE0.0120 per shere o ondinary
shareholders on record as at 13 July 2021, The specal dividend was pald an 27 July 2034

Prefersnce shares

On 15 December 2022, the redemplion date of the Series A-2 Praference Shares, the
Comgany paid the aconeed cash dividends at the fixed rate of 6.5% per annuem, or equivelent
to USH0. 12278 per Serles A-2 Preference Share for the period from B Oclober 2022 10 15
December 2022,

O 8 September 2022, the Company decdared dividends o holders of Series A2 Preference
Shares @ the Moed rate of B.5% pee annum, or equivalant to US30.32500 per Series A-2
Praferance Share for the ske-month period from B Apel 2022 te T Oclober 2022, The final
dividends were pald on T Oclober 2022

On 11 March 2022, the Company dedared dividends fo holders of Series A-1 Preference
Shares, at the fioed rate of 6.625% per annum, or equivalent to USE0.33125 par Series A-1
Preference Share for the six-month period from & October 2021 to 7 Apdl 2022 The
Company also dedared dividends to holders of Series 42 Preferance Shares al the fixed
rabe af 6.5% pat anfum, or egquivakent to LSS0 32500 per Series A-2 Preference Share for
(he six-menth perod from 8 Octobar 2021 1o 7 April 2022, The final dividends were pald an
T Apnil 2022,

On 10 Seplermber 2021, the Company declared dividends to the holders of the Series A-1
Praference Shares at the fixed rate of 5.825% per annum, or eguivalent to USS0.33125 per
Seres A1 Preference and Series A-2 Preference Shares al the fixed rate of 6.5% per
annum, or equivalent to WSS0, 32500 per senes A-2 Prefarence Shares for the six-month
perind from B April 2021 to T October 2021, The final dividends were paid on T Ociobar 2021,

The cumulative undedlared dividends on the preference shares amounted o USS0.4 million
as of 30 April 2022, and were settled in full in fiscal year endad 2023,
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Retained Eamings and Reserves [cont'd)

Retained sarnings (cont'd)
Share premiuem

Undar the British Virgin Islands law in whose jurisdiclion the Company operaies, the
Company’s share premium and refained earnings Tom part of the Company's surplus that
may be awvailable for dvidend distibulion provided that the solvency lest ls met by the
Company. The Group's share premium is shown rel of a merger deficit of USS0.14 million,
which arcse from the acquisition of @ subsidiary, DMPRL, under common controd In 18868,

The share premisn account Incudes any pramium received on the inftiEal seeance of tha
share capifal, Any transaction costa sssociated with the issuance of shares are deducled
from thi share premaem scoounl, /el of any related incoms tax effects.

In fscal vear 2023 and 2022, share premivm decreased by US390.0 milion and USH1B0.0
million, respectively, as a result of the redemplion of Senes A-Z2 Preference Shares on 15
December 2022 and Series A-1 Preference Shares on T April 2022 (Note 16).

Reserves
Group Company
20 April 30 April 30 April 30 April
2024 2023 2024 2023

LSS 000 LSS 000 LSS OO0 LSS 00
Transiation reserse {111,968) (105, 020) (111,068) {105.020)
Revaluation rasernea 28,354 29 354 29 354 29 354
Remeaagurement of
retirerment plan B, 302 46,051 52 302 4051
Hedging resene 5,891 1,360 58061 1,380
Reasarss for own shares 285} {288 {286 (2B6)

{24,707} (28,311) (24, 707 (28.5911]

The translation resene compriess forsign exchangs diferences arising from the translaticn
of the financial staterments of farelgn operations.

The revaluation resanse relates to surplus on the revabiation of freehold land of the Group.
The hedging resene comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net changs in the fair
winhei of hisdging insiruments weed in cash ow hadges pending subsequant recagniion in
profit or loss a5 tha hedged cash flows affect the income statemant of the Group (Mote 18],

The resana far the Company’s own shares comprises the cost of the Company's shares
held by the Group. As at 30 Apil 2024 and 2023, the Company held 975 802 treasury sharas.
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Loans and borrowings

Current liabilities

Bonds

Secured bridging loan

Shori-term secured loans

Shori-term uraecurad
lnans

Currant partion of long-
term secirad loans

Cumant portion of lang-
tem unsecured loans

Honcurrent liabilitles

Bonds

Assei-based lending credil
{"ABL")

Moncument ponion af long-
1Brm sacured loans

Mencurrent pedion af long-
term unsecurad loans

Group Company
30 April a0 April 30 April 30 April
024 2023 2024 2023
LISE'000 UsSE'000 US§000 L3000
Restaied
89,541 104,750 B 541 -
44 538 59 608 44,9348 50,938
26,577 - 5 STFT -
477 968 469,902 0,531 101,000
171,875 126,181 164,421 108,106
108,029 §9.73 45,004 55,794
Q18,724 820,053 491,012 324,894
11,158 100,304 - 84, Te0
465, £T5 458,823 - =
BE95.67H TH1.825 - 64,428
205, 204 112,361 43,726 Ba,77
1377315 1,453,300 43,726 241,850
2,206,043 2,273,353 534,738 566 857
T |1
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Loans and borrowings (cont'd)

Terms and debl repayment schedule

Termns and conditions of culstanding lsans and borrowings (shor-ferm and long-tanm
bomowings) are a6 follows:

Greup
G- lovm Sowrosdngs
Unisened bans ans '

Unsedaned Dani loans

Sprures b o

Lnog-lerm pommengs
T Bk,
ko it
Asd-Batind

Lareing (AL
Croadit Agroemem

Lirescums ¥¥ honddn

Lbrebpintoed B rbl lesara 1
Ursspcayro bark keara 1

L ey T Ba s
Lhwmained 5T honce:

Sanned bridgng ioan

Heapea hank oo

Baomned bonk o

Term Loan 8

Cuirency

g kB 8 3

Homins
[rlanesl rale

NP
DT A - A4
EROA) S - T S

[2024] 5.70% -BA1%
|B0E3 320N - BETW

[Ea) AR

R
ABL Bas=B-11%
B0FA 5 32% + Bprend of
6% o il ol 5%
20a
ARL Hices B - 1%

SOFA 4.80% + Spread of
2% o nolal ol 7.06%

LR

(2024 7 IS5 - T.40%,
L) & 52N

(2024 7 0EYs - BLGIN
02X 0.80% « B oW

A7eR
LTS

(2024] B.1THE%
(2 d) 20888

a.125%

20245 B I - BE1R
| AR B 0P - 218

(2004 0 BEITY
(255 83147

3 Aprdl 1024 20 April 203
Cnlandar
yoar Facm Carrying Facs Carnging
manurity walan AT valig snauni
USE D30 UESTHE] LSS 00 LGS oD
24 167 RA2 1052 G 30N MM
e aTd BaG a5 qI0 200 AT
Flire] AT ST = =
J0ET LR @mnar a8 o 4 ary
- - - igApEr WG
IS 175696 17850 g1 4 e
it bl 138773 13873 14 503 L B
24 22,100 B 1K A8 edl
225 11200 LR ] .68 11548
225 &5 00 a4 53§ B0.000 S0 998
20 = - IR 26,842
FirL] T84 50 T84 41 172 rsn 1TEE13
e FEMT MDA PN RREN
231N 2208041 2205T  23TI83
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Loans and borrowings {(contd)

Terms and debt repayment schedule (cont'd)

Curtansy

oty
SO TGS
Liagaciited Baak

sy [1 Las
Soourod bena. ioans LSS
Leng-fem
LingaTiined bank

Jemaf 11 Lisg
L eduod] Deendi [R]13
Socuins brdgng

I LISE

Beruned tnnk, kuarm uss

(1

Calwaiar
Hoimiral yidl
i=farax? mm makuriy
fapn
| 2034p B 1% - TEAN
|03 20 - R HEd
[BO@4) T IS Fitl

(23] 85T - H5E%

EALT] SR - BT fumr Bl

475%

LB

CHLIA] IS - LT,
02T B2 - B PN

Unsacurad hank loans and borrowings

Cerlain unsecurad bank loan agreaments contain various affirmative and negativa
coverants thal ane typical of these types of facllites such as financlal covenanis
redating to required debi-to-equity ratio, interes! cover and maximum annual capital
expendiiure restrictions, These covenants include requirements for delivery of
perodic financal information and restrictions and limitations on indebledress,
investments, acquisilions, guasasless, liens, assel sales, disposals, mergers,
changes in businass, dividende and ather iranafers,

e ooy
T e aand
Ik ez e lasng
lirehgCuiied Dok

Lires s Anarts

Livecariies e
Lisoied il Exzarks

In Q0
PHP
20K
PH?

A 00
FHA
1500 0053
[

AT, B
LIE§S0 06

USETRD00
LIZE25 000
LISE0 [l
LISER0 [0

sEissssee]

= TR =

30 Apetl 2024 3B Agali 2033
Fate Carying Fags Carrylig
walus amain valim ameant

LSTons  USEehn LERETR LEESTI00
LA TOLAIN 1,00 1064 000
AT AT - -

138773 138110 14 ERR 184 G5E
S0.080 P Bl e B3, TRS
45 a0 4 03K Lif i e L=
1154 B0 64 421 g G ] IR
RAE 3 SMTI  SENE SEman

[E0]
Doglsi i Bervics
Princigal egulily
Frras

LRI
A
25
a0

=)
0w
30w
10

Ratio
1.4z
12
2w
LI

Irlmiek
LCaverage Coverage
Aatie

i
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Finmd
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Loans and borrowings [cont'd)

(1}

[£]

Unsecured bank ioans and borrowings (cont'd)

There have been no breaches of the financial covenants of any nterest-bearing
loana for the years ended 30 Apell 2024 and 2023,

Ability fo tmour Addiffonal ndebledness

On 20 Decamber 2021, Codperstiove Rabobank LA, ("Rabobank”) had restatad
and mended the original Faclity Letter dated 18 March 2021, increasing the facilily
Emit from LESE30.0 million to USSES0.0 milion. On 18 January 2003, Rabobank
reduced the facility limit back o US$30.0 mithon. As of 30 Apil 2024, US$30.0 rmillion
remained svailable for deawdoan by the Campany

O 13 December 2022, the Company entered into a8 Seventh Amendment
Agrearnienl with BOO Unibank, Inc. ["BDO") thet gives the Company the rght o
baorrow an additional aggregate ameant of LSE30.0 milkon, subject fo the lerms of
such amendrient agresment. As of 30 April 2024 and 2023, the WS$30.0 millian had
baen fully drawn. Om 3 August 2023, the Company entered info an Eighth
Amendment Agresment with BDO that gives the Company the right to bormow an
addilional aggregate amount of USS50.0 million, subject to the terms of such
smendment agreement. As of 30 Aprll 2004, the LISS50.0 millicn had baan fully
draw.

The Company has an uncommilled facility with Rizal Commercial Banking
Coeporation ("RCBCT) amounting to USS40.0 million, of which US337.5 milllon was
drawm in the fiscal year 20024 (2023: USH3B.0 millian). Additionally, the Compary
also has uncommitted facilties with DBS Bank Lid ("DBS") totaling USS30.0 million
compriging of shor-teem loan of USS25.0 millon and export financing faclity of
USE5.0 million. USE25.0 millon had been drawn as of 30 April 2024 and 2023,

ABL Credit Agreement

On 15 May 2020, DMFI antered Into an agresment 1o refinance the ABL Cradit
Agreement with JP Morgan Chase as the administrative agent, and other enders
and agent parties therelo, to provide for senior secured financing of up to US$450.0
millign, subject to avallablity under the borrowing base, with a term of three years
untll 15 May 2023, On 15 May 2020, LIS5100.2 milkon was drawn undar this facility.
Loans under the ABL Credit Agreament interest based on aithar the Euradollar rata
or the alternative base rale, plus an applicsble mangin, On 29 Aprl 2021, the ABL
agreemen| was extended 1o five years to the esstiest of (a} 29 April 2026 and (b) 91
days prior 1o the maturily of the Sanior Secured Motes or any refinancing
indebledness in respect thereof. On 21 Seplember 2022, the ABL agreament was
then exended to 21 Seplember 2027 and the total commitments ez of this
amendment is USS625.0 milicn. On 21 August 2023, the ABL agreemant was
amandad for the commitmeant upsize of USE125.0 million,

- Fd -
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Loans and borrowings (cont'd)

2}

ABL Cradit Agreement {cont'd)

Interesi Rafes. Effactive 15 May 2020, borrowings wnder the ABL Cradit Agresment
Incurred interest of 1.75% in the case of the Allernative Base rale (ABR) plus
applicable margin (from 2.0% or 1.75% o 1.5% depending on awverage excess
avebability]. In the case of Euredollar loang, 2.75% plus applicable margin (from
2.5% o 2.75% or 3.0% depending on average dxcess availability). Effective 29 April
2021, borrowings under the ABL Credit Agreement baar Interest af 1.0% In the cass
of the Altamative Base rate (ABR) plus applicable masgin (from 0.75% or 1.0% or
1.25% depanding on average excess availability). In the case of Ewodollar lnans,
2.06% plus applicabla margin (from 1.75% or 2.0% or 2 25% depending on average
excess avallabiing)

Cammiimen! Feas. In addition o paning intares! on oslslanding principal under tha
ABL Credit Agreement, the Group is required 1o pay @ commilment fee that was
imitially 0.375% per annum in respect of the unutilized commitments thereunder. The
commiiment fee rate on Tranche A from time o time ks 0.250% or 0.500% depending
an hee gmount of wiesed commitmeants under the ABL Cradit Agresement far the prior
fiscal quarier. The commitment fee rate on Tranche B & 0.500%, The Groug mus!
slso pay customarny ketter of crodit fees bebaean 1.75% to 2.75% based on average
excess availabiity, and fronting foes equal to 0.125% of the face amounl for sach
better of credit Issued,

Effective 2 May 2022, the Growp = required to pay & commilmenl les of 0.375%
(2022 0.2505) depanding on the amount of unused commitmant under ABL Cradit
Agprgment for the prior fiscal quarter.

Al 30 Apnl 2024, there wers LISEAT2.2 milllon (30 Agrl 2023: USS465.0 million )
of loans outstanding and USS23.5 million of letbers of oredil isswed (30 Apsil 2023
U35524.3 million). The nel avaiability to DMF) Group under the ABL Credit
Agroement was US5254.2 mikon as at 30 April 2024 (30 Apll 2023 USS5135.7
rmillion). The weighted average interest rale was approximately 8,.02% per annum in
2024 (2033 7.32%) The ABL Credi# Agreement includes a sub bmit for letlers of
creedit and for borrowings on same day notice, referrad 1o &5 “swingline foans,”

Abulity fo incuwr Adaiional indelledness. Motwithstanding any incresse in the leclity
size, the Growp's ablity o Donow under the Tacilily will abseys remain limited by the
borrowing baso (fo the extent the borrowing base ks less than the commEments),

Guaranies of Oiigations wnder the Termm Loan Credit Agreamenis and the ABL
Craait Agreermer. All obligatiors of DMFI uniter the Term Loan Credit Agreemants
and the ABL Credit Agreerment are unconditionally guaranieed by the DMFHL and
By substantially all exdsting and future, direct and ifrect, wholly owed material
rastricted domestic subsidiaries of DMFI, subject to certain exceptions. DMF| was
released from the guarantees after payment of First and Second Lien Term Loans
on 16 May 2020,

e ¥
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Loans and borrowings (cont'd)

()

ABL Credit Agreament (cant'd)

On 19 April 2023, the Group amended and resialed the ABL soresment o include
DMPL arangamenis, mvisons on the Consolidated Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio
and Excess Availabiity and; dellvery of Defined Inventory amd Return of Inventon
Purchases deposil,

a. The Group to maintain and kesp OMPL arangements in place at all limeas wndll
ihe end of the Relie! Period

b. (A} During the Relief Period, permil Excess Availabiity to be less than or egual
i (a) LESE25.0 milkon af any time during tha first perod, (B) USS3000 million at
any fime during the Second Pericd and (B) following [he Relis! Pariod, pemmit
Excess Availabilly to be less than or equal to (a) US515.0 million al any tims
during the Fourth pericd and (b) WS525,0 million al any tirme therealler,

€. The Group under the ABL credit agreemant io deliver any Defined Inverntary to
the Inventory Purchaser pursuant fo the Inveniory Purchase Agreement or
otherwise othar than defveries In an aggregale amount not 1o excesd 55.0
milkon in compliiance with the lerms of this Agresment (including, without
lirmilation, (i) the provisions set forh in the defined ferm “Elgibée [mventony” and
(H) the requirerme o deliver a Defined Inventory Motice with respect io the
dalivery of @y Defined mentony; andior (b)) retern any portion of the inveniory
Purchaser Deposit o the Inventery Purchasar,

Security imferesis

_'th AEI_. Credit Agreemant is generally secured by a first priorty lign on DMFl's
imventanies and accounts receivable and by a third priosily lien on substantially all
cther assels a-u:ludhg raal esiate.

Rasncive and Firancial Covenands. Tha ABL Credit Agreement includas regtrictive
covanands limiting the Group's ability, and the ability of the Group's restricied
subsidiarias, to ncur sdditional indetledness, create fens, engage in mengers or
conscidations, sall o ransfer assets, pay dividends and distributions or repurchass
the Group's capital stock, make investrmens, Ioans or advances, prepay cariain
indebtedness, engage in cerain fransactions with affillates, amend agreerments
goveming cersin subordinated indebtedness adverse o the lenders, and changs
thve Growg's lines of buginess,

An amendment was executed to the ABL agreement in July 2024 [Mote 41),
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18. Loans and borrowings (cont'd)

Original  Outstanding  Inferest Calendar e pa
Classification Principsl  Bakance Rate yoar b bl TS0 0 T
(in0o) (i "000) % pa. maturity b iy, uartuiy, Wi e
Held by the Company:
in s us0 Quarterly infarest paymaents and principal 20% n
UG [0 30,000 34,000 B i szl year 2034, and balarce an mabirdy. ushz3r2
LED LSO Manihly inleres! payment and principal 10% on
Secured bridging foan F - . " 45 000 8,1726% FiRFL] February 2024, 10% on August 2024 and B0% S0 2,138
- - o mraturty date.
Quaresdy inkeresd payment and prncipal 5% on
Securad loan oD usk B.6063% 2025 Apri 2023 5% on Aprd 2024 and 90% on LSO 3,786
45,000 40,500 e s
Clsartely inkerest payment and principal 20% on
Unsacured Inan & ﬁﬁn zgﬁn B55% 26126 iour equal semi-annual insleiments starting UsD 2,265
: Orctober 2022 and B0% on malurity dale.
Cluartesty imerest payment end peincipa 15% on
Unascuined loan M ?;Ec?:u H"'ﬁ; 7.0916% 2024 eleven agual guarterly mstamants starling LS 4 817

January 2022 mod BS% on malunty data.

LIS Uso Cluanesly mares payment; and principal on eight

14

Unsecunad lcan 50 000 50 000 6.5700% A0 cpimtarly stalngnts stting Fel s, USD 547

" uso usD Mianthly irterast payments and principal on
Secured hoan ! 100,000 200,000 B.EDEI% 2024 Birity date. UsD 8677
usp L=0 Semi-anmeal inMoresi paymants and principal on
Unsecumd bonds 8 80,000 50000 375% 2024 sorthy duin. UsD 3,375
T
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18. Loans and borrowings (cont'd)

Original  Outstanding  Interest Calendar M
Classificatlon Fr|l‘|.ﬂp- Balance Rale year Paymen Terms 1 May 2023 to 30
{in 000] {In 008} % pa maturity le.g., annuaily, quartarty, atc.} Apr 2024
Meldt By the subsidianes: b
Uneseirad bands 1" HS‘:‘% ; ""F! wo Y a7Ed 2054 ﬁﬂnﬁw paymunts and prncipal on PHP 19,882
Unaacurad kagn PHP PHP 2 men o Cuarierdy imarest paymant; and principal an B S b
5800000 5,800,000 thirteen quaresly instalments siarting Ociober 2025 5,
PHP FHF Qupariealy indanest peymant; and principal an twelsa
L]
Unsacurad loan cooita:  beaon 7.25% 2028 e il prmgh Sl i e PHP 108,958
PHP PHP Quarterty infarast peymant; and principal on aight
- .
Unsecured loan 1,500,000 1.312.500 T.4210% 2028 quartery instai stadling el ana4 PHP 103,071
i 55 Monsnly inksrest peymants and guanery instaimeand
118 parymienis of ISE1, & millian in January 2023 snd
S oan 726,000 TiEy. 2020 U618 mlllan beginning May 2023 and balance VsD M2
an mabury date
ABL 5—,%?’%“ #JI:JEE,Ea B02% 207 Mo feend barma USD 48,477
i
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Loans and borrowings {cont'd)

[

12

£

[4]

5]

&

On 14 Decembar 2022, the Company oblained a long-leem loan amounting o
LS$30.0 milion to partly finance redemplion of series A-2 preference ehdres. The
loans malura in December 2024, The Company is in compliance with the loan
cowvenants requiring testng as at 30 April 2024 and 2023,

The secured bridging loans of USS50.0 millon as at 30 April 2024 (2023 USSE0.0
million) regrasant the femaining balance for tha bridging loan thal was obtained by
the Company to finance the acguisition of Sager Cresk and its related costs. The
previcus US360.0 million bridging loan matured in August 2023,

On 3 August 2023, the Company rafinanced the bidging loan with a new LSE50.0
milfion maturing in Febnusoy 2025 wilh a varable inerest rale of 8,17 26% per annum,
The Company is In compliance with the lpan covenanis requinng testing as at 30
April 2024 and 2023,

Oin 4 April 2022, the Company obtaned long-term loans and amourting 1o USE5.0
million (secured) and USE30.0 million {unsecured) from two different banks, to parily
fnance redemplion of seres &-1 preference shares. The loars will mslues in April
2025, The Company is in compliance with the lcen covenants requiring tesling as at
30 April 2024 and 2023,

Imi figcal year 2020, the Company obtained long-term loans amounting fo USET5.0
million maturing in October 20024, 1o relinance axdsting debl

In fiscal year 2024, the Company obtained long-term loans amounting to USES0.0
millian maturing in Mevembaer 2026, to refinance existing dabl.

The Compaeny is in compliance wilh the loan covenants as at 30 April 2024 amd 2023,

On 16 May 2020, the Company obtained a long-lemm amounling to US$100.0 million
maturing on 15 May 2023, to finance the Company's subscription of equity shares in
DMPL Foods Limited, the procesds of which wese used by DMFI to partially gay its
borrowings, The loans are sscured by first ranking security interest ower DMPI
shares. On 15 May 2023, the loan maturity wes exiended to Movember 2024, The
Company iz in cormpliance with the loan covenants &5 o1 30 Aprl 2024 and 2023

O @ December 2021, the Company Ssued unsecured bonds amaounting 1o US550.0
millign, The bonds bear fiwed interest of 3.75% per annum and matee on 8
December 2024. The procesds were used o parly finance redemplion of seres A-
1 prafemance shanes.
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Loans and barrowings [cont'd)

[

8]

1]

(10]

On 30 October 2020, DMPI issued pesc-denominated fixed rate bonds with an
aggregate  principal amownt of US580.1 million (Php5.0 Gillion) with an
oversubscription option of up to US$45 0 mlion (Php2.5 blilion ],

The following are the seres of e bonds:

i 3.4840% per annum. three-year fixed-rale bonds dus October 2023, and
(il A 7563% per annurm five-year ixed-rate bonds due Oclober 2025,

The net proceads of the bonds were used by DMP| to repay s éxsting short-term
and unsscured loans, As of 30 April 2024, US$11.2 milon (Phpi45.9 million) five-
year fixed-rate bonds remain outstanding. OMP| hed been compiiant with its bond
covenants as at 30 April 204 and 2023,

On M Qutober 2023, DMPI obfained a long-term koan facility amounting to US5100.7
mificn (PhpS.8 billion} payable over thirfteen equal guarerly instaiments with the fiest
repayment date dug in Delober 2025 and last repayment date dus in Oclober 2023
at a wariable interest rale (Apdl 2024; 7.25% per annum) to finance payment of the
Ihres-year PhypS. A bilion bonds. DMPI had bean compliant with its laan covenants
as at 30 April 2024 and 2023.

On 8 Movenber 2020, DMP1 avaded of an unsecured long-term credit facility
amaunting o USH27.0 milion (Phpt.5 billon) &t & varable inlemest rate (2024
T A21% per annum, 30 Apell 2023: 5 5268%), maturing in 2025, to refinance existing
debls, The loan shad be repaid in five years, inclusive of a three-year grace period
on the prncipal, the prncipal peyvable in eighl equal quarterly insfalments io
commence at he and of the 13th quarter from 1he inilial drawdown date unbl fully
paid, OMPI is in complience with the loan covenants &g at 30 Aprll 2024 and 2083,

Cn 31 October 2023, DMPI oblained a long-term loan facility amounting 1o US$52.1
millicn {Php3.0 billon) payable over twelve equal quarerly nstalmants with the first
repayment dabe due in January 2028 and lasi repaymant date due in Ociober 2028
al a variable interest rate 7.25% per annum for general corporabe rquirements and
to refinance existing debts.

CMP1 ks i complance with the boen covenanis as at 30 Aprll 2024 and 2023,

DMF| is a party to a Term Loan B agreemeant wilh the lenders party Swerelo, Goldrman
Sachs Bank LSA as adminstrative agent and as collateral agent, that provided for a
ictal term |oan of USST25.0 million with & term of seven years. The initsal term loan
amounting o USSE00.0 milon was obtained on 16 May 2022 and additional term
loan amounting to WSE125.0 million was obtain on T February 2023, The term loan
will mature on 16 May 2020,

Inlferast Rates. The term loans bear an inberest equal 1o the adjusted lemm SOFR
plus & spread adustment of 0,10% and margin of 4.25%. As of 30 April 2024, the
interast rate for the Term Loan & 9.68% per annum (2023: 0.39% per annum),
Interast is indially payable monthly and can be paid quarierdy at DMFI's oplion.
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Loans and borrowings (cont'd)

[10] Erincipal Paymendz. The outstanding principal amound is payabie i) commancing with
tha kast day of sach fiscal quarber following 16 May 2022 and on the last day of each
fizcal quarter thereafter prior 1o the maturity date of the term loan. in each case, in
an armown egual 1o 0,25% of the ongingl principal amount of fhe initial term loan and
iy on the maturity date, inan amount equal o the remainder of the pindipal amount
of the indlial term loans cufstanding on such dale, together, in each case, wih
accnesd and unpaid intarest on the principal amount to ba paid to but excluding tha
date of such payment. In the event any new lem bans are made, such new tem
loans shall e repaid on each instalmen date eoourring on of aler the applicabls
increased amount date inthe manner apacifisd in the agreamant.

Ablily fto Incur Adciions’ Tecdebledness. DMFL may, by owrillen notice o
Administrative agenl, edect to regues! prior io maturity date, an increase 1o tha
existing tarm leans or tha establishment of one of mona new tarm kkan commirments
by the avadiabie incremental amount, @nd ot less then USS5.0 million individually
{or such lesser amourd which shall reasonably be approved by adminisirative agenl
o such lesser amount thatl shall constitute the diference between the avaiisbis
incremental amount and all zuch Mew Term Loan Commilments obiained prior ko
such dabte), and integral multiples of LSS0 mallion In excess of that amount.

DMF! s compliant with the Term Loan B Agreement loan covenants as at 30 April
2024 and 2073,

Dbl fesiance cosds

Loars and bomowings ane stated net of unemorized debt msuance cost. The balance of
unamortized debl issuance cost are a5 follows:

Group Company
Year ended Ta.u' ended Yearended Yearended
30 Agril 30 April 30 Agpril 30 April
Maota 24 2023 2024 2023
LISS'000 LIS5'000 LS3'00d LSS 000

A1 beginning of the year 73,157 35,359 1,482 2,732

Addrions 4,764 20,205 389 218

Wribe-alf = (25,341) = =

Amuortization 26 i5.844) {6, 186) {1,207) [1,488)

Ab end of the year 22,077 23,157 644 1,442
= 80 -
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Oiher noncurrent liabiities

Group
30 April 30 April
2024 2023

LSS 000 LSE'000
Moncurient partion of lang-term aquipmant financing 22,444 -
Workers' compensatian 168,156 13,268
Dervalive Bablities = 3,007
Fcorued vendors labilities T 461
38,877 16,626

In Octabar 2023, DMFI antarad into an agresmant o ssll and lease back equipmant for G0
mesthes at an intefesd of .57% pearannum with gross proceeds amounting to LUS532.4 million.
Based on the agreement, the Group has the opllon to repurchase the equipment for an
agreed purchasa price, thus, thia tranaaction did not qualify as sale and leaseback and S
accounted as financial liabilites under “long-term equipment financing” in accordance with
IFRS 9, Financial fnstrurments.

Workers' compensation are liabiliies for wage replacement and meadical benefids to

employess mensd in e course of employment in exchanga for mandatony relinguishment
of the employes's fghl 1o sus his or her employer for the tort of negligence.

Derlvative liabilities

The Group uses inlerest rate swaps, inberest rate caps, commodity swaps and foreign
currency forward confracts 1o hecge market msks melating o possible adverse changas in
interest rabes, commodity cosis and lomign cunmrancy exchange rabes. The Group continually
monitore its positions and the credil rating of the counterparties involvad to mitigate the
armound of credil exposure 10 any one party,

A at 30 Aprl 2024 and 2023, the Group designated each of its derivalive conlfacts, as a
hedge of a highly probable forecasted transaction or of the variabily of cash fows o ba
recehed or paid related io a recognized asset or liabilty ["cash flow hedge®), The following
fair warua of cash fow hadges wers cutetanding for the Grodg:

Erowup
30 April 30 April
Mole 2024 2023

USS'000 LIEE000
Commodity confracis {16} {3,928)
Foreign currency forward contract (1,571) 1.081
Inerasl rate cap - g,1849
Interast rate swap - {1.105)
Tolal {1,587} 2217
Included in:
Oither noncurrent assets 10 - 5,189
Prepaid expanses and other cument assets 14 1.179 2 GTH
Trade payables and cther curmen! iabstios 22 (2, TEE) (3,553)
Othar noncunnent iabilites - (3,007

{1,887) 2217

38 o [
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1 1:8 Other noncurrent liabllities (cont'd)

Derivative liabilities (cont'd)

Interest Ralas

Az of 30 April 2024 and 2023, the Group designated sach of #s derivetive contracts as a
hedge of the variability of cash lows to be received or paid retated (o a recognized assel or

liability [“cash ow hedge”)

The Group adopts a policy of hedging #s Noating rale exposurs in accordancs wilh the curment
rabi arwironmetl and axpected debl balances, This is achigved parlly by entaring into fixed-
rate instruments and parly by bormowing at & fioating rate using interest rale cap and meras]
rate swaps as hedges of the variability in cash fows atiributable to moverments in otorest
rabes. Tha Group applies a hedge ratio in accordance with the risk management objectives.

The Group determines the exstence of an economic relationship belween the hedging
irgirument and Pedged ilem based on the reference inlerest rates, tenors, repricing dates
and maturitios and the notional guantity or par amounts,

The Group assssses whether the dervative designated in each hedging relalionship s
expected to be effective in offseliing changes in cash Nows of the hedged Rem using the
mypothelical dervalive mathod, Changes in the fair value of the cap other than intrinsic valus
is excluded from the assessment of effectiveness and amortized ovar the hisdging paiod

using a strakght-line mathod.

in these hadging relationships. the main sources of ineffecliveness are the aiffect of the
counterpary’s and the Growp's own credit fsk on the fair value of the swaps, which is not
refloctad in the change in the fair value hedged cash fows allibulable to the change in
Interest rates, and diferances in mepricing dates babween the swaps and the bormoewings.

On 286 Aprd 2024, the Group pre-terminated both inderest rale cap and interest rate swap
hedges, resulting to recognition of US34.4 millon expense and USE4.8 million ingcoms,
respactively. For interest rate cap, US510.5 million was retained in the OCI for the intrinsic
vialue of the hedge (0 be amordized systemalically in accordance with the retated laan,

Significant terms of the interest rate cap and interes! rale swap contracts are as follows:

=0 Apcl 2023
iraras! rate cap
Motional
amount  Fixed
Contract Date ‘000 Rate  Sirike Rate  Effective Date  Maturity Date
B April 2022 575,000 0.84% 3,00% 1 May 2023 1 April 2026
Inferas! rale Swap
Metional
amouni  Fixed Floating
Contract Date USS ‘000 Rate S0OFR Effective Date  Maturlty Date
23 March 2023 250,000  3.84% \arms 24 March 2023 16 May 2029
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Other noncurrent Habilities {cont'd)
Derivative lizbilities [cont'd)

Notional amount of LIS$200.0 million, US$200.0 million and UIS$175.0 million will mature on
1 April 2024, 2025 and 2026, respectively. The floating rate is besed on secured ovarnight
financing rate (SOFR). In April 2024, the Group has pre-tarminated Doth the interes rate cap
and intaras! rale swap.

Commadilies

Cerlain commaodilies such as diesel fusl and natural gas {collectively, “commadily conlracts”)
@are usad in the production and transporiation of the Group's producis, Generally, these
commaditles are purchased based upon market prices that are established with the vendors
as part of the purchase process. The Group may use fulures, Swaps, and swaplion or option
coniracis, o desmed appropriale, o reduce the effect of prce flucluahons on anticipated
purchases, These contrects may heve a term of up to 24 months, The Group accounts for
these commodity derivalives as cash flow hedges. The effective portlon of denvative gaing
and losses s defemed in equity and recognized as part of cost of products sold in the
appropriate perod and the ineffective portion ks recognized as cost of products sold,

There & an economic relatonship bebtwean the hedged terms and the hadging instruments
a6 the terms of the commodity forwand contracts match the lerms of the expected highly
probable forecas! fransactions (L.e. notional amount and expected payment date). The Group
established a hedge ralio of 1:1 for the hedging relationships 8 the underying risk of the
commaodity forwand confracts are identical to the hedged rsk components. The Group
determines the esistencs of an econamic retationship betwean the hedging instrument and

iem basad on lhe refarence ndex prices, purchase dales, matuities and the
naticnal or par amounts.

To test the hadge effectivensss, the Group uses the hypothetical derivative method and
compares the change in the fair value of the hedging instrumants against the changes in the
fair value of the hedged tems attributable to the hedged risks.

The notional amounts of the Group's commodity contracls were as Tollows as of 30 April
2024 and 2033:

30 Apeil 30 Apsil

2004 2073

LISH 000 LISS' 000

Matiral gas (MMBETL &8 1.058
Diasal (gallons) 4,358 B, TEH
Gas {oil bareis) ] 47

Foroign Curmency

From fime 1o lme, the Group manages s exposura fo TMucluations in foreign currancy
enchange rates by enfering into forward conbracis to cover a portion of #s projected
expenditures paéd in local currency. These contracts may have a teem of up to 24 months.
The Group accounted for these contracts as cash fiow hedpes.

30 April 30 April
2024 2023
LSS 000 LSS 000

Mexican pesos 278 TE3 -
Liritad States dofar 167,000 164000

L
L IR
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Other noncurrent liabilities {cont'd)

Derivative labilities (cont'd)

Amounts Relaling to Hedged Rems

The amounts af the reporing date relating 1o items designated as hedoged ilems are a5

Tollows;

Indaresl rate risk
‘ariablg rate instrumenis
Commadity price risk
Irvenbary purchases
Forelgn exchangs risk
Foreign cumency forwends

Intarast rabe risk
Warabla rate ingirements
Commadity price risk
Inweniory purchasas
Foreign exchange risk
Foraign currency forwards

30 April 2024
Balances remaining in
the cash flow hadge
resarve from hedging
Change in value relationships for which
used for calculating  Cash flew hedge  hedge acoounting is no

hodgs effectivencas RS lougper applied
LSS000 LISS00 US$000
5065 11,552 -
1857 (3,351} -
(520} (1,735 g
30 April 2023
Balances remaining in
the cash flow hedge
rasarve from hedging
Change in valse relationships for which
used for calculating Cash flow hedge  hedge accounting is no
hadge effeclivencss R longer applied
USE000 USE000 LIS3'000
(12,437) 9,228 -
8,264 18,304 —
3,440 495 2
B4 -
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Other noncurrent liabilities (cont'dj

Derlvative liabilitias (cont'd)

Ameounts Relating to Hedging Instruments {cont'd)

The amaounis relaling bo ilems designaled as bedging instruments and hedge ineffeciivenass are as Tollvws:

3% April 2024 Puring #0394
Ampunt

Lirs Bam in the statement Chango In the
of financlal pesitlien whaere valus af hisdge reclasaified from Line [bem in peodil

Hational Ehi Feiselgeed | nabrumant s instrament hadging resarve of lods aflected by
amoaunk Carrying smeuan ineluned reaognized in OCI Lo profit of loss the reclassification
L] Lishilicias
LIS USED00 LESE000 LS%'000 WSS ToD
Intorost rabe ek
Inierest rate swapscap - - = - = (11, 0 Ml lrarce oxpansa
Commuodity price risk
Cormmsndily comienois
Malural gas
(MMBETL] B1H = [733)  Deruntim hsbilios - Cumast 2706 1,858 Cost of anbes
Prapeid and Qihar Cufnan
Crezed {gailans | 4,358 484 - i 1.3 7ai Cesl of coles
Prepsid and Other Sumesd
G il {baraks) 1 3 - Fucials (3,228) -
Faonsign exchangi risk
Frnkyh 2umransy fensan
fusDy 147,000 - {2,033 Daroeative kabilties - Ciemend TET = Mt inance sipense
Foraign curancy fonsant Prspsid and Cthor Cormand
LB 178, TR L1 - Azpais (2T 474} Cosl of salea
1417 110 B
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1% Other noncurrent liabilithes (cont'd)
Derivative liabilities {cant'd)
Amounts Relating to Hedging Instruments {cont'd)

30 April 2023 Duiring 2023
Lirmm iem i U siatemasi Chango in ks Amsaunt
of financlal pesiion where vl g af hiedgs reclassifiod from Lirss item in profit
Matignal the hedged insbument is In&trumert medging ressres or lags affocted by
amoEnt Carrying amount incladed a
Anunks Lishllibies
LagnnG ussToo USED00 LIS§000 LSS 000
Inberosl rabe risk
Prepaid and Cehar
Irdansl rats swags 250,000 1517 - Curmesrd A4 sals 12437
Disdlwvative lnblites =
Infereel rals rwaps - - [2,722) Moncurreni - -
Diaframilives asngls -
fnbernsd il chp GT5,000 &1 - Monoumanl
ﬂ.ul..-.-.ﬂﬂ__n___..n_H._.-.un_u
Habural gas 1.034 - §1,50E] Dyt labilies — Caian (2,567 [a81] G gl sales
DCranvyartive kabdHias —
[MMBTL} 118 MoncaTen
i1455]
Diceial [galind] 578 - fanay Dervatve Rabiiles — Current [Z AT} 1403 Cosd of malps
G oil (bames) 47 - (5073 Dirtvatnes habiiies — Curmcd {521] -
Farsign sxchango risk
Freign cumenay lonuand Prapaid sl Other Current
(Ushy 184, 00D 1,081 - Azspln 1,122 - Mt inancs axpenss
Forsgn cumpncy Tonsand
] - - - - 8, 571) (4,107} Cosi of sabes
A7 5374
- B8 -
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Other nencurrent llabllities (cont'd)
Derivative labilities (cont'd)
Hedging Reserves

The following tadle provides a reconcifiation by risk category of the hedging reserve and
anadysis of OCH items, nel of tax, resulling from cash flow hedge accounting:

Ealance al baginning of year
Changes in fair value:

= Interest rate riss

- Commodity risk

= Foraeign exchange risk

Armount reclassified to profit or loas
Interest rate fsk

- Commodity risk
- Forelgn exchange risk

Tax movements on reserves during The v

Balance at and of year

i

Group
30 April 30 April
2024 2023
LISE 000 IS5 000
1,436 15,.395)
{5,085} 12,437
Ba7 (5,284}
520 13,440)
11,048 -
(1,157 1,264
474 &, 107
[1,679) [2,274)
B,465 1,426
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Employes benefiis
Group Company
30 April 30 April 30 April 30 April
2024 2023 2024 2023
USS'000 LISE 000 LISS000 LUSs'000
Pension assat 7,800 10,630 - 60
7,800 10,630 - &0
Poat-retsemant benefit abligatian 6,103 §, 795 - -
Expculive refirement plan 1528 2,168 - -
Cash Incentive award - & 024 = -
Shorl-tarm employes benefils 2 698 17472 - -
iher plans 1,356 265 - -
Met defined benefit labiliby T.5493 11,701 112 -
Total employee benefd lability 39,877 45,674 112 -
Cusrenil 23 8949 24 700 - -
Micewcurrant 15,778 21,294 112 =
38,677 45,574 112 -

Included in pension assel of the Group and Company is an amoont of US37_8 million and nil
(20235 USS10.6 milkon and LSS0, 1 miflion), respectively, relating to the defined benefit and
definad contribution retirament plans in D8P,

Inchueded in post-retiremant benefit obligation s an amount of LES$6.1 milion (2023: US36.8
million} redating to the post-relirgment medical benafits plan in DMFL

Included in met defined banefl Eab@ly is an amount of USST & million and USS0.1 million
{2023 USS11.T million and nil) relating to the qualfied relirement plans in DMF| and ROHG,
iespeclively.

The Group contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans:

DMPI has both funded defined benefil and defingd conlrbulion relirmmeant plans (the "Plan™)
whiich covers all of reguiar employees as well a5 of those under DMPL - RORQ. Contributions
and costs are determined In accordance with the actuarial study made: for the Plan, Anmssl
cosl s dedarrmined using e projected unil credil method. DMP1's |atest sduarial velustion
date is 30 April 2024, Valuations are obtainad on & perindic basis.
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Employes benefits (cont'd)

The DMPY Mylti Employer Retirement Pian (cont'd)

Starting on the date of membership of an employes in e Plan, DMPI shall contribute io the
retirerment Tund 7.00% of the member's salary as defined every manth. In addition, DMPY
shall contribute percdically te the fund the amounts which may be required 1o mest the
guaranteed minirmum benefit provision of the plan. Such contributions =hall not be allocated
nor crisdiled 1o the individual accounts of the members, but shall be ratained in a separate
account to be used in casos where the guarantesd minimum benefit applies.

Berefits are based on the tofal amount of contributions and esmings credited 1o the persanal
retiremant account of the plan member at the time of separation or the 125% of the final basis
salary multiphed by the number of credited years of service under the plan, whichever i
higher. The manner of payment is lump sum, payable mmmediataly.

Tha ratirement plan meets the minimum retirement benefit specified under Republic Act No.
T641, The Phippine Retiremant Pay Law,

The fund i administerad by a trestee bank under the supervision of the Bosrd of Trustees
of the Plan.

The Board of Trusieas is responsibli for imestment sirategy of e Plan
DMP1 does not expect to make contributions to the plan in fiscal year 2025

The DMF Prar

DAMFI sponsors a qualified defined benef pension plan (the “DME] Plan™) amd several
unfunded dafined benefit post-ratirement plana providing certain medical, dental, and lifa
insurance beneflits 1o eligible natied, salaried, non-union houry and union employeas. The
DMFI Plan comprizes of two pans;

* Thefirst part is 8 cash balancs plan ("Part B%) which provides benefils for eligibile sataried
employees and provides that & participant's benefit desives from the accurmdation of
maondhly compensation and interest credits. Compensation credits are calculaled basad
upon tha participant’s efgible compensation and age each month. Interest crodits are
calculaled each month by applying an intersst factor 1o the previous month's ending
balance. Participants may alact to recelve thair benefit in the farm of an annuity or a fwmp
sum, Part B of the plan was frezen o new particlpants effective 31 December 2016,
which the active paricipabon of cerain paricdpanis was grandfathered subject o
meeling participation reguirements,

* The second part is an arrangement which provides for grandfathered and suspended
hourly participants & tradilional pension beneft based upon service, final
compensation and pge gt termination, This plan was frozen since 31 December 18995,
which the active participation of cenain paricipants was grandfalhered and the active
paicipation of other participants was suspended.
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2.  Employes banefits jcont’d)

The DMFT Plan {cont'd)

DMFI currenily meets and plans 1o conlinoe to mest the minimum funding levels required
under local legisiation, which iImposes certain consequences on DMFI's defined benefid plan
if it does nol mest the minimum funding kevels, The Company did slect 1o use funding balance
to affset minimum raquired contributions. The amount of the 2024 funding balance eklecled
0 b usad fo offsal lhe 2024 minimum confributions (Aol as of the baginning of the 2024
Plan Year) waa US30.8 milion, The amaunt is rofled forsvard with mierest to the dus date of
any required condribution, i intended to offsel any conlribudions required for the 2024 plan
year, incleding quarterty contributions dus.
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Employes benefits (cont'd)
Movement in net defined benefit llability (asset)

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for nel defined benefit kablity (assst) and its

components:

Groem

Bagknnng talanoe
Included in grobE or lows;
Comant ancwios coord

Flan anm s iramon ooas
IFeE sl Cosl e rrnj

Ingiuded in GCI

Fearrapise =g is b fpan|:

= Actuarsl koas (gaied orislrg from
« Ty’ s TR
~damngraphic masumpliom
- RO AT

- 1 AR ke e hhag

arlaviral isrures
- Charges Is fra aHact of o assel

g
= Efacd of sursimants n mechangs
il

Othwr

Bornfi el

Enmisg hatancn

I Agall 2024 a0 Eprl W23
muhhunmm Fair walso of plan Effiect of Axaat Mo dalired benalli  Defined Banedi Fair wabue of glan Effwet of Adasel  Ksl dedinsd banali
HELREE CHlirg Baleiy adel) =] Enkain Celling liahility [asseq)
LISE000 LES§000 FRE 00T LSS T Uﬂm" LSRR LFES T LIBETiN]

T TER {38402 240 T.BEG S04 Flrd i 1.673 Lk
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Dl Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes io the financial statements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

20.  Employee benefits (cont'd)
Maovement in net defined benafit liability (asset) (cont'd)

Represented by:
Met defined benefit
liabllity {assat)
30 April 30 April
024 2023
LISE'000 US5'000
Fension asgsel {7.800) {13.630)
Post-ratiresnant bensfil obligation 8,103 8,795
Met defined benadit liability 7,982 11,701
5.8495 ¥,BEA
Plan assets
Plan asgels comprisa:
Group
30 April 30 April
2024 2023
USS000 USF 000
Intereat-bearng cashbank depoalts 2,925 1318
Feal estale (within Phikppines) 17.517 14,386
Common collective trust funds:
Fiead incama 48 237 53,055
Equity fund &2, 760 8,060
Pubuiual Furds -
Equity fumd 8314 9,154
Dbt instrumesnts;
Corporate 34,204 3r. 733
Governmant 36,744 41.960
Others £.304 5.285
Equity seturitsas -
Cuoied 1,582 3.661
Othars {2.871) EOD
Fair value of plan assals 215,015 238,402

The Board of DMF reviews the level of funding required for the retirement fund. Such a
raview includes ihe assetliabiily matching (CALM™) sielegy and investment  risk
management policy. OMFT's ALM objectve is 1o match maturities of the plan assels 1o the
refirement benefit obligation as they f&all dus. The Group manilors how' the duratian and
oxpacted yield of the investmenis match the expecied cash oulfltws arising from the
refirament banafil obligation,

.- .



Dal Monite Pacific Limited and itz Subsidiaries

HNotes to the finenclal stalements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

Employes benafits (cont'd)
Pian assets {cont'd)

DMFI's investment cbjectves are 1o ensurs that the assets of 5 qualiied defined benefit
plan are investad to provide an optimal rate of investment relum on the total Investmen
partfolio, consistent with the assumplion of a reasonable rak level, and b ensure that
pension funds are available o meet the plan's benefil obiigations as they becoms dus.

DMF] believes that a wellgversified invesiment portfolio, including bath eguity and flxed
income eompanents, will result in the highest attainable investmenl retum with an acceptable
lewvel of ovarall risk. DMFI's investment policies and procedures are designed o ensure that
T plan's investments are in compliance with the Employes Retirement Income Sacurity Act
["ERISA"L

Actwarial valuation

The Tunded cbiigations and plan aseels are measwed and valued with the advice of qualified
actuary who carries out & full valuation annually. The lasi valuation of these obligations and
plan wias perlommed in Apal 2024 wherein the results of these valuations torm the basis of
the far vatue of the funded obligations and plan assets as at 30 April 2024,

The principal actuarial assemptions wsed for accouniing purposes expressed as welghted
average Wwarne:

esssmneees DMF e

0 April 30 April
2024 2023
Dizcount rate (per annum) 55545 65 306 %, 5%
< DMP| -———
30 April 30 April
2024 2023
Discount rate {per annum) B.28% B.58%
Fudure salary increases (per annum) 8.00% 5.00%
< wens ROHG] smsecscaae
an april 3 April
2024 2023
Do raben (per annum) 6.27% 6.50%
Future salary increases (per annuwsm| 5.00% 5.00%

Y - . o




Del Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Hotes fo the financial statements
For the financial year ended 20 April 2024

20,

Employee benefits {cont’d)
Aciuarial valuation (comi'd)

Since the defined benefit plans and other benefi Babilities sre messuned on 3 discountad
basts, the discount rate i= a signdicant assumption. The discount rate for DMFI plan was
determined based on an analysis of inleres! rates for high-quality, long-term corporate debt
at each measurement date. The discount rate for DMP and ROHD Plans were detenmined
basad on the theoretical spol yield cunne calculated for the governmand sacurities market. In
order (o appropriately match the bond maturilies with expected future cash payments. the
Group ulilized differing bond porifolios o estimate the discount rates Tor the defined benefils
pension plans and fos the post-retiremant banafits.

The discount rate used to determine the defined benefit plans and for the post-retirement
benefita projected benefit obligation as of the reporting date is the rate in effect al the
measurement date. The same rate is also used 10 detenming the defined banefit pansion
plans and post-rdirement benefits for the folliowing liscal year, The defined benefls pension
plans’ invesiment guidelings are eslablished based upon an evalsion of market conditions,
tolerance for risk and cash requirements for benedil payments. Assumptions regarding future
mortality hawve besn based on published statistics and mortality tabiles

As at 30 April 2024 the wesghled average duration of DMP|'s and ROHO's defined bansfit
retrement cbligation is B.7 years and 3.7 years, respociively (2023: 7.3 vears and 4.8 vears,

respactivaly).
The projected future benafit payments for the OMP| and ROHQ plans are as follows:

Mg of 30 April 2024:
Total Expected Benefit
DMPI ROHG Payments
LSS 000 =S 000 LISS'000

2025 3437 543 3,880
2026 3,080 G2 3,142
2027 2,514 a0 2,594
2024 3,082 B3 3,165
2029 3,243 B 3328
2030-2034 16515 aE2 17187

Ag of 30 April 2023:
Total Expacted Benefit

DMPI ROHQ Peyments
Uss'000 LES3 00 USS000
2024 342 B9 3,490
2025 280 524 3,378
202 2887 51 2918
2027 2437 i 2.503
228 3,058 T2 3,130
2035-2033 15,421 Ghb 19,327




Ded Monte Pacific Limited and is Subsidiarias

Noies to the financial statemenis
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

20 Employes benefits (contd)
Actuarial valuation {coni'd)

The waighted averspe duration of DMF|"s defined benefit retiremeant obligaton are as follows:

Duration (years)
30 April 30 April
2024 2023
Chalified retiremant plan a.1 a6
Posi-retirement banedls plan 75 8.0
Executive refirerment plans A MIA
The projacted fulure benefit payments for the OMFI plan as of 30 Aprl 2024 and 2023 are
as follows:
Qther than
Mormal Warrmal

Retiremant Retirement Total
2024 USS'000 LISF D00 LUSF 000
Liags fhan one year 21,014 T43 21,767
More than one year o five years T2 888 2,460 75,126
Muora than five yesrs 71,950 2314 74,304

Oiher than
Marmal Hormal

Retirement Retlrement Total
2023 LISE 000 LISE'D00 LISS000
Laas than one year 21,848 727 22,575
Mo hn one year 1o fve years 78,265 2529 TH, T84
More lhan five years 75,791 2492 78,283



Del Monte Pacific Limited and s Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

20,

Employee benefits {cont'd)
Actuarial valuation (comt'd)

The weighted-average asset allocation of the Group's pension plan assats and weighted-
average largel allocation as of the measurement date from date of incorporation is as follows:

Target Allocation

30 April 2024 Range
Equaty securdins 2% 3%
Dbt securties B 5A8%
Diher B% 8%
Talal 100%

Target Allocation

30 April 2023 Range
Equity securitias 365 35%
Dbt securilies arst 5%
Othar s T
Total 100%

The plan exposes the Group o markel nsk.

The Board of DMFI apgroves the percentage of asset o be allocated lor fiked income
instruments &nd equities. The mtirement plan has st maximum exposuns limis for each type
of permissible investments in marketable securities and depcsit instruments, The Board of
DMFI may, from time to Sime, in the exercise of is reasonable discreton and taking into
account exisling imrestment opporunites, rview and revise such sifiocation and limds.

AN o




Del Monte Paciic Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial sistements
For the financial year endad 30 April 2024

20. Employees benefits (cont"d)

Source of estimation uncertainty

Meazwmment of empioyee banslit ebiigations

Fension expense and pension assetsiliabilties are detemined using carfain actusrial
estimates and assumptions refating to the discount rate used in veluing the subsidiary's
defined banefil obligations and future expeniences such as future salary Increases, retinamant
date or age, morality and tumover rate of covered employess, These eslimates and
assumpbong directly influence the amount of the pension asselsiibiities and expense

recognized in the inancial statemeants.

Sensitivity analysis

The calculation of the defined benefit cblgation is sensitive to the assumptions sat oul alowe,
The following Lable surmmarizas how the impect on the defined benefit obligation ai the end
al repodting period would have ncreased (decreased) as & resull of & change in the
reapective assumptions by the respectve percentages balow.

Dafined banefit ohligation

Discount rate (per annam)

Defined benefit obligation

Discount rate {per annum)
Future salary increases (per annum)
Defined benefit abligation

Ciscount rate {per annum)
Fulure salary increases (per annum)

< OMF
=
2024 2023
0. 50% 0.5086 0.50% 0.50%
mcrease dedrease mGreass decreass
USE'000 LISS 000 USE'000 LSS 000
(GRERL 7,339 (7, a.038
= DMP
-
2024 2023
1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%
inre@ss  decreasa incraase decreass
LISS 000 LISE'000 USE000 LSS'000
(1,705) 1.947 {1,769} 2,020
1,858 (1.Td8) 2032 {1,871}
= ROHG
s
2024 2023
1.0% 1.0%% 1.0% 1.0%0
(g o = ] decreass increasa decregse
LISS'000 LSS 000 LSS 0 LIS 000
(45) an 47 a2
Y | {4y 53 (48)



Dl Monte Pacific Limited and it Subsidiaries

Motes (o the financial statements
For the financial year endad 20 April 2024

20,

Empioyee benefits {cont’d)
Sensithvity analysia (comtd)

The above sensitivities are based on the average duration of the benefit obiigation
datermined at the date of the last full actuarial valuation &t 30 Aprl 2024 and are apoded to
adjust the dafined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting perod for the assumpbons
concemad. YWhilst the analysis doas not ake account of the full distibution of cash flows
axpected undar tha plan, i doas provids an approxenalion 1o the sensitivily of the assumpdion
shown,

Accumulated post-retirement bansfit obligation

The accurmnulaled postl-retirerme benefil obligation |5 computed in sccordance wilth 1AS 19,
Empopee Banelils, This quantity is the acluasal pregent walua of all benefite attributad wnder
the projected und credit method to service rendered prior o 8 parlicutar dabe. Prior o an
employee’s [ull eligibiity dafe, the accumulated post-relirement benafit obligation as of a
particuler date for an emnmploves |5 the portion of the expecled post-retirement bensfit
ctligation attrbuted to that employes’s service rendersd to that date; on and after the full
eligibiity date, the accumulsied and sxpecied posl-relirement benefil obligations far an
amployse are the zams.

Source of estimation uncedtainty

documulated postretiroment benefil obligalion is delermined ufing cerlam  actuarial
estimates and assumptions relating to the anmeal rate{s) of change in the cost of health care
benafils curendly provided by the posl-retiemant benelil plans due o faclors olher Dhan
changes in the composition of the plan population by age and dependency slatus, for sach
year from the measurement dale wnlll the end of the period in which benefils are expected
to be paid. These estimales and assumplicns directly influence the amownd of lhe pansion
assets/liablliies and expense recognized in the financial statemants.

Multi-employer plans

The Group participates in ssveral multi-employer pension plans, which provide defined
banafs o covered union amployees. Contribulion rates to the mull-employer plans are
provided in the collactive bargsining agreements for the cowered union employeas. Tha
coniribution rates are expressed In lerms of specific amounts to be contributed based on
hours worked by covered union employees. The Group made contributions of US53.5 milion,
LISER 4 meilion and LSST.0 million during fiecal yaans 2024, 2023 and 2022, raspactivaly,

The risks of panlcipating in the mult-emgioyver pensaan plans are as follows;

= gssefs contributed to the mult-employer plan by the Group may be wmed to provide
benefils o employeas of aolher peticipaling empoyens,

= if 2 participating employer stops contmbuting to the plan, the unfunded obligetions of the
plan alacable to such withdrawing employer may be parially borms by the Group, and

= if the Group stops participating in some of its muli-employer pension plans, the Group
mzy e required to pay those plans an eamount bassed on i aliocable share of tha
underfunded status of the plan, referred 0 as a withdrawal ability,



Dal Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial stalemants
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

20, Employee benafits (cont'd)
Defined Contribution Plans

The Group paricipstes in two defined coniribution plans. Group contrbutlons o thase
defined contribution plans are based on empioyes confributionz and compensation, The
Bxpense recognized under these plans for the year endod 30 Apal 2024 was USE3.6 million

(2023: USS54.8 million; 2022: US$4.2 million).
Cither plans

The Group has varous olher nongualifiad retirement plans and supplemental retirement
peans Tor execulives, designed to provide benefits in excess of those otherwise permittad
undier the Group's qusiified relirement plans. These plans are unfunded and comply with IRS

mikes Tor nongqualifed plans,

1., Envirenmental remediation labifities

Group
30 April 30 April
2024
US5'000 LSE000

Al beginning of the year =
Provisions used during the year =

Al end of the year -

Provision for environmantal remadiation relales o lagal or constructive obligations incurmed

by the Group in conneclion with @5 operations and have all besn setiled in 2023,




Del Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

MNotes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

22, Trade payables and other current liabilities

Group Company
InAaprll 30 aprd 30 Aprl 30 April
Mote 2024 2023 2024 2023
LUS$000 LSS 000 LSE0OD LSE000

Trade payaties 223060 218700 Ta2 L]
Accried aperaling expensas:

Inderast i3 14,688 10,441 4,704 3,228

Adverlising 8471 4,060 - -

Trace promotions 6,805 8410 - -

Taxaes and insuwrance 16,355 11.755 - -

Professional fons 13,847 9,200 EGE 394

Froight and warshousing 13,116 &,902 - -

Salaries, bomuses and other

amployes banefits 3875 Z.0m9 - 2

Ukifins 1.908 3,735 - =

Tinplate and consigned siocks 4,482 2,204 - v

Miscallanaous 15,302 11,250 293 309
Owverdrafts 238 1.969 = =
Accised payroll expensas 4, #04 5,880 3,718 4, 207
Withiasbd From

(taxes and sockal securily cost) 2,764 2473 41 41
Caoniract liabililiss 24 1,032 2 366 - -
WAT pavables 162 214 - -
Advences from cusinmers 165 208 - =
Dervative liahiliies 18 2 TGE 3,553 - -
Cther payables a7 856 - 12,632 -
Currend porbion of loag-lerm

equipmeant financing 14 5618 - - =
Amountg due 1o subsidiaries

(nen-trade) T - - 171,944 107 8BO

360978 304,940 154 661 116,734

Accreed miscallaneous inclede management fees and other outside sendcas, land and other
remntal, credit cand payable and other Importation incidental costs.

Caontract ishdties perain 0 advances trom customers swhich are generally expectsd 1o be
recognized as rvenue within a period of kess than one year, Accordingly, opening contract
liabilities are recognized within each reporting period, The Group applies the praclical
eupandierd in paragraph 121 of IFRS 15 and does not discloss the aggregate amount of the
tramsaction price of unsatisfied or partialy unsalisfied performance obiigations az of tha end
af the repording pered because its contracts have original expected durations of one year or
less.

it payabies inclute the Cosmpany's payables b Aviemone Lid, & wholly-oemed subsidiany
of MutriAsia Inc, and an entity under the same controlling shareholders of the Company,
amauring 1o US512.6 million. The amounl due is unsecured, bears an inlerest of 7% per
annum, and s payabie on demand. Other payables skso include a subskliany's payables o
& minarity shareholder of the Company, Bluebell Group Holdings Limited amounting (o
USE15.0 million. Tha amount dus 5 unsacured, interest-free and payablea on demand.

The armdaunls dies 1o subsidisries are unsecured, intersst-fres and payable on demand.
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Dl Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

MNotes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

3.

Leases [cont'd)

Group as a lessee (cont'd)

In Aprill 2021, DMPI| entensd a sals and leasaback ol Buildings, wanehouses and equiprmend
located on foreshore [and, The assels were sold to DEARBC and subseguently leased back
1o OIP| with payment and lease terms of 20 years for Dolh the sale and he lease, Righi-of-
usd a5sEls recognized al commeancemeant date amounted o WSET. 1 million which comprises
the proportion of the presdocs carming amount of the assels that relabes o nghl of wse
retaingd by DMP1 and the adjustmeni for balow-markel terms on the sale of assats. Leasa
habidity and gain on sake and leassback at commencament date amounted to LS54, 8 million
and UWSS0.2 million, respectively,

The foliowing are the amounts recognized in the incomes stalement:

a0 April 30 April
2024 2023
HWate LIS 000 SE'000
Amodization expense of righl-of-use
assats 25 22,582 3z2arz
Interest expense on lease llabilites 26 4 692 5443
Expensis relabing Lo shor-larm leases 25 10,928 12,882
ariable lease payments 508 402
Tetal amount recognized in statement
of incame 48,710 51,683

Amortiration expanse is ned of amount capitalized to inventores and fo PPE as bearer plants
during the year, and includes amortization capitalized previously 1o inventonies that were sokd
durirg the vear amounting to LSS Z2.8 million (2023 US3 23.9 million).

Thee Gromp has Sevaral lease coniracts thal incude exlension and lesmination oplions, The
Group appliss judgment in svaluating whather it B reascnably cartain whether or not o
exercise the option to renew or lerminale the [sase. That is, |t considers &l relevant factors
that craale an economic ncantiva Tor it to exarcisa aither the renewal or termination. Alter
tha commencament date, the Group reasesases the leasa term if thers & 3 significant event
of change in circumstances that & within its control and affects its ability 1o exercise of nol
o mxercise the option fo renew or to terminale such as construction of significant leasehold
improvements o sipnificant customization 1o the leased assat.

The Group includsd the renewal period for cerlain lease contract on warehouses as parl of
ihe lease term. The Group typically exercises its option to renew for the leasa because there
will be a significant negative effect on production if a replacement asset is not readily
availabla. The renewabla paniod of land, building and cerain wamnhouse are not incleded as
part of the keese term &s these ane not reesonably ceraln 1o be exercised since I s subject
1o muiual sgreement of bolh paries and |s considensd 85 unenforceabis.




Del Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year onded 30 April 2024

23, Leases (cont'd)
Group as a lessee [cont'd)

C#API also entered into &8 lease contract with DEARBC, wilh an indlal condract period of 25
wears from 11 January 1980 10 10 January 2024, The l2ase contract was amanded by bath
parties effective 11 Jansary 2019 io edend the lease penod to 10 January 2048, Effective
danuary 2013, both parties &so approved the amandmeant granting the Group the sole option
b terminate the lease every five years withoul incurring penally uniil the end of the conirad
period, Since DMPI has the sole oplion to terminate the lease every five years without
incurring penalty, DMPI has the absolute right to enforce the entire duration of the lease [ia.,
legss Lerm),

CMPI assessed the laass baom 10 be five years from 11 January 2018 since it is not yel
reasorally cerlain [ anew Beyond the initial fiwe-year non-cancelisble lease pencd dus to
i redatively long-lime horzon to be able o forecast the facts and Groumstances that will
mefil the renewal of the contract. There are alse ne significant economic penalties cther than
the slanding crops which only have a e cycle of up to three years,

On 8 January 2024, the lease tarm was atended lor another 256 years slaring 11 January
2024, Starting 1 Mey 2024, the anmsl renial rate will Increase rom PR 16,500 par hectam
o Php 19,000 per hectara and the annual remtal rate will increase from Php9,000 per hectars
io Php20,000 per hectare staring 1 January 2027

Sat out below are the carmying amounis of lease Rabiiies and the movemanis duning the

pariod;
30 April 30 April
2024 2023
USE'000 LIS5'000
AL tha biginning of yaar 100,056 121,320
Additions 25050 17,9486
Acerelion of interest B,158 6615
Paymenis of principal (35 4886) {38.062)
Payrments of inferest [2,776) (3.723)
Currency realignment (1,643} (3, 140]
Al the end of year 81,414 100,006
Currenl 20470 27 gaz
MonCUrmant 0,249 T2.204
81,414 100,086

Finance expensa in the consclidated ststements of cesh flows 8 nel of the amount
capitafized In PPE a3 bearer plants [Note 5) amounting to USS1.5 milllon (2023 USH1.2
millien].

- 103 -



Dl Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motas io the financial statements
Faor the financial year ended 30 April 2024

23

Leases (cont'd)
Group as a lessor

Thae Growp has sublease agresmants which provides for lease rentals based on an agreed
fxed monihly rate. Rental income related to thees sublease agreements amounied to US50.1
million for the fiscal vear 2024 (2023 US30.5 million],

Laase recaivables rapresent amounts fo be setlied in cash over the remaining lease term.
Mowvermen) of e lease rmcahvables duning the penod are as follows;

30 April 30 April
2024 2023
USE'000 UZ§000
At the beginning of year 186 81
Adjustments = 3
Contractual recespls (126} {4B5)
Inferes income 4 17
Currancy realignment (7l (2
Al the end of year T 186
Currend - 10
Moncurrant 5T &
&7 186

Sources of estimation uncertainty
Detarmination of incremental borrowing rale (1BR) for lease Habilities

The Group is not abla to readily detammine the interest rate implicit in the leass, therefore, &
uses |ts 18R to measure Ease labililies, The |BR is (he rabe of mberast thal the Group sould
have to pay 10 bomow ovar a similar term, and with & similar sacurity, the funds necessary to
cbtain an assed of a similar value (o the righl-of-use assel in a similar sconomic enviranment.
The IBR thesefore reflects what the Group “would heve to pay’, which requires estimation
when no obeerveDle rates are avallable (such as fer subsidiaries hat oo nol amdar o
financing transachons} or when they nesd to be adjiustad to reflect tha larmmes and condiions
of the lease (2.9, when lesses are nol in the subsidiary's funclional currency), The Group
s ausling dabl borfdeing rabes of the respective Group's entilies as its IBR.



Del Monte Pacific Limited and 15 Subsidiaries

Moles o the financial statements
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24, Revenue

Revenue of the Group comprises fair value gaing arising from changes in fair valug of the
Group's blalegical assets recognized upon harvest of agricullural produce and gross invoicad
sales of goods, net of discounts and retums, recogrized when goode are delivered. Al intra-
group transections have beoen axcluded from the Group revenue.

Group
30 Aprii 30 April 30 April
Mate 2024 2023 2022
LISS'000 USS'000 LSS 000
(Gross revenua 28595 300 2,811,248 2. 707 207
Fair value gain on biological assats 11 46, 462 55,105 65,678
Lees:
Diacounts (E9,450) (B8, 550) {84,255)
Retums [25,114) [20,188) (18,264)
Diresct promobions {359,658} (330, 885) (328.280)
Mat revenue 2,427,730 2,421,113 2342 0BG

Disagoregation of revenus is presented in Note 20,
Contract balances

The foliowing table provides information about Irade receivables and contract liabililies rem
coniracts with customens:

Group
30 April 30 April 30 April
Hote 2024 2023 2022

LSS'000 LISE'000 UEs'000
Recehablss, inchaded in Trade and
ofhaer recavables — Gross of ECL

allowance 13 192 668 185,335 169 8310
Contract liabilities, included i Trade
payables and other current liabilities 22 1,032 2,366 2,001

Coniract Esbéities pertain to advances from customers which are generally axpacted o b
recognized as revenue within @ period of less than one year, Accordingly, opening contract
liabilites are recognized within sach reporting periad, The Group applies the practical
expedient in paragraph 121 of IFRS 15 and does not discloss the agoregate amount of the
Iransaction price of unsatisfied ar parially unsatisfied performance obligations as of the end
of the reporting period because its contracts have original expected durations of cne year or
less. Conlract liabilities amounting 1o US52.4 milion a5 &t 1 May 2023 have been recognized
a5 revanua in fiscal year 2024 (1 May 2022: US32.1 milion),

The Group recognized revenua adjustments from performance obligations satisfied or
partialty satisfied in previous periods due 1o changes in esimates of trade promotions,
coupon redemptions, cash discounts and penalties amounting 1o nil, ril and USS0.7 million
in fiscal vear 2024, 2023 and 2022, respactivety.
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Dal Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

27. Tax sxpense - net

Group
Yoar ended  Yearended  Year enced
30 April 30 April 30 April

HNote B4 2023 2022
USE'D00 LUSS'000 LESS 000
Curremnt tax expense
- Curreni year 14,003 26,750 20,605
Deferred tax credit
= Driginadion and reversal of
femporary differences o (32,511) {9.592) 18,655
(18, 508) 17167 35,300
Reconciliation of effective tax
rale
(Loss) profit befors Exation (150,457 42 544 154,830
Tazation on profil &t applicable
tax rates {31,587) 8,201 31,048
Final tax o dividend 5,931 6,586 ¥
Mon-deductible expenses 5,694 4822 2,389
Mon-laxable income (26) (12} (8]
Change In unrecognized deferrad
lax asged 1.267 {1,410} [4,356)
Changs in tax rate - 1,174 1,008
Cithars 23 [(194] 1257}
{18,508} 17 167 359,300
108 -




Dl Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

T,

Tax expanse - net jcont'd)

Group
Year anded  Year ended  Year anded
30 April 30 April 30 April
2024 2023 22
USS000 USE'000 Us$'000
Applicable tax rates
- Philippinas (non-BEZA) 25.10% 26.0% 25.0%
- Philippines (PEZA)* 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
- India 41.2% d1.2% 31.2%
- Bingapara 17.0% 17.0% 17.0%
- Unked States of America 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
- Mexico 30.0% 30.0% 30.0%

“hagad o grods peali e e pear

CMP1's production opemtions in Cagsyan de Oro City, Philippines are undertaken in the
Philippine Paclking Agricultural Export Processing Jone ("PPAEPZ’), This zone was
eslablizhed in accordance with the regulations of the Philippine Economic Zone Authosity
("PEZA"). DMP enjoys several fiscal and non-fiscal incentives Including & 5% tax on grogs
profit in lieu of the stalutory 25% (2023: 25% and 2022 25%) on profit before tax, duty fres
importation of capital equipment, raw materials and supplies used in pursuit of Bs Ecozone-
registersd aclivitios, among ot incentives, DMP recahrad PEZA approval Tor & second
zong, the Bukidnon Agro-Rescwrces Export Zone ("BAREZ"), for agri-development projects,
The currend tax incentive expired in fiscal year 2018 and was extended for an additional three
years anding fiscal year 2027, On 21 Decembear 2021, PEZA ssusd a Certificals of Board
Resolutian approwing the retention of DMPY's status &s an Export Ecozone Enterprise (EEE)
bayond 31 December 2021. The incentives may be avalsd of for &s long as DMPI complies
with the PEZA's requirements which indude exporiing 70% of itz production and thess
incentives are nod rationalized by law,

Cn 7 May 2021, PEZA issuad Laetter of Autharity ["LOAT) Mo, 21-EQD-LSFEE-1006 thal
provides for exiengion of the DMPI's Ecozone Export Enterprise status until the Implamenting
Rules and Reguation of CREATE Al is msusid, Thie staius of DMP1 as a PEZA regislerad
export enterprise is expectad io be retained being part of the Investment Priomty Flan and
for meeling the condilions set forth by PEZA to allow & company o confinue avalling of the
incentives despite excesding local sales.

On A7 Auguest 2024, PEZA issusd LOA Mo, 21-EQOD-LE/FPEE-181E fo renew DMPa
aulhodty io sal to the domestic market a porfion of its production of its registered products
produced at the PPAEPZ [ BAREZ. Said LOA expired 31 December 2021, On 24 January
2022, LOA No. 22-EQD-LSFPEE-0166 was issued 1o cover the period 1 January 2022 1o
31 July 2022,

On 8 June 2022, PEZA lssued LOA Mo, 22-E0D-LSFFEE-Z251 to renaw DMPI's authority
o sall o the domestic matkel & portion of ils production of ils registered products prodeced
&t the PPAEPZ | BAREZ for the pesiod 1 August 2022 to 31 July 2023,

On 29 June 2022 PEZA ssued LOA No, 22-ERDVAAEEEE-2485, the applicalion to include

the additional faciity al the Queron Agro-Industial Zore (QALZ) 10 engage in the "production
of packed fresh pinaapples in carton boxes with or without crown” was approved,



Del Monte Pacific Limited and iis Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

7. Tax expense - net (cont'd)

On 18 July 2023 PEZA lssued LOA No, 22-EQD-LSFPEE-2251 10 renew DMPT's aubhority
ta sall to the domestic mearkst ils registered products manufaciured al its PRAERZ, BAREZ
and QALL faciliies, provided that the annual total volume (statistical cases) of its local sales
for FY ending 30 April 2023 shall not exceed the eguivalent of thity percent (30%) of the
ennual totsl sales volume [statistical cases) for the said penod, which shall incude the
volume intended for donation lo Del Monte Foundation Inc.

On 2 January 2024, PEZA issued renewal of LOA Mo, 23-EO0D-LS/FP/EE-1768, authorizing
DMPI lo sell to the domestic market ks registered products manufaciured at its PPAEPZ,
BAREZ and QAIZ fadlities, provided that the annual fotal volume (statistical cases) of #s
local sales for FY ending 30 April 2024 shall not exceed the equivalent of thiny perce (30%)
of the annual total sales volume | statistical cases) for the said pariod, which shall nclude the
volume inlendad for donafion io Del Monte Foundation Inc.

On 25 March 2024, PEZA issued axdension of LOA Nos. Z3-ECD-LS/FR/EE-1TES by LOA
No. 24-E0D0-LS/FREE-00T authodzing DMPI o sell to the domestic markest is regisierad
products manufactured a1 its PPAEPZ, BAREZ and QAIZ facililies, provided thal the annual
fotal valurmea (statisfical cases) of its local sales for FY anding 30 Aprié 2024 shall not excesd
ihe equivalent of thiry percent (30%) of the annual todal sales volume (statistical cases) for
the said penod, which shall include the voluma intended for donation to Del Monte
Foundation inc. The said LOA exdension s vald undl 31 May 2024,

O 28 May 2024, PEZA sswed axtansion of LOA Mos, 23-EQD-LS/FP/EE-1768 by LOW No.
#-E00-LS/FRIEE-00T authonizing DMPT to sell to the domestc markel s regisiered
products manufactured alils PPAEPZ, BAREZ and QAIZ facilities, providad that the annual
total volume [statistical cases) of its local sales for FY ending 30 April 2024 shall nol exceed
Ehi squivakant af thirly parcend (30%) of the anmual total sales volume (statistical cases) for
the said pedod, which shall include the wolume inended for donation fo Del Monte
Foundation inc. The said LOA extension is vakd unfil 31 July 2025.

Campary

There i no e expenss (of the Company as the mcome of the Company is exempt from all
income faxas n tha Brilksh \igin Islands except for ROHG in the Philippines which has a
praferential tey rate of 10%.

Sowurces of estimation uncarfainty
Measurement of income tax

Thie Group has exposure 1o income taxes i several forsign jurisdictions. Significant
judgrrent is Invabeed in deteomining the group-wide provision for income tases. There ars
ceriain ransachons and comgutaticns for which the ultimate fax determination is uncerain
durirgg the crdinary course of business. The Group recognizes liabilities for expected tax
lBsues baszed on estimates of whather additional laxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these maliers is different from the amounls thal were initsally recognized, such
diffarences will impact the incoms tax and defarrad tax provisions in the pariod inowhich such
determinalion is made.

= 11 =
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2B, Earnings per share
Basle sarnings per ahare

Basic sasmings par share |s calculated by dividing the nel profil atiributable to shambolders
by the welghled average number of crdinary shares in issue during the year,

Gurmsative undecared prefarence dividends amounied to LSS0.4 milllon 8s of 30 April 2022
There was no cumsalive undeclared preference dividends as of 30 April 2024 and 2023 as
all praferance shares wera fully redeamead.

Group
Year ended Year anded ‘Year anded
30 April 30 April 30 April
2024 2023 2022

UIS5'000 LSS 000 LSS 000
[Loss) prafit atiributable 1o owners of The

Company {128,157} 16,949 100,031
Cumuiative preference shane dividends for
the yesar - {4,083} (18,803}
{128,157} 12,888 B1,128

Waighted avarage numbsas of ondinary shares
{'000):
Culslanding ordinary shares ot 1 May,
reprasanting weighted average numiber of
ardinary shanes during the year 1,843 460 1,843 980 1,943, 960

Basic sarnings per shara {in US cants) (B.64) 0.66 417

- 114
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Eamings (loss) per share (cont'd)
Diluted samings per share

For the purpose of calculation of the diluted samings per ordinary share, the welghtes
gverage number of ordinary shares in issue 5 adjusted to take inte account the dilutive effect
ansing from Del Monte Pacific RSP, with the potental erdinary shares weighted far the period

Growp
Year Year Yzar
ended ended enced
a0 Agril 30 April 30 April
2024 2023 2022
LSS 000 LESF 000 LI=E000
Prodit atiributable io owners of the Company {129,157) 16,349 100,031
Cumulative preference shane dividends for tha
year - (4, 063) (18, 20)
(128,157 12,886 B1. 128

Dduted weighled average number of shares
{000

Weighted average nember of ordinary shares at
ard of year [basic) 1,543,880 1,943,960 1,843,950

Podential crdinary shares issuable under share
awards - - -

Weighted average number of ordinary sharas
issuad (diluted) 1,843 960 1,943, 560 1,543,960

Diluted earmings per share {in US cents) {6.64) 0.58 417

Operating segmants

The Group has bwo operaling segments: geographical and product. In dentifying thase
oparatng ssoments. managemsanl generally considers geographical as its primary oparatesg
sagmant,

Goeographical segments
Aimavicas

Repored under the Americas segrment ane sales and profit on sales in USA. Canads and
Mewco, Majonty of this segment’s sakes are principally scld under the Del Monle brand bul
also includes products under the Contading, SEW, College Inn @&nd other brands. This
segmend also incudes sales of privade Bbsl food products. Sales in the Amenicas are
digtributed across the United States, In & channels serving retall markets, as well as to the
LIS military, certain export makets, the foodservics industry and other food processors.
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9. Operating segments (cont'd)
Geagraphical sagments [cont'd)
Asla Pacific

Reported under Asia Pacific are sales and profit on eales in the Philippines, comprising of
Del Monte branded packaged products, including Del Monte traded goods, and Today's
brand; S&W products in Asia and the Meddle East both fresh and packaged; and Del Monle
packaged products from the Philippines inlo Indian subcontinant as well as unbranded fresh

and packagad goods,
Europe

Included in this segment are sales of 5&W co-branded, buyer's own label and unbranded
produsis in Europe

Froduct segments
faals ang Meal Enhancers

The meals and meal enhancers sagment includes sales and profit of a) packaged pineapples
which are mairdy used to enhance the flavor of different dishes, and b} products that are
added o ciher ingredients to prepare a meal, such as packaged vegelables, tomalo-based
products such as ketchup, tomato sauce, pasia sauce, fecipe Sauce, PiZZA Sauce, pasia,
broth and siock, and condiments under five brands, namaly Dal Monie, S&W, Caoliege Inn,
Contadina and KHchen Basics, Key prodects under this segmeni are packaged beans,
packaged com, broth and stock sold in the United States as well as canned pineapple and
tomato-based products sokd in the Uniled States and Asia Pacific, This segment inchedes the
FLAME segment of DMFHL.

Snacking and Desserts

The snacking and desserts segment includas sales and pralit of packaged fruls, ncluding
frazen, under the Del Monte, S&W, Joyba and Today's brands. This also includes the product
innovalions in the Philippings In the biscults category and the Joyba beverages in the Unied
States. This segment includes tha Healthy Snacking of DRMEHL

Bervarage

Beverage includes sales and profit of 100% pinespple juice in can, juice drinks in various
flanvaes i can, tetra and PET packaging, and pineapple julcs concentrate,

FProyriiern Fresh frulf

Fresh fruit and ofthers include sakes and profit of S&W branded frash pineapples in Asia
Pacific and buyer's label or non-branded frash pineapples in Aska,

Others

Indudes all sales and profit of non-branded products, excleding fresh pineapples, and ihe
“Beyond Retail segment of DMFHL. This includes buyer's lsbels, that are packaged in
different formats such 85 can, plastic cup, pouch and asepdic bag, This ako includes sales
of calile in the Phillppines, The cattle operation helps in the disposal of pingadphe pulp, &
residue af pineapple processing which is fad to the animals.
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24, Dperaling segments (cont'd)
Information abowt reportable segments

[ e——— | P L O Azl Pacitic I Buropo Ju Tuatal *
Yoar ended Year snded Vear anideel Year andad Yaar andad Year andad Yeor ended Yesr enided Year ended Year enced Year endad Year sndad
18 April 30 April 30 Aprd 30 April 1@ April M April 0 Apri 30 April 30 A pri T3 fpril 30 Aprd B April

DOz 223 22 024 2023 02z 2024 2023 mai o r ] 1033 20z
LIGE030 USE00D  USEDMG  LUS3DDD US5E0D0  LS§onn US50m ussoon  wsd000 USSoo0 EEE000 USE0

R

Maaks mnd maal

SANANGETE Fedd, 2800 821,708 T2 Baj 207 B0E 195 G5 207 24 S48 BEN 1915 10a8Ad48 050,265 &5, a7

Snacking and dossarts  £71,584 473,304 £03 Ra0 81,383 21,815 88 11 23 i 325 e 555,347 T4 555

Pepemibai frasls il - - - 160 G664 145,111 131,080 = = - 160 B 148,111 1371 080

Bemymroges B,0584 THT #,333 154 641 147,105 T4, THH 1.85) 240 2,232 144 5 161,248 153, 355

Cifers L2793 437 454 465,884 48,718 51,845 &7 558 A7 G, 045 0,857 Sk 535343 584900

Tutal 1,751,248 1,740,190 1,667,600 BE3, 235 BILE12 839,357 A2 244 47,511 35,128 ZAITTHD A1 X306
Oparaling oo me {22,585 173,950 161,894 107,074 107 434 132,116 {1,8B1) 65432 TasE e 288,31 301,565
Unaliooated GEA = — — = - - - - - 0417 [AnE; {30,017)
e InComes (Eparss] = i = = = 5 = = H 4B,18TY (11,780 {4,758
Operating Incomrs —
Groug level (22,588 173,080 51,854 107,074 107 434 112118 {1, BEE] L2 7558 45,0032 145 530 267,280
Share in mel hoss of

Jind vamliaes - - - 11,0824 {1,486} [4,954) - - - |1, 082% {1 4EE| {4, 0545
Depracaaion g

arrrarlzation 50,103 B 48s 87,764 t50,ATY 14,818 134,858 S = - 00,944 184,378 150,422
Capitsl sxpenditure 43,290 858,423 a2z 148,429 182480 179,537 - - = 181,718 INT 823 g 699

- 4 -
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28,

.

Operating segments [cont"d)
Major customear

Revenuas from a major customesr of the Americas segment for fiscal year 2024 armounted o
approdimately USSE31.8 milion or 2B.1% (2023 US3802.2 milkon or 25%, 2022 5617.4
mion or 24%] of the Group's todal revenue. The cuslormer accounted for apprcamately 13%
al ade and other recelvable as at 30 Apdl 2024 [2023; 14%).

Seasonality of oparations

The Group's business is subjed o seasonal fluctuations as & resull of ncreasad demand

during the end of year festive season. For Amenicas, products are soid heavily during the
‘I'Itm'l.l:ggh.rrq and Chrisirmes spasnns, &g such, he Group's sales are usually highes durng

the fiva months from August 1o Decambiar,

The Group operates B produclion facifies in the USA, Mexico, and the Philippines as at 30
April 2024 (2023 11), Fruit plants are located in Calfornia and Washington in the 5. and
in the Phlippines. Mast of its vegetable plants are located in the U3, Midwesi and its tomato
plant |s located in Califomia.

The WS Consumer Food Business has 8 ssascnal production cycle thal generally runs
bedwean the months of June and Ocober, This seasonal production primarly relates to the
majorty of processed frui, vegetable and lomato products, while some of its processed frull
and lomato products and its College Inn broth products are produced throughout the yaar.
Additionally, the Consumer Food Business has confracts o co-pack cerain processed fuit
ard vegetable products for other companbas.

Share option and incentive plans

The Company adoptad the Del Monta Pectiic Executive Share Option Plan 2016 ("ESOP
20167}, which was approved by the shareholders al the general mesling held on 30 Awgust
2MME. The purpose of the ESOP 2016 is to provide an opportunity for Group execulives and
directors o participate in the equity of the Company in order o motivate them to excel In thelr
parformanca. The EBCP 2016 shall be walid for a panod of ten years; however, it has yel fo
hemplemented, and no oplions had been granted (o-dabe,

The ESOP 2016 is adminsiered by the Remuneration Share Oplion Commdles (RS0E),



Del Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Notes to the financial statements
For the financlal year ended 30 April 2024

3,

Share option and incentive plans |cont'd)
Cash incentives

On 16 December 2018, DMFHI granted a fofal cash incentive of USS2.6 million to kay
execilives under cash ncentive award agresments. The grams require parformance critena
o b6 achieved. Tha awards will vast in o equal annual pacls oWser 8 period of approximataly
two years when the employes remains employed on each vesting data.

The aconeed net obigation as of 30 Ageil 2024 is nil (2023: USE4.0 million). Tolal expensa
recogiized under “Wages, salares and other benefifs! In the consolidated Income statemant
of the Group amounied fo -LIS$4.0 million, USS0.3 million and LSS50 milion in fiscal years
2024, 2023 and 2022, respactivaly,

Long Term Incantive Plan
Dvarviow

Eifective as of 4 October 2021, DMPI had established the DMPI Long Term Incentive Flan
of 2021 "DMPI LTIFY) for the purpose of providing designated employees of DMP| with the
opporiunity to recaive grants of nongualified stock opilons.

Participation

Farficipation i (he DMP LTIP i limited to amplness of CMPEand s subsidianes (ncluding
any officar who i also an employes), who will be qualified and approved by the DMP RS0C
From (hee fist of potential participants identified by Maragement as orilical to the defvery of
DMPI's Long Rangs Flan

Administration

The DP RE0C adménisters and interprats the D3P LTIP. The DMPI RS0C has full power
and express discrefionary asbonty o administer and arpesd the Plan, to make factual
datarminations and bo adopt or amend such rules, reguistions, sgreements and instrements
for implementing he DMPI LTIP in its sole discretion, The DMP1 R20C may amend or
terminaste the LTIP at any time; provided, howeves, that the RS0C cannct amend the DMPI
LTIF withoust the approval of the sharsholdars of OMPI I such spproval i reguired In order
by eamply with applicable laws o securilies exchange requirements.

Thaxfe was No sEpenss moognizsd in the consolidatad income statamaat ansing from the
AP LTI for fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022,
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3.

Share option and Incentive plans (cont'd)
Principal Tayms of the Plan

Grands under the DMPI LTIP consist of siock options and are subject bo the ferms and
conditiora af the plan s well as those specified as to the participants in the applicable gram
agraements. Subject fo corfain adjustments, the maximum asgoregate number of DMP
shares that may be Issued pursuant 1o such stock options is up to 2% of DMPI's total issued
and autstanding common sheres

The OMPI RE0OC determines the number of shares pursuarnt to each stock option and the
recipient of sach grant, Each stock oplion has a berm of fve vears, 50% shall become vested
on the third year from the grant dale while the remaining 50% shall become vesiad on tha
fifth year from the grant date. Each atock option will veat in accordanca with such vesting
wofudiss i1 the recipiant conlinues 0 bo amployad by DREP] from tha daie of grant unil the
applicable vesting date. Any unvested stock option shell be forfeited upon the paricipant's
separation of senice and may be made available for re-issuance lo anather participant.
Howewer, wested stock options will remain exerclsable by 8 separated participant for 50 days
from separation Trom DMP or in case of death or disahilly, vested slock options shall be
exgrcizable by the participant's lagal heirs or legal representstives within one yaar from such
QCCUTEnCE.

Recpienis of grants of slock options ang not required b pay any amount upon aggcatcn ar
sccepiance of the grant The exercise price of stock options shall not be less than the fair
rarkiel value of & share on the dala of granl. Dnoe a stock oplion is exercised, the voling,
dividend, trangfar and ciher rights attached to the shares are the eame as with other shares
of DMPI commoen stock, provided the shares remain outstanding.

Lipan vesting of a stock opleon, a recipient of a grand will have fhe right to reguire DMPI 1o
repurchase all or any portion of the vested portion of a sfock oplion at the applicable fair
marked valug of a sharg, lass the axercisa prica

Financial risk managemeant

The Group has exposuce to the following risks from financal instruments:

cradit riak

interast rate nsk
bquidity risk

foreign exchange risk
commadily prce rsk

B 8B B 4
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32, Finangial risk management (cont’d)
Risk management framework

Thee Board of the Groug has overall respansibility for the estabishment and overaight of the
Group's nisk manageamant framework. The Audit and Risk Commiites ("ARC™) is responsible

Far maniboring the Group's risk management policies developed by management.

The Groug's risk management poicies are established to identify and analyze the rieks faced
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limds and controls, and o monilor isks and adhesence
b lmits.

Risk managamant pobicias and systems are reviewsd ragulary 1o rafled changes in marke
conditions and the Groesp's activities. The Geowp, through its training and management
etandards and procedwres, sme 1o develop 3 disciplned and constructive costrol
environmeant in which all employeas understand their roles and obligations.

The ARC oversees how managemsant monitces compliance with the Group's risk
management pocies and procedures, and roviews the adequacy of the risk managenent
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The ARG is assisted in its ovarsight
role by Infernal Audil, Infemal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoo reviews of rsk
managemsnt controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the ARC.

Financial nisk management objectives and policies

Risk managamant is integral to the whole business of the Group, The Group has a system
of conbrols in place 1o creale an accepiable balance betwesn the cost of rlsks occuming and
ihe cost of managing the risks. The Board of the Group continually monitors the Group's risk
mansgemen process fo ensure thal an appropriate balance between risk and conrol s
achisvad.

Cradit sk

Cradit sk is the risk of financial loss to the Groagp If 8 customear or cauntarparty to a financial
instrurmnent fails to meet s confractual cbligations, and anses principally from the Groug's
recevables o custormers, The carrying amounts of inancial assets in the stabements of
financial position reprasent the Growup and the Company’s maximum exposares to credil sk,
before taking Into account any collateral hekd, The Group and Cormpany doonot hold any
collataral n respact of their financial assats.

Tha Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainky by the individual cheraciaristics of
each cusiomer, However, management also considers the demographics of the Group's
customer base, incheding the defaull ek of the mdustry and counfries in which customears
are Ipcated, a5 these factors may have an influence on credil sk,
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3z Financial risk managerment (sant"d)
Credit Ask fcont'd)

The ARC has approved a cradit policy under which sach new cuslomer is analyzed
individually for creditworihingss before the Group's standard payment and delivery terms and
conditiona are offered. The Group's reviesy includes cradit ralings, where avasiabis, and In
same cases bank references. Purchese Gmits are established for each customer, which
represents the maximum opan ameunt, Customers failing 0 meel the Groug's benchimsank
credit worthiness may trangact with the Group only on a prepayment or Letbers Of Credi
basiz.

Exposurg fo credif sk

Al the reporting date, the maskmum ezposwe o credit risk for financial assets, ewcluding
cash on hand, 0y Qeograshic regon was:

Group
30 April 30 April
LSS 000 LSE000
AMmencas 133, 855 154 4606
Evirage 12 686 10,418
Asia Pacific 20,093 90,234
236,634 264,142

Af 30 Apal 2024, the Group's mast significant custemar accountad Tar 14% of the rade and
ather receivables camying amount (2023, 14%),

Impsinment lnssas
The aging of financial gesets excluding cash on hand that wers nol impaired at the reporing
date was.
Group
30 April 30 A pril
2024 2023
LSS 000 LSS 000
Within credit termes 166,118 177 466
Pasgi cue [ - 60 days 32 894 9,012
Pasi due §1 - 30 days 3,812 7,128
Pasd chui 91 - 120 days 521 6,203
Bore than 120 days 26,436 34,333
236,634 204 142

Az at 30 April 2024 and 2023, the Company's financial assets are all not past dus.
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Financial risk management (cant'd}
Finamcial risk management oljectives and policies {cont'd)
Credif risk (cont'd)

The table below shows the credi guality of the Group's financial assets based on thair
higtorcsl experience with the cormesponding third paries

2024
Ganeral approach Simplifiad
Qroup Sitages 1 Stage 2  Stage 3  Approach Total
USETO0 UEF000n LS5 D0l LSS 100 LESETH0
Cash in banks end cash
aguivebania 13,031 = - — 13,004
Trade ard obher rescedvables® 2448 - - 228,014 230480
Refurdable deposits** 1. 24 = - - 1824
Dariveinve assals 1.478 - - - 11748
18,480 - - 2584 TEB A5
ECL Allcwance - - (3,860)  [BBBO)
18,480 = = 218,154 236 634

T inciges noncorent portion of recefuablas frovn saile and’ ibasedack [WMode 10 ano Bese rereivables [(Role 23]
" cisded imder a0vanon Vel and deposls (Naha TR

2023
General approach Smplified
Group Stage 1 Slagel Staged  Approach Todal
US3T00 LISS 000 LIES003 USE000 USE000

Cash in banks and cash

equivelants 18,752 - - - 18,762
Trade and oiher recanables® AL - - 240 6B HiINe
Short-lemn placesmeanls 18 - - - 18
Refundsble deposis™ 1,838 - - - 14838
Clarvahve gasets 8,867 - - = 8 887

23,106 - - 240 B8 2T TET
ECL Alkwancs - - - (RLE4E] {5545)
33,108 - - FN.06 264 142

INCRAGERR RONCLTANT DEN OF recafcsddes from cae and sazeiack (Woie 6] and iease recehabins (vofo 23]
™ moloded under aovance renfals and desosis (Mote 10]
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az.

Financial risk management (eont'd)
Financlal risk management objectives and policles {cant'd)

Cradif sk (cont'd)

.:.3. gt 30 April 2024 and 2023, the Company's financlal assels were all dassfled under Stage

2024
Ganeral Apgroach Simplified
Coompany Stage 1 Stage 2 Etage 3 Approach Total
sS0an LIS$000 USS000 LSS000  USS'0OD
Cash in banks and cash

aquivakents &7 - - - arn
Monireds recesvablas 27 421 - - - 2741
278081 - - - 27.B
20
Genaral Approach Simpliied
Company Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 1  Approach  Total

LS5 000 USE000 LIS3'003 USEDN0  USS'000
Cashin banks and cash

aquivaiants 554 - . s 554
Monirace receivables 26,406 - = - 28408
26,880 - - - 2560

Stage 1 financlal assels partain o those cash that are deposted in reputable banks. Stage
2 inchudes raceivables that are collected on thelr due dates even without an effort from the
CErops 1o fodiow wp wilh feem

The Group sels its products throwgh major distribulors and buyers in various geographical
regions, Management has a credit risk policy which incledes, among others, the requirement
of cartain securities to ensure prompl cheernvance and performance of the cbligations of ils
distributors. @nd other buyers from time 10 time. The Group monitors its outstanding trade
recaivables on an on-going basis. In addition, the Group also engages in sale of ils rade
recaivables without recourse o certain financial nstutions.
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Financial risk managemant (coni’d)
Financial risk management objectivas and policies (cont'd]
Credit risk (cont'd]

Set out belvw (s the information sbout the credit nsk exposurs on the Group's irade
ricaivabies wsing simplified approach (provision matrixg

2024
Days past due
Within credit Onpar 120
P <30 daye 30-60 daye 61-120 days days Tolal
LIS0o0 LS00 LS00 LIS 000 IS0} LISTIMG
Trade recedvebles 139,108 30,118 3019 4860 15785 192,560
Expeciad credil
loss rade 0.005% 0.00%: 0.00% Dun0%% &5, 15%: -
Expaciad credhi
loss - - - - 3,941 o]
2023
Days past due
Wittin credll <30.dnys  30-60 days 61120 days 05" 1 Total
LUIS000D =000 LS00 LS00 UET LS a0
Trede receivebles 119,851 35578 3,404 4875 B 185335
Expectad cradit
loss rata 0.00% 000%  CO00% 000  16.74% =
Expactad credi
i = - - - 5,428 5,424

The Group assessed thal #l balances under Stage 1 and Slage 2 lave nol expetiancad
significant increase in credit sk as of 30 Agnl 2024 and 2023,

The Group spplies the simplified spgroach nmeasuring ECL which usea a lifetime expected
less allowanca for all trade mceivablas. Tha Group usas a provision malriz to measwere ECLs.
Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over a perod of thres years. The Group
h=s asseaged thatl adjusting the loss rates for forsard-aeking information does nol have a
material affect considaering the significantly fow hestorical koss rates and the absence of
economic fectors that are highly correlsted with the Groug's credil koss experience on
fpCaivabiles

For other financial assets such nontrads recelvebles snd other recetvables, ECLs are
recagnized in two stages. For credil expesures for which thare has not been B significant
increase in cradit risk since Inital recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses thal resull
from defsull events thal are possible within the next 12-mantha {a 12-maonth ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, & loas allowance I8 required for credit loases expected over the remaining Ife of
the exposure, imespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL),
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32 Financial risk management {cont’d)
Financial risk management objectives and policies fconi'd)
Credif risk {cont'd)
Cash in banks and cash egquivalants

Cash in banks and cash equivalents are hald with banks and financa instiutions which ans

ragulsted.
The percentages of cash in banks and cash eguivalents beld n he fallowing regions ans:
30 April 30 April
2024 2023

ko %

Group

Liniled Stales of America P 35

Fhilippines 32 &l

Hang Kong g 14

Singapora 1 1

Company

Philippines 79 B2

Hang Kong i 7

Singapore 13 11

Apart from the information stated sbowe, the Group and Company hawve no o significant
coancenration of cred nsk with any single counterpary or group counlarparises.

Dharpsalivag
The derivalives are entered inlo with banks and financal institulions which are regulated,
Irrberest rafe risk

Inter=st rate risk is the nsk that the fair valwe or fuiure cash flows of & financial instrument
will fluctuate because of ﬂhﬂﬂgﬁ in [he maaket inerest rates, The Group's exposure o the
risk of changes in markat interast rates redstes primarily to the Group's bong-term and short-
term debt obigations with fl:ﬂﬂng. interest rates.

The Group's cash balances are placed with reputatde global banks and financial stiutions.
The Group manages s inderest rate risks by placing the cash balances with varying
maturdles and Merast rabe terms. This includes investing the Group's temporary excess
liquidity in short-tarm low-rsk securities from tims o time. The Group also enters o inferest
rate swaps 1o manage tha volatility, The Group oblaing financing through bank bormowings
and leasing arangemsnts. Funding is obtained from bank kban facities for both short-lem
and kang-larm reguirements. The Groug's policy is to obtain the most favorable Interest rate
avadable without increasing 25 forelgn currency exposure.
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a2, Financial risk management {cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives and policles (cont'd)
interest rate risk {cont'd)
irferest rate profie of inferas-bearing franciad inglruments

The intarast rete profile of the inferest-bearing financial instruments as reported o
management of the Group is as follows:

< Group = Cosnmnams COMPANY e
30 April 30 April A0 April 30 April
2024 2023 2024 2023
NS ] LISS'000 LS 000 LSS 000
Fixed rata
instruments
Loans and
borrowings 100,698 FE2, 040 89,541 148,754
Yariable rafe
Instruments
ILoanes and
borrowings 2,185 344 1,881,313 445 197 418,099
InbEres! ralo CApS - 5,084 — =
2,195,344 1,964, 397 445 1497 418,099
2,296,043 2,278,437 534,736 566 857
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2.

Financial risk management (cont'd)

Firancial Fisk management objectives and policies {cont'd)

infevest rate risk (comt'd)

Cash flow sensifivily analysis for vanable rale nstiurmenis

At the reporting date, if interest rates had moved as llestrated in ihe lable below, with 2l

ottver variablas held constant, profitloss befone tax in the nexd 12 months would heve besn
affected as folows:

Profit before tax
in the next 12 months
100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease
USH 000 LIS$000
Group
30 April 2024
Warable rate instrumenits 9, 555 9. 8hRq
Interest rale caps - -
{2,959} 8,959
30 April 2023
‘Varabde rate instrumeniz {18,565) 18,568
Irlersst rate caps 7.208 (7.208)
{11,367) 11,361

The assumed movement in bagks points for the interest rate sensitivity analyeis is based on
the curmantly observable market emvironment, showsng significantty higher volatility than in
[Tl years,

Az at 30 Agrl 2024 and 2023, the Group dealgnated each of its derivative contracts as a
heioe of the variability of cash Niows (o be received or paid related 10 8 recognized assel o
fiakdity {"cash flow hedge™).

Liquidity risk

Liquicity rsk i the nsk that the Growp will ancounter difficulty in meating the obligatione
aasociated with its financial Kabilities that are setled by delivering cash or another financial
assal The Group's approach 1o managng liquidity s o ensure, as far as possibla, that it vall
abways have sufficiant Bquedity to meet 2z Habiities when due, wnder both normal and
siressad conditions, withoud incurming unaccepiable kosses or nsking damage to the Group's
reputEton.

The Group mantaing a balance bebveen continuily of cash inflows and Rexibility in the use
of ayailable and colataral frée cradi lines from local and international banks. Currently, the
Group exduding DMFI is enfifled 1o a total of USE1,076.2 million [2023: US51,639.9 million)
in credit lines, of which 4% (2023; 17%) remain available. The ines are mostly for shor-tarm
fimancing requirements since the long-term facilities bave been fully drawn, The Group
constanty maintaine gocd relations with ils banks, such that additionsl feciiities, whather for

sharl or lang-term reguiremants, may be made available.
ARV T
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32,

Financial risk management {cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (cont'd)
Liguidity risk (cont'd)

The Group is able o increase the commitments under the ABL Facility, subject only to the
consant of the mew or existing lendera providing such mcreases, such thal the aggregate
princapal amount af commilmeents does not exceed LISSE26.0 milllon. The lenders under this
facility ara under no obligation to provide any such additional commérments, and any increasa
in commitments will be subject to custornary conditions precedent. Notwithetanding any such
incresse i the facilly size, the Group's abifity to bomow under the facility sdll remain limited
at all trmes by the borrowing base (1o the extent the borowing base is less than the
cornrmftrmanta),

The following are the expecied coniractual undiscountad cash outilows of financal sssets
and liabilities, induding intersst payments and excluding the impact of nelting agreements:

Camrylmg  Contrastusl  Less than 1-5 Bbore than
amnnt cash flows 1 year YOirs S ywars
Graugp Hokn LESD0n LS00 LSE 000 LSS0 LSS 000
30 Agril 2024
Derivative financlal assets
Commaodity conlracts 1% e ™y T17 = =
Forésgn currancy conlracis 1] 482 4E2 4E3 - -
Nom-derivalive financial
anseln
faehi In banks and caEh
efgiivalanis 18 13,031 13,031 13,031 - -
Trage ard other rscelvables® 10,13 220,600 22mr 218,154 B4 ZRIF
Fefundabie degasiie™ mn 124 1,424 = = 183
ZEEM 2347 a51 233,364 Bt 4,846

" nchades noncumsnd portion of receivalies fio sals and leasedeck (ote 1) and mase roopvabies (Mafe 23
* inchuded urder aovanoe sanlaly aad dasasrds (Note 1)
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32 Financial risk manageament {cont'd)
Financial risk manasgement objectives and policies {cont'd)

Liguicity risk {cont'd)
Camylng  Comlraciial  Less lhan 1-5 Maore than
gl caah Mows 1 year WEArS 5 yCars
Group Mot WFEE 000 USST00 USF000 usgF oo LISE 000
33 April 2024
Dareativa Bnancisl lasilitios
InlseEes dale emap 13 20Xy 2033 7033 - -
Cormmodiy cantracts 13 733 19 1 - -
Maon-derivativa inancial kil
Lirsa el ek Kang®
= Canrpan) = BETH A28 STRO7TE BTH.0TA - -
- Mancuiment 18 B 2EF 250 3Eh 15,320 224029 =
Seowred bank kang""
= g m 243 465 253 4 253,400 = =
- Bloncurmant 18 1,160,953 1155 450 41,209 21, it LAl |
Lea=n abities 23 1,418 153 995 &894 gards- ] 17015
Equiprneni Inancisg o, IF 208,063 3372 B,7RA el -
Trade payaties and other
cument Babikies""" 22 66,418 B A HH A1 = -
2.766.T08 2535 B0 1,540,951 ARG dE3 Ta2 A8
Mel tirarcial liahilias (essels) 2850072 1BET BES 1 BI0E 58T 351,522 BT a0

Y ChRE bads
*  includes the ABL lkans

S mmmm kabiiles, advances from cusiomars,. calemad revenus, wilhheld from ermployses Raes
& nocisl secunty costl, curme partien of king-larm aquipmeanl inancng and WAT peyobles
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Financial risk management (cont'd)

Financial risk management objectives and policies [coni'd)

Liguidity risk {cont'd)
Groug Mol
0 April 2023
Deriwatlve financisl sxerln
Flerakd fale peap 11
Farsgn Sy e ach L]
Ran-darivative financial
FETT.E1
Caxsh in banks and cash

ol v i 15
Trode and o eonfwabies" 10L13
Short-lam plRcamants 14
Fisfurcdia b deposits™ 10

Yo neludas noveLrmant porbon of reenahkes I SR A inEpback

T inkached wadir govance renians and oeponTs

Blaitm
Group
30 Aprd 2022
Darivative finanalal Haklidiss
Imanasi rale swas 0
Commaodgity cociracts hi

Non-derivalive finandial liabities
Uinssoured bank ioana”

(=10 1B
- g urmanl |
Gazurad bank lcans™
- Casmant 1A
= Ko urrel 18
Lease linhylmes 23
Treda payaiiag and alhar

curmar Tabiilies® = 22

Hel lmarcial liabiftes (asnis)

t o iecliies M bonds payEbies
" includes e AEL lpans

Camying Confrectssl  Loss than 45 Mors than
arnoant  cash Nows 1 yar yRars 5 yRArs
UEF 000 US5T00 uSsToo LSS 000 USST0a
T.808 7,808 41,817 & 188
1,081 1061 £,064 P -
1852 18.T52 .72 - -
233567 235178 231,038 BrE 1,168
18 18 18 - =
1,536 1,838 - 1.838
264,147 MATASA 293.4R4 T165 S0
Carying  Contraciual  Less than 18 Stare than
amount  cash flows 1 yoar WRIE 5 YOars
USE000 LEE0d] usgnog LUEF00) LEF000
Aesimed Raned Heximed Bmatated Remxissd
e | 2723 - ara -
353 3828 554 ] -
E33.873 B51. 106 651,104 - -
Haes 235321 11,643 Z2IETE =
186,184 18314 183,128 = =
1,200,844 1362 506 A7H, 204 116878 GET M
100,054 168,381 36,508 EQLTET 51,055
286,129 Fac By | 286,126 - -
2670228  R&ZdRie 1,660,258 #2d S 138,320
2412083 2557066 1406675 417,375 TG

= meghcing danvaive iabillss. advances rom cusiomers, defermed revenue, withheld rom employess faees
and sccial secwrity cost and VAT paynbles
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32 Flnancial risk management (cont'd)
Financial risk management objectives and policies {cont'd)

Liquidity risk {cont'd)
Garrying  Comiractual Less than 1-8 Bare than
amaund cashi flows 1 year yaars 5§ years
Company M LIS 5000 LISE00] UESD0S WEFQeQ b1 gres]
30 April 2024
Mon-derivathvo fimancial
assals
Cash and cash equialens i5 aFi ard A70 - =
Trade and ciner recaivables 13 27421 T 421 T AN - -
27,881 25811 2T.RE1 - -
Hen-darivativs financial liabiities
Linseurad bank icars”
« Curment 12 255078 L ] L ] - -
« Mo Rt 18 43,726 458 578 2,972 45 a4 -
Sescurad bank ioans
- Currant 8 235,934 53400 255 400 = -
= Micase i 13 - = - - -
Tracks pirgablas and olher
current liobles™ 2% 104, E20 104,530 L W ] = -
728,358 TR BEE TR 374 i 554 -
M) brarces Labidas 704, 4ET 734,037 BAF. 383 df, B854 -

* inchuges the bons peyalies
" emciuckes withkedd nom empdoyaes |laees &g social security cost) ard VAT paryablos
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Financial risk managamani {cont'd)
Financial risk mamragement objectives and pallcles {comt'd)

Ligquidity risk foont'd)
Carrying  Cowmiractasl Loss tham 15 Blore than
amount  cash Nlows 1 ywar AT & yaars
Company Pt LES000 US§000 USS 000 LESS 000 USE 000
30 April 2023
Mom-derivativa inancis
aaein
Cazh and cash squivalents 16 f5d 554 £-2 - -
Tracs ene sihar recaivanias 13 265,408 405 26,408 = -
B0 e ) HE D - -
Man-derirativa inancisd Rehililiss
Uinsacuned bank inans®
- Cunran 18 155704 180,223 B0 FF3 | ks
= MonGurmenl i 1TF.531 196273 2 ] 186400 -
Sacuned bk loans
- Gurrani i1 188,104 1TiE38 1THESE F= _
- Moncumesni 1 4 420 ELE-T ) ST EQFET -
Trace payables and ohar
currant e 2 116,003 118 03 116,050 a -
S 50 2100 485314 25 EET -
M Bnancial hobdnes 685 980 . 0 A28 2% 255 T -
* echades thi Donds payn biss

s huded withFesld from employess (lxes Snd socisl secuitly ool and VAT payabiss

The Group's bank loans contain loan covenants, a default of which would require the Group
to rapay tha loans earier than indicated in the above table. The covenanis are consfanthy
monitored on a regutar basis by the Irgasury depariment and regulardy reported 1o
managament to ansura complisnce,

For denvative financial liabilikes, the disclosure shows net cash from amounts for dervatives
thiat are net cash sedied.

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the rmatunity aralysis could ooour sagraficantly
earliar, or Bt significantly different amounts.

Foreign exchange risk

Fareign exchange sk is the risk that the fair value o fulure cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuaie because of changas In forelgn exchangs rates. The curmency giving
risé fo this risk is primarily the Philippinge Peso and Mexizn Pasa,

From thme 1o lime, the Group manages its exposure o fluciuabions in foreign currency
exchange rates by entering inte forward contracts fo cover & portion of #s projecied
expendilunes paid in loreign cummency, This Group sccourts fof these conlracs as cash fiow
hedges.
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3z Financial risk management [cont'd]
Financial rish management ohjectives and policies (cont'd)
Foreign axchange risk joont'd)
At the reparing date, the Group's exposune bo foreign currencies is as follows:

Philippine Mexican
Peso Paso
LIS5'000 LS5 000
30 April 2024
Trade and cther receivables 42,157 #,380
Cash and cash equivalents 6,548 GaE
Char noncmnent assets 21,134 -
Loana and bomowings (102, 882) -
Trade and cthar payablas (126,349} {32,233}
(159,687} (23,148}
30 April 2023
Trade and clher receivables 41,872 4,813
Cash and cash equivalanis 16,282 310
Oilher noncurrent assats 18,801 1,383
Loans and bomowings (143,701} -
Trade and other payables (118,528) [27,855)
(185, 064) [21,34%)

The Company has no significant exposure to foreign curmencies as at 30 April 2024 and 2023

Sensilivily analysis

A 10% strengihening of the group enfibies’ forelgn currencies against thair respective
functional currency al e repanig dabe would have increased (decreesed) profitoss before
laxation and equily by the amounis shown below, This analysis assumes that all other
varakbles, in paricular interest rales, remaln constant.

A 10% waakening of the group entities’ forelgn curmrencies agalinst their respective functional
clrrendy would have the equal bul opposite effect on the amounts shown baliow, on the basie
that all other vanables remain constand.

Philippine Peso Mexican Peso
Increase Increasa
(decrease) (decrease)
Profit hefore Profit bafore

taxation Equity taxation Equity

LSS 000 LISE'000 LSS 000 USE'000
30 April 2024
10% strengthening [15,3689) - [2,315) -
10% weakaning 15,5640 - 2,318 =
30 Aprll 2023
10% strengthening (18,508) - [2,135) =
104% weakaning 18,508 - 2,135 -

=131 -
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32, Financial risk management (cont'd)
Finarcial risk mansgemant abjectives and policies (cont'd)
Commuodity price risk

Certain commodiies such as diesel fusl and natursl gas [eollectively, “commodily contracts”™)
are used in the production and transporation of the Group's products, Generally, these
commodities are purchased based upon market prices that are established with the vendars
as part of the procurement process. The Group uses fulures, swape, and swaption or opfion
tondracts, a8 deemed appropriate, to reduce the effect of price Mectuations on anticipate
purchases. These contracts may hive a term of up 1o 24 monihs, The Growp accourts for
these commodity derivatives as cash flow hedges. The effective portion of dervative gaing
and losses s deferred in equity and recognized as part of cosl of products sold in the
appropriats parisd and the ineffective portion ks recognizced as cost of products sold.

In these hedge relatonships, the main sources of ineffectiveness are the effect of the
differences in timing of cash flows of the hedged item and the hedging instrument, difference
in indexes lnkad to the hedged sk of the hedged item and the hedging inslrument, the
counterparties’ credit risk differentty impacting the fair valse movements of the hadging
instruments and changes to the forecasted amount of cash Nows of hedged item and hadging
Ingtrusiant,

Sensitiviy analysis

A 10% change in commodity prices at the reporting date would have increased (decreased)
profitiioss before ax and increased (decreased) equity by the amounts shown below.

20 April 2024 30 April 2023
Profit Profit
before before
taxation Equity taxation Equity

LIS5"000 LSS 000 LISE'000 SE000
1% increase In commaodiy

price - 26 - B3
10% decraase in commodity
price - (28} - (53)
- 132 -
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. 8 Accounting classification and fair values

Fair valites versus carmying amounts

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carmying armounts shiwn
in the statemant of financial positien, are as follows:

Finamncial Finarcial Otfiir Total
assads Al asasts al finarcial carrying
Hzda  amartized cost  FY0C Derivatives  Babilities armsaent Fair waldiin
G US$moh LS50 US5'000 LSS0 LS 0 WE ]
30 b pedl 2034
Cashi ained Cash
LT 1% 13423 = - - 13,123 13123
Trade and ofher
reoayahbes" 101323 220.B00 - -_ - 230 800 20 B0
Raboratiabie
deposits™ 1] 1,624 = = = 1524 1.824
Fnanckd aspas
eerriad al FYOCE W = 11,665 == - 14,8655 11,EE5
Dorwaike assweis 19 = - 1479 - 117 1
235547 11,6688 1178 = 248,381 248,301
Loans and DOmowEgs 48 - - - 2205043 2208043 2401045
Traacher saretl ihe
payabi=s™ = - - = 350416 368,416 388 .4%8
Dwrtvadva Babibiss = - = 2768 - 2,768 2,780
Eguipmert finanoing 15, 22 - - - 28,0632 28082 28,0832

= = EN LI R 2ER52HF  2)800,593

° inciudes nonoument porbon of receivabis from 2ale and leaseback Moo 10) and leane recaiakies (Mo 23)

** intfuied urcler ndvanos rentals and deposils |Nobe 10}
“*eachades dervalive Hatdiias, afvanos fram cusiomars, conlract kasilfes, witmeld from armplayess (taxes and
sodial secunty cosl) and VAT pavabies
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Accounting classification and fair values (cont'd)
Fair valdes wvarsus canmying amounts {comt'd)

Eraug

30 April 2023

Cash and cesh
squivalanis

Trads and clher
necafvabdias"

Sl placerneris

Befundabs

Frmncial sssels
caried af FYOC)
Darvadwh Assals

Loans and banmwings
Trade and offer

pa
G n e liasdnliliea

14

1013
4

10

10
4

18
i

18, 22

Finanaial Firmneial ehar Total
aunsty & asnels o firanalal carrying
amortirad cost FYOLC] Darivatives  linhilition mmoank Fair valun
USE00m LIS§'300 B0 USE000 USE000 LEEann
Fastabed Rasialad i rstad
18,83 i3 - - 16, 538 18,836
FILBET = - - FIZEET #33,867
B = - - 1] 1]
1.R3A - = = 1.838 1838
- .08 - - E,DBD 8080
= = 8,8ET /867 BERT
255 350 i o0 B.86T - 70,306 N0 506
= - - RE73353 TETIAG] 2256068
= - - G128 208,124 296,126
- - aa50 - i 5 50
= - BES) 2563470 2ams28 ZERE R

—

" inclidas noncutreat gerlion of necehvables from sale and lasaback (Nets 10} and lasss recerables (Mo 25
= included under advance rentaks and daposils (Mats 10)
“exdudes dervalive labikties, advances Fom customens, conrac Tabiilies, withbsld from ampioyess [laxes and

sl ancuiily conl) ard VAT payables
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33 Aecounting classification and fair values {(cont'd)
Fair valies Versus carrying amounts fcont'd)
Financial

assuts ot Financial Ohpr
amortized assats at financial  Total carrying

Hodo cost Fuoch liabEHiag wrpand Fair valsn
Company LSS 000 RS0 LS00 LS00 LS00
30 A psil 2024

Trad= and olher recedvabies i3 2741 - - PO | 7421

Cauly and cash aquiveunty 15 4Ty - = 470 470
Francial sssals

carried ot FYOCI 10 - 10,516 - 10,518 10 518

27,891 10,616 - ag.any 34,407

Loans and bommowings kL3 - - B34, 738 534,738 534,733

Trade ard o pavabiss” 22 = - 184,530 T G20 8. 510

- - 728,354 Ta8.358 128,354

‘wesiirand wilvvid o empiopess (laoes and sooil SoCuTny cosf)

Fimancial
assets at Financial Cither
irnostiznd aannks at financiasl Tolal carrying
MNetn cosl Fyoci Nakaiies aTiGERL Fair il
Compary LEF000 UsFoe Ussoco Ussnoo LIS
M April 2023
Track and oiher receivabies 13 26,408 = - IEACE 2EADS
Cash amd cash aqubsalanis 15 554 = - 554 S5
Faancial g
cammad at FY0Cl D - B2 - 5023 S0y
28 860 8,023 - 31,963 31,963
Loans and horroaings 1 = - GHE.BST 500,857 it h
Trade and cther payatles* 2 = - 118,083 116,083 118,083

o = LibER i 850 G2 60

fencldes Wi Mo amplorad [Teses and ool sscunly cosl)
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34, Determination of fair values
Falr valus higrarchy

All assets and liabilibes for which fair velue 8 measured or dsciosed in the financis
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, descrbed as follows, based on
tha koweslt lewal input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whoke:

Lol 1) gueted prices (unadjusted) in activa markets for idantical assets or lisbifties that the
Group can Bccess 8t the measuremenl date,

Lewval 2: inputa other than quoded prices Included within Lewvel 1 that are observable for he
aggel or labiily, eilfer directy or indirectly.

Level 3 unobservable inputs Tor the assel or liability.

For assets and liabiities that are recognized in the financial statements on 8 recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have oocumed befween Levels in the hierarchy by
reasaassing the catégonsation al the and of each reporling peniod.

For purposes of the fair value disclosure, the Group has delermined dasses of assals and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characterstics and risks of the asset or Bability and the
lenval of the fair valua hilerarchy, s explained above,

Group 30 April 2024
Mote Ll 1 Lawel 2 Lewal 3 Todal
S50 LISS000 LSS0 USEDLO

Financial assets
Drarivative assals 14,18 - 1.174 - 1,179
Financial assals carried & FYOC] b [4] 1,130 10,535 - 11,685
Hon-financial assets
Falr value of agricullural producs

harmsted under invantores 11 - - 1,821 1E21
Fair vaiue of unranesied

agricutural produce " - - 48.577 40677
Freahcld land b - =2 T3.744 T3, 740
Flmancial liabifities
Deriwarlive Eabiilies e, 22 - 2, 7EG - 2,768
Lease lablities 23 - - 1,479 91,419
Leans and borowings - 1,6E5689  T3I5660 24071349
Equipment finandng 19, 22 - - 28,082 28.062

_1ﬁ_
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3. Determination of fair values (cont™d)

Fair value hierarchy {cont’d)
Group 30 Apsil 2023
Modn Lowei 1 Lawal 2 Leval 3 Total
Financial assets UsSS000  usEm us§onn USFOm
Resiatad Raostalod
Derwatre asseis 14, 19 - 8887 - BABET
Finencial assets carmiad al FYOC 10 1,057 5023 - 6,080
Haon-financial assets
Fair valie of sgiculliral produce
mamvasied ureler mvenioriss 1 - - & 456 495
Far valug of unharseshad
BOnGUIbIral produce 1 - - A4, 852 44 852
Freehald land 5 - - T4, 463 T4 453
Financial liabilitiss
Derivative kabilities ig, 2% = 6,650 - 8,650
Laase lobdities 23 - - 100,088 100,066
Logna ard barowings = 1,621,E36 TH.25 2356065

During the period, there were no ransfers belween Level 1 and Level 2 falr walue
measurements, and no transfars info and oul of Level 3 Fair valie messurements.

Included within financial assets carried at FYOC! (Level 2) are investment in unguoted equity
sharas by the Company that wene valued based on The latest fransaction price at which the
iCompany acquired addiional shares in the investes. This approach utlized the most recent
fransaction prica invelving the Company to estimats the Tair value of the invastment in these
unguoted equity shares, Diber than thés investment, the Company has no other assels and
liabilities massurad at fair value as of 30 April 3004 and 2023,
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Datermination of fair values (cont'd)
Financial instruments measured al fair value

A nmber of e Group's sccountng policies and disciosures require the determination of fair
value, for both financal and non-francial assets and Eabiliies, Fair values hawve bean

ditermined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes bassd on the following methods,

Valuation lechnigue

Interast  rate sSwapsicaps  {undes
“derivative  asseis” as  part  of

“prepaid expenses and other current
assats’ and “other noncurrent assets”
and “derivative liabilities" as part of
“rada payablet and sthar  eurmant
Habilies™ and “Olher noncurrent
liabilites™}

Market comparison technique: The fair vabses
are calculated using a discounted cash fow
analysis based on terms of the swap contracts
and the obsarvable interest rale curve, Fair
values reflect the rsk of the ietrument and
malude adjustments bo lake milo accound the
credit risk of the Group and counarparty when

appropriate.

Commodilses confracls {under
‘derivative assels” a5 padl  of
‘propaid expenses and olher current
assets” and “olther noncurrent assets;”
and “dervalive liabiities” 25 pad of
‘wade payables and other cument
liabilies” and “other  monourrent
lishilibes™)

Market COdTIpAri S tachniqua. Tha |
commodities are treded over-the-coambar and
ae valwed based on the Chicago Board of
Trade guoied prces for similar msiruments in
active markels of corfoborated by obssrvable
market dala avalabée from  the Enengy
Infarmation Administration. The values of these
contracts are based on the daily sefflamand
pricas published by the exchanges on which the
contracis ams traded.

Call option {undar “dervative liabilitiss"
as parl of Trade payables and ofbwer
current liabilities™ and “other noncurment
libilites™)

The estmated far value of the asdtional call
opdion as at 30 April 2023 & based on the Black-
Scholes modsl. The valee of these derivative
EabiMies Is driven primarily by D8Pl
forecasted net income which is not basad on
obsenabie market data.

Financial asssts camed at PWOCH
[ul‘rﬂH “oihar noncurent asseis”)

The estimated falr value of the Inwestmen
unquoted equily shares as at 30 April 2024 and
2023 s based on recent opan-marked
transacions of the equity shares.
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34,

Determination of fair values (cant'd)

Financial instrurments not measured al fair valee

Type

Valuation technlgus

and borrowinga”)

Financial assets and labllites (under
“othar noncurment assets” and “loans

T fair valug of the Term Loan ﬁ. node
recaivabla amnd rmefundabde doposits ane
calculated based on the present value of futurs
principal and interest cash flows, descountad at
the market rate of interest at the reporting date
[Level 2).

and “lease llabllities™)

Oher financial assets and liabiliies
{under “trade and other recedvables”,
“cash and cash equivalents”, “trade and
othar payables®, loans and bomroadngs,”

Thee nobandl amounls of ARancal assets and
liahilibess with madurity of less than one year
[Inchuding trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalenis, and irade and other payables)
are, because of the shor penod to maturity,
assumed o approximats thedr fair values.

Tha fair value of all financial assets and
lzhilites with matuty of rmore than one year arg
calculated based on the prasant valua of fulura
privcipal and interest eash flows, discounted al
the markel rates ranging from 2.9% to 7.5%
{2023: 2.8% 1o 7.0%) (Level 3.

Oiher non-financial assels

Assels

Valuation technique

Significant  unobservable

inputs

Freshold land (under
‘property.  plant, and
BOuUipren)

Tha fair value of freehold land
2 determined by extemal,
independaent property valuars,
having appropriate recognized
professional qualifications and
recent experencs  in the
location  and  category of
property being valued.

The valuation mathod used is
sales oHNpanson  aporosch
This is a comparative approach
that considers the sales of
similar of substiluta proparies
and related markat data and
establish a value estimate by
invvolving comparizon (Level 3),

The wnobsarvable inputs
usesd o seleming marked
walue are the net selling
prices,  sizes,  property
localion and marked v,
Other faclors considered
to determing markal wvalue
are tha deairability,
neighbarhoed, utilily, teqram,
gnd Ihe tme element
irvelwad,

Tha market vales per sguare
meter ranges from US$109.1
to W5§122.5. The market
value per acre ranges from
LISS5 251 1o LSS 104,585

Livestock (caftie for
slaughler and cut maat)
fundar “biclogical
asseEls")

Sales Comparison Aporoach:
the vatustion modsl = based
on selling price of lvestock of
similar age, weaight, breed and
genelic make-up (Leval 3.

The unobsamvable inputs are
206, averaps weighl and
brgadd,
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3.

Determination of fair values (cont™d)

Other non-financial assets (cont'd)

‘revenue” and “cost of
sales']

refiabds estimaie of Sefng
prices, in both local and
iMemational markets at the
poind of hameest The markel
price i5 derved from average
sales price of the fresh frusl,
reducad By cosie io sl
iLavel 3}

Assots Valuation technigue ﬁ.ﬂmt gl
Harvested crops — soid | The fsr values of harvested | The uncbservable inpul is the
as fresh fruil {under | crops are based om the most | estimated pineapple sslling

price per ton specific for fresh
products.

Hervested crops — used
In processed products
{undar “ravenues’  and
"cost of sales’)

The fair values of harvested
craps ame based on the most
reliable sstimate of market
prices, in both local and
imternational markets & the
poinl of harsest. Tha markst
price is derived from average
sales price of the processed
product reduced by costs io
el [concentrabes. pinsapple
beverages, sliced pinsapples,
el and adjusted Tor margin
associaled io further
processng (Lewel 1),

The unctsenabls input is the
astimated pineappsa selling
price and gross rmangin per
ton specfic for processed
products,




Del Monte Pacific Limited and its

Motes to the financial statements

Subsidiaries

For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

34, Determination of fair valees (cont'd)

Othar non-financial assels (cont'd)

Assels

Valuation technique

Significant  unobservablo
inputs

=

Unharvasted
agricullural produce —
fruits growing on  Che
bearer planis  [under
Liviogical assets”)

Tha growing produce afe
maasured at fair value from the
tirne of maiurity of the bearer
planl unlil harvesi.
Management used fulure
selling prices and gross margin
of finished goods, adjusted o
ramove the margin associaied
to  hrdher processing. less
fudure growing cosis applied io
the estimated volume of
harvest as the basie of fair
valus,

The unobservabla mpuls are
expected seling prica and
gross margin for harvested
producs whila iy
assumpions for the fair vales
of unharvested aoricullural
produce  include  expectoed
gelling jprices, gross mangin,
aetimalad tonnaga of
harwasts and futune growing
coats.

The unobservabla inpuls ans
pslimaled pineappla seliing
price amd Qross mangn per
ben for fresh &nd processed
products, estimaled volume
of harvest and future growing
Co5lE,

Significant increase (decrease) in the significant uncbsersable inputs of freehcld fand,
Iivestock, harvesied crops sold as fresh fruit and hanvested crop sold used in processed

products would resull in higher (lower) fai values. Significant increase (decrease) n the
eslimetad future pineapple salling price, gross mangn per ton and estimated volume of

hanvest would resull in higher (kower) fair value of growing produce, while significant increase

(decrease) in the fulure growing costs would resull in lewer [higher) Falr value.



Oel Mante Pacifle Limited and lis Subsidiaries

Noies to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

35,

Comimibmaenis
Purchase commitnrents

The Group has entered inte non-canceliable agreements with growsss, co-packers,
packaging supplers and other service providers with commitments generally ranging from
one vear o ten years, o purchass carain guantties of raw products, including fruit,
vegelables, tomaloes, packaging services and ingredients,

Al T reeporiing date, the Group have commitments for fulure minimum paymenis whder non-
cancellable agreements &s folows:

Group
30 April 30 Agpril
4 2023
Lss'000 LS5 T00
Within coe et 387 557 414, 03
After ana yaar bul within e years 311,154 308,337
After flwe vears 431,530 325,056
1,100,231 1.047 435
Future capital expondifune
Group
30 Aprll 30 April
2024 2023
LUSS'00d LES$7000
Capital axpenditure not provided for in the
financial staterments
« gpprovad by Direciors and contracted for 5. 854 13,764
- spproved by Directors bul not contracted for 3461 29,025
30,325 £3.304
Contingencles
Legs) cases

The Group is the subject of, or a party to, various suils and pending or threatenad ltigation
While It s nod feasible o predict or determine the ulimate outcome af these matiars, the
Group believes that none of these legal proceedings will have a material adverse effect on
ita financial positian,

Source of estimation uncertainty
The Group, in the ordinary coursa of business, sets up appropriate provislons for E5 presend
legal or construciive obligations, if any, in accordance with its: policies on provisions. In

=Coqizing s measunng peovisions, management fakes sk and unceranties inlo
accourni.
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ar.

Contingencies (cont'd]}
Source of estimation uncertainty (cont'd]

A5 at 30 April 2024, the Group & involved in various legal procesdings and reguiatory
pesassmants, and management beleves that these proceedings will not have a material
effect on the consolidated financial staterments,

The Group, In consultation with its extemnal and internal legal and tax counsess, balave thal
its position on these assesaments are congistent with redevant lews and believe thal these
procesdings will not have a material adverse affect on the consolidaled Gnancal slabemeants.
Howewer, It 5 possible that fulure results of operations could be matenaly affected by
changes in the estimates or the effectiveness of management’s strateglas refating fo these

Az af 30 Apnl 2024, management has assessad thal the probable cash oulfiow
v ewitle theoe aeeesomants = not matanal

Asoof 28 April 2024, provision for retained labliities arising from workers' compensation
dlaims amounted o US316.9 million, US$16.2 million of which is noncurment (30 Apeil 2023
LUS514.8 milian, US513.3 milion of which is noncurrent); 1 May 2022: USS17F.8 millian,
LS5 146 milfion of which is noncurrent (MNote 197,

Related parties
Related party transactions

For the peposes of these inancial statements, parties are considersd 1o De relaled 1o the
Group if the Group has he ability, directly or Indirectly, fo coninod the pany or exercise
significard influence over the pary in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa,
of where the Group and the party e subject fo commaon controd or common significant
infugnce. Relaled parfies may be Rdviduals or other antilies.

Al publicly-listed entilies, including the Company, have Matesial Related Parly Transaction
Policies comaining the approval reguiremenis and Bmits on amounis and extent of related
party iransactions in compliance with the requirements under the Revised SRC Rule 63 and
SEC Memorandum Circular 10, serkes of 2018,

Oithwge than fhose disclosed elsewhars in the financial statements, thers a@re no ofher
gignifican! fransactions with related paries,
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ar. Related parties [cont'd)
Related party transactions {cont'd)

Group Outstanding batance
Amount Due from Due Lo
of the Related Redated
Category transaciion Partles”  Partles™
Transaclion Yaar USE 0 LIE'B.'ID UE'EI-I]} Terrs Conditions
Under Common
Cartral
L] Shared [T 2024 104 254 = DCiue and Unsecured;
BETVICES 2023 a8 Gl = demancabis; ne
oz2 112 @1 - nor-ineres impainmeant
e @rireg
[ Saba ol apple 2024 a1 21 - Doue mnd Linsecured;
juice P | 15 8 - demancabie; ne
ooncentrale 2022 12 - - Adreirmenzsl i paifant
fmaterials naaring
- Invaniony coLinl 2024 38 - - Due and Lirsacured;
shorage 203 - - - demandabis; (153
20E2 - - - no-inderes| impairment
bearing
=  Sale of Rew 2024 - - -
Al eyt 2023 = = (4}
2022 48 - {BE)
= Purchasas 2024 138 = {180y O and Linsacured
2023 116 -1 {21) demandable;
2022 122 & {11} non-indenes
bearing
s  Tolipack fass 2024 - - - Chue and Lingacumed
2023 - - - demandeila.
2022 12 56 = non-rlanas
baanng
- 144 -
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3. Related partios (cont'd)

Ralated party transactions {cont'd)
Group Dtstanding balance
Amird D Brasmy Do 1
al the Reluad Repistad
Catlogory) iransaction  Partles” Partbes™
Tramssclicn Year LSE000  LEST0g LSS 00 Terms Conditlons
Undar Camsmen
Comirel
= Socurity M3 - - = Dun and IR utard
dapoat i 20 - - demancabies
2022 T - - morernemsl
Eaianing
Ddhar
Rualated Partins
- Management 2024 & 1 {2} O ard Linsomuwned;
g, 2023 4 - 2 damandakia; ne
Ty D™ e 53 T s non-nienest imparmani
retirement furd bearng
- Fesrial o DMPI o 1,315 - (ras) Du and Linsaiired
Rakranwnl Fraral 1,841 4 [174) demandabis;
s 1,837 - A2 non-imenest
bsaaring
- ksl 1o MA) 024 a51 - |?ﬂ; Do mnd Uniscufed
R G 2033 2y - {87 carmardiahie;
20232 E52 - |1y o rheres
bearing
2 Henlal jo DMPI Z0E4 - = = D el LiaBowred
Peovidand Fund 2023 4] - = demandatia,
2022 T - - nan-inierss
Lanaring
= Carsh acvances 24 5055 - (5.886)  Ehorl-tamy Unesaured;
Pt 2023 - - - Hon-nierpss no
202z 1.261 1.1 - nmaring Fre
= Cash advances 034 18,000 - (19,000)  Dua and Ungacursd
Blusdad Holdirgs 2023 - - - derreciabie;
Limibaci 2022 - - = et
bearing
- Caah mheansea 2024 12,639 - (14638) Dws and Ungacuied
Ayigmaorg Led 2023 - - - gerarcaie;
2022 = - = Intonest
baating
v ITE (35, T54)
v i 3 (e
b 1372 [SED])

“neiaded a5 gt of fnde and odher recelatles axciuaing fong-lwm oans eosivehs
“inciuded as pen of frede ead oifar payabiss



Del Monie Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Hotes to the financial statements

For the financial yesr ended 30 April 2024

37.  Related parties (cont'd)

Reigted parfy ransactions {coni’d)
Company Cuitstanding balancs
Amount Due frodm Due o
of the Related Related
Category transaction Parties™ Farties™
Transaction Year  US§000 USI000  USE000 Terms  Conditions
Subsidiaries
- Dividand moome 2034 18,504 - = Dusa and Lrmsecurad:
2H1E) R - - demandabla; no
202 33,5189 - - man-inieres] impairment
bomnrg
Reimtursamant of 2034 63,608 7418 = D and Uinsscunad,
EXpansas 2023 136,434 26 400 — demantable;, no
2022 73T B4.229 = noncneres imparment
bearing
- Cash advance 2024 831,788 [(170.883) Dueand Linsacurad
2a TE ST —  [10ETEE] demandable;
2022 5277 - {(30.278)  bolh inlanest
nonirierest
bearing
- aragemant 2024 26T (1A61) Durand Linsaoured
feas payahila bo 2024 LR - [1,063] demandabla:
subsldianas 2022 &7F - [538)] non-inbaresd
baaring
- Cagh advancas 2024 12,638 - (12,638) Dueard Unsecured
Hoviermang Lid 2023 - - - demandehia;
2022 - = = [Inberest
baanng
St Vendune
- Cash advance 24 - - = Dise and Ursecurad:
1z 185 S camandabla; PG
Mz 55 2,835 - rordnlerest  impaienent
baanng
2024 2T 416 [184.583)
2023 0.77T (107 888}
2022 07 0 -|3I}.H-l'.'|ﬁ-_

“inciuded! s o of fde and alfur recaivebles srcluding long-femn lbans receiable and asvances fo fainl vaniuwe
“inckidad o pad of frada and alfer peyables

i



Dial Monle Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Wotes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 3 April 2024

ar, Reiated parties (cont'd)
Related party transacfions (cont'd)

Tha transactions with related pardies are undertaken on an arm’s kenglh basis and on normad
commecial 1ems consistent with the Group's usual usiness practices and policies and are
camied out based on terme agread batwasn the parties. Pricing for the sales of products arg
markel diven, less ceain allowances, For purchases, the Group's policy is to solicit
competitive quotations. Purchasss ams normally awarded based on the besl products and’or
services on the best terma. In detemmining whether the prce and terms offessd by vendors,
including related paries, are fair and reasonable, factors such as, but not limiled to, delivary
schedules, specification compliance, irack record, experience and experbse. and widre
applicable, preferential rales, retates or discounts accorded for bulk purchases, will also be
taken o ascount.

Excapl for ransactons identifled in the previous section a3 interest-bearing, cutstanding
balances at financial reporting dade are unsecured, interesi-free and setliement coours in
cash and are collectible ar payabla on demand. For the yeare ended 30 April 2024 and 2023,
the Group has nol made any provision for doublful Bccounts relsting to amounis owed by
redated parties.

Az discussad in Mote 18, the Company sxtendead a loan 1o DMFHI that was used to financs
DMFHII's purchase of DMFT's Second Lien berm loans. The loan was converbed inko ordinary
shares in DMPLFL in May 2020,

Key managenent personme! Compensation

Hey management perscnnel of the Group are those personz having authorty and
responsibiily for planning, directing and contraliing the activities of the Group. The Direclors
of the Company and key executive officers {(excluding executive diretions) am considerad as
key managament parsonnel of the Group,

The key management personnel compensation & as follows;

< Group - - COMPANY sssmmuimma
Yoar ended Year ended Yearsnded Yearendod Yearendesd Year orided
3 April 30 April 30 April 0 aprll 30 Agril 30 Aprd
foor ] anaa FiikFg 2024 Foral 2023
LSS 000 LS 0o Ly UsS5000 LSS D00 SE000
Divactors:
Faes ard remunerston 5 ESE 7076 6,930 S0eEn BTy 5,007

Key sxsculive officers
[exciuding Directorsk:

Bhori-imm employes
benafis &,
Past-amplayment benelts

8,056 LE vk ZBn8 4,158 4525
8 Ff) £ = e

W g
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Del Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Motes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 30 April 2024

ig Hen-contralling interest in subsidiaries

The following table summarises the information redeting to the Group's subsidiaries with
shareholden's with maleral non<ontrolling interests, based on their respective finandal
stalements prepared in accordance with IFRS, modified for fair value adjustments an
acquisition and dfferences in Growp's accounting policias,

30 April 30 April 10 Aprl
2024 2023 2023
LIS3'000 LSS Ta0 LIS3000
DMPLFL
Cramerahip mierests held by not-
contaiing niemsis 6.4 3% 643% B.43%
Rewarus 1,737,342 1,733,102 1654913
Profit (118641} (2 942} 45818
Othes comprahenahe income 12,375 &y 5031

Total comprehensive incomea

ibusabke o non-coniroding interasis:

- Prodit (7.B28) i 185) &84
= Qither comprehansea INcoma TEG 438 323

‘oial comprahensive incomoe [6.830 ZAT 3,269
Mancurmei assels 1318310 1,202 4400 1,199,863
Gk amani 1,123.146 1,136,811 127,810
Moncurant liahiites (1,244.148) [B3B.835) (678, 106)
Cumrand Babdiiss {387.733) [BEZ836) (356,362
Mot assots T10.575 B16.A41 813 005

ot assets attributabla o non-

cantralling interests 45 BES 52518 52,271
Cesh Fows provided by operaling

activilies 180, 7EQ {217,6ET] 54 B4B
Cash fiows provided by (used in)

provided by invesling aclivities (6,550 127.133) 131.986)

Cash lows used in financing activites,
barfore divigands i non-controlling

intarests {147 (00 348 267 (24471}
Cunranzy realignmant T} 43 {144)
Hat increase ({decrease) In cash and

cagh equivalents (3,241} 4,480 (1,770

On 15 May 2020, the Company increased its effective stake in OMPLFL after convesting its
long-term recehvabie from DMFHL inte equity investmeant (Mote 6.
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Del Monte Pacific Limited and s Subsidiaries

HNotes to the financial statements.
Far the financlal year ended 30 April 2024

38 Naen-contralling intarest in subsidiaries (cont'd)

30 April 30 April
2024 2023
USS000  USS'000

DRF
Cwnership imterests neld by non-conirodling interasts 10.73% 13%
Revenus 691,834 739026
Profit 45,500 65 4566
Cither comprehensiva incoma (ra0) 8 441
Total comprehensive income

ibutabde to non-controling interesls;

- Preafit 4,845 8,839

- Othae Comprananaive (Rsoms a3 1,087
Total comprehensive income 5,038 9,738
Moncusrent assats 485,100 492 T2
Currant aasels 60,969 A52.040
Moncemnenl liabililes (226,007 (94 274]
ZCurrent lisbilities [B73,076) (628.283)
Met assets 208,07TR 233,184
Senkr perpefual capiial securilles {ron-controlling inferest) (66, 0853)

— Saa Mota B f

Mot assets excluding senior perpelual capital securities 1R9,55 233184

Met assets aftributable to non- controlling interasts

excluding senior perpetual capital securlties 20,388 30,314
Cash flows provided by operating

activilies BG,0E1 41,112
Cuaah Mlowes used in Investing

activilies (147 BET) (183,556)

Cash flows provided by used |n financing
activities, bafore dividends to naon

controlling inlerasts 54,5585 137,502
Currency realignment 1,603 45
ket decrease in cash and cash equivalents (5,447} (4 BT

In relation to the sale of 12% stake in OMPI, the Group recognized non-controlling interest
amounting o US525.4 milkon, representing 12% of the net assel value of DMPY as ai 30 April
2020 [ Mota 6).

On 16 Decemnber 2020, addtional 1% stake was sold to SEA Diner. The increase in
ownership interest of SEA Diner in DMPI resulted to an increase in equity resens amousniing
fo UISE9.3 million [Node &).

O d April 2024, DMPI redeemed 2.54% of its shares owned by SEA Diner (Mot 8).
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el Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Hotes to the financial statements

Fer the financial year ended 30 April 2024

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Infarmation

The changes in liabilities arisng from inancing aclivities of the Group for the year ended 30
April 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Kot

Graip
Fiocal ¥ ear 2004

Currem imlesesl-bearing
e and bormoaings

M wmen injersl-beosing
WETs arel DOfmwirgs

Limass liabiidns

Aenrusd minresl pambe

Dty |abilties

Tolsl batilliss bom lrencing
ackvilem

18

S

&2
13-

Groug
Flmtal ¥ead 3003

Curnim il bassng
ars and boTowings
Mimezurrin] il Ly
Inam s horrmsrgs

Liaases lahiias
Actruad ninmsl paym bis
Disiypbive labidies

Tolpl batuklias os francing
acuwilies

8

18

13

a2
18 2

L]
Group
Flecl Year 7022

Chavan nlerssl-IHsniyg
oars and borsosngs
IO curree Dmeress-baaring
lnars and bomraengs

Leaso fabdins
Bgcned inleeesl payabls
Devivathva Babekties

Tolal Batikies fnom Tirancing
actisiies

Bccrued  Fomeign  Reclassifl-
1 My Cazih Cash imomesi b emchangs cationand M &pri
mFy imfiowe  ceifflows  nof yot paid Sovemant  othars e
USEDH  USFDN UBEDDD  UBEOOD  USEI0D USE0RD  USE'0
200X 2ENGES (1009 - | V¥ Eaay HETHIT B 725
145330 1S00FT4 {17T0,584) - (28405 [2B3006] 1ET.HIS
100 Ced - |35,242) & 168 {15435 205D il a1
1440 —  |UEQT0E]  18S074 (122} - 14,653
HEsD - - - - (A B0 A
L8540 A Tel DET (4540190 209,232 [22E00 ZE AT ZAHMA1E
Aoorumd Foreign Reciyanifi-
i May Cimih Gl bivlarast bl emchangs eallon @nd 3 &prd
20z inPows  catflows  ned ot pald mowvemant  othars 023
L300 LSS0 USS'DOD  USE000 UE§I00 UES'D00  LIER'DDR
23825 3435, T5T {3.343,873) - | 810695 JE0 Bar 05
1230072 12850200 [BEET01) - {8730 |330B42] 1453300
124 350 - 42 E01) 8615 {3,134} 17.088 100,095
M2 = |ueD0E] 130,367 EGH - 10,441
(= ] - - - - [1,388] B RSH
178 &GS A TR 1268 2 s 25145 2050
Bocrupd Foreign  Roclassdis
1 My Casmh Cash  imtorest bt sxchange  eationand 30 Aprl
2029 InBews  ouofflows  nel gal paid s ima athiars 2z
Usi'oo0 USH0de  USS'oSd  LSS00D LSS'000  USE0DS LIS$0M
MIFDS - 2INEND (R ITO T - acet} T 08,23
10FETIN ERZEOO  (TH,IO0) _ a7F 3@ 133807
H2E803 - (38, BT 753 4,081 Fage i 1H 310
JpL3 - [ 4R 12 R ] 52} - MR
- - - - - T.HEE 7,035
1A4nang 2E4RTE (ZOBTHZED 100,224 |2 BT} 43,152 1ML
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Del Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries

Hotes fo the financial stalemeants
For the financial year ended 30 Aprll 2024

39, Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information {cont'd)

Accrusd  Ruclassifi-

1May  Cash Cash  inberedlbed  calion amd 30 April

2023 inflews outfiews solyelpaid  ofhers 2024

Mol USSDO0 US§ODD  US§DOC  US§e00  LS$000  USS000

Company
Fiscal Yoar 2024

Curenl imenss|-baaring

Ipane and Borowings.,

exichading

urider [mance leasas

2 Bife pUmhase

cunirscin -] 324808 HBE00 296535 - 240,052 - 451092
Honcenen| intenesi-

B s and

porosngs, axclsding i

chligatons under

fnance beses and hire

purchame conbacts 41588 50,000 - - 24, 23y 43, 2a

Accnad inferesi payable i .28 = MBS0 42330 - 4,708

Todal Gabilibes froam
Binancing aclivilies ar00es 266600 A0S 4RED L] Saag

Accrund Reoclassih-
1 May Caak Cash  inbérest bid  catios and 38 April
022 inflows  owiflows nal yol paid albers 202N
Hom  USS000 UGSDO0  LSSDO0 Ussnon UBSTO0  WESO0E

Company
Figcal ¥ear 2023

Current inlerest-boaring
i@ and hoTemangs,
anchuding obligalians
under inance leases
anil e puichdss
e gy e 14 1raaT BE.500  {16A,07T1) - 223,888 424,898

Mencurman] inbasasl-
baaning laane ard
bomowings, esniuding
ohligalions e
Frerce laasss and hirs
mrchoss cordracds 13 404 AT 3. DO

Apcruad ntarest payabla 2= 24

= - [222,628) 241,855
(26832 28,726 = 4,228

Total Iebibaps from
Imarcing Boliviias B0ESeF 128500 (1897 003 28,720 1,210 &T0,0BS

- 151 -



Del Monte Pacific Limited and lis Subsidiaries

Hotes ta the financial statements

Far the financial year ended 30 April 2024

30,

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information (cont'd)

1 Moy
FiiFsl

Netls  LESS000

Coampany
Fial Y 2022

Curraiil b |-bearing
loans mnd Dormowengs,
axciuding obigalizns
undar frarce magsg
and himg puncharss
comacis il
Honcurnen| indsrest-
baaning heang and
bomowings. sxckidng
oblgations undar
frurce lanses ard hine
purchass confracis g

Aserussd inlane] Eaya il 23

Todal Gabiltkes froem
liarcing ArivEiag

HR.ATD

283,567
.34t

Gash

LRF000

THE.0E

145,000

hocrusd  Reclaesili-

Cash mlerest but  cation ansd 30 April
milcws  owtflows  not yei pald othare i

LISH R

B B0)

{11,004}

LSS0 UES0H0 UEROG0

= 22471 170571

. {23474, 434587
27 - Ja04

365,712

REERULH

{100,814}

T2.0ET (1400 60E SRR

Raclassification and others include the effect of reclassification of noncurrent portion of

H'llE'I'EE[—Eﬂﬂ.I'Ig hoans and

o current due o the passage of lime, defered

Dorroedngs
financing costs, and fair value adjustmeants of hedge conbracis. This also incheds additions
and termimations of kease liabilities.



D&l Monte Pacific Limited and its Subs|diaries

Motes to the financial statements
For the financial year anded 30 April 2024

1.

Comparative information

Druring the year, the Group restated the classification of its lnans and borowings to reflect
more appropriately the expecied setliement pariod of its ABL. and the classification of carain
noncurrent financial assets caried a1 FVYOC! o refiect the noncurment nature of their
invasimant tenure. Camparative amaounis in the stetament of finandal pastion wers restatad
for consistency. The amounts are reclassifications within the statement of financial positien,
and b affacis of the reclassifications are summarised a8s follows.

meni of financ
Year ended Reclassi- Year ended
Hote 30 April 2023 fication 30 April 2023
(LISE'000) [LISE000) {USE000)
Regtaied
Honcurrent assels
Other noncarrent assets — Finangal 10
assels carmad al FYOCH 42 250 813 42 883
Gurment assets
Prepaid expenses and other cument 14
acsats - Othars BO,G6T {813) 50,054
Meoncurmant labilities
Loans and borrowings 18 0o4 ATT 458 873 1,453,300
Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 18 1,278 876 (468 E23) H30, 053
Subsequent events

In May 2024, the Group formaized a plan 1o sall the real ¢slate at Toppeanish and Maresan
pland with carrying value of approgimately USEE O milllon, Thess assefs will ba classified as
aseets-hald-for-gale in he consolidabed balance shesl with affect from the 1™ quarer unlil
sold.

In August 2024, Del Monde Foode Corparation |l Inc (DMFC"), a subsidiary wilhin DIMFHL,
enterad mio a new hwo-step financing commitmeant (ihe "DMFC-ABL") with its ABL lendars
and cartain other lenders. The DMFC-ABL allows DMFC to bormow up to US5210.0 million
addilional monies in step-one, and incremantal borrowings of up to US530.0 milion In a new
faclty step-two. The commitment alzo lacks financial covenants that could lead to default,
bk faifing to meel milsstones will necessilate govemance changes,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Siockholders and the Board of Dareciors
el Maonte Pagifie Limited and hs Subssdinries
Craipmuir Chambers

PO Bow 71 Road Town, Tortoln

British Virgin Islands

We have audited m accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of Del Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries (the Growp) and the separate financial
statemnents of Del Monte Pacific Limited (the Company), s of 30 April 2024 and 2022 and for each
of the three vears in the period ended 30 April 2024, and have issued our report thereon daied 7
August 2024, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opindon on the basic consolidated
linancial sisements and separate financial stifements tsken as o whole,  The Supplementary
Schedule on Fmancinl Soundness Indicators, inchading their definitions, formulas, caleulafion, and
their appropriateness or usefulness o the intended users, are the responsibiliny of the Group's
manngement.  These financial soundness indicators are not measures of operating performance
defined by Intzmational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS5) and may not be comparmble fo
similardy titled mensures presented by other companies.  This schedule is presented for the purpose
of complying with the Revised Secunties Begulation Code Rule 68 issued by the Securitics and
Exchange Commission, and i nod a required part of the basic consolidated financial siatemants and
separale financial salements prepared in accordance with IFRSs.  The components of these
finamcial soundness indicoioss have been traced to the Group’s consolidated fimancial statements as
af 30 April 2024 and 2023 and for cach of the three vears i the penod ended 30 April 2024 and no
msaterial exceplions wene noded,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO,

CPA Cenificale Mo, 0108257

Tax |denttfication Mo. 221-717-423

BOAPRC Rag. Mo, 000, April 16, 2024, valid until August 23, 2026

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-101-2021, October |, 2021, valid uniil September 30, 2024
PTR No. 10079896, January 5, 2024, Makat: City

T August 2024
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INDEFENDENT AUDMTOR'S REFORT
O SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stackholders and the Board of Directors
Del Monte Pacific Limited and its Subsidiaries
Craigmuir Chambers

PO Box 71 Road Town, Toriola

Hritish ¥irgin Islands

We have sufiied in accordonee with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the sonsolidated financial
gtatements of Del Monte Pacific Liwited and its Subsidiaries (the CGrogp) as at 30 April 2024 and
2023 pnd for each of the three vears in the period ended 30 Apnil 2024, inchuded in this Form 17-A
nnd have issued our report thereon dated 7 Aogust 2024, Our audits were made for the purpose of
forming an opinion on the bosic consgoldned fmoncial stsements taken as a whole, The schedules
listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Siatements and Supplementary Schedules are the
responsibility of the Group's monsgement. These schedules are presented for purposes of complyving
with the Revised Secunties Fegulation Code Rule 68, and are not part of the basic consolidaed
fimsancial stalements, These schedules have been subjecied o the puditing procedures applied in the
nudit of the consolidated findncial statements and, in owr opinkon, fairly state, in all matarial respects,
the information required 1o Be set forth therein in relation to the consolidated financial statements
taken as o whaole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAY D & CO,

Vi

Pariner

CPA Certificate Mo, 0108257

Tax ldentification No. 221-71 7023

BOAPRC Reg. No. 0001, April 16, 2024, valid until August 23, 2026

BIR Accreditation Mo, 08=-001998101=2021, October 1, 2021, valid uniil September 340, 2024
PTR Mo, HH7985%, JTonuary 5, 2024, Makati City

T Aupust 124



STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR CONSOLIBATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The menagement of Del Mot Pacilic Limiled and its Subsidinries (collectively refermed o as
the “Company”} b responsibie for the prepandson ond fiir presestmion of the corsolidated
financial stbements. including ike schedules minched therein, as ot Apel 30, 2034, and 2093 ond
lor each of the three years in the period ended April 300 2024, in sccordonce with the presuribed
financial roposting frmowark indicated thersin, and for such intsmal contml 2 manag2ment
debermines i morissry o enable the preparation of consolidated Minarcial statements that @e free
Trvim masierinl misesement. whother due 10 fracd or ermor.

in prepanny the censolidated financlal smacmems, manageroent is resporsibie for assessing 1be
Civmipany 5 ahility to contirme a5 8 going concem, disclosing, 15 applicable mafers reluted to g
coeern disd wing the grng-costsm busis of ascounting, undeas munagement gilker intemxds fo
lsudaie tie Covpany or cosse operifiog, ar his po realisthe aliermative b o do so

Ths Beaed of Chrectors F responsible Tor overssstng the Compary s fivmncial reporting process.

The Beard of Dirsciors reviews and appeoves the consolidated financial sabemene, isiuding the
sehedules anpched therin, and submis the same 1o e stock ke,

SxCip Domes Velayo & Co, the independem auditor appaimesd by the stockholders, bas audited
ite comsolidated finencial stiements of the Company In sccordance with PRilippine Standants oo
Auditing ard, in s repont G0 the stookholders, has expeessed s opirion an the Mimess of
presentation wpon completyon of uech auda.

Signabure__
Rolansde C, Gagsd, Exccwiive Chsdrman

Signuiune ¥ 5 =
danelito [K Cam dr., Munaging Director & Chiell Executive Oifficer %

Signanwy__ | S =olf
Parag Sachdeva, Chicl Financial Officer

Shimed on the Tt ey ofugustand,



DEL MONTE PAGIFIC LIMITED
{incamporasad in iha Brigsh Vingin lsiands with limied Sabdity)

This is the nformalion Mamorandum in relafion (o e renewal of the shereholders’ mandate for
Interested Person Transecfions referred fo (n Explanefory Mote (vifl] In the Notce of Annuml
Gangral Meseting dated B August 2024,

INFORMATION MEMORANDUM
in redation o

RENEWAL OF SHAREHOLDERS" MANDATE FOR
INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

3.

Background

Pursuani o Chaplter 8 of the Listing Manual ("Listing Manaeal™) of the Singapore Exchanpe
Securities Trading Limied, Del Monbte Pacific Limisad ("DMPL" or the "Company”) was granted a
sharehpdders’ mandaie on 25 July 2008 ["IPT Mandaie’) o enabis the Comparny, s suebsidkares
and associaed companies (as defined in the Appendic® 1o this nfarmation Memorandum
["Appandie]l, or any of them, % enter inffo sny of tha transactions faling within tha clessas ol
IMeresied Persona described in (he Apperdix® (Cinteresied Persons’), provided thal sich
transactions ame made on nommal commardal ferms and In accordance with the rewview procadunes
for Interastad Person Transactions ("IPTs"| as set ouf in tha Appandiz. This Appandx s & revised
ard updated version of Appendix 1 of the Cempary's Cinsular ko sharaholders dated 4 July 2006
which provides information on the rationale of fie IPT Mandale, the scope of the IPT Mandate, the
benafil o shameholders, the classes of Intaresiad Parsons, the pariculars of the IPTs and fhe
review proceduras for PTe In respect of which shamshaldars’ approval B soughl lor ke IFT
Mandals o be remeveed.

Audit and Risk Committes’s Statemant

Pursuanl 1o Rule 920{1jc} of the Lisfing Manval, the Audil and Risk Cammitbes "ARCT),
campising Mr. Benedict Kwak Gim Song, Mr. Gogirey E. Scotchbrock, Br. Emel 01 Javier and Mrs,
Yvonre Goh, confirms Shalk

(I} iha rewiew procaderes for IFTs s8l oul In the Agpandix ("Review Procedwres’) have noi
changed since sharehaldérs approved the IPT Mandate af the Company's General Mesting af
26 Juty 2008 and

{iiy the Review Procedures are sufficent to easume fhat the [PTs will be caried oul an Aosmal
spmmarcial terns and wil not ke prajudicial b tha insarests of the Company and Bs minority
shanehoiden

AR ransaclions cafied aul wih Inleresled Parsans am subject 1o the perodic revew of the ARG o
enzure thot the prevailing nules and requiations ¢f the Listing Manual {in paricutar Chagler § of the
Listing Manuad] are compled with

The ARC will also consider rom lime 1o Bme whather (e Raview Procedures have bEcoms
inappropriabe or am nsufficient 10 ensure that tha tansachons ame an normal cammencal banms and
will not be prajudicial iz iha inemasts of tha Company and s minonity sharahoides

Disclosuras

Disclogure will be made in the Company’s Annual Repoet on the aggregate vaue of all IPTs
condicted pursuant ta tha IPT Mandale during the fnancial year from 1 May 2023 to 30 April 2024,
and in the Annupd Repots fod The subsequent inancal years thei the IPT Mandate & renewed and
Contneas in lonse, in acconrdance with the form st out i Rwle 307 of the Listng Manual Further,
tha aggregate value of the ransactions conduched pursuant fo the IPT Mandase lor each quaredy
pariod will alss ba disclesad in the qusstarly fnancial sislements thed will be eporag in accargancs
wilk Fivle 705 of fhe Listing Manual
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The Company will comply with the prouisions of Chapier 8 of the Lsting Manual in mspect of all
Future IFTs and, # requined under ke Listing Manual, the Cormpany will seek a fresh mandaie from
shamahoklers shouid fhe existing guidesnes and procedemes for lransaciions with Inleresbed
Persons bacome inagproprale. IF a mamber of the ARC had an imlerast in 8 iransaciion, he will
abstain from participating @ the revies and approval prooess i redation o ihat iransaction.

The classas of Imerested Parsons for which the renewal of the IPT Mandals is sowghl ane:

[ HulriAsa, Ine and 18 asdaciates (a8 iesh lemm is defingd in paragraph 1.5(¢) of the Apsendix)
ard

(i} MulriAsia Holdings Lid and ils subsidiaries.

Directors’ and aubatantial shareholders” intenests

Tha interesis of the Direciors and substaniisd shargholdess of e EEH'N:PEH)' im Eng isguBd sharng
capital of the Cermpany can be found in the Cempany's FY2024 Annual Regart,

Mutridsia Padlic Limited and s reepachve assaciales, baing ntaresisd Persons in refaticn to the
propased renewal of the IPT Mandale. wil abstam fram valing thair respective shareholdings {if any)
in the Company on Resclution & relating to Se renewal of the T Mandaba at e fadhcoming
Annual General Maefing bo be hald on 30 August 2084



APPENDIX

This Appendix is o revised and updated exfract of Appendix T of the Company's
Circilar 1o Shareholders dated 4 July 2008 on the rafonale and scope of the IPT
Mandate, the bermel o sharehaolders, the classes of Interesied Fersons, ihe particuiars
of the [PTs, and the review procedures for (PTs in respact of which e IFT Mandate iz
soinghl 1o be resmawed,

1. CHAPTER 8 OF THE LISTING MANLUAL

1.1 Chapfer 3 af the Usting Manua! CListing Manual'] of the Singspone Exchangs Secwmies
Trading Limifed ["SGX=-5T7 powverns fransoclans by a Wgted comgany, 83 W@eall as
ranractions by iz subzidaned and ssencaled companias Mal ae congidered fo be &l
ngk, with e Nsed companys mfenesfed Persons. When this Chapler apoies o a
ransaction and ihe valie of that bancachon alone o In apgregation with ceher
fransackans candocted with he miemsiaed parsen during Be foancial yesr reachas, or
exvceads, caraln materialfy thresholds, tha Hsfed company 5 required (o make an
imvrediale amnouncedmant, oF o make &0 Immedate sSiooncement and seew (F
shorehoiders’ approval for thed rensaciion.

1.2 Excepi fov ceviain frevsachons whic, by reasen of e Asture of such enaachions, ane ot
considered o pid the Nsted cowmpany @ onsk fo fs inleresied person and fence are
excinded row e amdit of Chapder 3 of the Listng Manual immediade snnoumsamen and
shuvmhalders’ soproval would e requined I respect of bansechons with Inisresisd
Parsors I cenam fnancil threshds fwihich are Dasad an M valie of M Farsacion s
covnpared with e fsied mmyammamnmummrm ALEEE
{"NTA" are reachad of exceaded, i parficivarn, shanshoiders” soproval is required for an
ivdgreshes pargod frarsaciion of @ vadue equal fa, ar wivch oxcoads:

fa) & per cent of ihe lsled company's lates! sudited consolidsled NTA' ar

{B) 5 par cant of the hated company’s ateat sudited consolidated NTA, when sggregatad
wWith oiber ransachons enfered mio wilf He same ineresied paraon (65 SUCh 8 @&
consied wder Chapisr 3 af the Listing Manwal} durng e same financind pear

1.3 Based on the falesl andifed consolidalied accounds of ite Company and S SubsifiEnes
(ke "DMPL Growp® of “‘GrowpT) for the fnenclsd pear anded A0 Apnl 2024 iha
gonsofidaied NTA of ifve DMPL Group was (LSE433 657 857 and 5 per cand of Ivs was
(LISE24,682, 543),

1.4 Chapler ¥ of iba Listing Manua! parniis a Usled company, however, ID seaf 8 mandale
frevnt B3 sharehodders for reclimanl fransschions of & evenss oF eaing nalwe ar $hose
mecessany far #F day-lo-cny opevalions such as e puchase snd sale of supples and
matarels (Dwt Aol 0 espect of the DEchese oF Sele of assels, widedakings o
busingssas) hal may be carvied ol valh the ¥sted compeny's Inlsrasted Parsons.

1.5 Under it Lizting Manuai

(el & entilty &f Fak® (EARH means:
i the faled company,

{1} & suheiiary of the beled compeny that i ool Sokted ovi fie SGX-ST oF an
approvad exchangs, of

(¥l an sssociated company of the hsfed compady thal is nol ¥sled on Mg SEX-5T
or aft spproved exchamgs, pmwded thal the fsled company andfar iy
subsidisres (the “Fsied group’l or the lisled group aid 43 dofenssiad
peraans), has conlol over the associaled company;

(¥ &0 “associzied COMPany” mMasns A company §1owhich ar feas! 20% ol ol moe
fhant 50% of ds sheres ane held by fha Nsdad company o istad grom;

fe} @ “associaie” i relatior fo & inlaresisd parson who B 3 direcior, chief axecufive
cfficar ar confraiing shamsticidar, includes an mroediale famdy member (thet (5, the
spouge, chiy, sdopted-chiic) sfep-chid, stlng o parent! af such direciar, chiel
execuiive officer ov confroling shamsholdes, fhe fuslees of any frual of which the
directanfys dnmadiaie famiy. the chis? evecuive offiertys immedate famiy or
commiing sharsholdechis imredats famiy (3 8 benaficiary ar in tha case of @

3




discrafionary fusl, 15 8 dscrehon@y phecl and any company i which e
direcionhis immodiate family, e civel execitive oficanfis immadels family ar
conimiing shavehalderts wmediale famiy has an aggregals nfanest (el or
inaraciyl of 30% ar mare, and whene 8 eonlrofing sharetoidar lo 8 conporation, f8
subsidiary of hoding company o felow srbaitary or a company in which § andbr
iy frave foveclly or indiecy) an nferast of 309 ar move;

@l an “spproved exchangd” mesns & sock exchange thal hag nies which safaguand
the intarasis of shambaitars ageinst inderesied porsen fransachone sccarting i
similar principles ba Chapter § of the Listing Manus;

@l &a “Interesfed pavson ' means a oirecon, el ereculve offcer ar conlreding
sharshakder of the lzled compeay oF an assosate of anch direcfor, chial ereoufive
officer o coninoling shemelider; and

] &1 “Inferesied BOFSOR IFARSSCHON " MEANE 8 Mansasion Defiaen an emdy i sk
and an ifenesied porson,

2 RATIONALE FOR THE NEW !PT MANDATE' FOR THE INTERESTED PERSON
TRANSACTIONS

it = eovimaged fnl i the erdnasy course afl hel businesses, fransactons babaaen
compantes in the EAR Group (as defined below] and the Company’s Inderesled Pavsond
ave Nkely fo occwr from Boe fo Sme. Such frensaciions woold nchide, bel moe mal fmiled
fo, M prowision of poods and sendces b e ordiney course of businsss of e EAR
Group fo he Company's nferested Parsons or the ablaning of goods and sensces from
[fagrm.

i wvigwy of the [ime-sansitive naive of commarciad ransacions, dho oblaming of a rmaadss
[tz “MNew IPT Mandate”) purawant i Shapher § of Iha Lishing Manus wif ansble;

fal  DMPL
) subsidanes of DMPL (oifer than subsiddares Bxled an the SGX-5T or i agpaved
exchange); amd

e eesociaied companies of DMPL forhar than associated compaiies Fsled on e
SEX-5T or an apioved sxchangel over wiich the DWPL Group, or e OMPL
Group and inleresied persanys] of OMPL hag ar have coning, [lopethar, the "EAR
Growp®], or any of them, I the ordian cowrse of thelr businessas, fo anler infa e
cafogories of ransschons Cinlerested Perscn Transactions”) st out in paragraph
& baigw wilk Ihe specified classes of OMPL's nferssisd Parsens [ihe “rfareaied
Persons’] saf cul M paraganh § below, provided such feferested Pasca
Transachons ame made an nenmal commentis s,

3 SCOPE OF THE NEW IPT MANDATE'

3.1 The New IPT Mangate will cover inferasted Pareon Trensachions as sai oul i paragraph 8
baiow,

5.2 The Mew IFT Mardalhs wall mall costar any fengection by a company in o EAR Growgh wath
an fnlenasted Parson thal iz below SET00,000 in value as the thrashold and aggregation
raquiremants of Chapter 9 of fhe Lixtag Mapual would nol apply io such frangachians.

3.3 Transechions will Infarestsd Persons (nclwding e Interesied Parsons) thal oo aol fal
wilwn The ambd af e New (PT Mandele wil be siubject io ihe migvanl provisions of
Chapler § aff o Lishing Marusl ancior e applicadils prosisions of e Lisiing Manwal

4, BENEFIT TOD EHAREWOLDERS

Tha haw IPT Mandade and 2 subseguand renewsd [harsafiar an an anrul basis) wil
gihance Mo SOty of companias M fhe EAR Group o pursue DUSNSSS DODOMTUmtes
which ane fme-senslive i nale, and wif sliminate tre need far DMPL o annownce, o
fo anmownce and convene sepavale geoasal mesbngs on @ach occasion [0 289K

| Shombedders’ pooe spproval for the endry by Uhe relavant company in te EAR Grovpiafa |

' Thi IPT Mandals which was approsed by sharsholders in a8 gerersl meeiing hid on 36 July 2006 was
mubasguently rirswead annuslly fom 2007 undl the most recant general mesang of 20 Augesd 2033

q



sUCh fransachons. ThiE wil Substantaly reduce (e expenses assoaind with the
camvarmng of gemeral moefings on an o hoc basis, improve adminslative eficacy
canidErably, and slow Aansowar resoarces and Wme fo be channaied foweds alisining
olfar corporaie objeciives.

CLASSES OF INTERESTED PERIONS

Tha Mew IPT Mandse will agply o the Interasted Fergan Trengaciions wiich ane caried
ot with e folowing classes of irdovesied Pergans

ol MadnAsia Incand ds associates (as such lerm g dafined in paragramh T.5(c) of this
Appsadly 1) ke ‘NeinAsia ne, Group”);

b Mulddsia Holdings Limitad end iz suhsicdVarias (The “Nufridsia Holoings Growp'],
e

fe)  Mr. Egardo M. Cruz, Jr, Mr. Rolsngo C. Gapud, and #ek fespectve associaies
(a8 such ferm is dafinad in paragraph 1 8e) af s Appendy 1)

CATEGORIES OF IWTERESTED PEREON TRANSACTIONS

The Infereslesd Pearson Transeclions with the Infaresiad Persons (a5 descnbed i
pavagras’ & above] which wil be covered by the New IPT Mandale ere el ol Do

(&l General Transactions

This camegory miaies o general Feasachions [“Ganerd  Transsctions?)
cannechion with bha preagiod o, o e obfsning from, lnleresied Parsons of
produchs and sarvioes in fhe normad course af buginess of ihe EAR Group or wish
@re macessey for the dey-io-day operatans of ke EAR Group camprising he
falieing:

it  the sale andior porchase, or jonf sale sadder purchaze, of packaging
materals, food or food-relaled supnles, dems and feasiock;

(0 e prowisicn and ofEaiming of srpansian of food senwce disfibalion,

(Wl the prowision and obiaining of fod peparation, manrEaclunng, processing
falf paciing snd ralaked servicas,

(vl the prowson and abdaning of and paiefpurchage of fechiical 1T, Msuance
and afher relded gendces (auch as  procuremenbudarghousesmvaaton
managamen, sofwane support sie )]

ful  the provigion and oblaming of cal canler and cusiemer hofing senaces
(W] e provision of SecLly SQency Sanices;
fuil) e rents of oifice feciiies and share in abilly casf, and

fudild  tha prowvision or the ohfaining af such albar procucts andior SRnACER WCh am
meonis do, ar i1 coniection with, the provision or phiaining o products
andiar Fanacss i sub-parsgranhs [ B (vl] sboes and Wiich are recuming
frangaciians of & revenue of g nate or necessary for is usngss

fh)  Treasuwry Transaciions

Treasury fransacians somprss the ity Mo wif any Aarssisd Pareon of fonas,
Fap and ophion frensachons for hedging purposes ar i camvigchioon with [ha
aperaions of e DAWPL Grod CTressury Transaciions )

The EAR Group may be able o beralit from compaiiive rales and quoles &1
expadienl manmar o the eainy nfo any lorex, swap and cphion iransachans with any
Interesiad Fersons




F. REWVEW PROCEDURES FOR INTERESTED FERSON TRANSACTIONS

1 The EAR Group hss esfabizhed the folowing proceduras fo ensuie el Unecesied
Pargan Trantasfions are wadsrfaken an an amm’s Bnglh basis and an norma commarzial

farms

fal Gereral Transacfions
Benvigw Procedues
in peneval [here are procedures sslablished by the EAR Group o ensure fhal
dderesied Pevgon Tranfachions with inferested Pecsons am andenakan on an &m's
fength basiz and on normal commercisl ferms consisan] will (the EAR Group's aaual

businass prackicas angd polcies. which are penerally Ao mose favorabls 15 the
Mntaresied Persans thin ihose axianded lo unnainled thind partias.

i particidar, the fofowing rewew (Nocedures Nawe badn pul in placs,
f&8) Pravigion of Services oF the Sale &F Prodiucis
The moview grocedires ans’

(il aV confracis emleved info or ransaciionrs with intevested Persons are i be
cared ol 8t the prevaiing manksd rales of prices of he sendce oF produst
rovidars, on anma which ave no o mone favorshle o e nleresisd Pecsan
fhan the ufus commerhs ferms exlanded o onmlnded i paries
{inciuding, where appicable, prefsrenial ratesbricessaiscounrs accamad 1o
corporale cieslomers ar for bulk pacheses) or olbersise in accovdancs will
Bppkcabie indusing nomas; and

fup wherg ihe pravaling marksd rales oF pricas -arg nol Busiaiie oue o He
fralurg of e sendce lo be prowded o the produc! fo be Sofd e EAR
Group's prichng for siach sandces o be provioed or products D Be 2okd o
irderestad Fearsons &8 defamiogd i accondance with [ha EAR Growp's idus
buziness prachcas and pricing polices, consisienl with the wsral margin fo
be chiaingd by the EAR Group for he sama or substendady simiar fype of
eonlree! or franaechion with uniadaled Mg peviies. Such comparisons e
based on the EAR Group's business expenence (n relafion io those sendces
o prodicls proviousy orowided or sol, whhich AW 85 compavabe as
posaibie lo the serige or areduct 16 be prawded or sold. 0 delermining the
iransackon prioe payatle by inferesied Fersans for Such sevices or
prodicts, fachors such &5, Dl nol hmited i, guanily, volume, conswmpdian,
cugiomer requirsimanls, specificahions, duration of condracl and siradugio
Pivposas of e transachian wil he feken Mo Sccouil.

fbi) Dbtatndng of Services af the Purchasing of Produets
Tha reviaw procodres e

() ol parchasas made by e EAR Group, incliding purchases dom nfereshed
Parzons, ane povemod by the same imamal confrd procedones winch datay
maders gush A2 the coasMufion of wMiems apsrowing aufhonfios, Unad
mongtvy fonsdichipns, the nvmber of wvendors fom whom bids ae o be
obfained and the raview procadures. The guiding principde i3 o objschively
obfain M besl poducls andidy sarvices on the best ferms 0 delsmining
whather fthe price and lenms offersd by wendors, nclinding nleresied
Farsons, ame B and ressaname, feclors such 83, bul nod Bmted do, delvery
Achadidas, spacifcalion comphance, freck record, Bcperience and expenise,
mad whare appicabie, prefeentiad rales, rhales or discounts acconded for
Dk purchiesas, Wi aiz0 De faken inlo socownl; and




F.2
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(il in the evenl Maf guorahions fom winsaled Mid pany vendors cenmal be
ablained (for nstanoe, ¥ thene ane no arelbied thid parly vandars of simédar
rodicts or genvices, of i e product 5 8 proprefary bem), bobh e Chigl
Fingnars! Officer FCFOTY and Chisd Exssiiva Officer "CEOQT of the
Company (as long as fthey hawva no infarest direct or indreo! in hat
fransaciion) will geleming whether the price and farms offsred by tha
inferesied Peafsons o fair and reascnabie by using their Businass
expanance in elation fo thoss servicss or grodicts previously oliaimed o
purchazed, which ore 2 camparable as possibie fo $he sandcs or producl o
e gtfavned ar purchased and wil ensure Mar e s of supgly Wil (whan
appicabla) be i accordance with, or nod higher than, induslry nanms. i eny
one of (he two has an nfemast 0 Mfa rensaction, whelbar trect ar indvect,
fhe reasonabisness of fe grice shall be delermined By e Awdd and Risk
Commiftes of the Company CARCT).

[iel] TT-'I!’.BEI'.I.F}' Trensacions
Pavaw Broceduras

In general, there are procedes esiablished by the EAR Group fo emrsure fhal
Treaswry Trensachions wilh Wnteresied Fersons arg endermaken on &0 sm’s lewgih
hasiEs and on hormal commencial femos consistand with the EAR Group's uswal
busimass pracions and polcies. which ame generally o mom fsvarabis o the
fraveshed Fersma than ihose sxtendad o nredaled thind paas.

{ relpdan fo forex, swap and cphion dansacions with any Inleresied Pevson by e
EAR Group, I Company wil regquie thal rede guolahions shail be obiaimed from
Buch Indevesiad Parson &nd ar basl fwe commercial banvs. The EAR Group iy only
endey Mlp sich forex, Swap or aplion Fansachons wilh such oienasied Person
provced ral speh feems quoded are no less fvorahia Man he ferms gquoted by such
hunkEe.

n addifian fo the rewow procedunes, the EAR Groop wall suppiemand ds dnfarmal spsiems
o anelve thal (interaafed Person Transsclions are pndaviaken will (afermsiad Farpons on
an arm's lenglh basis and on nomal commsnsial ferms as fofows:

ja) each Mieresled Parson Transsclion equal fo ar exceeding SS100.000 for such
eguviand i USE) bwt less than SE1,000 000 for spch equivalent fn LSS in valva will
be sndarsed by fa CFO of the Campany and approved by the CED of the Compary.
and the ARC shail be advised: and

B egch nreresied Person Transsciion aqual 1o or orpesdd S5T7T.000000 for sach
gguivaand i LES) i value wilf bo podorsed By e CFO and CEQ of tha Compaay,
respeciively, and approved by e ARG

Whare [he CFD oF Me Company has any nferest, divect or indires! n e [olenesied
FPersan Transactian, such inferesfed Parson Transachion shal ba approved by tve CEC of
the Company, Where auch CED i3 nof avadabie, e ARC ahail spprowve such inteaatad
Persan Transachon,

Whare Iha CEQ of the Company hes any inferesl, déoct or indiract v tha fnlemeated
Paraon Transechon, sech inleresied Pevson Transachion shal be approved by the ARG
Wibare any membar of e ARC is imeresled in any of e Ineresled Persan Trangacfions,
hi wil abshan fom valing d relabion i ich ransachions,

The Campany wil maintain a regisher of Fensaslions cared oul Wil Infenesied Persons
pirsuant fo e New (PT Mandale (recovding ive fransachion waives, basis, inclding fae
guafaiions obdaned [0 SUSDET Such hess an which hey wene anfarsd nfal, and [he
Croumyany's inlerms sl plan Wil inconporafe an snpual igvew of & Fansaciions enered
it by Uve redavand financisd poar pursuant fio e New BT Mandais,

The ARC ghail revlew the wema audd rapor an feesfed Person Transaclions &
asceriam  thal the  asfabisbed review procedurss e monilor nferasfed  Pason
Transachions have bean campied with, The ARG shaV mwview the iniemsted Pemson
Tramzactions on & quadedy basis.




7.8 I dudng Mese pericdic raviews by the ARG, the ARG i of the view tha! fhe evew
procadwes G stated above heve bacome nsppraprale o insufcian i wew of changes
e the nodure of o ihe marner v wiich, e beshess acliviies of e EAR Group ame
conductad, the Company wi reveT I Sharsodders for a fresh mandate baged oan new
guidelngs and niniaw groceduniss o ensure thal interesied Parson Tramsackans will be on
nomal commensist fanms and will nof be prejudiclal fo e intaresis of the Campany and
ils minorly Sharsholderns.

£ EXPIRY AND SUBSEQUENT RENEWAL OF THE NEW IPT MANDATE

N spproved by Sharehaklers af the Annual General Masling of e Company wiveh iz
sofeduled fo be il on 30 Augusl 2024, the New [PT Mandele wil fake efec! from the
azle of passing of e arcinary resslulion refaling theveln and will confinue n forea wild
the corclasion of M mesf Annual Geoemal Meatng of e Company, misss revohed o
vanad by the Compady i a penaral maesling

Tha Company will seck the spproval of Sharsholders for the subsequent renewal of e
e IFT Mandats &l avary Amaval Generall Wepting, sibiact o the satisfactans raview by
the ARG of the confinwad reguiraments of the New T Mamdale and fhe pocedures for
ihe inferested Parson Transachons.

5 ISCLOSURE OF INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS PURSUANT TO THE NEW
IPT MANDATE

The Comgany wil aincunce e aggregede valbe of Fansechons conduched with
miprastad Parsons pursuan! fo the New IPT Mandate far the gquemady foanci parpds
which Ihe Compeny (& mequied fa mpor on parssant o e Liskng Manas and wihin the
tima repuired for the annowncament of swch oot

Disclosure wil ba made &1 the Armual Separ of the Company for e fnancial pear endad
30 Aprl 2024 of the sggrepale valie of Fedsecions conducied with inlevesied Perans
purstran! fo fhe New (PT Mondate duning e fnancal pear, and will he made 0 the
Company's Aanial Repords e subsaquent Snancial years et e New [PT Mandale
caniinues o be in e, In sccondance with the reguiemanis of Chepler 9 af the Lising
Manugl




